
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Cabinet 

TUESDAY, 18TH DECEMBER, 2007 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Meehan (Chair), Reith (Vice-Chair), Adje, Amin, Basu, Canver, 

Diakides, Haley, B. Harris and Santry 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
 (if any) 

 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late 

items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be 
dealt with at item 17 below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at item 
23 below). 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 

at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 
 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 6)  
 



 

2 

 To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 20 November 
2007. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Standing Orders. 

 
6. MATTERS, IF ANY, REFERRED TO THE CABINET FOR CONSIDERATION BY 

THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE    
 
7. THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE - OCTOBER 2007  (PAGES 7 - 38)  
 
 (Joint Report of the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer – To be 

introduced by the Leader and the Cabinet Member for Resources): To set out an 
exception report on the finance and performance monitoring for October 2007 using 
the balanced scorecard format and showing progress against achievement of Council 
priorities. To agree virements as set out. 
 
 

8. FINANCIAL PLANNING 2008/9 – 2010/11    
 
 (Report of the Director of Corporate Resources and Chief Financial Officer - To be 

introduced by the Cabinet Member for Resources): To consider the draft revenue 
grant settlement on the financial strategy. NOT AVAILABLE AT TIME OF 
COLLATION 
 
 

9. REORGANISATION OF MOSELLE & WILLIAM C HARVEY SPECIAL SCHOOLS  
(PAGES 39 - 146)  

 
 (Report of the Director of the Children and the Young People’s Service – To be 

introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People): To report on the 
conclusion of the statutory consultation on the proposed reorganisation of Moselle 
and William C Harvey all-through special schools to form one primary and one 
secondary special school, both to be part of Inclusive Learning Campuses. 
 
 

10. REVIEW OF HARINGEY COUNCIL'S SCHOOL FUNDING FORMULA AND 
SCHEME FOR FINANCING SCHOOLS  (PAGES 147 - 214)  

 
 (Report of the Director of the Children and the Young People’s Service – To be 

introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People): To report on the 
outcome of the autumn term consultation with schools and the Schools Forum on 
proposed changes to Haringey Council’s Schools Funding Formula and the Scheme 
for Financing Schools. 
 
 



 

3 

11. INTRODUCTION OF FREE NATIONAL OFF PEAK BUS TRAVEL FOR ELDERLY 
AND DISABLED PEOPLE AND IMPLICATIONS FOR HARINGEY  (PAGES 215 - 
224)  

 
 (Report of the Director of Urban Environment – To be introduced by the Cabinet 

Member for Environment and Conservation): To inform the Cabinet of the introduction 
of free national off peak bus travel for elderly and disabled people and the 
implications for Haringey and to seek approval to align the qualifying criteria for the 
‘London’ disabled freedom pass with that of the new national pass. 
 
 

12. CENTRAL LEESIDE AREA ACTION PLAN ISSUES AND OPTIONS PAPER  
(PAGES 225 - 372)  

 
 (Report of the Director of Urban Environment – To be introduced by the Cabinet 

Member for Regeneration and Enterprise): To seek members’ approval for the draft 
Issues and Options report for Central Leeside for public consultation in accordance 
with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004.  
 
 
 

13. CORE STRATEGY - ISSUES AND OPTIONS  (PAGES 373 - 474)  
 
 (Report of the Director of Urban Environment – To be introduced by the Cabinet 

Member for Regeneration and Enterprise): To approve the Core Strategy Issues and 
Options report for public consultation in accordance with the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Development) (England) Regulations 2004.  
 
 
 

14. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK - ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT 2006-
07  (PAGES 475 - 494)  

 
 (Report of the Director of Urban Environment – To be introduced by the Cabinet 

Member for Regeneration and Enterprise): To seek Members approval for the Annual 
Monitoring Report for submission to the Government Office for London as required by 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) and the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004. 
. 
 

15. DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS  (PAGES 495 - 502)  
 
 (Report of the Chief Executive): To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and 

significant actions taken. 
 

16. MINUTES OF SUB-BODIES  (PAGES 503 - 508)  
 



 

4 

 a. Procurement Committee – 20 November 2007 
b. Procurement Committee – 27 November 2007 

 
17. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any items admitted at item 2 above. 

 
18. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC    
 
 The following items are likely to be the subject of a motion to exclude the press and 

public as they contain exempt information relating to the business or financial affairs 
of any particular person (including the Authority holding that information). 
 

19. DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS HRA DWELLINGS AND LAND  (PAGES 509 - 532)  
 
 (Report of the Director of Corporate Services to be introduced by the Cabinet Member 

for Resources): To obtain Members approval in principle for the disposal of HRA 
dwellings that are either uneconomical to repair or not suitable for retention and to 
note the procedure to be adopted for disposal to a preferred partner Registered 
Social Landlord.   
 

 
 

20. DISPOSAL OF DERELICT LAND AT THE REAR OF  MUSWELL HILL LIBRARY  
(PAGES 533 - 540)  

 
 (Report of the Director of Corporate Services to be introduced by the Cabinet Member 

for Resources): To obtain Members approval to dispose of land at the rear of Muswell 
Hill library and to ring fence capital proceeds for library development. 
 

21. RESOLVING SCHOOLS PFI ISSUES IN RELATION  TO  BSF    
 
 (Joint Report of the Chief Financial Officer and the Director of the Children and Young 

People’s Service– To be introduced by the Cabinet Member for Resources and the 
Leade Member for Children and Young People):To update Members on progress with 
resolving the issues arising from implementing the Building Schools for the Future 
programme with the operation of the current Schools Private Finance Initiative and 
sets out a way forward for resolution of  these issues.  NOT AVAILABLE AT TIME 
OF COLLATION  
 
 

22. ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK    
 
 (Report of the Chief Financial Officer – To be introduced by the Cabinet Member for 

Resources): To provide an update on the Alexandra Palace and Park. NOT 
AVAILABLE AT TIME OF COLLATION 
 

23. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS    
 



 

5 

 To consider any items admitted at 2 above. 
 

 
Yuniea Semambo  
Head of Local Democracy 
and Member Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Richard Burbidge 
Cabinet Committees Manager 
Tel: 020-8489 2923 
Fax: 020-8489 2660 
Email: richard.burbidge@haringey.gov.uk 
 
 
10 December 2007 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE CABINET 
TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2007 

Councillors  *Meehan (Chair), Reith (Vice-Chair), *Adje, *Amin, *Basu, Canver, 
*Diakides, *Haley, *B. Harris and *Santry 
 

*Present   
 

Also Present: Councillors Bull and Williams   
 

 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 
BY 

 
CAB81.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1) 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Canver 
and Reith. 
 

 
 

CAB82.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Agenda Item 3) 
 
Councillor Haley – Agenda Item 9 – North London Waste Plan - Issues 
And Options 
 

 
 
HLDMS 

CAB83.   
 

MINUTES (Agenda Item 4): 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 16 
October 2007 be confirmed and signed. 

 

 
 
 
 
HLDMS 

CAB84.   
 

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS (Agenda Item 5): 
 
We received a deputation the spokesperson of which, Colin Marr, 
addressed our meeting and welcomed the new guidance notes and 
criteria to promote sustainable design and construction of future 
crossovers.  However, he referred to continuing problems where 
residents had existing crossovers and he also urged the Council to 
consider making greater use of Article 4 Directions to require planning 
permission to be obtained for works normally deemed to be permitted 
development in order to prevent front garden parking in conservation 
areas.  Concern was also expressed about developers constructing 
crossovers at new developments.   
 
The Cabinet Member for Environment and Conservation responded and 
referred to the rapid review of a policy and the implementation of 
revisions for which he thanked the officers concerned.  He also referred 
to the effectiveness of the new guidelines in reducing the number of 
crossovers constructed in the six month period covered by the report 
which also contributed to the Council’s green borough strategy. Because 
some crossovers had been approved months in advance of construction 
some of those constructed during the period had been approved before 
the new guidance came into effect.  
 

In response to a question by a Member we were informed that the new 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE CABINET 
TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2007 

 

guidelines required adequate provision for drainage of the hard standing 
within the property although this requirement might need to be further 
tightened to ensure use of permeable materials if the current guidelines 
did not prove to be sufficient. 
 

We were also informed that while it was possible to use Article 4 
Directions to prevent front garden parking in conservation areas as 
requested by the deputation there were a number of limitations to such a 
use and, as the new procedures were successfully reducing the number 
of new crossovers, it was not recommended that this method of control 
be utilised at this stage. 
 

Our Chair thanked Mr. Marr for his attendance and we added our thanks 
to the cross borough resident group who had met with officers from the 
Street Scene Division as part of the progress review of the new technical 
guidance. 
 

CAB85.   
 

THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE - SEPTEMBER 2007 (Joint Report 
of the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer - Agenda Item 7): 
 
We noted that this was the fourth report in the current municipal year 
monitoring progress against Council priorities and that 90% of indicators 
were achieving or close to achieving target as at the end of September 
2007. Our Chair also updated us on correspondence he had conducted 
and was conducting with Government Departments and with Ministers 
including on the subjects of the Dedicated Schools Grant, asylum and 
immigration issues, the Area Cost Adjustment and the Formula Grant 
Settlement. We also  that additional PFI credits had been agreed for 
waste management and that a national concessionary fare scheme was 
now in place. 
 
Disquiet was voiced about the performance of the Call Centre which had 
been below target for sometime and clarification was sought of whether 
a long term strategy had been considered to address this. In this 
connection reference was also made to the rapid improvement plan and 
to the recommendations made as part of the Scrutiny Review of 
Customer Services.  
 
We were advised that part of the Rapid Improvement Plan would be to 
delivering the Customer Services performance targets and to address 
the concerns now raised. There had been some improvements in 
performance since the implementation of the Plan and officers were 
looking to imbed those improvements as well as to incorporate  the 
recommendations of the Scrutiny Review.  
 

 With regard to the overall revenue budget monitoring as at the end of 
September position, shows a forecast net overspend of £0.5 million. This 
was made up of a number of budget pressures that largely related to 
Asylum and Adult Social Care and was partly offset by a projected under 
spend on the Housing general fund, an earmarked reserve for asylum 
and additional investment income.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE CABINET 
TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2007 

 

Arising from consideration of the reported budget pressures in respect of 
Council costs regarding Alexandra Palace, reference was made to 
figures provided at the Council meeting on 15 October and clarification 
was sought of the purpose of the estimated additional money in 2007/08 
now reported and, in particular, whether it was a fixed cost or on-going 
additional spending. Clarification was also sought of the reason for any 
increase in the variable costs on a monthly basis.  
 
We were informed that the Council provided a subvention to the 
Alexandra Palace and that it had been hoped that with the transfer of the 
lease to Firoka Ltd this subvention would reduce. However, as a result of 
a recent Court decision to quash the Charity Commission’s order the 
loss would continue at least until a new order was composed by the 
Commission and consulted upon in accordance with the Court 
judgement. No notice of the question having been given,  a further 
explanation would be provided to Members. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the report and the progress against Council priorities as 
shown in the Appendix thereto be noted. 

 
2. That approval be granted to the virements as set out in Section 

21.5 of the interleaved report. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CFO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CFO 

CAB86.   
 

FINANCIAL PLANNING 2008/9-2010/11 (Report of the Director of 
Corporate Services  and the Chief Financial Officer - Agenda Item 8): 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the national and local be noted. 
 

2. That the pre-business plan reviews be released for consultation 
and budget scrutiny. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DCS/ 
CFO 

CAB87.   
 

NORTH LONDON WASTE PLAN - ISSUES AND OPTIONS (Report of 
the Director of Urban Environment - Agenda Item 9): 
 
Councillor Haley declared a prejudicial interest by virtue of being Chair of 
the North London Waste Authority and withdrew from the room during 
the consideration of this item. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That approval be granted for public consultation to the Issues and 
Options report for the North London Waste Plan. 

 
2. That the consultation arrangements as set out in the interleaved 

report be noted. 
 

3. That authority be granted to the Director of Urban Environment in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Enterprise and 

 
 
 
HLDMS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DUE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DUE 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE CABINET 
TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2007 

 

Regeneration to make any necessary minor changes to the Issues 
and Options report prior to public consultation. 

 
CAB88.   
 

PROGRESS REPORT ON THE OPERATION OF THE NEW 
TECHNICAL GUIDANCE FOR CROSSOVER APPLICATIONS (Report 
of the Director of Urban Environment - Agenda Item 10): 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the impact of the stringent criteria on crossover applications 
since adoption of the new guidance notes be noted. 

 
2. That approval be granted to the continued use of the new 

crossover guidance notes to determine current and future 
applications for crossover construction. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DUE 

CAB89.   
 

80 BEACONSFIELD ROAD N15 - COMPULSORY PURCHASE 
ORDER (Report of the Director of Urban Environment - Agenda Item 
11): 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That approval be granted to the use of compulsory purchase 
powers to acquire the property known as 80 Beaconsfield 
Road, Haringey, N15 (shown edged red on Drawing No. BVES 
A4 2507)) compulsorily under section 17 of the Housing Act 
1985 and the Acquisition of Land Act 1981. 

 
2. That the Head of Legal Services be authorised to make and 

seal the Order for submission to the Secretary of State for 
Communities and Local Government for consideration and 
approval and to confirm the said Compulsory Purchase Order in 
the event of the Secretary of State returning the Order. 

 
3. That upon confirmation of the Compulsory Purchase Order to 

proceed with the acquisition. 
 

4. That, subject the confirmation of the Compulsory Purchase 
Orders by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government or the Council, approval also be granted to the 
disposal of the property to a Registered Social Landlord in the 
first instance, or to a Private Developer in which case the sale 
be made by way of auction with covenants applied to bring the 
property back into use as soon as possible.  

 
5. That approval be granted to the re-cycling of the receipt from 

the disposal back to the capital programme budget. 
 

6. That indemnification of the financial costs of the compulsory 
purchase order be approved through the capital programme. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DUE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HLS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DUE/ 
HLS 
 
 
DUE/ 
HLS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DUE/ 
CFO 
 
 
DUE/ 
CFO 
 

CAB90.   URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH CABINET  

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE CABINET 
TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2007 

 

 MEMBERS (Report of the Chief Executive - Agenda Item 12): 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved. 
 

 

CAB91.   
 

DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS (Report of the 
Chief Executive - Agenda Item 13): 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved. 
 

 
 

CAB92.   
 

MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES (Agenda Item 14): 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the Procurement Committee held on 23 
October 2007 be noted and any necessary action approved. 
 

 
 

 
GEORGE MEEHAN 
Chair 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda item:  

 
   Cabinet                                                            On 18/12/2007 
 

Report Title: The Council’s Performance – October 2007 
 

Report of: The Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision 

1. Purpose   
1.1 To set out an exception report on the finance and performance monitoring for October 

2007 using the balanced scorecard format and showing progress against 
achievement of council priorities.  

 
1.2 To agree the virements set out in section 21.5 of the report. 
 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member for Performance Management (Cllr George 
Meehan) 

2.1 Members of the Cabinet will be pleased to note that 89.5% of indicators are achieving 
or close to achieving target as at October ’07. This illustrates that we continue to 
make good progress against the council priorities. In addition 86% of indicators in our 
scorecard have maintained or improved performance compared to last year.  

 
3. Introduction by Cabinet Member for Resources (Cllr Charles Adje) 
3.1 This report provides Members with the financial position for the month of October and 

it is worth noting that the forecast net overspend has come down from £0.5m in 
September to £0.1m on revenue. I draw Members attention to paragraph 19.3 
onwards regarding the budget summary, and paragraphs 20 and 21 in terms of 
Capital and Financial Administration and asks that the virements proposed are 
approved. 

 

4. .Recommendations 
4.1 To note the report and progress against council priorities as shown in the appendix. 
4.2 To agree virements set out in section 21.5. 
 

 
 
 
 
Report Authorised by: Dr Ita O'Donovan – Chief Executive 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 7



 

 2 

 

 
Contact Officers:                             
                           Margaret Gallagher – Performance Manager 
                           Telephone 020 8489 2553 

 
John Hardy – Head of Finance – Budgeting, Projects and Treasury  

                           Telephone 020 8489 3726 
 

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 
There are no legal implications 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
6.1 Budget management papers 
6.2 Service PI returns including unit cost data 

7. Strategic Implications 
7.1 This report monitors Haringey’s position in relation to a number of indicators that will 

be used to assess the Council in the Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
(CPA). Performance against these measures will determine Haringey’s rating in 
2008. The report also gives an indication of the level and quality of services delivered 
on the ground. 

8. Financial Implications 
8.1 The overall revenue budget monitoring, based on the October position, shows a 

forecast net overspend of £0.1m. There are a number of budget pressures relating to 
Asylum and Adult Social Care, which are partly offset by an earmarked reserve for 
asylum and additional treasury investment income.  

8.2 The aggregate capital projected position in 2007/08 is currently projected to 
underspend by £10.1m.  This is made up of £4.5m in Children and Young People 
(BSF), £3.7m Housing, £1.5m in Corporate Resources and £0.4m in Adult, 
Community and Culture.  These are mainly profiling issues that are explained later in 
the report. 

8.3 The DSG element of the overall Children and Young People’s Service budget is 
projected to underspend by £0.4m and this is in respect of the Network Family 
support budget that will be requested to be carried forward to meet the summer term 
2008 commitments. 

8.4 In relation to the HRA, the net current revenue projection is a surplus of £0.5m 
against the approved budget mostly relating to one off income. This latest forecast 
position was reported by HfH to their Board on 26 November 2007.   

 
 

Page 8



 

 3 

9. Legal Implications 
9.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 

10. Equalities Implications  
10.1 Equalities are a central thread throughout the council’s performance and performance 

updates on key equalities indicators are reported on in this report.  

11. Consultation 
11.1 The scorecard includes a number of resident and staff satisfaction measures to show 

how well the Council is perceived. The results show the level of satisfaction with the 
Council currently and should provide a baseline as well as informing action to 
improve satisfaction levels. 

12. Background 
12.1 This is the regular finance and performance monitoring report for October 2007.  It is 

based on the financial monitoring reports prepared for the budget management 
meetings held on 19 November for period 7 and the service submission of the basket 
of performance indicators that have been agreed for 2007/08. 

12.2 Members have agreed the Council Plan and five priorities for Haringey. These are: 

• Making Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs 

• Creating a better Haringey: Cleaner, Greener and Safer 

• Encouraging lifetime well-being 

• Promoting independent living   

• Delivering excellent services 
 

12.3 This report focuses on monitoring and reviewing performance against those priorities 
and against key objectives as set out in our Council Plan. The indicators included 
have been categorised according to the priority under which they sit and progress is 
illustrated against indicators achieving, close to or failing to achieve agreed targets 
for 2007/08.  

12.4 The reporting continues to be in the form of a balanced scorecard. The scorecard 
looks at performance across four dimensions: service excellence, financial health, 
customer focus and organisational development. The scorecard consists of corporate 
and service performance measures. 

12.5 The report continues to include routine monitoring of unit costs so that performance 
and costs reflecting activity allow us to make judgements around whether we are 
delivering value for money services.  

 

13. How the reporting works and interpreting the scorecard  
13.1 Performance data is shown in Appendix 1. Performance is reviewed against a 

representative basket of 109 indicators at least 58 of which are updated monthly. 
Where specific indicators do not lend themselves to monthly reporting, they will be 

Page 9



 

 4 

reported at the appropriate frequency. The scorecard illustrations in the summary are 
based on year to date traffic lights and reflect progress as at the month being 
reported i.e. this report is based on performance as at October ‘07. Where data is 
unavailable for particular indicators at a specific point in time e.g. survey data, these 
still feature in the scorecard illustrations with our assessment of progress as at that 
time. The latest available data and traffic light awarded is incorporated into the 
calculations and the numbers shown both on the balanced scorecard and in the 
graphs showing progress against council priorities.  

13.2 Progress on indicators continues to be tracked on a monthly and year to date position 
against the 2007/08 target using a traffic light annotation where: 

•  green: =  target achieved / performance better than planned 

•  amber: = just below target (normally a 5% tolerance) 

•  red: = target not achieved / below expectation 

13.3 In addition, trend arrows depict progress since the last financial year, so whilst an 
indicator may receive a red traffic light for not achieving target, it will show an upward 
trend arrow if performance had improved on the previous year’s outturn. Between 
them, the lights and arrows indicate current progress and predict the likely annual 
position.  

13.4 This year’s scorecard appendix also includes some graphs to illustrate monthly 
progress on some key indicators over time and against target. 

13.5 The latest all England top quartile data (for 2006/07) also features in the scorecard 
along with an indication of our quartile position in 2006/07. This enables progress to 
be assessed not only against the targets we set but in terms of how we compare with 
others and how close we are to attaining what we ultimately are aiming to achieve. 

14. Making Haringey One of London’s Greenest Boroughs 

Urban Environment 

14.1 Recycling and composting performance is consistent with recent months at 24.3% 
although this is still provisional as tonnage receipts have not yet been received for 
October. Actual recycling tonnage for October is at the highest level since May 07,  
but the recycling rate has been negatively impacted this month by high domestic 
waste tonnage (see BV84 comment), as a result performance remains just short of 
the 25% target set for 2007/08. To ensure that the target is met the recycling service 
will be further improved by the roll out of an additional commingled round in 
November/ December ’07, the introduction of recycling on private estates in January  
and by generally improving participation rates across all existing schemes. The 
services Communications Plan and Waste Minimisation Plans are both expected to 
impact on reuse, recycling and composting.  

14.2 The waste tonnage collected for October increased to an annual equivalent of 
387kg of household waste collected per head missing the target. The residual 
tonnage in the year to date remains below the equivalent figures for 2006/07 and it is 
still expected that the target of 370Kg per head will be met. Also, communications 

Page 10



 

 5 

work around waste prevention is planned this year which should help contribute 
towards reducing household waste arisings. 

14.3  The financial position is on target within this priority. 

15. Creating a Better Haringey, Cleaner, Greener and Safer 

 
Urban Environment 
 
15.1 In October 20% of streets were judged to have unacceptable levels of litter and 

detritus, half the level reported in 2006/07. The BVPI 199a annual performance that 
feeds into the CPA will be an average of the results for June, October and February. 
Performance is currently exceeding the 29% target and results for the year to date 
suggest that the annual target will be met. Some of this improvement may be 
attributed to a recent value for money review which resulted in new ways of working. 
A litter picking service was trialled in five wards in Haringey since June’07 namely 
Harringay, Bounds Green, Seven Sisters, St Ann’s and White Hart Lane.   These 
wards were chosen because BV199 inspection records showed that they were 
suffering from the highest levels of litter. They also coincide with the parts of the 
borough where analysis of responses to residents’ surveys showed that satisfaction 
levels were lowest.  

15.2 Although limited information is available the impact of this new way of working 
appears to be substantial in reducing real and relative levels of litter. Changes in the 
wards where litter picking has been operating between July and September ’07 are 
as follows: 

Harringay, down from 29% litter to 10% litter 
Bounds Green, down from 28% litter to 5% litter 
Seven Sisters, down from 28% litter to 8% litter 
White Hart Lane, down from 24% litter to 5% litter 
 

15.3 In order to ensure that the Council gains full value and recognition for this service in 
terms of improving resident satisfaction, residents living in the streets were sent a 
letter explaining why the extra litter picking services were introduced. Residents will 
also be asked for feedback on whether the litter picking services have improved 
cleanliness in their area and how satisfied they are with overall cleanliness. Following 
the review of the impact on satisfaction levels a workshop will be held to understand 
Haringey Accord’s improvement proposals, if the litter pick service is deemed a  
success, it is planned to expand the service to a further 5 wards in January 2008 with 
the approval of the Cabinet Member. 

15.4 Performance for graffiti and fly posting improved further in October and at 5% and 
2% respectively hit target for the first time this year. Although challenging targets 
were set for 2007/08, tranche one results at 6% and 2% respectively placed us 8th out 
of 28 London boroughs for graffiti and joint 14th on fly posting. Waste Management 
have been working with the service provider to ensure that work is targeted in areas 
which have historically suffered from high levels of graffiti and flyposting. This work 
appears to be helping to improve performance. As with BVPI 199a annual 

Page 11



 

 6 

performance will be an average of June, October and February performance and it is 
expected that the annual targets will be met.   

15.5 The financial position is on target within this priority.   

Safer Communities (PPPC) 
 
15.6    The number of British Crime Survey (BCS) comparator crimes reported in October 

increased to 1,600. When projected up this performance remains short of our 
challenging target of 17,211 (1,395 fewer offences than in 2006/07) for 2007/08. The 
performance in the period April to October with 10,772 crimes committed is 0.7% 
higher than the same period in 2006. If current performance continues the 7.5% 
reduction target will not be achieved. 

15.7 Four of the BCS comparator crimes showed an improvement in performance with a 
worsening trend compared with 2006/07 seen in six categories. There has been a 
significant fall in personal robbery (17.2%) but notable increases have been seen in 
criminal damage, theft from motor vehicle and burglary.  

16. Encouraging Life Time Well-being 

 
Children and Young People 

16.1 Much progress has been made against the Enjoy and Achieve outcome in the 
Children and Young People’s Plan. Provisional results represent a 5% improvement 
in the percentage achieving 5+ A* - C GCSE results since 2006 and a 4% 
improvement when they include  English and Maths. There has also been 
improvement at Key stage 2 results for the fourth consecutive year recognised 
recently by the DCSF. Our combined results in English and mathematics, achieved 
by schools in the authority, are amongst the most improved based over the period 
2004-2007 and we have continued to see a reduction in the number of schools with 
results below DCSF floor targets (65% Level 4 + in English and Mathematics). 
Although we do not have any schools with results below 50% in either English or 
mathematics, we still have 11 schools whose results are below 65% in English and 
16 in mathematics.  The service are working with schools whose results are above 
50% for the first time to prevent slippage in the results and there is on-going work to 
improve the performance of the lowest achieving pupils.   

16.2 Haringey’s young people not in education, employment or training (NEETs) remains 
considerably higher than those in comparator boroughs. As at September ’07 there 
were 432 or 14.1% of young people not in education, employment or training, an 
increase of 8 (2%) from last month although still below last September when the 
percentage NEET was 15.9%. The number of NEETs as at October reduced to 370, 
a decrease of 62 but figures should be viewed with a high degree of caution as there 
is still a relatively large hangover of Not Knowns (over 25% of the cohort) from the 
seasonal spike in September. This is as a result of the new cohort of 16 year olds 
whose currency has expired and for whom new destination has not yet been 
established. The Not Known figure is likely to improve once school leavers moving 

Page 12



 

 7 

onto university or higher education have been confirmed by UCAS as these 19 year 
olds are currently recorded as Not Known. 

16.3 Connexions North London has led on actions to reduce NEET levels but as from 
April 2008, responsibility transfers to the Local Authority. The transition and 
embedding of the Connexions service to the local authority is a key element in raising 
performance. Other partners include schools, post 16 providers, especially the sixth 
form centre, CoNEL, work based learning providers and Haringey Adult Learning 
Service (HALS). This is one of our Local Area Agreement stretch targets and there 
are many initiatives in place to tackle the comparatively high NEET levels. These 
include immediate support for young people who first present as NEET and a number 
of courses established at Level 1 and pre Level 1 as well as a pre NEET engagement 
programme. The opening of the Haringey Sixth Form Centre is likely to have a 
positive effect on NEET numbers as more Haringey residents will be able to select in-
borough provision. 

 

Adult, Community and Culture 

16.4 Despite a dip in the number of visits to our sports centres in the second quarter, the 
projected performance based on 733,770 visits in the year to October puts us on 
track to achieve our 1.18million visits target for 2007/08. The cost per visit to a leisure 
centre at £1.46 in October and remains below our £2.09 target for 2007/08.    

16.5 As previously reported the commissioning budget for adult social care is currently 
projected to overspend by £1m. Part of this is in the learning disabilities service 
where there is a significant pressure from the number of people known by the 
service, who may potentially require support in this financial year.  It also includes 
physical disabilities where actual client numbers are 23 above the budget assumption 
and this is 7 more than that reported last month. The service is taking action to 
ensure high cost care packages are reviewed to reduce costs wherever possible 

16.6 The capital programme is projected to spend £0.4m below budget and is mainly in 
respect of the Lordship Recreation Ground (£0.3m) where work has been deferred 
pending a successful bid from the Heritage Lottery Fund to enable all the required 
work to be undertaken.  It is anticipated that the work will be carried out next year.   

17. Promoting Independent Living 

Children and Young People 

17.1 In October 8 of the 9 (89%) looked after young people who turned 19 were in 
employment, education or training. Excellent performance has been sustained in this 
area with looked after young people in employment, education or training (BV161/ 
PAF A4) and care leavers achieving above that of the local population of 19 year olds 
in education, training or employment. In the year to October ’07 66.7% of care 
leavers (aged 16) were engaged in employment, education or training at the age of 
19 against a target of 72% for 2007/08. 

Page 13



 

 8 

17.2 20 children have been adopted or granted special guardianship in the year to 
October (6.3%) against a target of 24 (7%) by the end of March ’07. Performance on 
this indicator is cumulative but current performance suggests that the 2007/08 target 
will be met. (BV163/ PAFC23). 

17.3 The Children and Young People’s budget (excluding Asylum and DSG) has up to 
£0.2m of projected pressures relating to the commissioning budget (Looked After 
Children) that the service are working to manage. This is £0.1m lower than that 
reported last month.  

17.4 The Asylum position relating to children is projected to overspend by a net £0.5m. 
This projected overspend is over and above the additional base budget allocated to 
the service. However, a one off contingency has been assumed to offset the 
projected asylum overspend in Children and Young People and in Adults, Culture and 
Community. Actions are being taken to reduce ongoing costs. The back dated claim 
issues are almost all resolved with a relatively small financial impact. 

 
17.5 The Children’s capital budget is projected to underspend by £0.2m excluding BSF. 

The previous underspend reported of £4.2m for BSF in 2007/08 is due to programme 
slippage and has, therefore, been recommended for re-profiling to later in the 
programme. This has had the effect of significantly reducing the forecast capital 
underspend for the service this year.  

 

Adult, Community and Culture 

17.6 As at October we have helped 105 older people per 1,000 population to live at 
home exceeding our target of 101.  Performance is now within the top PAF banding. 
(BV54/ PAF C32) 

17.7 99% of equipment was delivered within 7 working days in October exceeding our 
90% target on this key threshold indicator. 

17.8 The number of adults and older people per 100,000 population that received a direct 
payment dipped slightly again in October and remains slightly short of the monthly 
profiled target of 141. There are currently 14 pending clients being counted towards 
this indicator. The physical disabilities team are looking at moving clients for whom 
we pay their telephone line rental, onto direct payments which would increase this 
indicator by 30 and move us into the top performance banding. (BV201/ PAF C51) 

17.9 Excellent performance has been maintained on waiting times for assessment. This 
indicator is the average of new older clients receiving an assessment where time 
from initial contact to first contact with the client is less than or equal to 48 hours (part 
a) and the percentage where time from first contact to completion of assessment is 
less than or equal to 4 weeks (part b). The average of the two is 96.5% and continues 
to exceed our 90% target. (BV195/PAFD55) 

17.10 Performance on waiting time for care packages remained at 91% of older clients 
receiving their care package in less than 4 weeks in October. Although performance 

Page 14



 

 9 

has improved recently and is within the top performance (PAF) banding, it remains 
short of the 96% target. (BV196/PAF56) 

17.11 The home help and home care indicator which measures the average gross hourly 
cost of home care based on contact hours in a sample week is £17.34 compared with 
a target of £17. This has been revised and is based on the most recent sample taken 
for this year. 

17.12 Asylum that relates to the Adults, Community and Culture budget is projected to 
overspend by a net £0.4m. There are currently 128 clients that have no recourse to 
public funds who are supported by the authority, this is four lower than reported last 
month. Following a planned review of clients’ eligibility for services, the Asylum team 
will look to move clients out of the service. There is an expectation that the projection 
will fall during the financial year.  As previously mentioned a one off contingency for 
asylum in reserves has been assumed to offset the projected asylum overspend in 
Children and Young People and in Adults, Culture and Community.  

Benefits 

17.13 The average number of days to process a benefit claim increased to 44 days for the 
month of October. This was an expected increase whilst the backlog of claims built 
up are being dealt with. Year to date performance is 36 days against a target of 32 
days.  This follows migration to a document management system (Comino W2) and 
strategies are in place to address the dip in performance (BV78a). Although there will 
not be an immediate improvement, once the build up of claims has been cleared by 
December and a recovery in this indicator is expected.   

 
Housing Strategy (Urban Environment) 
 
17.14 In the year to October the average length of stay in hostels is 58.4 weeks just inside 

our target of 60 weeks. The count for this indicator measures the time that homeless 
households with children have spent in shared hostel accommodation. Households 
are only counted at the point that they are provided with a settled home and leave 
temporary accommodation.  Of the thousands of households with children who are 
currently living in temporary accommodation, only 27 have previously spent some 
time in shared hostels, so will count towards this indicator when they are eventually 
provided with settled accommodation. Although performance on this indicator is now 
within the target level and remains in the lower quartile nationally, the Council works 
hard to minimise its use of shared hostels for families with children  and, where this 
cannot be avoided, ensures that families are moved to more suitable temporary 
accommodation as soon as practicable. This ensures that households with children 
spend as short a time as possible in shared hostel accommodation. 

17.15 The number of homeless households living in temporary accommodation is higher 
than projected under the Council’s temporary accommodation reduction plan. 
Although the budget was based on the assumption that the number of households 
would reduce from 5,861 to 4,824 during the year 2007/08, it has proved difficult to 
reduce the number of households in temporary accommodation and the actual figure 
at period 7 was 5,415, compared to a profiled position of 5,193. £0.315m is proposed 

Page 15



 

 10

to be formally vired to the Housing non-ring fenced budget to meet the extra costs of 
preparing for the inspection and improving services. The new Assistant Director for 
Strategic Housing, appointed in October, has put in place plans to ensure that the 
number of households in temporary accommodation is reduced to 4,824 by the end 
of March 2008, to 4,000 by the end of December 2008 and to 2,600 by the end of 
March 2010.  

 

18. Delivering Excellent Services 

 
People and Organisational Development (POD) 
 
18.1 The average number of working days lost to sickness per full time equivalent 

employee increased to 9.84 days in October. Performance in the year to October at 
9.35 days remains above our 8.8 day target. Although sickness absence levels are 
reducing, particularly in these areas and performance is in the second best quartile 
this remains an area that needs to be closely monitored. 

18.2 The Local Democracy budget is now projected to spend at budget. 

 
Policy, Performance, Partnerships and Communication (PPPC) 
 
18.3 Performance on complaints handling in timescale remains above the target. In the 

year to October 1,001 of the 1,112 (90%) complaints closed at stage 1 (local 
resolution) were responded to within the 10 working day timescale. For the more 
complex service investigation (stage 2), of the 105 cases received in the year to 
October, 85 were resolved within the 25 working day timescale and performance at 
81% is now exceeding the target set for 2007/08.  

18.4 32 of the 36 (89%) stage 3 (independent review) complaints closed in the year to 
October were completed within the 20 working day timescale, short of the 95% target. 
However this amounts to just 3 cases short of the target.  

18.5 Of the 1,899 Members' enquiries cases closed in the year to October, 91% were 
handled within 10 working days, exceeding the 90% target although performance in 
the last couple of months fell below target at 86%.  

18.6 The PPP&C budget is projected to underspend by £65k which largely relates to 
savings on staffing costs due to vacant posts. 

 
Children and Young People 
 
18.7 Performance on handling Children’s Act Complaints at stage one improved in 

September and October with 25 out of the 31 cases received in the year so far dealt 
with inside the 10 day timescale. This brings performance in the year to date to 81% 
exceeding the 80% target.   

 

Page 16



 

 11

Adult, Culture and Community Services 
 
18.8 The cost per visit to our libraries at £2.56 is just above our local target of £2.50. This 

is amongst the lowest costs in London but due to library closures in Hornsey and 
Stroud Green, it is unlikely that our £2.50 target for 2007/08 will be met. 

18.9  The Libraries Service has been asked to make all efforts to meet its income target 
but if this is not possible the service will need to find savings elsewhere. This is 
required to contain the forecast non achievement of income that is mainly due from 
previously providing a consultancy service.  

 
Corporate Resources 
 
18.10 On telephone answering our council wide performance improved to 82.6% of calls 

answered within 15 seconds, exceeding our 80% target.  

18.11 Call centre performance remains below target with a further dip in telephone 
answering in October and 37% of calls to the call centre were answered within 30 
seconds (51% year to date) against a target of 70%. The extent to which this 
reduction in performance is due to increased call volumes is being examined with 
assistance from the Policy and Performance team.  In advance of this work being 
completed a rapid improvement plan has been put in place.  Actions commenced on 
22nd October 2007 and is having an impact with performance in the early weeks of 
November achieving target. 

18.12 The percentage of customers seen within 15 minutes in our Customer Service 
Centres reduced to 68% in October, falling short of our 70% target although the 
position remains a significant improvement on the corresponding period last year. 

18.13 91% of invoices were paid in 30 days in October bringing the position in the year so 
far to 90.9% remaining short of the 92% target. 

18.14 93.68% of council tax was collected in the year to October '07. Although 
performance is only just short of our target of 93.85% for 2007/08 this places us in 
the lower quartile when compared with other authorities.  The target is expected to be 
achieved for the year. 

18.15 The overall sundry debt (211 day debt) reduced further in October and although the 
monthly profiled target was not quite achieved, the Council is almost on track to hit 
the target of £4.16m by the end of 2007/08.  

18.16 As previously reported the revenue budget has a number of budget pressures. The 
worst case position is slightly over £0.4m in respect of Property Services where there 
are higher electricity charges for River Park House (£0.1m) and the impact of high 
vacancy/voids at Technopark (£0.3m) which will continue to challenge achievement 
of the income target.  There is a management plan in place to reduce this deficit 
which includes a drive for new tenants although it is unlikely to produce results early 
enough to allow budgeted income to be fully achieved this year. A detailed review of 
budgets across the service have identified areas where contributing  savings could be 
made to bring spend down.  

Page 17



 

 12

18.17 Legal land charges income is still projected to be £0.3m below budget as the 
number of searches is lower than anticipated in the current volatile market conditions. 
Local land charges search numbers are now down by 27% per cent when compared 
to 2006/07. The reduced numbers appear to be due to the effect of home information 
packs (HIPs) and uncertainty caused by delays to their introduction. The inclusion of 
three bedroom houses from 10 September 2007 may cause the situation to worsen in 
the coming months.  

18.18 The £0.5m savings target through improved procurement is likely to be delayed, 
however other savings will be identified to balance the budget overall. Plans and 
projects are in place to meet the full £2m saving. 

18.19 In IT, following a thorough mid-year review of budgets and increased certainty over 
legacy in-source staffing issues, coupled with the need to forward plan to deliver 
proposed savings for 2008/09 it is likely that there will be some revenue budget under 
spend this year.  Due to delays in scoping and agreeing the projects within the IT 
capital programme there will inevitably be slippage of spend of approximately £1.5m. 

 
 
Urban Environment 
 
18.19 The net cost of service per parking ticket issued (surplus) at £14.27 in October met 

the target and although the monthly rate of achievement is subject to variation it is 
anticipated that the 2007/08 target will be met. 

18.20 Capital is currently projected to spend at budget.  

18.21 The NDC capital budget for 2007/08 is £4.396m. There is currently an underspend 
against the profiled budget amounting to £0.4m and this is £0.3m lower than that 
reported last month.  The majority of the budget has now been allocated to projects 
and spend is expected to increase significantly during the remaining part of the year. 
      

Homes for Haringey 
 
18.22 97.01% of rent due was collected in the year to October ’07, close to but still short of 

our 97.5% target, and the percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks rent 
arrears was 16% in October, remaining short of our 10% target for 2007/08. 

18.23 A detailed action plan has been developed by Homes for Haringey to improve rent 
collection rates and reduce rent arrears through timely intervention, improved case 
management and the effective targeting of resources  This action plan was discussed 
at Homes for Haringey’s monthly monitoring meeting with the Council in November 
2007, and its implementation will be monitored at subsequent meetings of that group 
to ensure that it is having a positive impact on rent collection rates and rent arrears. 

18.24 It is hoped that these actions, and the effective serving of Notices of Seeking 
Possession (NOSPs), will result in a further increase in the collection rate and a 
decrease in the corresponding arrears.  

 
 

Page 18



 

 13

Non Service Revenue (NSR) 
 
18.25 The NSR budget is projected to underspend by a net £2m. 

18.26 The underspend includes a one off £1.0m earmarked reserve for Asylum that has 
been previously referred to for funding the currently projected Asylum budget 
pressure. It is proposed to vire this to the spending departments next month. 
 

18.27 The over-achievement of income on the treasury investment income budget has 
increased from £0.5m reported last month to £1m. This is based upon improved cash 
flow, some debt restructuring and interest rates remaining at a relatively high level, 
although indications are that there will be a further downturn in rates in the future. 
 

18.28 As previously reported there are some budget pressures in respect of Council costs 
regarding Alexandra Palace. 

18.29 The recent Court decision to quash the Charity Commission’s order means that the 
future loss will be continuing at least until a new order is composed by the 
Commission and consulted upon in accordance with the Court judgement.  This is 
estimated to cost the Council £1m in 2007/08 above the planned budget. In 
previous years the Council has been making a base contribution to the Trust of 
£1.5m to meet the shortfall in the annual running costs of Alexandra Palace and 
Park.  Therefore the approved budget saving of £1m from 2007/08 onwards from 
the transfer of the lease and associated costs is not likely to materialise this year 
and this is reflected in this projected variation. It has been formalised with a 
virement from Urban Environment as approved last month and as reported earlier in 
this report. 

 
18.30 The financial position of the Trust and the implications of the licence between the 

Trust, Alexandra Palace Trading Limited (APTL) and Firoka is the subject of 
ongoing discussions by officers of the Council and the staff and advisers at 
Alexandra Palace.  A detailed assessment of the financial position is being carried 
out, however it is likely that additional costs will need to be funded in this financial 
year and this will be reported in due course. 

 

19. Performance Summary 
19.1 Good progress is being made across all the priorities with 89.5% of indicators 

achieving green or amber status as at October ‘07. We continue to make good 
progress on promoting independent living (93%, 14 indicators green or amber), 
encouraging lifetime well-being (100% or 14 indicators green or amber) and 
delivering excellent services 92% or 48 indicators green or amber). 

19.2 In summary the balanced scorecard shows that for service delivery 89% of 
indicators are on target or close to the end of year target as at October ‘07. For 13 of 
the 15 (87%) customer focus measures, performance targets are being met or close 
to being met. For financial health 27 of the 28 traffic lighted measures achieved green 
or amber status, meaning for 96% of traffic lighted indicators performance levels are 
achieving target or being maintained at an acceptable level. Our organisational 

Page 19



 

 14

development /capacity indicators show that for 6 of the 8 (75%) measures, 
performance is meeting or close to expectation. In addition 86% of indicators have 
maintained or improved performance since the end of last year. 

 
Summary - Budget Monitoring 
 
19.3 Overall revenue budget monitoring, based on the October position, shows a 

forecast net overspend of £0.1m. There a number of underlying budget pressures 
largely relating to Asylum and Adult Social Care. These are partly offset by a one off 
earmarked reserve for asylum and additional treasury investment income.  

19.4 The aggregate revenue projected position in 2007/08 is shown in the following table. 

 
General Fund revenue Approved 

Budget 
Projected 
variation  

£m £m 
Children and Young People   

- Asylum 
227.7 0 

0.5 
Adults, Culture & Community 
- Asylum 

73.0 1.0 
0.4 

Corporate Resources 9.4 0.3 
Urban Environment 45.7 0 
Policy, Performance, Partnerships & 

Communications  
8.1 (0.1) 

People, Organisation & Development 0.1 0 
Chief Executive 0.6 0 
Non-service revenue 20.0 (2.0) 

Total 384.6 0.1 
   

HRA 0 (0.5) 

 

19.5 The DSG element of the overall Children and Young People’s Service budget is 
projected to underspend by £0.4m and this is in respect of the Network Family 
support budget that will be requested to be carried forward to meet the summer term 
2008 commitments. 

19.6 In relation to the HRA, the net current revenue projection is a surplus of £0.5m 
against the approved budget. This latest forecast position was reported by HfH to 
their Board on 26 November 2007. The net surplus arises because rent and service 
charges income is projected to be above budget mainly resulting from a 53rd rent 
week falling into 2007/08, but this is partly offset by additional costs pressures which 
have emerged, such as increased bad debt provision to give a net projected surplus 
of £0.5m.     

 
 
 

Page 20



 

 15

20. Capital  
20.1 The aggregate capital projected position in 2007/08 is as shown in the following 

table. 

Capital Approved 
Budget 

Spend to 
date 

Projected 
variation  

 £m £m £m 
Children & Young People 44.3 15.3 (4.5) 
Adults, Culture & Community 7.6 1.8 (0.4) 
Corporate Resources 9.1 3.8 (1.5) 
Urban Environment – General 
Fund 

32.8 6.2 0 

Urban Environment - HRA 19.8 8.5 (3.7) 
Policy, Performance, 
Partnerships & Communications 

0.3 0.1 0 

Total 113.9 35.7 (10.1) 
 

20.2 The latest forecast position for the HRA Capital outturn is an under spend of £3.7m 
as reported by HfH to their board. This is mainly due to slippage in the external 
decorations programme of £2.5m due to delays in the procurement process which 
would have resulted in works having to be undertaken during the winter months. The 
works are now scheduled for early in next financial year. In addition the Saltram 
Close scheme of £1m is dependant on the sale of the playground site which is not yet 
concluded. Other smaller net underspends on various schemes account for the 
remaining £0.2m.  

21. Financial administration 

21.1 Financial regulations require proposed budget changes to be approved by Cabinet. 
These are shown in the table below.  These changes fall into one of two categories: 

• budget virements, where it is proposed that budget provision is to be 
transferred between one service budget and another. Explanations are 
provided where this is the case; 

• Increases or decreases in budget, generally where notification has been 
received in-year of a change in the level of external funding such as 
grants or supplementary credit approval. 

21.2 Under the Constitution, certain virements are key decisions.  Key decisions are: 

• for revenue, any virement which results in change in a directorate cash 
limit of more than £250,000; and 

• for capital, any virement which results in the change of a programme 
area of more than £250,000.  

21.3 Key decisions are highlighted by an asterisk in the table. 

21.4 The following table sets out the proposed changes.  Each entry in the table refers to 
a detailed entry in the appendices, which show the budgets that are proposed to 
change. There are two figures shown in each line of the table and the detailed 

Page 21



 

 16

sheets. The first amount column relates to changes in the current year’s budgets and 
the second to changes in future years’ budgets (full year). Differences between the 
two occur when, for example, the budget variation required relates to an immediate 
but not ongoing need or where the variation takes effect for a part of the current year 
but will be in effect for the whole of future years. 

21.5 Proposed virements are set out in the following table: 

Period Service Key Amount 
current 

year 
(£’000) 

Full year 
Amount   
(£’000) 

Description 

7 ACC Cap 75   Update budget to include London 
Marathon Trust Funding 

7 UE Cap (156)   To correct Stoneleigh Road UCCG 
budget, LBH Funding c/fwd in error 

7 ACC Rev 104   Funding for AD - Commissioning & 
Strategy within ACCS 

7 CE, PPPC Rev 60 108 Staffing budget transfer 

7 CR, PPPC Rev 83 83 Transfer of DPA staff from IT to 
Perf/Policy 

7 CR, UE Rev 39 39 Return of R&M for Automatic Public 
Conveniences 

7 PP Rev 53   LAA PPG Robbery & Domestic 
Violence reductions 

7 POD, CR Rev 24   Interim HR Advisor 

7 UE Rev* 315 - Transfer of resources between 
Housing ring fenced and non ring 
fenced budgets to meet extra costs of 
inspection.  

7 UE Cap 126   Reinstatement of Bruce Grove THI 
LBH capital receipts funding 

7 UE Cap (219)   TFL funding for LCN+ 

7 UE Cap* 400   Spine Road - funding contribution 
from National Grid 

7 UE Cap 164   Alexandra Palace gate entrance 
upgrade funded from HLF 

7 UE Cap 135   Section 106 funding for Street lighting 

7 C&YP Cap* 336   2006/07 carry forward for grant - 
Computers for Pupils 

7 C&YP Cap* (4,258)  Re-phasing of BSF project budget 

7 NSR, ACC, 
C&YP 

Rev* 1,000  Transfer of Asylum contingency to 
services  

 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

 17

22. Use of Appendices 
 
Appendix i. October balanced scorecard and performance summary  

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

How we perform against the Council Priorities

Same as last year Better than last year Worse than last year

Red Performance missing target Amber Performance close to target Green Performance on target

Each of the 107 indicators' year to date position is counted in the appropriate Council Priority.

Haringey's balanced scorecard

October 2007

Performance is reviewed against a representative basket of 107 indicators at least 56 of which are updated monthly.

Comparative performance for most BVPIs is shown against provisional 2006/07 all England quartiles from the Audit Commission.

The balanced scorecard  looks at performance across four dimensions: service excellence, financial health, customer focus and organisational

development with each indicator's year to date position against target scored in the appropriate dimension.  The balance between  cost and service 

delivery represents Value for Money (V.F.M.)

Monthly and year to date position progress are tracked against the target using  traffic lights and arrows showing change from last year 

where:

Green

1

Amber

5

Red

1

Green

9

Amber

3

Red

5

Green

12

Amber

2

Red

0

Green

8

Amber

6

Red

1

Green

35

Amber

13

Red

4

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Make Haringey one

of London's

greenest boroughs

Create a better

Haringey: Cleaner,

Greener, and Safer

Encourage Lifetime

well being

Promote

independent living

Deliver excellent

services

October 2007Year to date position - 

Targets

Less than 20% Red

At least 50% Green

If we are meeting the targets the Red 

sections will be contained within the 

inner circle, with the Green sections 

extending inwards into the green circle

Green 35 Amber 13 Red 6

R
e
d

 2
A

m
b

e
r 

2
G

re
e
n

 4

80%

50%

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

V.F.M. Red 1 Amber 10 Green 17

G
re

e
n

 9
A

m
b

e
r 

4
R

e
d

 2

Excellent Services

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

F
o

c
u

s

Financial Health

Page 25



M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 -

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

M
a

k
e

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 o

n
e

 o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

's
 g

re
e

n
e

s
t 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
U

rb
a
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

B
V

2
0
0
5
/0

6

8
2
a
i+

b
i

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
5
/0

6

3
1
.4

B
o
tt
o
m

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

Q
u
a
rt

ile
2
3
.4

%
2
4
.3

%
2
5
.1

%
2
4
.7

%
2
4
.0

%
2
4
.3

%
2
3
.8

%
2
4
.3

%
2
4
.3

%
2
5
%

B
V

 8
4
a

2
0
0
6
/0

7

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7

3
9
6

T
o
p

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

Q
u
a
rt

ile
3
6
0

3
6
7

(a
c
tu

a
l 
3
0

)

3
8
7

(a
c
tu

a
l 
3
3

)

3
8
0

(a
c
tu

a
l 
3
1

)

3
9
1

(a
c
tu

a
l 
3
3

)

3
6
6

(a
c
tu

a
l 
3
1

)

3
5
1

(a
c
tu

a
l 
2
9

)

3
8
7

(a
c
tu

a
l 
3
3

)
3
7
5

3
7
0

T
h
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 f
o
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

ro
s
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 t
h
is

 m
o
n
th

, 
im

p
a
c
ti
n
g
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly

 o
n
 b

o
th

 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

s
e
e
 B

V
8
2
 

a
b
o
v
e
).

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
a
s
 n

o
t 
a
ll 

to
n
n
a
g
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

ts
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
o
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

y
e
t.
 T

h
e
 

a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
fi
g
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 a

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

3
7
0
K

g
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t.
 A

ls
o
, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

o
rk

 a
ro

u
n
d
 w

a
s
te

 p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
e
lp

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
.

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
7

K
g

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o

ll
e
c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d

 (
s
e
a
s
o

n
a
ll
y
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

- 
a
c
tu

a
l 
in

 b
ra

c
k
e
ts

)

L
a
te

s
t 
fi
g
u
re

s
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 m
in

o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
s
 

%
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 o

r 
c
o

m
p

o
s
te

d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
is

 m
o
n
th

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
m

o
n
th

s
, 
a
t 
2
4
.3

5
%

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
a
s
 n

o
t 
a
ll 

to
n
n
a
g
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

ts
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
o
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

y
e
t.
 A

c
tu

a
l 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 f
o
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

is
 a

t 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
le

v
e
l 
s
in

c
e
 M

a
y
 0

7
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 t
h
is

 m
o
n
th

 b
y
 h

ig
h
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 w

a
s
te

 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 (

s
e
e
 B

V
8
4
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
b
e
lo

w
).

 I
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 2

5
%

 

ta
rg

e
t 
th

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

b
y
 r

o
lli

n
g
 o

u
t 
a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

m
in

g
le

d
 r

o
u
n
d
 i
n
 N

o
v
/D

e
c
 0

7
, 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
in

g
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 o

n
 

p
ri
v
a
te

 e
s
ta

te
s
 (

J
a
n
 0

8
) 

a
n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 b

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
o
f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 (

th
ro

u
g
h
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

o
rk

 

a
n
d

p
u
b
lic

it
y
).

L
o
n
d
o
n
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 3

7
8
k
g
. 
L
a
te

s
t 
fi
g
u
re

s
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 m
in

o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
s

Make Haringey one of London's greenest 

boroughs

Make Haringey one of 

London's greenest 

boroughs

2
0
.0

%

2
2
.0

%

2
4
.0

%

2
6
.0

%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

T
a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8

H
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 26



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

C
re

a
te

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
: 

c
le

a
n

e
r,

 g
re

e
n

e
r 

a
n

d
 s

a
fe

r
P

o
li
c
y
, 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
, 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

L
A

A
x

A
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

1
8
,6

0
6

1
,5

9
6

1
,6

6
4

1
,5

9
3

1
,5

1
1

1
,4

5
6

1
,3

7
6

1
,5

7
6

1
8
,4

6
6

(1
0
,7

7
6
)

1
7
,2

1
1

U
rb

a
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

B
V

 2
1
5
a

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7
3
.2

5

T
o
p

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

Q
u
a
rt

ile
1
.8

8
2
.3

3
2
.4

9
2
.1

9
1
.9

4
1
.9

8
1
.3

6
1
.7

3
2
.0

3
2
.5

B
V

 9
9
a
i

2
0
0

5
T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0

5
2
0
0
6

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a

r
A

p
r

M
a

y
J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

7
7

2
n
d
 B

e
s
t

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

Q
u
a
rt

ile
1
1
7

5
8
 (

5
)

5
3
 (

4
)

1
2
(1

)
4
0
 (

1
0
)

1
1
3
 i
n
 2

0
0
7

B
V

 1
9
9
a

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7

7
.0

%

W
o
rs

t
R

e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

Q
u
a
rt

ile
4
0
%

2
6
%

1
7
%

1
8
%

1
7
%

2
4
%

1
8
%

2
0
%

2
0
%

2
9
%

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

ia
n
ta

in
e
d
 a

n
d
 Y

T
D

 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 b
e
in

g
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
y
e
a
r 

fo
r 

th
is

 2
0
0
8
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 7

.5
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 (

1
3
9
5
 f
e
w

e
r 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
) 

is
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
it
.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

g
a
in

 a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 w
it
h
 1

0
,7

7
2
 c

ri
m

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 i
s
 0

.7
%

 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 s

h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
7
/0

8
. 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

a
re

 c
ri
m

in
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
, 
th

e
ft
 f
ro

m
 a

 m
o
to

r 
v
e
h
ic

le
 a

n
d
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 b

u
rg

la
ry

.

R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 c
ri

m
e
 -

 B
ri

ti
s
h

 C
ri

m
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r

T
h
e
 s

c
o
re

 f
o
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

is
 i
n
s
id

e
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
L
o
w

 s
c
o
re

 i
s
 b

e
tt
e
r.

 T
h
e
 B

V
P

I 
1
9
9
a
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
, 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
It
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t.

L
o
w

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 k
il
le

d
 o

r 
s
e
ri

o
u

s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
. 
S

e
a
s
o

n
a
ll
y
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

(a
c
tu

a
ls

 i
n

 b
ra

c
k
e
ts

).
 C

a
le

n
d

a
r 

y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
7

R
e
le

v
a
n
t 
d
a
ta

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 T

fL
. 
P

o
lic

e
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
 I
T

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 d

e
la

y
s
.

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 t

o
 r

e
p

a
ir

 s
tr

e
e
t 

li
g

h
ti

n
g

 f
a
u

lt
s
 (

e
x
c
e
p

t 
fa

u
lt

s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

o
w

e
r 

s
u

p
p

ly
 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
th

e
 D

N
O

Create a 

better

Haringey:

Create a better Haringey: Cleaner, 

Greener, and Safer

Create a better Haringey: 

Cleaner, Greener, and 

Safer

Create a better 

Haringey:

Cleaner,

L
o

c
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
c
le

a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 -

 L
it

te
r 

&
 d

e
tr

it
u

s

0

5
0

1
0
0

1
5
0

2
0
0
6

J
a
n
-0

7
F

e
b

M
a
r

A
p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

T
a
rg

e
t 
2
0
0
7

L
o
w

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 27



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

B
V

 1
9
9
b

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7

1
%

2
n
d
 W

o
rs

t
R

e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

Q
u
a
rt

ile
5
%

1
2
%

1
3
%

7
%

1
1
%

1
1
%

6
%

5
%

9
%

5
%

B
V

 1
9
9
c

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7

0
%

W
o
rs

t
A

m
b

e
r

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

Q
u
a
rt

ile
5
%

8
%

5
%

5
%

4
%

5
%

5
%

2
%

5
%

1
%

A
d

u
lt

s
 C

u
lt

u
re

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

B
V

 1
9
9
a

P
a
rk

s

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

4
0
%

3
3
%

0
%

2
0
%

9
%

2
7
%

1
0
%

2
4
%

1
7
%

2
9
%

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

B
V

 1
9
9
a

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

R
e
d

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

R
e
d

6
6
.0

%
5
0
%

2
6
%

2
6
%

2
5
%

3
4
%

3
2
%

7
5
%

5
0
%

2
9
%

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 l
if

e
ti

m
e

 w
e

ll
-b

e
in

g
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

B
V

 3
8

2
0
0
6
/0

7

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7
6
1
.8

%

W
o
rs

t
G

re
e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

Q
u
a
rt

ile
5
1
.7

%
5
7
.0

%
5
7
%

W
o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 a

d
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r

L
o

c
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
c
le

a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 (

li
tt

e
r 

&
 d

e
tr

it
u

s
) 

- 
In

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
la

n
d

 -
 M

o
s
tl

y
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
U

C
 =

 L
a
n
d
 U

s
e
 C

la
s
s
. 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 s

c
o
re

 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 i
n
 0

5
/0

6
 w

a
s
 3

%

L
o

c
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
c
le

a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 (

li
tt

e
r 

&
 d

e
tr

it
u

s
) 

- 
P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 O
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
s

L
o
w

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

T
h
e
 s

c
o
re

 f
o
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

w
a
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

a
rg

e
tt
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
is

to
ri

c
a
lly

 s
u
ff
e
r 

th
e
 

m
o
s
t 
fr

o
m

 f
ly

p
o
s
ti
n
g
. 
L
o
w

 s
c
o
re

 i
s
 b

e
tt
e
r.

 T
h
e
 B

V
P

I 
1
9
9
c
 a

n
u
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
, 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
It
 i
s

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 m

e
t.
 T

h
e
 a

c
ta

l 
ta

rg
e
t 
is

 n
o
t 
1
%

 b
u
t 
b
e
lo

w
 2

%

L
o

c
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
c
le

a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 -

 F
ly

 p
o

s
ti

n
g

Create a better 

Haringey: Cleaner, 

Greener, and Safer

Create a 

better

Haringey:

Encourage 

lifetime well 

being

Create a 

better

Haringey:

%
 o

f 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u

p
il
s
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 f

iv
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g

ra
d

e
s
 A

*-
 C

 o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t.

Create a better 

Haringey: Cleaner, 

Greener, and Safer
L

o
c
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
c
le

a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 -

 G
ra

ff
it

i

T
h
e
 s

c
o
re

 f
o
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

is
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
is

to
ri
c
a
lly

 s
u
ff
e
r 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 

fr
o
m

 g
ra

ff
it
i,
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 h

e
lp

in
g
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
L
o
w

 s
c
o
re

 i
s
 b

e
tt
e
r.

 T
h
e
 B

V
P

I 
1
9
9
b
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

o
f 
J
u
n
e
, 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
It
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t.

L
o
w

 i
s
 g

o
o
d
. 
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 s

c
o
re

 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 i
n
 0

5
/0

6
 w

a
s
 1

1
%

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 28



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

S
D

4
4

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

T
a
rg

e
t

1
1
%

A
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

1
3
.2

%
1
4
.3

0
%

1
4
.8

%
1
2
.8

%
1
3
.2

%
1
3
.9

%
1
4
.1

%
1
0
.8

%
1
2
.3

0
%

A
d

u
lt

s
 C

u
lt

u
re

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

P
A

F
 B

1
7

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

£
1
8
.0

0
£
1
8
.0

0
£
1
8
.0

0
£
1
8
.0

0
£
1
8
.0

0
£
1
8
.0

0
£
1
8
.0

0
£
1
7
.3

4
£
1
7
.3

4
£
1
7

L
o
c
a
l

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

£
2
.0

2
£
2
.1

2
£
1
.0

4
£
0
.9

5
£
4
.7

4
£
1
.1

8
£
1
.4

2
£
1
.4

6
£
1
.8

2
£
2
.0

9

L
o
c
a
l

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

1
,1

4
2
,0

1
7

1
,3

6
3
,3

0
6

(1
0
5
,7

8
9
)

1
,2

5
7
,2

7
4

(1
1
0
,8

9
4
)

1
,2

9
0
,8

1
9

(1
3
0
,6

4
6
)

9
7
9
,9

7
4

(1
0
5
,1

3
0
)

1
,1

9
7
,2

0
3

(9
3
,5

6
1
)

1
,1

2
2
,9

4
5

(9
4
,2

2
0
)

1
,2

3
1
,9

9
8

(9
3
,5

3
0
)

1
,1

9
8
,4

6
0

(7
3
3
,7

7
0
)

1
,1

8
4
,0

0
0

U
p
d
a
te

d
 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 H

H
1
 r

e
tu

rn

C
o

s
t 

p
e
r 

v
is

it
 t

o
 a

 L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e

S
p

o
rt

s
 &

 L
e
is

u
re

 u
s
a
g

e
 (

s
e
a
s
o

n
a
ll
y
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t,

 a
c
tu

a
ls

 i
n

 b
ra

c
k
e
ts

)

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

h
o

m
e
 c

a
re

 p
e
r 

c
li
e
n

t 

J
u
ly

 F
ig

u
re

 n
o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 N

N
D

R
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 O
v
e
ra

ll 
Y

T
D

 i
s
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
rr

o
r 

a
t 

P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d
 P

o
o
l

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
1
6
-1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 n

o
t 

in
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 (
N

E
E

T
S

)

Encourage Lifetime well 

being

Encourage 

Lifetime well 

being

Encourage 

Lifetime well 

being

Encourage 

Lifetime well 

being

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 h

a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 g

e
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 b

e
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 

e
a
rl
ie

r 
id

e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 n
e
e
d
in

g
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 n

e
w

 e
n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 N

E
E

T
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e

ta
ils

 a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

h
a
n
g
in

g
 L

iv
e
s
 2

0
0
7
. 
A

c
tu

a
l 
N

E
E

T
s
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

w
a
s
 3

7
0
, 
a
n
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
6
2
 (

1
4
%

) 
a
n
d
 b

e
lo

w
 l
a
s
t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

w
h
e
n

 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 N

E
E

T
 w

a
s
 1

5
.9

%
. 
T

h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 d
e
g
re

e
 o

f 
c
a
u
ti
o
n
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 l
a
rg

e
 h

a
n
g
o
v
e
r 

o
f 

N
o
t 
K

n
o
w

n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

s
p
ik

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

o
u
n
d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
e
rt

a
in

 d
is

to
rt

in
g
 e

ff
e
c
t.
 W

e
 w

o
u
ld

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

 a
 r

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 n

o
rm

a
l 
le

v
e
ls

 

n
e
x
t 
m

o
n
th

. 

T
o
p
 P

a
f 

B
a
n
d
in

g
£
1
1
.6

3
<

£
1
5
.5

1

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 29



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

P
ro

m
o

te
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

li
v

in
g

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

B
V

 1
6
1

P
A

F
 A

4

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

6
8
.0

%
8
0
%

8
8
%

5
7
%

4
3
%

2
5
%

5
0
%

8
9
%

6
6
.7

%
7
2
%

B
V

 1
6
3

P
A

F
 C

2
3

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

7
.0

%
0
%

0
%

3
.4

%
4
%

5
%

6
%

6
%

6
.3

%
7
%

A
d

u
lt

, 
C

u
lt

u
re

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

P
A

F
 B

1
2

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

£
6
5
2
.0

0
£
7
6
4
.5

4
£
7
7
7
.5

6
£
8
2
9
.2

9
£
7
1
2
.5

9
£
6
5
3
.1

0
£
6
5
3
.9

8
£
6
5
4
.0

3
£
6
4
0

B
V

 5
4

P
A

F
 C

3
2

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

9
3
.5

7
8
8
.3

8
9
.2

4
8
8
.4

4
8
8
.3

9
7

9
7

1
0
4
.6

1
0
4
.6

1
0
1

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 p
e
r 

c
li
e
n

t 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 l
o
o
k
s
 a

t 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
rs

 g
ra

n
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 

a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

6
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

. 

J
u
n
e
 4

 o
u
t 
o
f 
7
, 
J
u
ly

 3
 o

u
t 
o
f 
7
, 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
1
 o

u
t 
o
f 
4
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

3
 o

u
t 
o
f 
6
, 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

8
 o

u
t 
o
f 
9
  
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
u
rn

in
g
 1

9
 w

h
e
re

 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 

T
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m

 a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 c

lie
n
ts

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
te

le
c
a
re

 a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
. 
W

it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
3
3
9
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

o
 

fa
r 

w
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 o

u
r 

0
7
/0

8
 t
a
rg

e
t.

A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r:

 T
h

e
 n

o
. 
o

f 
lo

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 %
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
. 
o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

a
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 w

h
o

 h
a
d

 b
e
e
n

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

fo
r 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 a
t 

th
a
t 

d
a
te

 2
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 o

r 
g
ra

n
te

d
 a

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

. 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 2
4
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8

.

T
a
rg

e
t 
re

v
is

e
d
 f
ro

m
 £

6
8
0

Promote independent living
Promote 

independent living

Promote 

independent living

Promote 

independent

living

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

: 
%

 o
f 

th
o

s
e
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 l
o

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

o
n

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
in

 t
h

e
ir

 1
7
th

 y
e
a
r 

(a
g

e
d

 

1
6
),

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 e
n

g
a
g

e
d

 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

, 
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
re

 a
c
h
iv

ie
v
in

g
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
9

 y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.
 M

o
n
th

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 i
n
te

rp
re

te
d
 w

it
h
 c

a
u
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t
h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 a

s
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
s
 w

ill
 v

a
ry

 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
a
 v

e
ry

 l
o
w

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 h
e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e
d

 6
5
 o

r 
o

v
e
r

T
o
p
 P

a
f 

B
a
n
d
in

g

£
4
5
2
<

T
o
p
 P

a
f 

B
a
n
d
in

g

1
0
0
+

T
o
p
 P

a
f 

B
a
n
d
in

g

8
<

2
5

0
%

2
0
%

4
0
%

6
0
%

8
0
%

1
0
0
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

T
a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8

H
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 30



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

B
V

 5
6

P
A

F
 D

5
4

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

8
8
.0

%
9
4
.6

0
%

9
8
.0

%
9
3
.0

%
9
5
.7

%
9
6
.3

%
9
9
%

9
9
%

9
6
.6

%
9
0
%

B
V

2
0
1

P
A

F
 C

5
1

M
o

n
th

ly
 T

a
rg

e
ts

1
3
6

1
3
7

1
3
9

1
4
1

1
4
3

1
4
5

1
4
7

1
4
9

1
5
0

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

1
3
8

1
3
1

1
3
0
.8

1
3
6
.1

2
1
3
6
.5

7
1
4
0
.2

1
3
7
.2

1
3
6
.2

1
3
6
.2

1
5
0

1
9
5

P
A

F
 D

5
5

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

8
0
.9

5
%

9
5
%

9
4
.5

%
9
5
.8

%
9
6
.2

%
9
6
.2

%
9
6
.2

%
9
6
.5

%
9
6
.5

%
9
0
%

1
9
6

P
A

F
 D

5
6

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

9
0
.1

8
%

8
2
%

8
6
%

8
5
%

8
6
%

9
1
%

9
1
%

9
1
%

9
1
%

9
6
%

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

7
8
a

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7

2
4
.5

L
o
n
d
o
n

2
7
. 5

W
o
rs

t
R

e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

Q
u
a
rt

ile
4
0

3
2

3
2

3
4

3
8

4
0

3
8

4
4

3
6

3
2

U
rb

a
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

1
8
3
b

2
0
0
6
/0

7

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7

0

W
o
rs

t
R

e
d

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

Q
u
a
rt

ile
6
4
.5

9
3
6
.9

0
1
0
5
.0

0
N

il
7
5
.8

6
3
8
.1

4
N

il
7
9
.0

0
5
8
.3

7
6
0

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
 c

o
u
rs

e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 t
o
p
 b

a
n
d
in

g
.

'N
il'

 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 l
e
ft
 T

A
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th

 i
n
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n

A
 s

h
o
rt

 e
x
e
rc

is
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

to
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
a
ll 

c
a
s
e
s
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

p
e
n
t 
ti
m

e
 i
n
 s

h
a
re

d
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 P

I,
 t
o
 

a
llo

w
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

m
e
th

o
d
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 1

4
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 c

lie
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
u
n
te

d
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
m

o
v
in

g
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 l
in

e
 

re
n
ta

l 
c
lie

n
ts

 o
n
to

 d
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

, 
th

is
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 P

I 
b
y
 3

0
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
a
c
h
in

g
 t
o
p
 b

a
n
d
in

g
.

T
o
p
 P

a
f 

B
a
n
d
in

g

8
5
<

=
1
0
0

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
it

e
m

s
 o

f 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

d
a
p

ta
ti

o
n

s
 d

e
li
v
e
re

d
 w

it
h

in
 7

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
.

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 n

e
w

 H
B

/C
T

B
 c

la
im

s

L
o
w

 i
s
 g

o
o
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 P
I 
h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 d

ip
, 
w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 b

u
ilt

 u
p
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 
It
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

ill

p
ic

k
 u

p
 f
ro

m
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

o
n
w

a
rd

s
 o

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 o

ld
e
r 

c
la

im
s
 a

re
 c

le
a
re

d
. 
B

a
c
k
lo

g
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 u
p
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
 m

ig
ra

ti
o
n

F
o

r 
n

e
w

 o
ld

e
r 

c
li
e
n

ts
, 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 f

o
r 

w
h

o
m

 t
h

e
 t

im
e
 f

ro
m

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g

e

A
d

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g

 d
ir

e
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e
d

 1
8
 o

r 
o

v
e
r 

(a
g

e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

is
e
d

)

Promote 

independent

living

Promote 

independent

living

Promote 

independent

living

Promote 

independent living

Promote 

independent

living

Promote 

independent living

T
h

e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n

g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y
 i
n

  
h

o
s
te

l 
a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 (
w

e
e
k
s
) 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 o
r 

a
 p

re
g

n
a
n

t 
w

o
m

a
n

 

a
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 u

n
in

te
n

ti
o

n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 n

e
e
d

.

A
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 w

a
it

in
g

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t-
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
(I

) 
%

 w
h

e
re

 t
im

e
 f

ro
m

 f
ir

s
t 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

to
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n

 4
8
 h

o
u

rs

T
o
p
 P

a
f 

b
a
n
d
in

g

1
5
0
+

T
o
p
 P

a
f 

B
a
n
d
in

g

9
0
<

=
1
0
0

T
o
p
 P

a
f 

B
a
n
d
in

g

9
0
<

=
1
0
0

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 31



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

D
e

li
v

e
r 

e
x

c
e

ll
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 O

D

B
V

 1
2

T
h

e
 n

o
. 
o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a
y
s
/s

h
if

ts
 l
o

s
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 s

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n

c
e
 p

e
r 

F
T

E
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
.

2
0
0
6
/0

7

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7
8
.1

%

2
n
d
 B

e
s
t

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

Q
u
a
rt

ile
9
.1

4
7
.7

1
9
.6

3
9
.6

4
9
.6

1
6
.8

1
7
.8

2
9
.8

4
9
.3

5
8
.8

A
d

u
lt

s
 C

u
lt

u
re

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

M
o
n
th

ly
 t
a
rg

e
ts

7
8
.0

1
1
5
9
.9

8
2
2
4
.4

4
6
2
.6

7
-7

1
.1

6
1
5
0
.4

6
3
9
8
.3

4
3
0
0
.5

9
2
6
6
.4

9

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

£
1
7
4
.2

2
£
2
3
3
.8

5
£
1
1
1
.6

5
£
3
6
4
.9

0
£
5
7
.6

8
£
1
1
3
.2

9
£
3
2
2
.7

2
£
1
1
7
.6

9
£
1
8
7
.7

5
£
1
9
0

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

£
2
.4

0
n
/a

£
2
.5

0
£
2
.5

7
£
2
.5

5
£
2
.5

5
£
2
.5

6
£
2
.5

6
£
2
.5

6
£
2
.5

0

L
o
c
a
l

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

6
4
.0

%
7
5
%

8
6
%

9
2
%

1
0
0
%

8
9
%

1
0
0
%

9
2
%

9
1
%

8
0
%

P
o

li
c
y
, 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
, 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

L
o
c
a
l

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

1
8
.4

1
7

1
9

1
9

1
4

1
8

2
0

1
6

1
7

1
8

N
e
t 

s
u

rp
lu

s
 p

e
r 

c
re

m
a
ti

o
n

N
H

S
  
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

a
re

 A
c
t 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 -

 S
ta

g
e
 1

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 w
it

h
in

 1
0
 d

a
y
s

.L
ib

ra
ry

 c
lo

s
u
re

s
 i
n
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 a

n
d
 S

tr
o
u
d
 G

re
e
n
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
ti
n
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 S

tr
o
u
d
 G

re
e
n
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
t 
u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 w

ill
 m

e
e
t 
o
u
r 

0
7

/0
8
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
o
u
r 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
.

H
ig

h
 i
s
 g

o
o
d
. 
A

 n
e
t 
c
o
s
t 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

s
 a

 m
in

u
s
 v

a
lu

e
. 
P

I 
p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

 c
o
s
t.

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 5

 o
u
t 
9
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

a
n
d
le

d
 i
n
 t
im

e
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 d

e
a
d
lin

e

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 c

o
s
t 

p
e
r 

v
is

it
/i
n

te
ra

c
ti

o
n

 (
li
b

ra
ri

e
s
)

T
h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f
ig

u
re

 w
e
 a

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 h

e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 c

o
s
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
, 
n
o
t 
th

e
 Y

T
D

 A
c
tu

a
l.

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver excellent services
Deliver excellent 

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

 c
a
le

n
d

a
r 

d
a
y
s
 t

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 O

m
b

u
d

s
m

a
n

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s

Deliver 

excellent

services

56789

1
0

1
1

2
0
0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

T
a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8

0
6
0
7
 b

y
 m

o
n
th

L
o
w

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 32



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

L
o
c
a
l

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

7
7
.0

%
8
7
%

8
2
%

8
8
%

9
5
%

9
2
%

8
9
%

9
5
%

9
0
%

8
0
%

L
o
c
a
l

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

7
7
.0

%
9
2
%

4
0
%

7
9
%

9
4
%

1
0
0
%

8
0
.0

%
8
3
%

8
1
%

8
0
%

L
o
c
a
l

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

9
2
.0

%
1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

6
7
%

1
0
0
%

8
3
%

1
0
0
%

8
0
%

8
9
%

9
5
%

L
o
c
a
l

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

8
4
.0

%
9
2
%

9
6
%

9
5
%

9
3
%

9
0
%

8
6
%

8
6
%

9
1
%

9
0
%

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

L
o
c
a
l

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

6
3
.0

%
1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

6
7
%

8
6
%

5
0
%

1
0
0
%

8
0
%

8
1
%

8
0
%

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

£
6
3
,4

8
3

£
6
3
,4

8
3

£
6
3
,4

8
3

£
6
3
,4

8
3

£
6
3
,4

8
3

£
6
4
,5

5
6

£
6
5
,0

9
4

£
6
4
,6

7
7

1
,8

9
9
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 i
n
 Y

T
D

, 
2
3
6
 o

f 
2
7
6
 o

n
 t
im

e
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r.

 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

' 
E

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
. 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
re

p
li
e
s
 s

e
n

t 
in

 1
0
 d

a
y
s

3
2
 o

u
t 
o
f 
3
6
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

, 
fo

u
r 

o
u
t 
fi
v
e
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r

S
ta

g
e
 3

 p
u

b
li
c
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
e
a
lt

 w
it

h
in

 t
a
rg

e
t 

(2
0
 d

a
y
) 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

 

3
4
 F

T
E

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 S

E
N

 P
la

c
e
m

e
n

ts
 -

 R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

2
5
 o

u
t 
o
f 
3
1
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

s
o
 f
a
r 

o
n
 t
im

e
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 3

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

a
n
d
le

d
 o

n
 t
im

e
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

.

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 a

c
t 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 -

  
S

ta
g

e
 1

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

 1
0
 d

a
y
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver excellent services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

S
ta

g
e
 2

 p
u

b
li
c
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
e
a
lt

 w
it

h
in

 t
a
rg

e
t 

(2
5
 d

a
y
) 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

 

9
 o

u
t 
1
1
 o

n
 t
im

e
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r

1
0
0
1
 o

u
t 
o
f 
1
,1

1
2
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

n
 t
im

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

s
o
 f
a
r.

S
ta

g
e
 1

 p
u

b
li
c
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
e
a
lt

 w
it

h
in

 t
a
rg

e
t 

(1
0
 d

a
y
) 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

 

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

01
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

p
lie

s

T
a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8

%
 i
n
 1

0
 d

a
y
s

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 33



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

£
3
7
,9

3
1

£
3
7
,9

3
1

£
3
7
,9

3
1

£
3
7
,9

3
1

£
3
7
,9

3
1

£
3
8
,4

5
7

£
3
7
,8

6
4

£
4
0
,1

9
7

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

£
8
7
7
.0

£
7
3
5

£
7
3
2

£
7
9
6

£
7
9
7

£
8
1
1

£
7
9
2

£
7
6
9

£
7
6
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

B
V

 8
2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7
9
7
.0

%

W
o
rs

t
R

e
d

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

Q
u
a
rt

ile
8
7
.0

%
9
2
%

9
0
.4

%
9
0
.7

%
9
2
.1

%
8
9
.1

%
9
2
.2

%
9
1
.0

%
9
0
.9

%
9
2
%

L
o
c
a
l

A
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

3
9
%

6
6
%

6
0
%

4
6
%

6
4
%

4
8
%

4
0
%

3
7
%

5
1
%

7
0
%

L
o
c
a
l

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

4
8
%

5
8
%

6
9
%

6
3
%

7
2
%

7
0
%

7
3
%

6
8
%

6
8
.0

%
7
0
%

L
o
c
a
l

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

7
7
.4

%
7
7
.0

%
7
8
.6

%
7
7
.3

%
7
6
.9

%
7
7
.8

%
8
1
.0

%
8
2
.6

%
7
9
%

8
0
%

6
2
 F

T
E

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 –

 %
 C

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
a
it

in
g

  
le

s
s
 t

h
a
n

 1
5
 m

in
u

te
s

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
in

v
o

ic
e
s
 p

a
id

 w
it

h
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

r 
3
0
 d

a
y
s

T
a
rg

e
t 
re

v
is

e
d
 f
ro

m
 £

8
8
0
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

C
a
ll
 C

e
n

tr
e
 –

 C
a
ll
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
  
in

 3
0
 s

e
c
o

n
d

s
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
a
ll
 c

a
ll
s
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
c
e
 f
o
r 

e
a
rl
y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

is
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

a
p
iid

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t.

C
o

u
n

c
il
 W

id
e
- 

D
ir

e
c
tl

y
 d

ia
ll
e
d

 T
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 c

a
ll
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 i
n

 1
5
 s

e
c
o

n
d

s
 a

s
 a

 %
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
c
a
ll
s
 

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
S

c
h

s
 S

E
N

 P
la

c
e
m

e
n

ts
 -

 D
a
y

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver excellent services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

e
r 

lo
o

k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

c
h

il
d

0
%

2
0
%

4
0
%

6
0
%

8
0
%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

T
a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8

H
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 34



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

B
V

 9
2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7
9
8
.5

%

W
o
rs

t
G

re
e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

Q
u
a
rt

ile
9
3
.8

%
9
3
.8

6
%

9
3
.1

8
%

9
4
.1

7
%

9
3
.7

8
%

9
3
.6

2
%

9
3
.3

8
%

9
3
.3

8
%

9
3
.6

8
%

9
3
.8

5
%

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

£
3
5
9
.5

8
£
2
9
6
.1

2
£
2
9
6
.1

2
£
2
9
6
.1

2
£
2
9
6
.1

2
£
2
9
6
.1

2
£
2
9
6
.1

2
£
2
9
6
.1

2
£
2
9
6
.1

2
£
3
0
0

F
in

 1

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.1

0
%

0
.2

3
%

0
.0

3
%

0
.0

3
%

0
.5

%

F
in

 2

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.5

%

F
in

 3

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

1
2
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
0
.0

%
2
0
%

F
in

 4
a

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

£
0
M

£
0
M

£
0
M

£
0
M

£
0
M

£
0
M

£
0
M

£
1
7
5
M

F
in

 4
b

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

9
5
.6

%
9
5
.6

%
9
5
.6

%
9
5
.6

%
9
5
.6

%
9
5
.6

%
9
5
.6

%
9
7
%

U
n
d
e
r 

2
0
%

 g
re

e
n
, 
2
0
%

 t
o
 4

0
%

 a
m

b
e
r,

 o
v
e
r 

4
0
%

 r
e
d

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t-
 E

x
p

o
s
u

re
 t

o
 V

a
ri

a
b

le
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

ra
te

s

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 j
u
s
t 
s
h
o
rt

 o
f 
ta

rg
e
t.
 T

a
rg

e
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

N
e
t 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

0
.5

%
 g

re
e
n
, 
0
.5

%
 t
o
 1

.0
%

 a
m

b
e
r,

 o
v
e
r 

1
.0

%
 r

e
d

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

o
ff

ic
e
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 p
e
r 

s
q

 m
e
tr

e
 (

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
)

re
m

a
in

 w
it
h
in

 9
7
%

  
g
re

e
n
, 
9
7
%

 t
o
 1

0
0
%

  
a
m

b
e
r,

 o
v
e
r 

1
0
0
%

  
re

d

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

A
u

th
o

ri
s
e
d

 L
im

it
 f

o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
d

e
b

t

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver 

excellent

services

U
n
d
e
r 

£
1
7
5
M

 G
re

e
n
, 
 £

1
7
5
 t
o
 £

1
9
0
 m

ill
io

n
 a

m
b
e
r,

 o
v
e
r 

£
1
9
0
 m

ill
io

n
 r

e
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
 c

a
p

it
a
l 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

e
v
e
n

u
e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

N
e
t 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

0
.5

%
 g

re
e
n
, 
0
.5

%
 t
o
 1

.0
%

 a
m

b
e
r,

 o
v
e
r 

1
.0

%
 r

e
d

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
fu

n
d

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 –

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 u

n
p

la
n

n
e
d

 u
s
e
 o

f 
b

a
la

n
c
e
s

C
o

u
n

c
il
 t

a
x
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 -
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
d

u
e
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 35



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

F
in

 4
c

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

9
9
.3

%
9
9
.3

%
9
9
.3

%
9
9
.3

%
9
9
.3

%
9
9
.3

%
9
9
.3

%
9
9
.5

%

F
in

 5

T
a
rg

e
t 

£
m

N
/A

N
/A

£
6
.0

5
m

£
5
.8

4
m

£
5
.4

4
m

£
5
.2

6
m

£
5
.0

7
m

£
4
.8

9
m

£
4
.7

1
m

£
4
.5

3
m

£
4
.3

4
m

£
4
.1

6
m

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
c
tu

a
l

£
6
.6

8
m

N
/A

N
/A

£
6
.4

3
m

£
6
.6

7
m

£
5
.5

8
m

£
5
.3

7
m

£
5
.1

0
m

£
4
.1

6
m

U
rb

a
n

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

B
V

 6
6
a
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile

2
0
0
6
/0

7

9
9
%

W
o
rs

t
A

m
b

e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

A
m

b
e
r

Q
u
a
rt

ile
9
6
.5

%
9
7
.5

9
%

9
7
.5

%
9
6
.5

%
9
6
.6

%
9
7
.3

%
9
7
.0

5
%

9
7
.0

1
%

9
7
.0

1
%

9
7
.5

%

B
V

 6
6
b

2
0
0
6
/0

7
T

o
p

Q
u
a
rt

ile
2
0
0
6
/0

7
4
%

W
o
rs

t
R

e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

Q
u
a
rt

ile
1
4
.7

%
1
5
.5

2
%

1
6
.1

7
%

1
5
.8

%
1
5
.9

%
1
5
.9

%
1
5
.9

%
1
5
.9

7
%

1
5
.9

%
1
0
%

D
e
b

t 
re

c
o

v
e
ry

 -
  
O

v
e
ra

ll
 S

u
n

d
ry

 d
e
b

t.
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
O

v
e
r 

2
1
1
 d

a
y
 d

e
b
t 
fr

o
m

 £
6
.6

8
m

 @
 2

0
0
6
/7

 y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 t
o
 £

4
.1

6
m

  
b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
7
/8

. 

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
's

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 f
o

r 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
d

e
b

t

R
e
n

t 
c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 -
 %

 o
f 

re
n

t 
d

u
e
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 f
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 r

e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
  
(a

s
 a

b
o
v
e
) 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 b

o
th

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

re
m

a
in

 w
it
h
in

 9
9
.5

%
 g

re
e
n
, 
9
9
.5

%
 t
o
 1

0
0
%

 a
m

b
e
r,

 o
v
e
r 

1
0
0
%

 =
 r

e
d

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 f
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 r

e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 b

o
th

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 b

y
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 

c
a
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

: 

• 
R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
a
k
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 o

w
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 £

2
0
0
 a

n
d
 £

5
0
0

• 
R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
a
k
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
 o

rd
e
r 

• 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

m
a
il 

s
h
o
t 
le

tt
e
r

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
te

n
a
n

ts
 w

it
h

 m
o

re
 t

h
a
n

 7
 w

e
e
k
s
 r

e
n

t 
a
rr

e
a
r s

Deliver excellent servicesDeliver excellent services Deliver excellent services

Deliver 

excellent

services

£
4
.0

m

£
5
.0

m

£
6
.0

m

£
7
.0

m

2
0
0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

2
0
0
6
/0

7

S
e
ri
e
s
4

T
a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8
L
o
w

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

8
%

1
0
%

1
2
%

1
4
%

1
6
%

1
8
%

2
0

0
6

/0
7

A
p

r
M

a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e

p
O

c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a

n
F

e
b

M
a

r

2
0
0
6
/0

7

T
a
rg

e
t 
0
7
/0

8

L
o
w

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 36



K
e
y

P
ri

o
ri

ty
R

e
f.

0
6
/0

7
A

p
r

M
a
y

J
u

n
J
u

l
A

u
g

S
e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r-

0
8

Y
T

D

P
ro

g
re

s
s

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

R
e
d

R
e
d

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

A
m

b
e
r

£
1
4
.3

8
£
1
4
.3

0
£
1
2
.3

0
£
1
2
.7

0
£
1
2
.4

0
£
1
7
.5

1
£
1
4
.1

7
£
1
4
.2

7
£
1
3
.2

2
£
1
4
.0

0

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

H
S

1
a

R
e
d

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

£
8
8
6
.0

0
£
8
8
9
.4

3
£
8
8
9
.9

8
£
8
9
0
.9

8
£
8
9
1
.4

0
£
8
9
3
.3

9
£
8
9
3
.3

7
£
8
,9

4
7
.7

9
£
9
0
7

U
n
it
 C

o
s
t

H
S

1
b

A
m

b
e
r

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

£
4
1
.2

3
£
4
1
.0

5
£
4
1
.2

2
£
4
1
.0

7
£
4
1
.1

1
£
4
1
.1

1
£
4
1
.1

1
£
4
1
.2

3
£
4
2
.2

0

T
h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t.
 T

h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

a
te

 o
f 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 e

v
e
n
 o

u
t 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 A
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

, 
it
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

N
e
t 

s
u

rp
lu

s
, 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

e
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 t
ic

k
e
t 

is
s
u

e
d

 

H
ig

h
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

C
o

s
t 

p
e
r 

N
ig

h
tl

y
 R

a
te

d
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

C
o

s
t 

p
e
r 

P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
L

e
a
s

e

Deliver 

excellent

services

Deliver excellent 

services

Deliver 

excellent

services C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 O
c
t 
0
7

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
1
3

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
7

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda item:  
 

   CABINET                                                         On 18th December 2007 

 

 
Report Title: Reorganisation of Moselle & William C Harvey Special Schools 
 
 
Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference] 
 

Report of: Director of the Children & Young People’s Service  
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key 

1. Purpose  

1.1 To report on the conclusion to the statutory consultation on the proposed 
reorganisation of Moselle and William C Harvey all-through special schools to form 
one primary and one secondary special school, both to be part of Inclusive Learning 
Campuses. 

1.2 This report also updates Cabinet on the progress with the project to site the 
secondary special school as part of the Inclusive Learning Campus at Woodside 
High School.  A report on the project to create an Inclusive Learning Campus with a 
primary special school located on the site of Broadwater Farm primary school will be 
brought to Cabinet in the coming year.    

 

1.0 Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary) 
2.1 This is a very ambitious and exciting project to rebuild two special schools as part of 

an inclusive learning community.  The project has had a long period (3 years) of 
careful negotiations with all stakeholders and their support for the project has been 
strong.  Due to the considerable prior consultation and communications, the statutory 
stages were inevitably low-key, with only 17 responses to the consultation held from 
May to July 2007 (with the balance in favour of the proposal) and two formal letters 
of representation received during the statutory representation period, which ran from 
20th September 07 to 31st October 2007.  I believe that the newly built schools in an 
inclusive setting will be hugely beneficial to both the children and young people in the 
special schools and mainstream schools.   I recommend that Cabinet approves this 
proposed reorganisation as a first step towards the development of Inclusive 
Learning Campuses. 

2.0 Recommendations 

[No.] 

Agenda Item 9Page 39



 

 2 

3.1 That Cabinet agree the proposed reorganisation of Moselle and William C Harvey 
Special Schools. 

 

 
Report Authorised by: Sharon Shoesmith  
                                Director  
      The Children and Young People’s Service 
 

 
 

 
Contact Officer: Ian Bailey  
                        Deputy Director  - Business Support & Development 
                        020 8489 2450 
 
                        Corinne David 
                        Head of Place Planning  
                           020 8489 5019 

4 Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
4.1 The Chief Financial Officer was consulted in the preparation of this report and has 

provided the following comments. 
4.2 The proposed reorganisation will have revenue funding implications for the Dedicated 

Schools Grant (DSG). The increase in planned places will need to be funded from 
within the DSG and may have an impact on the distribution of funds between schools. 
A saving in out borough placements may offset the additional funding required for the 
increase in places.  

4.3 There may also be one-off transitional costs associated with moving pupils and staff 
between sites and adaptation costs for the existing proposed primary site.  This is not 
estimated yet, but will need to be contained within existing CYPS budgets. 

4.4 Funding is available within the BSF programme for the secondary ILC project and a 
further report will be required to identify capital resources for the primary ILC.  
Additional capital resources have been made available by government for the primary 
estate in future years and the process for allocation of those resources will consider 
this scheme against the needs of other priorities. 

 

5 Head of Legal Services Comments 
5.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of the report. 

Following the completion of the representation period on 31 October 2007, the 
authority may determine the proposals regarding the prescribed alterations to Moselle 
and William C Harvey Schools, provided that it does so within a period of 2 months 
from the end of the representation period. In making that determination the authority 
must have regard to the statutory guidance, which is appended to this report at Annex 
6 

Page 40



 

 3 

 

6 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
6.1 Report to Cabinet on 24th April 07 entitled “ Reorganisation of Moselle and William C 

Harvey Special Schools” 
6.2 Report to Cabinet on 17th July 07 entitled “ School Place Planning Annual Report”  
6.3 The Council’s policy on Educational Inclusion 2003. 
 

7 Background 
 

7.1 Throughout 2004 and 2005 the Director of the Children and Young People’s 
Service chaired a steering group of special school headteachers, governors, 
teacher, support staff, union representatives, parents and other stakeholders 
looking at the future of the two all-age special schools at Broadwater Farm.  
Informal consultations took place with parents and staff.  This proposal takes full 
account of the Council’s policy on Educational Inclusion (2003) 
 

 
7.2 The rationale for change was four fold:   

• both buildings are in poor condition and need substantial attention; 

• the needs of the children and young people in each school are less 
differentiated than was the case a decade or more ago;  

• across the country most special schools have become primary or secondary 
thereby providing progression for their children and young people; 

• the planned 6th Form Centre would be inclusive thereby allowing all post 16 
students to attend. 
 

7.3 The steering group reached an agreement that a single secondary and a single 
primary special school should be established on the site of a secondary and 
primary mainstream school.  Each special school would have its own head and 
governing body and work in collaboration with the mainstream school governing 
body and head. Opportunities for federation could be considered at a later date if 
both governing bodies agreed.  The choice of secondary school was very much 
determined by staying as close to the original schools as possible (given that many 
families had settled in those areas) and ensuring that there was enough space on 
the site – Woodside High was the early and preferred choice.  The primary school 
was an easier choice as so much inclusion work had been established with 
Broadwater Farm Primary School.  In addition the standards and quality of 
provision at Broadwater Farm have been substantially improved.  The Broadwater 
Farm Children’s Centre also offers opportunities to develop the pre-school special 
provision in an inclusive setting. 

 
7.4 The Inclusive Learning Campuses project sets the future pattern of provision in 

Haringey for children and young people with the most severe and profound 
learning difficulties, including severe autistic spectrum disorders.   

Page 41



 

 4 

7.5 The reorganisation of Moselle and William C Harvey special schools is the first of 
three stages to establish a primary and secondary Inclusive Learning Campus.  
These three stages are: 

1. The reorganisation of Moselle and William C Harvey Special schools into 
one primary and one secondary special school.  The date of implementation 
will reflect the opening of the secondary special school to minimise 
disruption to the children and young people. 

 
2. Building the secondary special school on the campus of Woodside High 

School, White Hart Lane, London, N22 5QJ, as part of the Building Schools 
for the Future initiative.  A £26 million scheme to build and refurbish both 
the mainstream and special schools.  

 
3. Building the primary special school on the campus of Broadwater Farm 

Primary school, Moria Close, London, N17 6HZ.  Currently this scheme is 
estimated at around £14 million.  

 
7.6 The reorganisation of Moselle and William C Harvey special schools involves a set 

of ‘prescribed alterations’ to establish a primary and secondary special school.  The 
prescribe alterations are: 

 

• a change of age range each school caters for with one becoming a primary 
special and the other becoming a secondary special school; 

 

• a change in the admission criteria of children/young people, widening the 
range of special educational needs each school can cater for.  Allowing both 
schools to admit pupils with an Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD), Severe 
Learning Difficulties (SLD) or Profound and Multiple Learning Difficulties 
(PMLD); 

 

• a change in the number of pupils each school can cater for, to reflect the 
primary special school accommodating 100 pupils and the secondary 
special school accommodating 120 pupils.  This is an increase of 34 places. 

 
7.7 The number of places available for children and young people in Haringey who 

have severe and complex learning difficulties will be increased as a result of this 
proposal.  This will reduce our dependency on out of borough places which take 
children away from their home environment and reduce unnecessary expenditure.  
Currently there are a total of 241 places available at the following establishments: 

• 121 places at Moselle (4 to 16 year old);   

• 65 places at William C Harvey (4 to 16 year old); 

• 55 places at the 6th form centre (16 to 19 year old), formerly these places 
were in both schools. 

 
Under the current proposals the number of places available will increase to 275, as 
follows: 

Page 42



 

 5 

• 100 places at the new primary special school, to reflect the growing numbers 
of young children with complex needs; 

• 120 places at the new secondary special school; 

• 55 places at the 6th form centre. 
 

7.8 These special school places will be added to by the development of two inclusive 
provisions attached to two secondary schools; the new secondary school in the 
Heartlands and Alexandra Park Secondary School, for young people with Autism.   

7.9  The Haringey School Admissions and Organisation Forum (HASOF), which represents 
Haringey governing bodies and the Anglican and Roman Catholic dioceses, scrutinised 
this report on 15th November 2007.  They expressed support for the proposal. 

 
 
8 Consultation 

 
8.1 Following over three years of consultation and communications with stakeholders, 

the Council initiated the statutory consultation process on the reorganisation of 
Moselle and William C Harvey Special Schools on 8th May 2007, as agreed by 
Cabinet on 24th April 2007.  A consultation document (Annex 1) setting out the 
proposal was sent to all the parents and carers currently with children at the school 
and to governors and school staff.  Copies were also sent to all councillors, MPs, 
neighbouring authorities, the two diocesan boards, all Haringey Schools’ 
headteachers, Chairs of Governors and all local community and SEN 
representative groups.  Annex 2 lists all groups consulted.  

 
8.2 Details of the responses received are summarised in the newsletter attached as 

Annex 3.  Other newsletters issued during the consultation and minutes of public 
meetings are also included in this Annex. 

 
8.3 Following consultation with stakeholders, the Cabinet member for Children and 

Young People reviewed the consultation feedback and decided that statutory 
notices could be published.  This delegated authority was agreed by Cabinet on 
17th July 2007.  

 
8.4 The statutory notice (Annex 4) was published on 20th September 2007 in the 

Haringey Advertiser and fixed to the gates of both schools.  Copies of the statutory 
notice were sent to all groups listed in annex 2, along with copies of the statutory 
proposal (Annex 5).       

 
8.5 In conducting the consultation all applicable statutory requirements in relation to 

the proposals to consult, as set out in The School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 2007, were complied 
with.   

 

Page 43



 

 6 

9 Guidance 
 
9.1 Regulation 8 of The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained 

Schools)(England) Regulations 2007 provides that the Local Authority and schools 
adjudicator are required to have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State when they take a decision on proposals.  The guidance is attached as Annex 
6.   This report summarises representation received during the statutory period and 
sets out a response on behalf of Haringey Council as proposer.  It should be read 
in conjunction with the statutory proposal document in Annex 5.  

 
10 Representation 

 
10.1 Two written representations were received during the statutory period that ran from 

20th September to 31st October 2007.  These were from both parents of one current 
pupil registered at Moselle.  Copies of both representation are attached in annex 7.  

 
 

10.2 Summary of comments and issues raised from the two representations 
received.  

 
• “Concerns of the location of the secondary special school on the site of 

Woodside High School” 
 

• “Moselle and William C Harvey are very successful schools why is Haringey 
proposing to change the way these schools are currently working” 

 

• “The two special schools will lose their focus as far as the range of needs they 
deal with” 

 

• “The continuity provided by offering primary and secondary education in one 
school will be lost and the separate schools will have to work much harder to 
make this happen” 

 

• “The consultation is flawed because the LA has chosen to include the BWF 
campus" 

 

• “The LA has chosen to pursue this proposal despite the fact that a majority of 
the respondents during the informal consultation were not in favour” 

 

 
10.3 The following paragraphs contain the authority’s comments, as proposer, on the 

objections raised. 
 

The location of the secondary special school on the site of Woodside High School 
 

10.4 Woodside High was chosen as the location for the secondary special school, as it 
has sufficient capacity for the new build and is well placed in the centre of the 

Page 44



 

 7 

borough for children and young people with profound and complex needs, who 
may be travelling from many parts of Haringey.  The new location is also close to 
the original schools, providing minimal disruption to families who have settled in 
those areas. The new special school which will be part of the secondary campus 
will have dedicated classes and facilities for children & young people with complex 
needs.  There will also be safe and secure play areas and open spaces. Section 11 
further details what consultation has taken place on the design of the secondary 
special school.  

 
Moselle and William C. Harvey are very successful schools. Why is Haringey 
proposing to change the way these schools are currently working? 

 
10.5 We have every expectation that as successful schools they will be able to benefit 

from the further opportunities that collocation will give.  Both school also needed 
new buildings.  The children and young people at Moselle and William C Harvey 
have complex needs which require specialist facilities, teaching and support. Many, 
however, can also benefit from the teaching and facilities of the mainstream school.  
Organising an inclusive curriculum continuum throughout the special and 
mainstream schools will provide the children and young people with the widest 
educational opportunities available.     

 
The two special schools will lose their focus as far as the range of needs they deal 
with. 

 
10.6 Children & young people with complex needs will continue to be taught individually 

and in small groups with specialist staff, according to their individual plans.  The 
curriculum will be planned and delivered according to individual needs of each child 
& young person, with progress being continuously monitored.  Both schools will be 
ale to further improve their focus on a single phase and to work together to again 
strengthen what is on offer. 

 
The continuity provided by offering primary and secondary education in one school 
will be lost and the separate schools will have to work much harder to make this 
happen. 
 

10.7 A plan to manage the transfer of children from the primary to secondary setting, will 
be drawn up to take full account of the needs of children and young people. 
Paramount in all planning will be the requirement to manage the changes with 
minimum disruption to the children. The governors of the primary and secondary 
special schools could develop a joint committee under the collaboration regulations 
(Education Act 2000) in order to support the transition of the children & young 
people. 

  
10.8 The success of the current schools is based on the quality of teaching and learning 

at the schools and the good relationships between staff, parents and pupils. This 
quality will be retained together with the good relationships with parents.  All school 
staff at Moselle and William C Harvey special school will be offered the opportunity 

Page 45



 

 8 

to transfer to either the primary or secondary special schools with safeguarded 
terms and conditions.  

 
 

The consultation is flawed because the LA has chosen to include the BWF 
"campus" 

 
10.9 The consultation focus was on the reorganisation of Moselle and William C Harvey 

to form one primary and one secondary special school.  This is the first of three 
stages to establish a primary and secondary Inclusive Learning Campus.  It was 
necessary to include the other 2 stages to communicate the council’s overall vision 
and grounds for the reorganisation.  This consultation complies fully with the 
relevant statutory guidance.       

 
The LA has chosen to pursue this proposal despite the fact that a majority of the 
respondents during the informal consultation were not in favour. 

 
10.10 Seventeen response were received to the consultation which ran from 8th May to 

20th July 2007.  The following, provides a break down of responses for each 
question posed in the consultation document circulated to all the stakeholders 
listed in annex 2.  

 
10.11 Question 1: Do you agree with the plan to bring together a mainstream and a special 

school on one site? 
 

Agreed or strongly agreed 9 
Disagreed or strongly disagreed 6 
Not sure 2 

 
10.12 Question 2: Do you agree with the plan to reorganise the two current special schools 

to form one primary and one secondary special school? 
 

Agreed or strongly agreed 6 

Disagreed or strongly disagreed 6 
Not sure 5 

 
10.13 Question 3:  How do you feel about locating the primary special school in the site of 

Broadwater Farm Primary school? 
 

Agreed or strongly agreed 9 
Disagreed or strongly disagreed 4 
Not sure 4 

 
 

10.14 Question 4: How do you feel about locating the secondary special school on the 
site of Woodside High School? 

 

Page 46



 

 9 

Agreed or strongly agreed 4 
Disagreed or strongly disagreed 8 
Not sure 5 

 
10.15 Four public meetings were held and officers attended parent meetings at all four 

schools and at Markfield centre.  All the information collected from the consultation 
was presented to Cabinet member for Children and Young People who reviewed 
the feedback and decided that statutory notices could be published.   

 
10.16 Since the publication of this proposal in May, the BSF team have undertaken 

extensive work and consultation with stakeholders, including parents, staff and 
governors on the design and build of the special secondary school on the 
Woodside High site.  Progress on this work is detailed in section 11 below.     

 
 

11 Progress on building the primary and secondary special schools  

Progress on the Secondary Inclusive Learning Campus 
 

11.1 Throughout the design process for the proposed secondary Inclusive Learning 
Campus (ILC), governors and staff of Moselle, William C Harvey and Woodside 
High schools have been actively engaged in consultation on the designs, with 
governors 'signing off' their agreement at each RIBA design stage. The campus as 
a whole will benefit from extensive building refurbishment and remodelling, with two 
areas of new build, namely the main teaching block for the mainstream school, and 
the dedicated special school building. All accommodation provision on the 
campus is being designed to be accessible to students on roll at the special school, 
with ground-level sheltered walkways connecting buildings, appropriately-designed 
corridor space, and lift access. Social, recreational and eating facilities for pupils on 
roll at the special school allow both integration with their mainstream counterparts, 
and discrete, sheltered provision where required. 

  
11.2 In May 2007, the project signed off RIBA Stage B plans. This involved agreeing the 

mix of new build, remodelling and refurbishment on the campus, the general 
alignment of the buildings, checking that the accommodation space met the 
projected curriculum requirements, and ICT infrastructure requirements. In 
September, the project signed off RIBA Stage C,  agreeing the numbers and types 
of rooms, outdoor spaces, and adjacencies, clarifying appropriate levels of ICT 
infrastructure required across the site. 

  
11.3 In December, it is anticipated that RIBA Stage D will be completed. This will involve 

detailed design plans and elevations, finalising requirements for the detailed design 
of indoor and outdoor spaces, developing a planning application, and appointing a 
building contractor. Further parent and pupil involvement will take place at this 
stage, with an opportunity for them to make an input on the detailed plans for 
designing outdoor spaces on the campus.  

 

Page 47



 

 10

11.4 The project has benefited from the strong engagement of staff and headteachers of 
all three schools.  Governors will continue to be briefed on progress on a regular 
basis, prior to requests to them to 'sign off' future design stages. The involvement 
of pupils will also continue throughout the process. 

  

 
Primary Inclusive Learning Campus 

 
11.5 The primary special school will continue to operate from the Moselle and William C 

Harvey buildings located on Adams road, until the new facilities have been built on 
the site of Broadwater Farm primary school.  At the time of writing capital 
allocations for 2008/09  to 2010/11 have recently been announched.  A further 
report will be brought to the Council’s Cabinet on the funding options for the 
primary special school, in the coming year.   

 
11.6 We will ensure that, through the design process for the primary ILC, governors, 

staff and parents of Moselle, William C Harvey and Broadwater Farm schools will 
be actively engaged in consultation on the designs, with governors 'signing off' their 
agreement at each RIBA design stage.  All premise proposals will be displayed at 
the schools and consultation undertaken with stake holders including parents, prior 
to the submission of a formal planning application.   

Page 48



 

 11

Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs 
 
Annex 1 – Consultation document on the reorganisation of Moselle and William C 

Harvey special schools.  
 
Annex 2 – List of all consulted groups. 
 
Annex 3 – Newsletters and public meeting minutes. 
 
Annex 4 – Statutory Notice   
 
Annex 5 – Statutory Proposal 
 
Annex 6 – Statutory Guidance  
 
Annex 7 – Representation Letters 

 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Making Changes to a 
Maintained Mainstream 
School
(Other than Expansion)

A Guide for Local Authorities and 
Governing Bodies 

School Organisation Unit 
DCSF
Mowden Hall 
Darlington
DL3 9BG 

Tel: 01325 391274 

Email:  schools.organisation-unit@dcsf.gsi.gov.uk 

Website: www.dcsf.gov.uk/schoolorg

Page 97



MAKING CHANGES TO A MAINTAINED MAINSTREAM SCHOOL (OTHER 
THAN EXPANSION) - A GUIDE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND 
GOVERNING BODIES

Contents:

Para Nos. Page Nos. 

Introduction 1-32 1-9

Stage 1 – Consultation 1.1-1.6 10-12

Stage 2 – Publication 2.1-2.10 13-14

Stage 3 - Representations 3.1-3.2 15

Stage 4 – Decision 4.1-4.69 16-32

Stage 5 - Implementation 5.1-5.26 33-37

Annex A – Information in a Proposal 38-44

Page 98



MAKING CHANGES TO A MAINTAINED MAINSTREAM SCHOOL (OTHER 
THAN EXPANSION) - A GUIDE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND 
GOVERNING BODIES

(Covering removal of sixth form; adding/removing early years provision; 
other changes to age range; adding/removing SEN provision; changing 
from single sex to mixed or vice versa; transfer to a new site; 
adding/changing/removing boarding provision; removing selection; 
discontinuance of one of school’s sites and change of category to VA or 
VC)

Introduction

1. This guide provides information on the procedures established by The 
Education and Inspections Act 2006 (EIA 2006) and The School Organisation 
(Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 2007. It 
contains both statutory guidance (i.e. guidance that must be followed) and 
non-statutory guidance on the process for making changes to school 
provision. The statutory guidance sections are indicated by shading.  The 
relevant provisions of EIA 2006 came into effect on 25 May 2007. 

2. If you have any comments on the content or layout of this guide please 
send these to the School Organisation Unit (using the SOU website's "Contact
Us" facility - www.dscf.gov.uk/schoolorg) or by e-mail to: schools.organisation-
unit@dscf.gsi.gov.uk ) making sure that you identify the title of the guide and 
quote the page and paragraph numbers where relevant. 

Who is the Guidance For? 

3. This guidance is for those considering publishing proposals to make 
changes to school provision under Section 19 of the 2006 Act, referred to as 
proposers (i.e. the Local Authority (LA) or the governing body), those deciding 
proposals, referred to as the “Decision Maker” (i.e. the LA and the schools 
adjudicator) and also for information for those affected by proposals to make 
changes to school provision. 

4. Separate guides are available for: 

a. Expanding a school or adding a sixth form

b. Becoming a Trust school; 

c. Establishing a new school; and 

d. Closing a school. 

1

Page 99



School Organisation Planning Requirements

5. LAs are under a statutory duty to ensure that there are sufficient school 
places in their area, promote high educational standards, ensure fair access 
to educational opportunity and promote the fulfilment of every child’s 
educational potential.  They must also ensure that there are sufficient schools 
in their area and promote diversity and increase parental choice.

6. Parents can make representations about the supply of school places 
and LAs have a statutory duty to respond to these representations. Further 
guidance on this duty is available in “Duty to Respond to Parental 
Representations about the Provision of Schools” which is on the school 
organisation website www.dscf.gov.uk/schoolorg . 

7. LAs are required to publish a Children and Young People’s Plan 
(CYPP) as the single strategic overarching plan for all services affecting 
children and young people and includes reference to strategic planning for 
school places. It is for LAs, in partnership with other stakeholders, to plan for 
the provision of places.  LAs should also explore the scope for collaborating 
with neighbouring authorities when planning the provision of schools.  In 
particular, LAs might work together to consider how to meet the needs of 
parents seeking a particular type of school for their children in cases where 
there is insufficient demand for such a school within the area of an individual
LA.

The Secretary of State’s Role 

8. The Secretary of State has the power to issue guidance to which the 
Decision Maker must have regard when deciding proposals.  This should 
ensure that proposals are considered in a consistent way and the Ministers’ 
key priorities for raising standards and transforming secondary education are 
taken into account when decisions are taken. Proposers are strongly advised 
to look at the factors which the Decision Maker will take into account when 
considering their proposals (See Stage 4). 

9. The Secretary of State does not decide statutory proposals relating to 
schools, except where proposals have been published by the Learning and 
Skills Council under Section 113A of the Learning and Skills Act 2000 (as 
inserted by Section 72 of the Education Act 2002), for changes to 16-19 
provision in schools.  For further information please see guidance available at 
www.teachernet.gov.uk/docbank/index.cfm?id=4390 . 

When are proposals required? 

10. You first need to decide whether the change you propose to make 
requires the publication of statutory proposals.  A separate guide is available 
for making changes to expand a school or add a sixth form, see “Expanding a 
Maintained Mainstream School or Adding a Sixth Form” which is available on 
the school organisation website www.dscf.gov.uk/schoolorg . 

2

Page 100



11. The changes to community, voluntary and foundation schools that 
require proposals, other than for expansion or adding a sixth form, are: 

a. Change of Upper Age Limit – a change in the upper age limit by a 
year or more, except where the alteration is: 

i) to provide or remove provision for pupils over compulsory school 
age who are repeating a course of education completed before they 
reached compulsory school age;
ii) to provide part-time further education for pupils aged over
compulsory school age, or full-time further education for persons 
aged 19 or over i.e. under section 80(1) of SSFA 1998; or 
iii) temporary and will be in place for no more than 2 years. 

b. Change of Lower Age Limit – which, when taken together with 
previous changes (i.e. in the past 5 years; since the school opened 
or since any previous age change proposals were implemented), 
would result in a lower/higher age limit by at least one year. This 
would include the addition or removal of early years provision. 
Proposals are not required for temporary changes that will be in 
place for no more than 2 years; 

c. The addition or removal of, or change to, provision reserved 
for pupils with SEN; 

d. End selection in a grammar school - proposals by the governing 
body of a designated grammar school to end selection (section 109 
of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998); 

e. Pupil gender – a change from single-sex to mixed, or vice versa. If 
a school is single sex, but admits pupils of both sexes to its sixth 
form, it will be regarded as single sex, providing admission to the 
sixth form is 25% or less of the other sex; 

f. Boarding - the introduction or ending of boarding, or an increase or 
decrease in boarding provision by 50 pupils or 50% of capacity, 
whichever is the greater; 

g. Transfer to a new site - the transfer of a school to a new site, 
except where the new site is within 3.2 kilometres (2 miles) ‘as the 
crow flies’ of the existing site (unless the school is transferring to a 
site within another LA); 

h. Discontinuance of one of school’s sites – the discontinuance of 
a site, where a school occupies more than one site, and the main 
entrance of any of the school’s remaining sites is one mile of more 
from the main entrance of the site which is to be discontinued; and

i. Change of School Category – a change of category from 
community, foundation, voluntary aided, or voluntary controlled to 
voluntary aided or voluntary controlled. A school cannot change 

3

Page 101



category to become a community school.

[NOTE: Separate guidance is available on changing category to 
become a Trust school and changing category to foundation]

12. The only alteration to a nursery school that requires statutory proposals 
is the transfer of the school to a new site, except where the new site is within 
3.2 kilometres (2 miles) ‘as the crow flies’ of the existing site.

Change of Category to VA 

13. If a school proposes to change category to voluntary aided, evidence 
must be provided that the governing body are able and willing to meet their 
financial responsibilities for building work after the proposed implementation 
date (Form 18 should be provided). Whilst the Secretary of State has the 
power to provide grant aid for up to 90% of building work costs, the governors 
must provide the remaining 10% themselves. In bringing forward proposals, 
the governing body should be able to demonstrate that it has access to 
sufficient funds to enable it to meet 10% of its overall liabilities for at least 5 
years from the date of implementation. The governing body could submit a 
schedule with the proposals outlining an estimate of the costs of capital work 
for the forthcoming five years and a statement as to how it will meet its 
liabilities for such costs. 

VA schools – what if the governing body can no longer meet their 
financial contribution?

14. Under Section 19(4) of EIA 2006, if the governing body of a VA school 
is unable or unwilling to carry out their financial obligations for funding capital 
building work, they must publish prescribed alteration proposals to change 
category to become a foundation or voluntary controlled school.

Schools with a Religious Character 

15. It is not possible for a voluntary or foundation school to acquire, lose or 
change religious character by making a prescribed alteration to the school. To 
make a change from, for example, a community school to a voluntary school 
with a religious character, the LA would need to publish proposals to close the 
community school, and a faith organisation (as proposers) would bring 
forward “related” proposals to establish a new voluntary school with a religious 
character.

Grammar schools 

16. Where a school has been designated as a grammar school by the 
Secretary of State, its selective admission arrangements can only be removed 
through the parental ballot arrangements or through statutory proposals to 
remove selection. Only the governing bodies of designated grammar schools 
may publish proposals to remove selection. Proposals to remove selection will 
fall if the LA are notified that a petition, which will trigger a ballot, has been 
received before the proposals are due to be implemented. 

4

Page 102



Foundation bodies

17. A foundation body is a statutory foundation established under section 
21 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998.  Paragraphs 16 to 20 
below apply only to foundation bodies established under that Act.  It does not 
apply to other types of foundations, including Trusts.  There is separate 
guidance on the acquisition of a Trust entitled “Trust School Proposals” which
is available on the school organisation website – www.dscf.gov.uk/schoolorg . 

18. A foundation body may be established by three or more schools acting 
jointly. If approved, the body will then hold the property for all the schools “for 
the purposes of the schools” and also be responsible for appointing the 
foundation governors for the schools within the group. The governing bodies 
of a group of schools may bring forward proposals to change the category and 
simultaneously establish a foundation body or join an existing foundation 
body.

19. Any application to the Secretary of State to establish a foundation body 
must contain - 

a statement that the application has been agreed by the governing body of 
each school; 

a draft instrument of government for the foundation body; 

a statement containing the names of the initial governor members of the 
foundation body; the proposed date on which the foundation body comes into 
being; the category in which it is proposed that each school will enter the 
group (or a statement that a particular school will enter in its existing 
category), and an undertaking that the foundation body will appoint foundation 
governors to schools in the group in accordance with the individual schools’ 
instruments of government.

20. If the Secretary of State approves the application, a foundation body 
will then be established on a date specified by him in writing.

21. Where a school wishes to join an existing foundation body, they may 
only do so with the agreement of the governing bodies of all the schools which
are already members of the group. Consequently any application to the 
Secretary of State must be made jointly by the governing body of the school 
seeking to join the group and the foundation body. The application should 
contain:

a statement that the governing bodies of all the schools in the group agree to 
the school joining the group; and 

the category in which it is proposed that the school will enter the group. The 
Secretary of State shall, if he considers it appropriate, declare that the school 
shall form part of the group from the date specified in the proposals.

22. Where a school wishes to join a group, the foundation body will have to 

5

Page 103



simultaneously seek the Secretary of State’s approval of a modification of the 
foundation’s instrument of government.

Overview of Process 

23. There are 5 statutory stages for a statutory proposal to make a 
prescribed alteration to a school: 

ImplementationConsultation Publication Representation Decision

Who Can Publish Statutory Proposals

24. The regulations prescribe who can publish the different types of 
proposals for each category of school but the table below summarises the 
provisions:

Who? Type of Proposals 

Local Authority Community Schools:- 

All types of alterations except removal of selection 
and changes of category 

Foundation and Voluntary schools:- 

Enlargement of Premises

Increase the number of pupils 

Change upper age limit to provide sixth form 
education

Addition or removal of SEN provision

Nursery School:- 

Transfer to a new site

Likely to be 
no longer
than 12
months

1 day 
Up to 2 
months

(longer if 
referred to the
adjudicator)

6 weeks No prescribed
timescale

6

Page 104



Proposals to be relieved of the duty to implement previously 
approved proposals published by the LA. 

Governors of 
Foundation and 
Voluntary
Schools

Enlargement of premises 

Increase pupils numbers 

Change upper age limit 

Change lower age limit

Revision of admission arrangements of a grammar school 

Addition, removal or change in the type of SEN

Change of Gender 

The introduction, alteration or ending of boarding provision 

Transfer of a school to a new site 

Discontinue the use of a site 

Changes of Category from:- 

VC to VA 
VA to VC 
Foundation to VC 
Foundation to VA 

Proposals to be relieved of the duty to implement
previously approved proposals published by the Governing 
Body.

Governors of a 
Community
School

Enlargement of premises 

Increase the number of pupils 

Change upper age limit to provide sixth form education 

Removal of selection (grammar school) 

Change of category from:- 

Community to VC 
Community to VA 

Proposals to be relieved of the duty to implement previously 
approved proposals published by the Governing Body. 

LSC Powers to publish proposals 

7

Page 105



25. The Learning and Skills Council (LSC) will work with local authorities to 
support the improvement of sixth-form provision.  The LSC has the power to 
publish proposals for the closure of an inadequate school sixth form. Where a 
school sixth form has been judged to require Significant Improvement in two 
consecutive Ofsted inspections, or where a maintained school for 16-19 year 
olds has been judged to require Special Measures in two consecutive Ofsted 
inspections, the LSC may publish proposals to close the sixth form or 16-19 
school. The proposals will be decided by the LA or schools adjudicator in 
accordance with the same procedures as set out in Stage 4 of this guide. 

26. In addition to the above, the LSC can publish proposals to add or 
remove a school sixth form provision, or enlarge existing provision in the 
following circumstances:- 

following an area inspection report; or

where the LSC can demonstrate that a reorganisation will increase
participation and achievement of, and range of learning opportunities for, 16-
19 year-olds.

27. These proposals are decided by the Secretary of State.

Where to Start? 

28. Before commencing formal consultation, the LA or governing body 
should ensure that they understand the statutory process that must be 
followed, the factors that will be considered by the Decision Maker and that 
they have a sufficiently strong case and supporting evidence. They should 
also ensure that if they require capital funding to make the alteration, this has 
been secured before they publish their proposals. 

Capital

30. Where proposals require capital resources for their implementation the 
funding for the proposals must be in place when the proposals are decided 
(see paragraph 4.44). Where proposers require capital funding to implement 
their proposals, they should secure this before publishing proposals. 

31. All LA are allocated capital funding over each spending review period 
to support their investment in school buildings. Where an LA identifies the 
need to make changes to local school provision, as part of a Building Schools 
for the Future project, the funding will be provided through the Building 
Schools for the Future programme. Details of capital funding for the project in 
respect of all schools will be decided in discussions between the LA, the 
Department and Partnerships for Schools and will be included in the Final 
Business Case which the Department agrees. This may include the 
contribution by the LA (or schools or other stakeholders such as dioceses) to 
Building Schools for the Future funding of receipts from land made available 
through school reorganisation.   For voluntary aided schools, government 
funding will normally be at 100% of the approved capital costs.

8

Page 106



32. Where capital work is proposed for a community, foundation or 
voluntary controlled school other than as part of Building Schools for the 
Future, the proposers should secure a capital allocation from the LA. The LA 
should consider how they can prioritise this need in their asset management 
planning for the formulaic capital funding they receive, and for other resources 
which are available to them.  Similarly proposers in respect of voluntary aided 
schools will need to get a commitment of grant from the Department, with the 
rate of grant support normally being 90% of the expenditure. The governing 
body will be responsible for funding the remaining 10%.

9

Page 107



Stage 1 – Consultation 

1.1 The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained 
Schools)(England) Regulations 2007 provide that those bringing forward
statutory proposals to make an alteration to a school must consult interested 
parties, and in doing so must have regard to the Secretary of State’s
guidance. The statutory guidance for this purpose is contained in paragraphs 
1.2 to 1.5 below. 

1.2 The Secretary of State considers that those bringing forward proposals 
should consult all interested parties.  In doing so they should: 

allow adequate time; 

provide sufficient information for those being consulted to form a considered 
view on the matters on which they are being consulted; 

make clear how their views can be made known; 

able to demonstrate how they have taken into account the view expressed 
during consultation in reaching any subsequent decision as to the publication 
of proposals. 

1.3 Where, in the course of consultation, a new option emerges which the 
proposers wish to consider, it will probably be appropriate to consult afresh on 
this option before proceeding to publish proposals. 

1.4 The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained 
Schools)(England) Regulations 2007 require proposers to consult the 
following interested parties: 

the governing body of any school which is the subject of proposals (if the LA 
are publishing proposals); 

the LA that maintains the school (if the governing body is publishing the 
proposals);

families of pupils, teachers and other staff at the school; 

any LA likely to be affected by the proposals, including neighbouring 
authorities where there may be significant cross-border movement of pupils; 

the governing bodies, teachers and other staff of any other school that may be 
affected;

families of any pupils at any other school who may be affected by the 
proposals including where appropriate families of pupils at feeder primary 
schools;

any trade unions who represent staff at the school; and representatives of any 
trade union of any other staff at schools who may be affected by the 

10

Page 108



proposals;

(if proposals involve, or are likely to affect a school which has a particular 
religious character) the appropriate diocesan authorities or the relevant faith 
group in relation to the school; 

(if a foundation or voluntary school does not have a religious foundation) any
trust or foundation providing the school; 

(if the proposals affect the provision of full-time 14-19 education) the Learning 
and Skills Council (LSC); 

MPs whose constituencies include the schools that are the subject of the 
proposals or whose constituents are likely to be affected by the proposals; 

the local district parish or community council where the school or proposed 
school that is the subject of the proposals is situated;

any other interested party, for example, the Early Years Development and 
Childcare Partnership (if one exists), or any local partnership or group that 
exists in place of an EYDCP (where proposals affect early years and/or 
childcare provision), or those who benefit from a contractual arrangement 
giving them the use of the premises; and 

such other persons as appear to the proposers to be appropriate. 

1.5 Under Section 176 of the Education Act 2002 LAs and governing 
bodies are also under a duty to consult pupils on any proposed changes to 
local school organisation that may affect them.  Guidance on this duty is 
available on the Teachernet website: www.publications.teachernet.gov.uk and 
is entitled ‘Pupil Participation Guidance: Working Together – Giving Children 
and Young People a Say’. 

Conduct of Consultation

1.6 How consultation is carried out is not prescribed in regulations and it is 
for the proposers to determine the nature of the consultation including, for 
example, whether to hold public meetings.  Proposers should avoid consulting 
on proposals during school holidays. 

Remember:

Do Don’t

Consult all interested parties Consult during school holidays 

Provide sufficient time and sufficient 
information

Use language which could be 
misleading, e.g. We will remove SEN 
provision

Think about the most appropriate 
consultation method 

Consider feedback and views 

11

Page 109



Consider alternative options 

Explain decision making process 

12

Page 110



Stage 2 – Publication

2.1 The table at paragraph 22 of the Introduction section of this guide sets 
out who may publish proposals for the different categories of school.

2.2 Proposals must contain the information specified in The School 
Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England)
Regulations 2007 – as set out in Annex A.  Proposals should be published 
within a reasonable timeframe following consultation so that they are informed 
by up-to-date feedback, preferably within 12 months of consultation being 
concluded.

2.3 A statutory notice containing specified information (indicated by the 
shaded information in Annex A) and stating how complete copies of the 
proposals can be obtained must be published in a local newspaper, and also 
posted at the main entrance to the school (and all the entrances if there are 
more than one) and at some other conspicuous place in the area served by 
the school (e.g. the local library, community centre or post office etc.).
Proposers may circulate a notice more widely in order to ensure that all those 
substantially affected have the opportunity to comment. 

2.4. The DCSF School Organisation Website contains an online Statutory 
Notice Builder tool. Proposers are strongly advised to use this facility as it will 
help them to draft a statutory notice that complies with regulations, and offers 
an opportunity for the notice to be checked by the School Organisation Unit of 
the DCSF.  The notice builder can be found at www.dscf.gov.uk/schoolorg . 
To gain access you must register for the “Members’ Area” on the website but 
this is free of charge. 

Related Proposals 

2.5 Where proposals are interdependent they should be identified as 
“related”, either by being published in a single notice or the link to the other 
proposals made clear in each notice.  Where proposals for community and 
voluntary schools are “related” (e.g. where an entire area is to be reorganised) 
the LA and governors/proposers may publish a single notice but this must 
make it clear who is making which proposals, under their respective powers, 
and there should be separate signatures for each relevant section. Where 
proposals are not “related”, they should not be published on the same notice 
unless the notice makes it very clear that the proposals are not “related”. 

Implementation date

2.6 There is no maximum limit on the time between the publication of a 
proposal and its date of implementation but circumstances may change 
significantly if too long a period elapses.  In general, therefore, with the 
possible exception of proposals for major authority-wide reorganisation which 
may have to be phased in over a long period – the implementation date for 
proposals should be within 3 years of their publication.  You may be expected 
to show good reason if you propose a longer timescale. 

13

Page 111



Explanatory Note

2.7 If the full effect of the proposals is not apparent to the general public 
from the published notice, it may be supplemented by an explanatory note or 
background statement, but this should be clearly distinguishable from the 
formal proposals. 

Invalid Notice

2.8 Where a published notice has not been properly formulated in 
accordance with the regulations, the notice may be judged invalid and 
therefore ineligible to be determined by the LA or schools adjudicator.  In 
these circumstances you should publish a revised notice making it clear that 
this replaces the first notice and that the statutory period for representations 
will run from the publication date of the revised notice. 

Who should be sent copies of proposals? 

2.9 The proposers must send complete copies of their proposals, within a 
week of publication, to: 

the LA (if the governing body published the proposals); 

the school’s governing body (if the LA published the proposals); and 

the Secretary of State (i.e. to SOU, DCSF, Mowden Hall, Darlington DL3 9BG 
or via e-mail to schools.organisation-unit@dscf.gsi.gov.uk . 

2.10 The proposers must also send a complete copy of their proposals to 
any person who requests a copy within 1 week of the date of the request. 

14

Page 112



Stage 3 - Representations

3.1 Once proposals are published there follows a 6 week statutory period
during which representations (e.g. objections or comments) can be made.
These must be sent to the LA. 

3.2 The representation period is the final opportunity for people and 
organisations to express their views about the proposals and ensure that they 
will be taken into account by the Decision Maker. 

15

Page 113



Stage 4 – Decision 

4.1. Decisions on school organisation proposals are taken by the LA or by 
the schools adjudicator. In this chapter both are covered by the form of words 
“Decision Maker”. 

4.2 Section 21 of EIA 2006 provides for regulations to set out who should 
decide proposals for any prescribed alterations.  The School Organisation 
(Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 2007 
(SI: 2007 No. 1289) make detailed provision for the consideration of 
prescribed alteration proposals (see in particular Schedules 3 and 5).  Most 
decisions will be taken by the LA with some rights of appeal to the schools 
adjudicator.

4.3 The Department does not prescribe the process by which an LA carries 
out their decision-making function (e.g. full Cabinet or delegation to Cabinet 
member or officials). This is a matter for the LA to determine but the 
requirement to have regard to statutory guidance (see paragraph 4.15 below) 
applies equally to the body or individual that takes the decision. 

4.4 If the LA fails to decide proposals within 2 months of the end of the 
representation period the LA must forward proposals, and any received 
representations (i.e. not withdrawn in writing), to the schools adjudicator for 
decision.  They must forward the proposals within one week of the end of the 
2 month period.

Who Can Appeal Against an LA Decision? 

4.5 The following bodies may appeal against an LA decision on alteration 
proposals:

the local Church of England diocese; 

the bishop of the local Roman Catholic diocese; 

where the school provides education for pupils aged 14 and over -  the 
Learning and Skills Council; and 

where proposals are published by the LA - the governors and trustees of the 
foundation or voluntary school. 

Notes:

1 - We propose to amend the regulations to provide for an appeal by the 
governors and trustees of a foundation or voluntary school where the 
governing body have published any alteration proposals; and 

2 - the governing body of the community school may appeal if their 
proposals to expand their school are rejected by the LA – see paragraph 
4.5 of “Expanding a Maintained Mainstream School or Adding a Sixth 
Form” – www.dscf.gov.uk/schoolorg . 

16

Page 114



4.6 Appeals must be submitted to the LA within 4 weeks of the LA’s 
decision.  The LA must then send the proposals, and the comments and 
objections received, to the schools adjudicator within 1 week of the receipt of 
the appeal. The LA should also send a copy of the minutes of the LA’s 
meeting or other record of the decision and any relevant papers. Where the 
proposals are “related” to other proposals, all the “related” proposals should 
be sent to the schools adjudicator.

Checks on Receipt of Statutory Proposals 

4.7 There are 4 key issues which the Decision Maker should consider 
before judging the respective factors and merits of the statutory proposals: 

a. Is any information missing?  If so, the Decision Maker should write 
immediately to the proposer/promoter specifying a date by which 
the information must be provided.

b. Does the published notice comply with statutory requirements?
(see paragraph 4.8 below).

c. Has the statutory consultation been carried out prior to the 
publication of the notice? (see paragraph 4.9 below). 

d. Are the proposals linked or “related” to other published proposals? 
(see paragraphs 4.10 to 4.14 below). 

Does the Published Notice Comply with Statutory Requirements?

4.8 The Decision Maker should consider whether the notice is valid as 
soon as a copy is received.  Where a published notice does not comply with 
statutory requirements - as set out in The School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations)(England) Regulations 2007 (SI:2007 No.1289) -  it may be judged 
invalid and the Decision Maker should consider whether they can decide the 
proposals.

Has the Statutory Consultation Been Carried Out Prior to the Publication 
of the Notice?

4.9 Details of the consultation should be included in the proposals.  The 
Decision Maker should be satisfied that the consultation meets statutory 
requirements (see Stage 1 paragraphs 1.2 – 1.5).  If some parties submit 
objections on the basis that consultation was not adequate, the Decision
Maker may wish to take legal advice on the points raised. If the requirements 
have not yet been met, the Decision Maker may judge the proposals to be 
invalid and should consider whether they can decide the proposals.
Alternatively the Decision Maker may take into account the sufficiency and 
quality of the consultation as part of their overall judgement of the proposals 
as a whole.

Are the Proposals Related to Other Published Proposals? 

17

Page 115



4.10 Paragraph 35 of Schedule 3, and Paragraph 35 of Schedule 5, to The 
School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England)
Regulations 2007 provides that any proposals that are “related” to particular 
proposals must be considered together.  Paragraphs 4.11-4.14 provide 
statutory guidance on whether proposals should be regarded as “related”. 

4.11 Generally, proposals should be regarded as “related” if they are 
included on the same notice (unless the notice makes it clear that the 
proposals are not “related”). Proposals should be regarded as “related” if the 
notice makes a reference to a link to other proposals.  If the statutory notices 
do not confirm a link, but it is clear that a decision on one of the proposals 
would be likely to directly affect the outcome or consideration of the other, the 
proposals should be regarded as “related”.

4.12 Where proposals are “related”, the decisions should be compatible e.g. 
if one set of proposals is for the removal of provision, and another is for the 
establishment or enlargement of provision for displaced pupils, both should be 
approved or rejected. 

4.13 Where proposals for an expansion of a school are “related” to 
proposals published by the local LSC which are to be decided by the 
Secretary of State, the Decision Maker should defer taking a decision until the 
Secretary of State has taken a decision on the LSC proposals.  This applies 
where proposals before the Decision Maker concern:

a.  the school that is the subject of the LSC proposals;

b. any other secondary school, maintained by the same LA that maintains 
a school that is the subject of the LSC proposals; or

c. any other secondary school in the same LA area as any FE college 
which is the subject of the LSC proposals. 

4.14 The proposals will be regarded as “related” if their implementation 
would prevent or undermine effective implementation of the LSC proposals. 

Statutory Guidance – Factors to be Considered by Decision Makers

4.15 Regulation 8 of The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to 
Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 2007 provides that both the LA 
and schools adjudicator are required to have regard to guidance issued by 
the Secretary of State when they take a decision on proposals.  Paragraphs 
4.16 to 4.60 below contain the statutory guidance. 

4.16 The following factors should not be taken to be exhaustive.  Their 
importance will vary, depending on the type and circumstances of the 
proposals.  All proposals should be considered on their individual merits. 

EFFECT ON STANDARDS AND SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT 

A System Shaped by Parents 

18

Page 116



4.17 The Government’s aim, as set out in the Five Year Strategy for 
Education and Learners and the Schools White Paper Higher Standards, 
Better Schools For All, is to create a schools system shaped by parents which 
delivers excellence and equity.  In particular, the Government wishes to see a 
dynamic system in which: 

weak schools that need to be closed are closed quickly and replaced by new 
ones where necessary; 

the best schools are able to expand and spread their ethos and success; and 

new providers have the opportunity to share their energy and talents by 
establishing new schools – whether as voluntary schools, Trust schools or 
Academies – and forming Trust for existing schools.

4.18 The EIA 2006 amends the Education Act 1996 to place new duties 
on LAs to secure diversity in the provision of schools and to 
increase opportunities for parental choice when planning the provision of 
schools in their areas.  In addition, LAs are under a specific duty to respond 
to representations from parents about the provision of schools, including 
requests to establish new schools or make changes to existing schools.  The 
Government's aim is to secure a more diverse and dynamic schools system 
which is shaped by parents. The Decision Maker should take into account the 
extent to which the proposals are consistent with the new duties on LAs. 

Standards

4.19 The Government wishes to encourage changes to local school 
provision where it will boost standards and opportunities for young people, 
whilst matching school place supply as closely as possible to pupils’ and 
parents’ needs and wishes. 

4.20 Decision Makers should be satisfied that proposals for changes to a 
school’s provision will contribute to raising local standards of provision, and 
will lead to improved attainment for children and young people.  They should 
pay particular attention to the effects on groups that tend to under-perform 
including children from certain ethnic groups, children from deprived 
backgrounds and children in care, with the aim of narrowing attainment gaps. 

4.21 Decision Makers should be satisfied that when proposals lead to 
children being displaced, any alternative provision will meet the statutory SEN 
improvement test (see paragraphs 4.53 - 4.59). 

Diversity

4.22 The Government’s aim is to transform our school system so that every
child receives an excellent education – whatever their background and 
wherever they live.  A vital part of the Government’s vision is to create a more 
diverse school system offering excellence and choice, where each school has 

19

Page 117



a strong ethos and sense of mission and acts as a centre of excellence or 
specialist provision. 

4.23 Decision Makers should consider how proposals will contribute to local
diversity.  They should consider the range of schools in the relevant area of 
the LA and whether the expansion of the school will meet the aspirations of 
parents, help raise local standards and narrow attainment gaps. 

Every Child Matters

4.24. The Decision Maker should consider how proposals will help every 
child and young person achieve their potential in accordance with Every Child 
Matters’ principles which are:  to be healthy; stay safe; enjoy and achieve; 
make a positive contribution to the community and society; and achieve 
economic well-being.  This should include considering how the school will 
provide a wide range of extended services, opportunities for personal 
development, access to academic and vocational training, measures to 
address barriers to participation and support for children and young people 
with particular needs, e.g. looked after children or children with special 
educational needs (SEN) and disabilities. 

SCHOOL CHARACTERISTICS

Boarding Provision 

4.25 In making a decision on proposals that make changes to boarding 
provision, the Decision Maker should consider whether or not there would be 
a detrimental effect on the sustainability of boarding at another state 
maintained boarding school within one hour’s travelling distance of the 
proposed school.

4.26 In making a decision on proposals to introduce new boarding places
the Decision Maker should consider:-

a. the extent to which boarding places are over subscribed at any 
state maintained boarding school within an hour's travelling 
distance of the school; 

b. the extent to which the accommodation at the school can provide 
the new boarding places;

c. the extent to which the expansion of boarding places will help 
placements of pupils with an identified boarding need; and 

d. the impact of the expansion on a state maintained boarding school 
within one hour's travelling distance from the school which may be 
undersubscribed.

4.27. In making a decision on proposals to remove boarding provision, the 
Decision Maker should consider whether there is a state maintained boarding 
school within one hour’s travelling distance from the school. The Decision

20

Page 118



Maker should consider whether there are satisfactory alternative boarding 
arrangements for those currently in the school and those who may need 
boarding places in the foreseeable future, including the children of service 
families.

Equal Opportunity Issues

4.28 The Decision Maker should consider whether there are any sex, race 
or disability discrimination issues that arise from the changes being proposed, 
for example that there is equal access to single sex provision for the other sex 
to meet parental demand.  Similarly there needs to be a commitment to 
provide access to a range of opportunities which reflect the ethnic and cultural 
mix of the area, while ensuring that such opportunities are open to all.

NEED FOR PLACES

Provision for Displaced Pupils 

4.29 Where proposals will remove provision, the Decision Maker should be 
satisfied that there is sufficient capacity to accommodate displaced pupils in 
the area, taking into account the overall supply and likely future demand for 
places.  The Decision Maker should consider the quality and popularity with 
parents of the schools in which spare capacity exists and evidence of parents’ 
aspirations for those schools.

Creating Additional Places

4.30 Where proposals will increase provision, the Decision Maker should 
consider the supporting evidence presented for the increase. The Decision 
Maker should take into account the existence of spare capacity in 
neighbouring schools, but also the quality and popularity with parents of the 
schools in which spare capacity exists and evidence of parents’ aspirations for 
places in particular schools.   The existence of surplus capacity in 
neighbouring less popular or successful schools should not in itself prevent 
the addition of new places. 

4.31 Where the school has a religious character, or follow a particular 
philosophy, the Decision Maker should be satisfied that there is satisfactory 
evidence of sufficient demand for places for the school to be sustainable. 

4.32 Where proposals will add to surplus capacity but there is a strong case 
for approval on parental preference and standards grounds, the presumption 
should be for approval.  The LA in these cases will need to consider parallel 
action to remove the surplus capacity thereby created. 

Travel and Accessibility for All 

4.33 In considering proposals for the reorganisation of schools, Decision 
Makers should satisfy themselves that accessibility planning has been 
properly taken into account.  Facilities are to be accessible by those 
concerned, by being located close to those who will use them, and the 

21

Page 119



proposed changes should not adversely impact on disadvantaged groups. 

4.34 In deciding statutory proposals, the Decision Maker should bear in 
mind that proposals should not have the effect of unreasonably extending
journey times or increasing transport costs, or result in too many 
children being prevented from travelling sustainably due to unsuitable routes 
e.g. for walking, cycling etc. The EIA 2006 provides extended
free transport rights for low income groups – see Home to School Travel and 
Transport Guidance re 00373 – 2007BKT-EN at 
www.teachernet.gov.uk/publications .  Proposals should also be considered 
on the basis of how they will support and contribute to the LA’s duty to 
promote the use of sustainable travel and transport to school. 

16-19 Provision

4.35 The Learning and Skills Act 2000 provides an entitlement to further 
education and training for young people aged 16-19.  Schools and colleges 
should offer high quality provision that meets the diverse needs of all young 
people, their communities and employers.  16-19 provision should be 
organised to ensure that, in every area, young people have access, within 
reasonable travelling distance, to high quality learning opportunities across 
schools, colleges and work-based training routes. 

4.36 In September 2003 Ministers set out their five key principles for the 
reorganisation of 16-19 provision, following requests from partners (including 
LSC and LAs) for more clarity on Government expectations.  Decision Makers 
should therefore consider all proposals which affect local 16-19 provision (i.e. 
both proposed school expansions and proposals to add a new sixth form) in 
the context of these principles. 

4.37 Details of the five key principles can be found in ‘Principles
underpinning the organisation of 16-19 provision’ booklet 
www.teachernet.gov.uk/docbank/index.cfm?id=5233 . Briefly they are: 

a. quality – all provision for all learners should be high quality, 
whatever their chosen pathway; 

b. distinct 16-19 provision – all young people should be attached to a 
16-19 base which will meet the particular pastoral, management 
and learning needs of this group; 

c. diversity to ensure curriculum breadth – well-managed collaboration
between popular and successful small providers will enable them to 
remain viable and to share and build on their particular areas of 
expertise;

d. learner choice – all learners should normally have local access to 
high quality 16-19 provision in a range of settings and any 
proposals for change to this provision should take into account the 
views of all stakeholders; 

22

Page 120



e. affordability, value for money and cost effectiveness – proposals for 
change should include how any capital and recurrent costs and 
savings will lead to improved educational opportunities. 

Conflicting Sixth Form Reorganisation Proposals

4.38 Where the implementation of reorganisation proposals by the LSC 
conflict with other published proposals put to the Decision Maker for decision,
the Decision Maker is prevented (i.e. by the School Organisation Proposals by
the LSC for England Regulations 2003) from making a decision on the 
“related” proposals until the Secretary of State has decided the LSC proposals 
(see paragraphs 4.13 to 4.14 above). 

LSC Proposals to Remove Inadequate School Sixth Forms 

4.39 The Learning and Skills Act 2000 (as amended by the Education Act 
2005) gives the LSC powers to propose the closure of s school sixth form 
which has been judged to require Significant Improvement in two consecutive 
Ofsted inspections.  Where a school sixth form is proposed for closure in such 
circumstances there should be a presumption to approve the proposals, 
subject to evidence being provided that the development will have a positive 
impact on standards. 

SCHOOL CATEGORY CHANGES 

Change to VA category

4.40 If a school proposes to change category to voluntary aided, the 
Decision Maker must be satisfied that the governing body are able and willing 
to meet their financial responsibilities for building work. The Decision Maker 
may wish to consider whether the governing body has access to sufficient 
funds to enable it to meet 10% of its overall liabilities for at least 5 years from 
the date of implementation, taking into account anticipated building projects. 

Foundation Bodies

4.41 Where a school proposes to change category to become a voluntary 
school and simultaneously join an existing foundation body, or to propose the 
establishment of a new foundation body (see paragraph 15 to 20 of the 
Introduction), any approval for change of category proposals must be subject 
to a condition that the Secretary of State approves the foundation body (see 
paragraph 4.62). 

Change to Foundation 

4.42 Proposals to change category and acquire a foundation (i.e. to become 
a Trust School) should be considered according to separate Decision Making 
guidance contained in the Guide to becoming a Trust School. Proposals to 
change category to foundation, but not acquire a trust, must be considered on 
their merits. The Government wants to see more schools become self 
governing and benefit from the freedom this offers e.g. to control their own 

23

Page 121



assets, employ their own staff and set their own admission criteria. 

FUNDING AND LAND

Capital

4.43 The Decision Maker should be satisfied that any capital required to 
implement the proposals will be available.  Normally, this will be some form of 
written confirmation from the source of funding on which the promoters rely 
(e.g. the LA, DCSF, or LSC).  In the case of an LA, this should be from an 
authorised person within the LA, and provide detailed information on the 
funding, provision of land and premises etc. 

4.44 There can be no assumption that the approval of proposals will trigger 
the release of capital funds from the Department, unless the Department has 
previously confirmed in writing that such resources will be available; not can 
any allocation ‘in principle’ be increased.  In such circumstances the proposals 
should be rejected, or consideration of them deferred until it is clear that the 
capital necessary to implement the proposals will be provided. 

4.45 Proposals should not be approved conditionally upon funding being 
made available, subject to the following specific exceptions.  For proposals 
being funded under the Private Finance Initiative (PFI) or through the Building 
Schools for the Future (BSF) programme, the Decision Maker should be 
satisfied that funding has been agreed ‘in principle’, but the proposals should 
be approved conditionally on the entering into of the necessary agreements 
and the release of funding.  A conditional approval will protect proposers so 
that they are not under a statutory duty to implement the proposals until the 
relevant contracts have been signed and/or funding is finally released

Capital Receipts 

4.46 Where the implementation of proposals may depend on capital receipts 
from the disposal of land used for the purposes of a school (i.e. including one 
proposed for closure in “related” proposals) the Decision Maker should 
confirm whether consent to the disposal of land is required, or an agreement 
is needed, for disposal of the land.  Current requirements are: 

a. Community Schools – the Secretary of State’s consent is required 
under paragraph 2 of Schedule 35A to the Education Act 1996 and, 
in the case of playing field land, under section 77 of the Schools 
Standards and Framework Act 1998 (SSFA 1998).  (Details are 
given in DfES Guidance 1017-2004 The Protection of School 
Playing Fields and Land for Academies published in November 
2004).

b. Foundation and Voluntary Schools: 

(i) playing field land – the governing body, foundation body or 
trustees will require the Secretary of State’s consent, under section 
77 of the SSFA 1998, to dispose, or change the use of any playing 

24

Page 122



field land that has been acquired and/or enhanced at public 
expense.

(ii)  non-playing field land or school buildings – the governing body, 
foundation body or trustees will no longer require the Secretary of 
State’s consent to dispose of surplus non-playing field land or 
school buildings which have been acquired or enhanced in value by 
public funding.  They will be required to notify the LA and seek local 
agreement of their proposals. Where there is no local agreement, 
the matter should be referred to the School Adjudicator to 
determine.  (Details of the new arrangements can be found in the 
Department’s guidance ‘The Transfer and Disposal of School Land 
in England: A General Guide for Schools, Local Authorities and the 
Adjudicator’).
http://publications.teachernet.gov.uk/default.aspx?PageFunction=productdetails&
PageMode=spectrum&ProductId=DfE-1017-2004&

4.47 Where proposals are dependent upon capital receipts of a 
discontinuing foundation or voluntary school the governing body is required to 
apply to the Secretary of State to exercise his various powers in respect of 
land held by them for the purposes of the school.  Normally he would direct 
that the land be returned to the LA but he could direct that the land be 
transferred to the governing body of another maintained school (or the 
temporary governing body of a new school).  Where the governing body fails
to make such an application to the Secretary of State, and the school 
subsequently closes, all land held by them for the purposes of the 
discontinued school will, on dissolution of the governing body, transfer to the 
LA unless the Secretary of State has directed otherwise before the date of 
dissolution.

4.48 Where consent to the disposal of land is required, but has not been 
obtained, the Decision Maker should consider issuing a conditional approval 
for the statutory proposals so that the proposals gain full approval 
automatically when consent to the disposal is obtained. 

New Site or Playing Fields 

4.49 Proposals dependent on the acquisition of an additional site or playing 
field may not receive full approval but should be approved conditionally upon 
the acquisition of a site or playing field. 

Land Tenure Arrangements

4.50 For the expansion of voluntary or foundation schools it is desirable that 
a trust holds the freehold interest in any additional site that is required for the 
expansion.  Where the trustees of the voluntary or foundation school hold, or 
will hold, a leasehold interest in the additional site, the Decision Maker will 
need to be assured that the arrangements provide sufficient security for the 
school.  In particular the leasehold interest should be for a substantial period – 
normally at least 50 years – and avoid clauses which would allow the 
leaseholder to evict the school before the termination of the lease.  The 

25

Page 123



Decision Maker should also be satisfied that a lease does not contain 
provisions which would obstruct the governing body or the headteacher in the 
exercise of their functions under the Education Acts, or place indirect 
pressures upon the funding bodies. 

School Playing Fields

4.51 The Education (School Premises) Regulations 1999 set out the 
standards for school premises, including minimum areas of team game 
playing fields to which schools should have access.  The Decision Maker will 
need to be satisfied that either:

a. the premises will meet minimum requirements of The Education 
(School Premises) Regulations 1999; or

b. if the premises do not meet those requirements, the proposers have 
secured the Secretary of State’s agreement in principle to grant a 
relaxation.

4.52 Where the Secretary of State has given ‘in principle’ agreement as at 
paragraph 4.46(b) above, the Decision Maker should consider issuing 
conditional approval so that when the Secretary of State gives his agreement, 
the proposals will automatically gain full approval. 

SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS (SEN) PROVISION 

Initial Considerations

4.53 When reviewing SEN provision, planning or commissioning alternative 
types of SEN provision or considering proposals for change LAs should aim 
for a flexible range of provision and support that can respond to the special 
educational needs of individual pupils and parental preferences, rather than 
necessarily establishing broad categories of provision according to special 
educational need or disability. There are a number of initial considerations for 
LAs to take account of in relation to proposals for change. They should ensure
that local proposals: 

i. take account of parental preferences for particular styles of 
provision or education settings; 

ii. offer a range of provision to respond to the needs of individual 
children and young people, taking account of collaborative 
arrangements (including between special and mainstream), 
extended school and Children’s Centre provision; regional centres 
(of expertise ) and regional and sub-regional provision; out of LA 
day and residential special provision;

iii. are consistent with the LA’s Children and Young People’s Plan; 

iv. take full account of educational considerations, in particular the 
need to ensure a broad and balanced curriculum, including the 

26

Page 124



National Curriculum, within a learning environment in which children 
can be healthy and stay safe;

v. support the LA’s strategy for making schools and settings more 
accessible to disabled children and young people and their scheme 
for promoting equality of opportunity for disabled people;

vi. provide access to appropriately trained staff and access to 
specialist support and advice, so that individual pupils can have the 
fullest possible opportunities to make progress in their learning and 
participate in their school and community; 

vii. ensure appropriate provision for 14-19 year-olds, taking account of 
the role of local LSC funded institutions and their admissions 
policies; and 

viii. ensure that appropriate full-time education will be available to all
displaced pupils.  Their statements of special educational needs will
require amendment and all parental rights must be ensured.  Other
interested partners, such as the Health Authority should be involved

4.54 Taking account of the considerations, as set out above, will provide
assurance to local communities, children and parents that any reorganisation 
of SEN provision in their area is designed to improve on existing 
arrangements and enable all children to achieve the five Every Child Matters 
outcomes.

The Special Educational Needs Improvement Test 

4.55 When considering any reorganisation of SEN provision, including that 
which might lead to some children being displaced through closures or 
alterations, LAs, and all other proposers for new schools or new provision, will 
need to demonstrate to parents, the local community and Decision Makers 
how the proposed alternative arrangements are likely to lead to improvements 
in the standard, quality and/or range of educational provision for children with 
special educational needs. All consultation documents and reorganisation 
plans that LAs publish and all relevant documentation LAs and other 
proposers submit to Decision Makers should show how the key factors set out 
in paragraphs 4.56 to 4.59 below have been taken into account. Proposals 
which do not credibly meet these requirements should not be approved and 
Decision Makers should take proper account of parental or independent 
representations which question the LA’s own assessment in this regard.

Key Factors

4.56 When LAs are planning changes to their existing SEN provision, and in 
order to meet the requirement to demonstrate likely improvements in provision,
they should:

identify the details of the specific educational benefits that will flow from 
the proposals in terms of: 

27

Page 125



a) improved access to education and associated services including the 
curriculum, wider school activities, facilities  and equipment, with
reference to  the LA’s Accessibility Strategy;

b) improved access to specialist staff, both education and other
professionals, including any external support and/or outreach services;

c) improved access to suitable accommodation; and 
d) improved supply of suitable places. 

LAs should also:

i. obtain a written statement that offers the opportunity for all providers 
of existing and proposed provision to set out their views on the 
changing pattern of provision seeking agreement where possible; 

ii. clearly state arrangements for alternative provision.  A ‘hope’ or 
‘intention’ to find places elsewhere is not acceptable.  Wherever 
possible, the host or alternative schools should confirm in writing that
they are willing to receive pupils, and have or will have all the facilities 
necessary to provide an appropriate curriculum;

iii. specify the transport arrangements that will support appropriate
access to the premises by reference to the LA’s transport policy for 
SEN and disabled children; and 

iv. specify how the proposals will be funded and the planned staffing 
arrangements that will be put in place.

4.57 It is to be noted that any pupils displaced as a result of the closure of a 
BESD school (difficulties with behavioural, emotional and social development) 
should not be placed long-term or permanently in a Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) if a 
special school place is what they need. PRUs are intended primarily for pupils 
who have been excluded, although LAs can and do use PRU provision for pupils
out of school for other reasons such as illness and teenage pregnancies. There 
may of course be pupils who have statements identifying that they have BESD
who have been placed appropriately in a PRU because they have been 
excluded; in such cases the statement must be amended to name the PRU, but 
PRUs should not be seen as an alternative long-term provision to special
schools.

4.58  The requirement to demonstrate improvements and identify the specific
educational benefits that flow from proposals for new or altered provision  as set 
out in the key factors are for all those who bring forward proposals for new 
special schools or for special provision in mainstream schools including
governors of foundation schools and foundation special schools. The proposer 
needs to consider all the factors listed above.

4.59 Decision Makers will need to be satisfied that the evidence with which 
they are provided shows that LAs and/or other proposers have taken account 
of the initial considerations and all the key factors in their planning and 
commissioning in order to meet the requirement to demonstrate that the 
reorganisation or new provision is likely to result in improvements to SEN 
provision.

28

Page 126



OTHER ISSUES

Views of Interested Parties 

4.60 The Decision Maker should consider the views of all those affected by 
the proposals or who have an interest in them including: pupils; families of 
pupils; staff; other schools and colleges; local residents; diocesan bodies and 
other providers; LAs; the LSC (where proposals affect 14-19 provision) and 
the Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership if one exists, or any 
local partnership or group that exists in place of an EYDCP (where proposals 
affect early years and/or childcare provision).  This includes statutory 
objections and comments submitted during the representation period. The 
Decision Maker should not simply take account of the numbers of people 
expressing a particular view when considering representations made on 
proposals.  Instead the Decision Maker should give the greatest weight to 
representations from those stakeholders likely to be most directly affected by 
the proposals. 

Types of Decision 

4.61 In considering proposals, the Decision Maker can decide to: 

reject the proposals; 

approve the proposals; 

approve the proposals with a modification (e.g. the proposal implementation 
date); or 

approve the proposals subject to them meeting a specific condition (see 
paragraph 4.62 below). 

Conditional Approval

4.62 The regulations provide for a conditional approval to be given where 
the Decision Maker is otherwise satisfied that the proposals can be approved, 
and approval can automatically follow an outstanding event.  Conditional 
approval can only be granted in the limited circumstances specified in the 
regulations i.e. as follows: 

a. the grant of planning permission under Part 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990; 

b. the acquisition of the site required for the implementation of the 
proposals;

c. the acquisition of playing fields required for the implementation of 
the proposals; 

d. the securing of any necessary access to a site referred to in sub-
paragraph (b) or playing fields referred to in sub-paragraph (c);

29

Page 127



e. the private finance credit approval given by the Department for 
Children, Schools and Families following the entering into a private 
finance contract by an LA;

f. the entering into an agreement for any necessary building project 
supported by the Department for Children, Schools and Families in 
connection with the programme known as “Building Schools for the 
Future”;

g. in the case of mainstream schools, the agreement to any change to 
the admission arrangements of any other school or schools, as 
specified in the approval;

h. the making of any scheme relating to any charity connected with the 
school;

i. the formation of any federation (within the meaning of section 24(2) 
of the 2002 Act) of which it is intended that the school should form 
part, or the fulfilling of any other condition relating to the proposed 
school forming part of a federation;

j. the Secretary of State giving approval under regulation 5(4) of the
Education (Foundation Body) (England) Regulations 2000 that the 
school should form part of a group for which a foundation body act;

k. the Secretary of State making a declaration under regulation 22(3) 
of the Education (Foundation Body) (England) Regulations 2000 
that the school should form part of a group for which a foundation 
body acts;

l. where the proposals depend upon any of the events specified in 
paragraphs (a) to (k) occurring by a specified date for any other 
school or proposed school, the occurrence of such and event;

4.63 The Decision Maker must set a date by which the condition should be 
met but will be able to modify the date if the proposers confirm, before the 
date expires, that the condition will be met later than originally thought.  The 
proposer should inform the Decision Maker and the Department (SOU Unit, 
Mowden Hall, Darlington DL3 9BG or by e-mail to schools.organisation-
unit@dfes.gsi.gov.uk) when a condition is met.  If a condition is not met by the 
date specified, the proposals should be referred back to the Decision Maker 
for fresh consideration. 

Decisions

4.64 All decisions must give reasons for the decision, irrespective of 
whether the proposals were rejected or approved, indicating the main 
factors/criteria for the decision. 

30

Page 128



4.65 A copy of all decisions must be forwarded to: 

the LA or governing body who published the proposals;

the trustees of the school (if any); 

the Secretary of State (via the School Organisation Unit, DCSF, Mowden Hall, 
Darlington DL3 9BG or by e-mail to schools.organisation-unit@dfes.gsi.gov.uk
);

where the school includes provision for 14-16 education or sixth form 
education, the LSC; 

the local CofE diocese;

the bishop of the RC diocese;

each objector except where a petition has been received.  Where a petition is
received a decision letter should be sent to the person who submitted the 
petition, or where this is unknown, the signatory whose name appears first on 
the petition; and 

where the school is a special school, the relevant primary care trust and NHS 
trust or NHS foundation trust. 

4.66 In addition, where proposals are decided by the LA, a copy of the 
decision must be sent to the Office of the Schools Adjudicator, Mowden Hall, 
Darlington DL3 9BG. Where proposals are decided by the schools
adjudicator, a copy of the decision must be sent to the LA that it is proposed 
should maintain the school. 

Can proposals be withdrawn?

4.67 Proposals can be withdrawn at any point before a decision is taken. 
Written notice must be given to the LA, or governing body, if the proposals 
were published by the LA. Written notice must also be sent to the schools 
adjudicator (if proposals have been sent to him) and the Secretary of State – 
i.e. via the School Organisation Unit, DCSF, Mowden Hall, Darlington DL3 
9BG or by e-mail to schools.organisation-unit@dfes.gsi.gov.uk
Written notice must also be placed at the main entrance to the school, or all 
the entrances if there are more than one.

Transitional Exemption Order – Role of Decision Maker

4.68 Single sex schools are not required to comply with certain provisions of 
the Sex Discrimination Act (SDA) 1975. When a single sex school becomes 
mixed it will automatically become subject to those requirements. Since the 
change from single sex to co-educational would normally be phased over a 
period of years by changing the admission arrangements to allow the 
admission of both sexes, the school would not be able to comply fully with the 
SDA requirements for some years. Transitional Exemption Orders relax the 

31

Page 129



requirement to comply during the period before the school becomes wholly 
co-educational.

4.69 Where the Decision Maker receives statutory proposals to alter a single 
sex school to become co-educational, they should treat the proposals as an 
application for a Transitional Exemption Order and make the order if they 
approve the proposals. 

32

Page 130



Stage 5 – Implementation

5.1 The proposers are under a statutory duty to implement any proposals
which an LA or schools adjudicator has approved.  The proposals must be 
implemented as published, taking into account any modifications made by the 
Decision Maker.  If the approval was subject to a condition being met by a 
specified date – proposers must ensure that they meet this.  If it looks as 
though it might not be possible to meet the condition by the specified date, the 
proposer may seek a modification to the condition from the original Decision
Maker that decided the proposals. 

Can Proposals Be Modified?

5.2 If it proves impossible to implement the proposals as approved, the 
proposers can seek a modification and must apply to the Decision Maker who 
decided the proposals. A modification may be made at any time before the 
implementation date for the proposals.

5.3 The most common modification is to the implementation date. 
However, proposals cannot be modified to the extent new proposals are 
substituted for those that have been consulted upon and published.  If 
proposers wish to make a significant change to proposals after they have 
been approved, they must publish “revocation” proposals to be relieved of the 
duty to implement the proposals (see paragraphs 5.5-5.9 below) and publish 
fresh proposals. 

5.4 Before modifying proposals the Decision Maker, must consult the 
proposers and the LA, if the LA did not publish the proposals.  The proposals 
must not be modified in a way that would in effect substitute new proposals – 
this would run the risk of successful legal challenge in the courts. 

Revocation

5.5 If proposers cannot implement approved proposals they must publish
fresh proposals to be relieved of the duty to implement.  The School 
Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England)
Regulations 2007 provide that revocation proposals must contain the 
following information: 

a description of the original proposals as published; 

the date of the publication of the original proposals; 

details of how copies of the original proposals can be obtained; and 

a statement as to why it is proposed that the duty to implement proposals 
should not apply in relation to the original proposals.

5.6 The proposals must be published in a local newspaper, and also 
posted at the main entrance to the school (and all the entrances if there are 
more than one) and at some other conspicuous place in the area served by 

33

Page 131



the school.  The proposals must provide for anyone to submit comments and 
objections on the proposals to the LA within 6 weeks of the proposals being 
published.  The proposers must forward a copy of the proposals to the LA 
within 1 week of publication.  Proposers are advised to consult interested 
parties on the planned revocation proposals before publication although there 
is no statutory requirement to do so. 

5.7 Revocation proposals are decided by the LA, except where the original 
proposals were decided by the schools adjudicator. Where the proposals were
originally decided by the schools adjudicator the LA must forward the 
proposals, and any comments and objections received, to the schools 
adjudicator within 2 weeks from the end of the representation period.  If the LA 
is to decide proposals they must do so within 2 months from the end of the 
representation period and if not, must pass the proposals to the schools 
adjudicator within 1 week from the end of the 2 month period. 

5.8 To approve the proposals the Decision Maker must be satisfied that 
implementation of the original proposals would be unreasonably difficult, or 
that circumstances have so altered since the original proposals were 
approved that their implementation would be inappropriate.

5.9 A copy of the decision must be forwarded to: 

the LA or governing body who published the proposals;

the trustees of the school (if any); 

the Secretary of State (via the School Organisation Unit, DCSF, Mowden Hall, 
Darlington DL3 9BG or by e-mail to schools.organisation-unit@dfes.gsi.gov.uk
);

where the school includes provision for 14-16 education or sixth form 
education, the LSC; 

the local CofE diocese;

the bishop of the RC diocese. 

CHANGE OF CATEGORY ISSUES 

Responsibility for implementation of other unimplemented proposals 

5.10   Where, as a result of VA school changing category, the LA becomes 
responsible for the implementation of any other previously approved 
proposals, the Department would continue its support of any agreed capital 
costs for those proposals, and would be prepared to consider applications
from an LA to meet its share of any capital costs which previously fell to the 
governing body. LAs would also be able to publish statutory proposals to be 
relieved of the duty to implement approved proposals in respect of the school 
in its previous category.

34

Page 132



Admissions - transitional measures

5.11 The admission authority for a community or voluntary controlled school
is the LA, while the admission authority for a voluntary aided or foundation 
school is the school’s governing body.  When a school changes category, and 
the admission authority changes too, any action taken or decisions made  by 
the former authority in its role as the admission authority will, from the 
implementation date, have effect as if they had been taken by the new 
admission authority. This means that, for example, where a community school 
becomes a voluntary aided school, the governing body of the voluntary aided 
school must honour any admission decisions already taken by the LA about 
the admission arrangements of the school and any offers of places that have 
been made or applications that have been refused. Further information about 
admission arrangements can be found in the School Admissions Code at 
www.dfes.gov.uk/sacode.

Reconstitution of the governing body

5.12 In changing category the governing body must be reconstituted in a 
form appropriate to the school’s new category and also in accordance with the 
appropriate instrument of government taking into account the School
Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations 2007. A period called the 
“implementation period” begins when the proposals are decided and ends on 
the date the proposals are implemented. During this period the LEA and 
governing body are required to make a new instrument of government for the 
school.

5.13    As soon as reasonably practicable after the beginning of the 
implementation period, and in any case within a period of 3 months after the 
implementation date, the governing body and LEA are required to reconstitute 
the governing body. Until the governing body is reconstituted the current 
governing body continues to exercise its functions in respect of the school. 

5.14 In reconstituting the governing body, if a school has surplus governors 
in one or more of the categories appropriate to the school’s new category, 
unless those surplus governors voluntarily agree to cease to hold office, they 
shall be removed as follows: 

seniority - the governor with the shortest period of service being the first to 
cease to hold office, the governor with the next shortest period of service 
being the next to cease to hold office, and so on; 

drawing of lots - where governors are of equal seniority, determination of who 
shall cease to hold office shall be done by drawing lots. 

5.15 Where it is proposed that a school should change category and join an 
existing foundation body, the governing body must also request the LA, when 
making the school’s instrument of government, to name the foundation body 
as the appointing body for foundation governors. The LA should make the 
instrument so that the appointment of foundation governors can take effect 
from the date that the school joins the group. This would be the 

35

Page 133



implementation date of the proposals. In such cases the instrument must be 
made during the implementation period.

5.16 Where it is proposed that a school should change category and, along 
with at least two other schools, establish a new foundation body the governing 
body must also request the LA, when making the school’s instrument of 
government, to name the foundation body as the appointing body for 
foundation governors. The LA should make the instrument so that the 
appointment of foundation governors can take effect from the date that the 
group is established. This could be any period up to 3 months after the 
implementation date. However the making of the instrument and the 
establishment of the foundation body must be on the same day, and in 
accordance with the date specified by the Secretary of State for the 
establishment of the foundation body.

Staffing

5.17 A change of school category from community or voluntary controlled to 
voluntary aided will result in a change of employer for the school’s staff.
Paragraphs 49 to 55 of Schedule 3 to The School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 2007 provide for all 
rights, powers, duties and liabilities to transfer from the LA to the governing 
body. Another consequence of changing category is that anything done by the 
LA in respect of the employee is considered, from the implementation date, to 
have been done by the governing body. 

5.18 The effect of these provisions is to protect an individual’s employment 
rights on transfer. Any agreements entered into by the LA or governing body 
before this date, in respect of an individual’s terms and contract of 
employment must therefore be honoured by the new employer. Equally, if any 
action is being taken by an employee against the former employer in respect 
of a liability, duty etc of that employer before a school changes category, the 
liability transfers to the new employer. 

5.19 The governing body should also take account of the “Staff Transfers in 
the Public Sector” statement of practice which can be accessed at 

http://www.civilservice.gov.uk/publications/staff_transfer.asp

Variation of voluntary or foundation school trusts

5.20 The trust of a voluntary or foundation school often makes very specific 
provisions regarding the conduct of the school and the use of any fund held 
by the trust for the use of the school and premises. In bringing forward 
proposals to change category, proposers will need to consider whether the 
school’s current trust allows for the change in category proposed. If in doubt, 
or if a variation in the trust is clearly necessary, promoters are advised to 
make early contact with the Charity Commission to apply for the trust to be 
varied under the relevant trust law.

Land Transfer 

36

Page 134



5.21 Schedule 3 to The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to 
Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2007 (SI: 2007 No. 1289) have 
effect in relation to the transfer of land. Any land transfers will follow the 
existing patterns of ownership for maintained schools so far as possible and 
will take place on the implementation date.

5.22 Where a community or a voluntary school becomes a foundation 
school any land held by an LA for the school transfers automatically to the 
school’s trustees or, if it has no trustees, to the governing body.

Rights to use land

5.23 Where land held by another body was used by a school prior to its 
change of category (for instance a private playing field, church hall or 
swimming pool) the rights and liabilities connected with the use of that facility 
enjoyed by the school prior to the change of category will continue to apply. 
Therefore, where a community school has, by agreement, been allowed to 
use a playing field owned by a sports club prior to changing category, the 
school cannot be disqualified from using the facility merely because of the 
change in category.

Restrictions on disposing of property

5.24 Once a governing body has given notice to the LA that a motion to 
consult on change of category proposals is to be discussed by the governing 
body, an embargo is placed on an LA, in whom property which is used for the 
purposes of the school is vested, disposing of that property or ceasing to hold 
or use it for the school. This embargo lasts until the proposals are decided or 
withdrawn.

Land excluded from transfer

5.25 Land may be excluded from transfer with the prior written approval of 
the schools adjudicator. Applications to the adjudicator to exclude land from 
transfer can be made jointly (where there is agreement) or individually from 
either party. Applications to exclude land from transfer can only be made 
during the period between the change of category proposals being approved 
and the implementation date. 

Land Transfer when schools join or form a foundation body

5.26 The Education (Foundation Body) (England) Regulations 2000 provide 
for the transfer of land and user rights in the case of a school which changes 
category and forms or joins a foundation body. These regulations provide that 
land held by the LA or governing body will transfer to and vest in the 
foundation body.

37

Page 135



Annex A 

Information to be included in or provided in relation to alteration
proposals

(Note: Shading indicates information to be contained in published statutory 
notice)

School and governing body’s details 

1. The name, address and category of the school for which proposals are 
published and contact details of the LA or the governing body that are 
publishing the proposals. 

Implementation and any proposed stages for implementation 

2. The date on which the proposals are planned to be implemented, and if 
they are to be implemented in stages, a description of what is planned for 
each stage, the number of stages intended and the dates of each stage. 

Objections and comments 

3. A statement explaining the procedure for making representations, 
including—

(a) the date by which objections or comments should be sent to the LA; 
and

(b) the address of the LA to which objections or comments should be sent.

Alteration description 

4. A description of the proposed alteration and in the case of special school 
proposals, a description of the current special needs provision. 

School capacity

5.—Where the alteration is an alteration falling within any of paragraphs 1 to 
4, 8 and 9, 12 to 14 and 18 to 21 of Schedule 2 or Schedule 4 of the School 
Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England)
Regulations 2007 – SI 2007 No. 1289 - the proposal must also include— 

(a) details of the current capacity of the school and, where the proposals 
will alter the capacity of the school, the proposed capacity of the school 
after the alteration; 

(b) details of the number of pupils to be admitted to the school in each 
relevant age group in the first school year in which the proposals will 
have been implemented;

(c) where it is intended that proposals should be implemented in stages, 
the number of pupils to be admitted to the school in the first school 
year in which each stage will have been implemented; and 

38

Page 136



(d) where the number of pupils in any relevant age group is lower than the 
indicated admission number for that relevant age group, a statement to 
this effect and details of the indicated admission number in question.

(2) Where the alteration is an alteration falling within any of paragraphs 1, 2, 
9, 12, 13, and 18 to 21 of Schedule 2 or Schedule 4 of the School 
Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England)
Regulations 2007 – SI 2007 No. 1289 - a statement of the number of pupils at 
the school at the time of the publication of the proposals. 

Implementation

6. Where the proposals relate to a foundation or voluntary controlled school 
a statement as to whether the proposals are to be implemented by the LA or 
by the governing body, and, if the proposals are to be implemented by both, a 
statement as to the extent to which they are to be implemented by each body. 

Additional Site 

7.—A statement as to whether any new or additional site will be required if 
proposals are implemented and if so the location of the site if the school is to 
occupy a split site. 

(1) Where proposals relate to a foundation or voluntary school a statement 
as to who will provide any additional site required, together with details of the 
tenure (freehold or leasehold) on which the site of the school will be held, and
if the site is to be held on a lease, details of the proposed lease. 

Changes in boarding arrangements 

8.—Where the proposals are for the introduction or removal of boarding 
provision, or the alteration of existing boarding provision — 

(a) the number of pupils for whom it is intended that boarding provision will 
be made if the proposals are approved; 

(b) the arrangements for safeguarding the welfare of the children at the 
school;

(c) the current number of pupils for whom boarding provision can be made 
and a description of the boarding provision; and 

(d) except where the proposals are to introduce boarding provision, a 
description of the existing boarding provision.

(2) Where the proposals are for the removal of boarding provision or an 
alteration to reduce boarding provision — 

(a) the number of pupils for whom boarding provision will be removed if 
the proposals are approved; and 

(b) a statement as to the use to which the former boarding accommodation 
will be put if the proposals are approved. 

Transfer to new site 

9. Where the proposals are to transfer a school to a new site the following 
information—

39

Page 137



(a) the location of the proposed site (including details of whether the 
school is to occupy a single or split site), and including where 
appropriate the postal address; 

(b) the distance between the proposed and current site; 

(c) the reason for the choice of proposed site; 

(d) the accessibility of the proposed site or sites; 

(e) the proposed arrangements for transport of pupils to the school on its 
new site; and 

(f) a statement about other sustainable transport alternatives where pupils 
are not using transport provided, and how car use in area will be 
discouraged.

Objectives

10. The objectives of the proposals.

Consultation

11. Evidence of the consultation before the proposals were published
including—

(a) a list of persons who were consulted; 

(b) minutes of all public consultation meetings; 

(c) the views of the persons consulted; 

(d) a statement to the effect that all applicable statutory requirements in 
relation to the proposals to consult were complied with; and 

(e) copies of all consultation documents and a statement on how these 
documents were made available.

Project costs 

12. A statement of the estimated total capital cost of the proposals and the 
breakdown of the costs that are to be met by the governing body, the LA, and 
any other party. 

13. A copy of confirmation from the Secretary of State, LA and the Learning 
and Skills Council for England (as the case may be) that funds will be made 
available (including costs to cover any necessary site purchase). 

Age range 

14. Where the proposals relate to a change in age range, the current age 
range for the school. 

Early years provision 

15. Where the proposals are to alter the lower age limit of a mainstream 
school so that it provides for pupils aged between 2 and 5— 

40

Page 138



(a) details of the early years provision, including the number of full-time 
and part-time pupils, the number and length of sessions in each week, 
and the services for disabled children that will be offered; 

(b) how the school will integrate the early years provision with childcare
services and how the proposals are consistent with the integration of 
early years provision for childcare;

(c) evidence of parental demand for additional provision of early years 
provision;

(d) assessment of capacity, quality and sustainability of provision in 
schools and in establishments other than schools who deliver the Early 
Years Foundation Stage within 3 miles of the school; and 

(e) reasons why such schools and establishments who have spare 
capacity cannot make provision for any forecast increase in the 
number of such provision. 

Changes to sixth form provision 

16. Where the proposals are to alter the upper age limit of the school so that 
the school provides sixth form education or additional sixth form education, a 
statement of how the proposals will—

(a) improve the educational or training achievements; 

(b) increase participation in education or training; and 

(c) expand the range of educational or training opportunities 

for 16-19 year olds in the area. 

17. Where the proposals are to alter the upper age limit of the school so that 
the school ceases to provide sixth form education, a statement of the effect on 
the supply of 16-19 places in the area. 

SEN

18.Where the proposals are to establish or change provision for special 
educational needs— 

(a) a description of the types of learning difficulties in respect of which 
education will be provided; 

(b) any additional specialist features will be provided; 

(c) the proposed numbers of pupils for which the provision is to be made; 

(d) details of how the provision will be funded; 

(e) a statement as to whether the education will be provided for children 
with special educational needs who are not registered pupils at the 
school to which the proposals relate; 

(f) a statement as to whether the expenses of the provision will be met 
from the school’s delegated budget; 

(g) the location of the provision if it is not to be established on the existing
site of the school; and 

(h) where the provision will replace existing educational provision for 
children with special educational needs, a statement as to how the LA 

41

Page 139



believes that the new provision is likely to lead to improvement in the 
standard, quality and range of the educational provision for such 
children.

19.Where the proposals are to discontinue provision for special educational
needs—

(a) details of alternative provision for pupils for whom the provision is 
currently made; 

(b) details of the number of pupils for whom provision is made that is 
recognised by the LA as reserved for children with special educational
needs during each of the 4 school years preceding the current school 
year;

(c) details of provision made outside the area of the LA for pupils whose 
needs will not be able to be met in the area of the authority as a result 
of the discontinuance of the provision; and 

(d) a statement as to how the LA believe that the proposals are likely to 
lead to improvement in the standard, quality and range of the 
educational provision for such children. 

20.Where the proposals will lead to alternative provision for children with 
special educational needs, as a result of the establishment, alteration or 
discontinuance of existing provision, the specific educational benefits that will 
flow from the proposals in terms of— 

(a) improved access to education and associated services including the 
curriculum, wider school activities, facilities and equipment with 
reference to the LA’s Accessibility Strategy; 

(b) improved access to specialist staff, both educational and other 
professionals, including any external support and outreach services; 

(c) improved access to suitable accommodation; and 

(d) improved supply of suitable places. 

Sex of pupils 

21. Where the proposals are to make an alteration to provide that a school 
which was an establishment which admitted pupils of one sex only becomes 
an establishment which admits pupils of both sexes— 

(a) details of the likely effect which the alteration will have on the balance
of the provision of single sex education in the area; 

(b) evidence of local demand for single-sex education; and 

(c) details of any transitional period which the body making the proposals 
wishes specified in a transitional exemption order (within the meaning 
of section 27 of the Sex Discrimination Act 1975). 

22. Where the proposals are to make an alteration to a school to provide 
that a school which was an establishment which admitted pupils of both sexes 
becomes an establishment which admits pupils of one sex only—

(a) details of the likely effect which the alteration will have on the balance
of the provision of single-sex education in the area; and 

42

Page 140



(b) evidence of local demand for single-sex education.

Extended services 

23. If the proposed alterations affect the provision of the school’s extended 
services, details of the current extended services the school is offering and 
details of any proposed change as a result of the alterations. 

Need or demand for additional places 

24. If the proposals involve adding places— 

(a) a statement and supporting evidence of the need or demand for the 
particular places in the area; 

(b) where the school has a religious character, a statement and supporting 
evidence of the demand in the area for education in accordance with 
the tenets of the religion or religious denomination; and 

(c) where the school adheres to a particular philosophy, evidence of the 
demand for education in accordance with the philosophy in question 
and any associated change to the admission arrangements for the 
school.

25. If the proposals involve removing places—

(a) a statement and supporting evidence of the reasons for the removal, 
including an assessment of the impact on parental choice; and 

(b) a statement on the local capacity to accommodate displaced pupils.

Additional information in the case of special schools 

26. Where the proposals relate to a special school the following information 
must also be provided— 

(a) information as to the numbers, age range, sex and special educational 
needs of the pupils (distinguishing boarding and day pupils) for whom 
provision is made at the school; 

(b) information on the predicted rise or fall (as the case may be) in the 
number of children with particular types of special educational needs 
requiring specific types of special educational provision; 

(c) a statement about the alternative provision for pupils who may be 
displaced as a result of the alterations; 

(d) where the proposals would result in the school being organised to 
make provision for pupils with a different type or types of special 
educational needs, with the result that the provision which would be 
made for pupils currently at the school would be inappropriate to their 
needs, details of the other schools which such pupils may attend 
including any interim arrangements and transport arrangements to 
such schools; 

(e) where the proposals relate to a foundation special school, a statement 
as to whether the proposals are to be implemented by the LA, or by the 
governing body, and if the proposals are to be implemented by both, a 

43

Page 141



statement as to the extent to which they are to be implemented by 
each body. 

44

Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda item:  
 

   CABINET                                                         On 18th December 2007 

 

 
Report Title: Review of Haringey Council’s School Funding Formula and Scheme for 
Financing Schools. 
 
 
Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference] 
 

Report of: Director of Children & Young People’s Service  
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key 

1. Purpose  

1.1 To report on the outcome of the autumn term consultation with schools and the 
Schools Forum on proposed changes to Haringey Council’s Schools Funding 
Formula and the Scheme for Financing Schools. 

1.2 To recommend acceptance of the proposed changes to Haringey Council’s Schools 
Funding Formula and Scheme for Financing Schools. 

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary) 
2.1 The proposed changes to AEN/SEN funding and distribution, which is the major 
element within the consultation, will support the educational attainment of pupils from the 
most deprived backgrounds and increase support for children with the most severe 
special needs.   
 

3. Recommendations 
 
3.1. That Haringey Councils Schools Funding Formula and Scheme for Financing 
Schools is amended, having regard to the Chief Finance Officers comments, in 
accordance with the recommendations agreed by the Schools Forum on 15th November 
2007, as set out in paragraphs 7.2.1 to 7.2.5.  

   
  

[No.] 

Agenda Item 10Page 147



 

 2 

 

 
Report Authorised by:  Sharon Shoesmith  
                                 Director   
    The Children and Young People’s Service 
 
 

                               
 

 
Contact Officer: Kevin Bartle  
                        Acting Head of Corporate Finance 
                        020 8489 3743 
 
                        Steve Worth 
                        School Funding Manager  
                           020 8489 3708 

4. Director of Finance Comments 
4.1This report covers changes to the method of distributing the Individual Schools Budget 
(ISB), which is the major part of the ring fenced Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). The 
Schools Forum at its meeting on 13th December 2007 will consider the distribution of the 
DSG between the ISB and centrally retained budgets. The changes will be implemented 
as quickly as the financial settlement allows. The continuation of funding for statements 
between the current and new thresholds may delay the move to funding support for 
statemented pupils at scale 4.   
 

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 
5.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report. 
Paragraph 2A of Schedule 14 to the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (as 
amended) requires the authority to consult the governing body and head teacher of every 
school maintained regarding variation to the scheme of school funding and then to submit 
its proposals to the schools forum for approval. The changes to the scheme set out in the 
recommendations in paragraphs 8.2.1 to 8.2.5 are within the terms of the School Finance 
(England) Regulations 2006 (as amended) and have been approved by the schools 
forum.    

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

 

Page 148



 

 3 

6.       Background 
 

6.1 The School Finance (England) Regulations 2006 require local authorities to consult 
with their Schools Forums on any proposed changes to their Scheme for Financing 
Schools or Schools Funding Formula. 

 
6.2  This report sets out the outcome of the autumn term consultation with schools and 

the Haringey Schools Forum on proposed changes to Haringey’s Schools Funding 
Formula and Scheme for Financing Schools to take effect from 1st April 2008. 

 
6.3 The consultation covered proposals to: 

 
a) Change the level of funding and the factors used for Additional and Special 

Educational Needs (AEN/SEN) allocations. 
b) Change the methodology for allocating funding for teachers on the upper pay 

scale. 
c) Insert a new section in Haringey’s Scheme for Financing Schools on 

Community Facilities. 
d) Increase the proportion of funding for pupils taking free school meals in the 

primary schools meal factor. 
 

6.4 The most significant of these is the proposal on AEN/SEN funding. The narrowing 
of the gap between the achievement of pupils from deprived and non-deprived 
backgrounds is a major element of Government policy, as set out in the 2004 Child 
Poverty Review and the joint Treasury/DCSF report ‘Child Poverty: Fair Funding for 
Schools’. An outcome of this was the requirement for all Schools Forums to review 
the way they target AEN and deprivation in their local Funding Formula. The DCSF 
have an expectation that funding received through the Dedicated Schools Grant for 
deprivation and additional needs should be targeted at improving the achievement 
of those pupils with the greatest need.  

 
6.4.1 The AEN/SEN Review Group set up by Haringey’s Schools Forum agreed that the 

methodology for distributing resources for Additional Educational Needs should be 
based upon the fundamental principle that those children who face the most 
significant barriers to learning will require additional resources to support progress 
and achievement.  Such children will include those who experience social 
deprivation, special educational needs, or who are drawn from other vulnerable 
groups including children from some minority ethnic backgrounds.  It is expected 
that these additional funds will be targeted towards additional support for more 
disadvantaged children and young people.   

 
6.4.2 There is a strong correlation between deprivation and AEN and moderate levels of 

SEN and it is usual for deprivation factors to be used as proxy measures in 
allocating funding to meet these needs. Funding for pupils with more complex SEN 
is usually associated with a statement of special educational needs. 

 

Page 149



 

 4 

6.4.3 During the current (2007-8) financial year Haringey Council received 16% of its 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) through additional deprivation factors; this equates 
to £21.86m within the Individual School Budget (ISB). This funding is passed to 
schools in full through Haringey’s school funding formula but only £11m (8.2%) is 
allocated through the current deprivation factors. The Review Group concluded, 
therefore, that schools with high levels of deprivation are not receiving the full 
benefit of deprivation funding provided through the DSG. The proposed changes 
would, if agreed, address this by: 

 

• ensuring that the additional deprivation funding received through the DSG is 
targeted in full by Haringey’s funding formula at deprivation in schools;  

• providing a better measure of relative social need by replacing the use of the 
Index of Multiple Deprivation and stages of English language acquisition as 
indicators with eligibility for Free School Meals and targeted ethnic minority 
groups; 

• supporting inclusive learning; 

• ensuring transparency in the process of allocating resources; 

• ensuring that resources are distributed fairly and equitably between schools. 
 

6.4.4 The impact of proposed changes would be to direct ‘headroom’, new funding, over 
and above the uplifts required by the Minimum Funding Guarantee, into AEN/SEN 
factors rather than into the Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) as at present. This 
would affect the distribution of resources, redirecting new funding from schools with 
lower levels of deprivation to those with greater levels. An indication on the relative 
change in resources for individual schools is shown in Appendix 3. 

 
6.4.5 All schools are protected from a fall in cash budgets, unless there are changes in 

other factors, such as pupil numbers, by the Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG). 
This ensures that all schools have a minimum per pupil increase from one year to 
the next. The national MFG for 2008/09 to 2010/11 is 2.1%, this has been 
deliberately set below the rate of inflation as the Government is expecting schools 
to realise efficiency savings.  

 
6.5 The full consultation document was sent to headteachers and to chairs of 

governing bodies on13th September 2007. Additionally, letters were sent to all 
governors informing them of the consultation and giving details of the web site 
where the detailed consultation could be found. Three ‘road shows’ were also 
arranged to discuss the AEN/SEN proposals to which all headteachers and 
governors were invited and meetings with parents’ groups to explain the proposals 
are continuing.  

 
6.6  The consultation ended on 7th November. 
 
7. Outcome of the Consultation and Recommendations of the Schools Forum. 
 

Page 150



 

 5 

7.1 The Haringey Schools Forum at its meeting on 15th November 2007 received a 
report on the responses to the consultation. The report and its appendices are 
attached. 

 
7.2 The Schools Forum agreed the following recommendations: -  
 
7.2.1 That, in principle the proportion of deprivation funding that schools receive in the 

Individual schools Budget (ISB) should reflect the proportion of additional 
deprivation funding that Haringey receives in the DSG, which is currently 16%. 

 
7.2.2 That the factors to be used in distributing AEN/SEN funding shall be: 
 
 a) Eligibility for Free School Meals. As determined at the time of the January 

PLASC. Funding to be allocated pro-rata to the number of eligible pupils. For 
nursery children only IMD is to be used instead of free school meal eligibility. 

 
b) A prior attainment factor to be calculated from the end of Key Stage attainment 
data in Maths, English and Science.  Key Stage 1 data would be used to calculate a 
prior attainment factor for Key Stage 2, and Key Stage 2 for secondary prior 
attainment. This factor will not apply to the infant and early years phases; 
 
c) a factor for unplanned admissions calculated on the basis of any children who 
start at a school 3 months after the majority of their peers; 
 
d) a factor to increase the rate of progress of specific underachieving groups that 
will be identified annually, and which for 2008/09 have been identified as African, 
African-Caribbean, Turkish, Kurdish and Gypsy, Roma and Irish Traveller 
background. Funding will be allocated pro-rata to the numbers of pupils in these 
groups. 
 
e) That the percentages in the consultation paper to be applied to these factors 
are: 

 
Phase FSM IMD Prior 

Attainment 
Mobility Targeted 

Ethnic Minority 
Groups 

 % % % % % 
Nursery  50 0 20 30 

 
Infant  

 
50 

  
0 

 
20 

 
30 

 
Junior 

 
40 

  
20 

 
20 

 
20 

 
Secondary 

 
30 

  
30 

 
20 

 
20 

 
 

Page 151



 

 6 

7.2.3 That the threshold for receiving funding for specific statements should be set at 15 
hours of special needs assistance support costed at Scale 4 (or a mixture of 
support of equivalent value). Funding for existing statements that fall between the 
current and new thresholds will continue for as long as the statement remains in 
place. 

 
 

7.2.4 Section 14 – Community Facilities. 
That the proposed new Section 14 of the Scheme for Financing Schools is agreed. 
  

 
7.2.5 Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scales. 

That Option 1 is agreed; using the information provided by schools each January in 
the 618G return to identify the numbers of teachers on the upper pay scale. 
Funding will be provided for each teacher based on agreed levels of support 
averaged over numbers of teachers on the UPS. The Schools Forum will be 
consulted annually on the sum to be distributed through this factor  

 
8. Recommendations. 
 
8.1 That Cabinet ratify the changes recommended by the Schools Forum to Haringey 

Council’s Schools Funding Formula and Scheme for Financing Schools  
  
 
 

 

Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs 

Appendix 1. Report to Haringey Schools Forum - Response to the Fair Funding 
Consultation. 

   Fair Funding Consultation Responses Autumn 2007 
Appendix 1.1 AEN/SEN Proposals. 
Appendix 1.2 Section 14 – Community Facilities. 
Appendix 1.3 Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scale. 
Appendix 1.4 School Meals Formula for Primary Schools. 
Appendix 2. Main Consultation Document. 
Appendix 3 Redistribution of New Resources between Individual Schools. 

 

Page 152



  

 

 
The Children and Young People’s Service 

 
Report to Haringey Schools Forum –  Thursday 15th November 2007 
 

 
Report Title:  
 
Response to the Fair Funding Consultation. 
 
 

 
Authors: 
 

Kevin Bartle, Head of Finance for the Children and Young People’s 
Service 
Telephone: 020 8489 3176  Email: kevin.bartle@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Steve Worth, School Funding & Policy Manager 
Telephone: 020 8489 3708      Email: Stephen.worth@haringey.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Purpose 
 
To report the outcome of the consultation on proposed changes to 
Haringey’s Schools Funding Formula and Scheme for Financing 
Schools. 
 
 

 
Recommendations 
 

3.1 That proposals 5.1, 5.2 a-d and 5.3 of the AEN/SEN Consultation 
Document are agreed. 

 
3.2 The Forum may wish to consider continuing to fund existing 

statements that fall between the current and proposed thresholds. 
Funding could continue for as long as the child remains at her/his 
present school and the statement is in force. Information on the 
cost of this proposal will be tabled at the Forum.  

 
 

Appendix 

1  

Page 153



3.3 That the proposed new Section 14 of the Scheme for Financing 
Schools is agreed.   

 
3.4 The Authority recommends that Option 1 of the consultation on 

Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scale is agreed. The 
responses from schools favour Option 2. 

  
3.5 That Option 1 of the consultation on The Delegation of Primary 

School Resources for Children Taking School Meals is agreed.  
 

 
 

 

 

Page 154



 
1. Background. 
 
1.1 Local authorities are required to consult with their schools and Schools 

Forums on any proposed changes to their Scheme for Financing 
Schools or Schools Funding Formula.  

 
1.2 Consultation has taken place this term on proposals to: 
 

a) Change the level of funding and the factors used for AEN/SEN 
allocations. 

b) Change the methodology for allocating funding for teachers on the 
upper pay scale. 

c) Inset a new section in Haringey’s Scheme for Financing Schools on 
Community Facilities. 

d) Increase the proportion of funding for pupils taking free school meals 
in the primary schools meal factor. 

 
1.3 The full consultation document was sent to headteachers and to chairs 

of governing bodies. Additionally, letters were sent to all governors 
informing them of the consultation and giving details of the web site 
where the detailed consultation could be found. Three ‘road shows’ 
were also arranged to discuss the AEN/SEN proposals to which all 
headteachers and governors were invited and meetings with parents’ 
groups to explain the proposals are continuing.  

 
1.4  The consultation ended on the 7th November. 
 
2. Responses. 
 
2.1 The Delegation of Resources for Children with Additional and 

Special Educational Needs. 
 
2.1.1 Table 1 sets out the proposals and the overall response. More detail on 

the responses is set out in Appendix 1. 
 
 
Table 1 Summary of Responses to AEN/SEN Consultation. 
 
 
Proposal 
 

 
For 

 
Against 

 
Other 

 

5.1 Do you agree that, in principle, the 
proportion of deprivation funding that 
schools receive in the Individual Schools 
Budget (ISB ) should reflect the proportion 
of additional deprivation funding that 
Haringey receives in the DSG (16%)?  

 
 

33 

 
 

5 

 
 

8 

    

Page 155



5.2 Do you agree that the factors to be used 
in distributing AEN/SEN Funding should be: 
 

 

a) Eligibility for Free School Meals. As 
determined at the time of the January 
PLASC. Funding to be allocated pro 
rata to 

      the number of eligible pupils. 
 

 
 

35 

 
 

4 

 
 

7 

b) a prior attainment factor to be 
calculated from end of Key Stage 
attainment data in Maths, English 
and Science.  Key Stage 1 data 
would be used to calculate a prior 
attainment factor for Key Stage 2, 
Key Stage 2 for Key Stage 3 and Key 
Stage 3 data for Key Stage 4.  This 
factor will not apply to the infant and 
early years phases; 

 

 
 
 

25 

 
 
 

12 

 
 
 

9 

 

c) a factor for unplanned admissions 
calculated on the basis of any 
children who start at a school 3 
months after the majority of their 
peers; 

 

 
 

35 

 
 

4 

 
 

7 

 

d) a factor to increase the rate of 
progress of underachieving groups, 
specifically pupils of African, African-
Caribbean, Turkish and Kurdish 
background. Funding will be 
allocated pro-rata to the numbers of 
pupils in these groups. 

 

 
 
 

32 

 
 
 

8 

 
 
 

6 

 

Do you agree that the proposed 
percentages applied to these factors in the 
different phases should be as set out: 
 

 
 

25 

 
 

11 

 
 

10 

 

5.3 Do you agree that the threshold for 
receiving funding for specific statements 
should be set at 15 hours of special needs 
assistance support costed at Scale 4 (or a 
mixture of support of equivalent value)? 

 
 

27 

 
 

14 

 
 

5 

The table excludes a second response on behalf of a school that is similar to the first 

 
2.1.2 Comments and Other Responses. 

Page 156



 
Many schools made comments or alternative suggestions which are 
summarised below: 
 

a) Concern was expressed that FSM will exclude certain groups, 
notably nursery pupils and children from refugee families; 
however, only one school commented positively on retaining 
IMD . 

b) Several schools expressed concern that the Targeted Ethnic 
Minority Groups were too limited and inflexible, and should 
either be widened to include other groups such as children from 
eastern European families or that the acquisition of English 
continue to be used as a factor. Another alternative suggested 
was a more general measure of ethnic diversity. The point was 
also made that white working class boys also underachieved. 

c) Several schools expressed concern that the transition period 
was too short suggesting that the change happen over 5 to 7 
years rather than 3. 

d) Some schools strongly questioned the link between AEN and 
SEN and expressed the view that funding for high incidence 
SEN should be separate from funding for deprivation; in 
particular, that AEN funding should include a specific factor for 
pupils with below threshold special needs. 

e) Several schools commented that the combination of increasing 
the threshold and transferring funds from AWPU into AEN 
factors resulted in a ‘double whammy’. Schools in the West of 
the borough were particularly susceptible, with many 
statemented pupils but low deprivation. One school commented 
that mainstream funds were already supporting statemented 
pupils and that now those funds were to be cut another school 
commented that this would have a significant impact on 
inclusion. A point was also made that the true cost of funding 
SEN provision was being masked. 

f) A school made the point that schools with low proportions of 
pupils from deprived backgrounds faced a higher per pupil cost 
for providing support and that this was not recognised in the 
proposals. To recognise this the school proposed that the 16% 
of deprivation funding should be allocated as 6% distributed 
across all schools and 10% by school population. 

g) A suggestion put forward by several schools to ameliorate the 
effect of e) was the protection of existing pupils with statements 
between the current and proposed thresholds. One school 
suggested that the funding for this transitional arrangement 
should be ‘top sliced’ from the budgets of those schools gaining 
from the re-distribution of funds. 

h) Several schools also made the observation that the prior 
attainment factor would penalise successful schools or reward 
primary schools for under-performance at KS1. One school 
commented that the factors gave no help for underperformance 

Page 157



in nursery and infant settings. Alternatively, another school 
wanted to see prior attainment given a higher weighting. 

i) Three schools commented on the likelihood that the Minimum 
Funding Guarantee (MFG) will be below inflation. A proposal 
was made that the Schools Forum should set a local MFG at 
the level of cost pressures to protect school budgets in real 
terms.   

j) One school commented on the increased difficulty faced by 
small schools in coping with funding loss. The point was made 
that larger schools have the benefit of economies of scale in 
coping with budget reductions and that additional funding 
should be made available through the formula for small schools.  

k) One school commented that the proposals did not recognise 
gifted and talented pupils, nor pupils with dyslexia. 

l) Several schools objected to the increase in the threshold for 
statemented funding and suggested either retaining the status 
quo or reducing the threshold to 10 hours. One school 
advocated a banding system. 

m) Several schools commented that it was unacceptable not to 
fully passport deprivation funding. 

n) A school commented that, in looking at the level of funding for 
deprivation, other funding sources, such as Standards Fund 
should be taken into account. 

o) A request that Haringey Council should campaign for more 
money was made. 

 
2.1.3 Several schools suggested alternative percentage distributions for AEN 

factors. Table 2 summaries those from primary schools and Table 3 
those from secondary schools. 

 
Table 2 Alternative Proposals for Primary School Factors 
 
Key 
Stage 

FSM EAL EMA Mobility Prior 
Attainment 

TEMG 

 % % % % % % 
KS1/2 30 30  40   
All 30 30 20 20   
KS1 40   30  20 
KS2 30   30 20 20 

KS1 50   20  30 
KS2 60   20  20 
KS1 50   10  40 
KS2 50   20 10 20 
KS1 50   20  30 
KS2 50   20 10 20 

 
 
Table 3 Alternative Proposals for Secondary School Factors. 
 
Key Stage FSM Mobility Prior TEMG 

Page 158



Attainment 
 % % % % 
Secondary 80 10 10  
Secondary 30 50 20  

Secondary 20 40 20 20 
 
 
 
2.1.4 In addition to schools, a Councillor commented welcoming the increase 

in funding for schools with the highest levels of deprivation but 
expressing concern for those pupils with statements that newly fall 
below the threshold will be disadvantaged if the school does not target 
funding at them. The Councillor suggested that there should be a 
stipulation that a specified percentage of the additional funding should 
be spent on pupils with statements. 

 
2,1.5 Responses were also received from the Markfield Project, Haringey 

Autism and Downs Inclusion Group and the Muswell Hill SEN Parents 
Group. All three restricted their comments to the proposed increase in 
the threshold for statemented funding. The groups expressed their 
concern that an increase in the threshold may leave vulnerable children 
without support because of budget pressures. There would also be a 
pressure not to admit, or to exclude, children with special needs. 
Schools may also be wary about being seen to provide good SEN 
support so as not to encourage applications from pupils with special 
need. A move to legally challenge local authority schemes over the 
delegation of special needs responsibilities was mentioned.    

 
 
2.2  Section 14 – Community Facilities. 
 
2.2.1 This consultation is in response to DCSF recommendations to include 

a section on Community Facilities. 
 
2.2.2 Responses and observations. 
 

The majority of schools that responded were either in favour or had no 
comments. Three schools expressed concern about the impact of the 
provisions on their activities. These will be discussed individually with 
the schools concerned. The schools responding are shown in Appendix 
2. 

 
 
 
 
 
2.3 Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scale. 
 

Page 159



2.3.1 The consultation proposed a simplified methodology for allocating 
funding but one that still targeted funding at schools facing the greatest 
costs.Table 4 summarises the response set out in detail in Appendix 3. 

  
 
Table 4. Summary of Responses to Funding for Teachers on the 

Upper Pay Scale.  
   
Proposal For 
 

Option1. Use the information provided by schools each January 
in the 618G return to identify the numbers of teachers on the 
upper pay scale. Funding would be provided for each teacher 
based on agreed levels of support averaged over numbers of 
teachers on the UPS. The Schools Forum will be consulted 
annually on the sum to be distributed through this factor 
 

 
 
 

13 

 

Option 2. Retain the status quo. 
 

 
19 

 

Other Options. 
 

 
1 

The table excludes a second response on behalf of a school that is similar to the first. 

 
 
2.3.2 Comments and Other Responses. 
 

The response was in favour of the status quo, the one school making a 
return under the Other Option suggested a combination of the two. The 
Local Authority remains of the view that using the 618G form gives 
substantial benefits in the early, transparent and known determination 
of funding and will recommend Option 1 to the Forum.  

 
   
2.4 The Delegation of Primary School Resources for Children Taking 

School Meals. 
 
2.4.1 The consultation proposed changes to the proportion of funding 

allocated via free school meal numbers. The proposed change will 
bring estimated income more in line with estimated expenditure. Table 
5 summarises the responses shown in Appendix 4. 

 
 
 
 
Table 5. Summary of Responses to Consultation on Funding for 

Primary School Meals.  
   
Proposal For 

Page 160



 

Option 1. That from 1st April 2008, 90% of primary school 
resources for school meals will be allocated pro-rata to the 
numbers taking free school meals and 10% pro-rata to the 
school roll.  
 

 
 

4 

 

Option 2. That we continue with the existing methodology of 
distributing 75% of primary school resources for school meals 
pro-rata to the numbers taking free school meals and 25% pro-
rata to the school roll.  
 

 
 

4 

The table excludes a second response on behalf of a school that is similar to the first. 

 
 
 
2.4.2 Comments and Other Responses. 

 
One school made detailed comments that would refine the targeting of 
meals funding. The proposal has merit and further details will be tabled 
at the meeting of the Forum but it may be necessary to include this 
proposal in the next round of consultations.   

 
 
3. Recommendations. 
 
3.1 That proposals 5.1, 5.2 a-d and 5.3 of the AEN/SEN Consultation 

Document are agreed. 
 
3.2 The Forum may wish to consider continuing to fund existing statements 

that fall between the current and proposed thresholds. Funding could 
continue for as long as the child remains at her/his present school and 
the statement is in force. Information on the cost of this proposal will be 
tabled at the Forum.  

 
3.3 That the proposed new Section 14 of the Scheme for Financing 

Schools is agreed.   
 
3.4 The Authority recommends that Option 1 of the consultation on 

Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scale is agreed. The 
responses from schools favour Option 2. 

  
3.5 That Option 1 of the consultation on The Delegation of Primary School 

Resources for Children Taking School Meals is agreed.  

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Fair Funding Consultation Responses Autumn 2007 Appendix 1.3
10/12/07

Funding for Teachers on UPS

Option 1 Option 2
Another 
Option

Alexandra-Acting Head �

Alexandra -Chair �

Belmont Junior ** �

Bounds Green �

Bruce Grove-Head & Govs. �

Bruce Grove-Chair

Chestnuts-Head �

Chestnuts-Governing Body �

Coleridge �

Devonshire Hill ** �

Ferry Lane �

North Harringay �

Rhodes Avenue �

Risley �

Rokesly Infant �

Rokesly Junior �

St. Francis de Sales Jnr. �

St. Gilda's RC Primary ** �

St. James CE �

St. John Vianney RC ** �

St. Martin of Porres ** �

St. Mary's CE Junior �

St. Peter in Chains RC Inf. �

South Harringay Junior �

Stamford Hill �

Tiverton

Welbourne �

Weston Park �

Alexandra Park ** �

Gladesmore �

Hornsey �

Northumberland Park �

St. Thomas More RC ** �

Woodside High �

The Vale �

Rowland Hill CC �

Woodlands Park CC �

Totals 15 19 1

Responses 37

** = comments

Page 165



Page 166



Fair Funding Consultation Responses Autumn 2007 Appendix 1.4
10/12/07

School Meals Formula for Primary Schools

Option 1 Option 2
Belmont Infant �

Chestnuts-Head �

Chestnuts-Governing Body �

Coleridge �

Devonshire Hill �

Rhodes Avenue �

St. Martin of Porres �

South Harringay Junior �

Weston Park ** �

5 4

Responses 9

Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



Fair Funding Consultation Responses Autumn 2007 Appendix 1.4
10/12/07

School Meals Formula for Primary Schools

Option 1 Option 2
Belmont Infant �

Chestnuts-Head �

Chestnuts-Governing Body �

Coleridge �

Devonshire Hill �

Rhodes Avenue �

St. Martin of Porres �

South Harringay Junior �

Weston Park ** �

5 4

Responses 9

Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



www.haringey.gov.uk 

 
 
 

A Consultation on Proposed Changes to Haringey’s School Funding Formula 
and the Scheme for Financing Schools. 

 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Item Page 

 
Letter from Cllr. Liz Santry (Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People) and Sharon Shoesmith (Director, The Children 
and Young People’s Service. 

 
1 

Frequently Asked Questions 3 

Haringey Schools Forum Conference 5 

  

Fair Funding Consultation Papers  

1.  The Delegation of Resources for Children with 
Additional and Special Educational Needs 

 
6 

 Appendices 1-5 14-21 

2. Community Facilities 22 

3. Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scales 29 

   

Fair Funding Response Forms  

1. The Delegation of Resources for Children with 
Additional and Special Educational Needs 

 
32 

2. Community Facilities 37 

3. Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scales 38 

 

Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



3

Consultation on the Delegation of Resources for Children with 
Additional and Special Educational Needs 

Frequently Asked Questions. 

Q. Will schools that do not benefit from the changes have a 
reduction in the money they receive next year? 

A. No, unless there are other changes such as a fall in pupil numbers, all 
schools are guaranteed a minimum increase in funding for next year. 
The Minimum Funding Guarantee ensures that the amount each 
school receives per pupil must increase by a minimum percentage. 

Q.  But the figures show some schools losing lots of money. 

A. The figures show which schools will gain or lose relative to others. If a 
school is shown as a gainer this means that the school’s budget share 
will increase as a proportion of the total budget for schools. If the 
school is shown as a loser then its budget share will reduce in 
proportion to the total. However, because the total is expanding and 
there is a guaranteed minimum increase per pupil, the money that 
schools receive will not fall (unless there’s a significant drop in pupil 
numbers)

Q. What will the minimum increase be? 

A. At the moment we don’t know. Last year the Minimum Funding 
Guarantee was 3.7% per pupil, the indications from the DCSF are that 
it will reduce in the future. The level of the MFG will be announced 
during the autumn term. 

Q. When will the changes happen? 

A. If the proposals are agreed, the changes will begin from April 2008 and 
be implemented over the three financial years, 2008/09 to 2010/11. 

Q. Who thought up these proposals? 

A. The drive to change the emphasis on deprivation funding has come 
from both the government and Haringey schools, through the Schools 
Forum. A representative group of headteachers, governors and officers 
drew up the detailed proposals. 

Q. Will the changes mean more money for Haringey Schools in total? 

A. No, total funding will not increase. The proposals are about how money 
is distributed between schools. 

Page 174



4

Q. Why has this not happened before? 

A. This has been considered before, but recent government action, such 
as the publication of the report ‘Child Poverty : Fair Funding for 
Schools’ has created a national pressure to effectively target 
deprivation funding. 

Q. What are the advantages of free school meals over the Index of 
Multiple Deprivation? 

A. The use of free school meals gives a more immediate view of the 
current levels of deprivation faced by a school’s pupils. It is also highly 
transparent, taken from the school’s own PLASC return. The Index of 
Multiple Deprivation (IMD) uses data that may be up to 10 years old. 
The IMD also assesses the level of deprivation based on the area a 
pupil comes from rather that each pupil’s specific circumstances.

Q. What is the evidence that free school meals are better? 

A. This is a subjective area and it is difficult to provide conclusive 
evidence in favour of either measure. Nevertheless, free school meals 
remain a widely used factor and the DCSF use it in measuring the 
impact of deprivation on attainment, it is also used by the DCSF as a 
factor in the allocation of the School Standards Grant (Personalisation).  

Q. If we use free school meals as a factor, will it be based up on take-
up or eligibility?  

A. Eligibility 

Q.  Will anything happen if no changes are made? 

A. The DCSF is monitoring the action taken by local authorities to target 
effectively the deprivation funding they receive at the pupils and 
schools with the greatest need. The DCSF may require an authority to 
take further action if insufficient progress is made.      

Page 175



Page 176



6

Haringey Council 

Children and Young People’s Service 

Fair Funding Consultation Paper 

Autumn 2007 

The Delegation of Resources for Children with Additional and 
Special Educational Needs 

Scheme for Financing Schools 
Section 14 – Community Facilities 

Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scale. 

Page 177



 -  -  7

Haringey Council 

Children and Young People’s Service 

Fair Funding Consultation Paper 

Autumn 2007 

The Delegation of Resources for Children with Additional and Special 
Educational Needs 

1. Introduction 

This section of the Consultation Paper sets out proposals to improve 
arrangements for the delegation and distribution of resources for children with 
Additional and Special Educational needs (AEN and SEN).

The terms AEN and SEN are taken to include all children and young people 
for whom some additional or exceptional educational provision is required.
Children with statements of severe or complex special educational needs are 
included within this wider group. 

All pupils have individual needs and the majority will make progress through 
normal curricula and organisational arrangements.  A few may need more 
exceptional arrangements to be made in their physical and learning 
environments in order for them to realise their potential. 

The concept of distributing resources for Additional Educational Needs is 
based upon the fundamental principle that those children who face the most 
significant barriers to learning will require additional resources to support 
progress and achievement.  Such children will include those who experience 
social deprivation, special educational needs, or who are drawn from other 
vulnerable groups including children from some minority ethnic backgrounds. 

There is a strong correlation between deprivation and AEN and moderate 
levels of SEN and it is usual for deprivation factors to be used as proxy 
measures in allocating funding to meet these needs. Funding for pupils with 
more complex SEN is usually associated with a statement of special 
educational needs. 

During the current (2007-8) financial year Haringey Council received 16% of 
its Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)(1) through additional deprivation factors; 
this equates to £21.86m within the Individual School Budget (ISB)(2). This 
funding is passed to schools in full through Haringey’s school funding formula 
but only £11m (8.2%) is allocated through the current deprivation factors, as 
shown in Appendix 1. It can be concluded, therefore, that schools with high 
levels of deprivation are not receiving the full benefit of deprivation funding 

Page 178



 -  -  8

provided through the DSG. The proposed changes would, if agreed, address 
this by: 

 ensuring that the additional deprivation funding received through the 
DSG is targeted in full by Haringey’s funding formula at deprivation in 
schools;

 providing a better measure of relative social need by replacing the use 
of the Index of Multiple Deprivation and stages of English language 
acquisition as indicators with eligibility for Free School Meals and 
targeted ethnic minority groups; 

 supporting inclusive learning; 

 ensuring transparency in the process of allocating resources; 

 ensuring that resources are distributed fairly and equitably between 
schools.

2. Reasons for Change 

The current arrangements for distributing resources for AEN and SEN in 
Haringey, introduced in April 2003, are under review because: 

 The arrangements were not fully implemented because of concerns 
expressed by some headteachers. The concerns prompted the Schools 
Forum to instigate a further review. 

 An overspend in the budget for statemented children in 2005/06 led to 
budget cuts in 2006/07. 

 The Department for Children Families and Schools (DCFS) carried out 
a national review of deprivation funding, looking in particular at the level 
of funding distributed through deprivation factors and the factors used. 
The findings of the review were not prescriptive but did require local 
authorities and schools forums to review their local funding 
arrangements.

As a result, the Schools Forum set up the AEN/SEN Review Group to look at 
the local funding methodology. The group included representatives from: 

primary, secondary and special school head teachers, 
primary and secondary school governors, 
the local authority. 

The Group identified certain key tasks including: 

a) Recommending the statementing hourly rates for 2007/08 and beyond; 
b) Recommending the threshold for statements of SEN for 2007/08 and 

beyond;
c) Recommending what proportion of the Individual Schools Budget (ISB) 

should be taken up by the AEN/SEN factors; 
d) Considering whether the existing AEN/SEN factors should be revised.

e) Recommending what factors should be used in AEN/SEN funding; 

Page 179



 -  -  9

The Group has regularly reported its proposals to the Schools Forum, which 
has endorsed the principles proposed. The outline proposals and principles 
have also been presented to head teachers and SENCOs.

The proposals outlined in this document are the outcome of more than a 
year’s work by the Review Group and embody the following principles. 

3. Principles 

The Review Group’s proposals embody the principles, that: 

 Additional deprivation funding received by Haringey through the DSG 
should be fully allocated through deprivation factors in Haringey’s 
funding formula; 

 Specific support for children with statements of special educational 
needs should be restricted to those with complex needs that cannot be 
met through formula funding. The Group’s proposals, if agreed, would 
increase the formula allocation to ensure the needs of pupils with less 
complex needs are more effectively funded; 

 Statements for pupils with less complex needs should be phased out. 

 That the factors used in Haringey’s funding formula should be those 
that best target deprivation.

The proposals will better target resources at the principles agreed in the 2002 
consultation, namely that arrangements for the distribution and delegation of 
resources should: 

 support the raising of standards and achievement, particularly in 
literacy and numeracy and other key skills, including the development 
of independence; 

 support the inclusion of children and young people within mainstream 
schools wherever possible; 

 support early intervention; 

 be flexible enough to provide support for children with complex needs; 

 allocate resources to the majority of pupils irrespective of whether or 
not a Statement of Special Educational Needs is held; 

 ensure that the requirements of Statements are met; 

 provide whole school funding, so that head teachers are able to deploy 
resources as efficiently and effectively as possible to raise standards 
and achievement; 

 ensure that resources are distributed transparently and equitably with 
individual schools clear about the resources available to them and able 
to see how these relate to the allocations to others; 

 avoid undue perverse incentives that can penalise success and reward 
lack of progress; 

 be as stable as possible so that head teachers are able to plan staffing 
and resource budgets to address needs on an ongoing basis. 

Page 180



 -  -  10

4. Implementation Timetable and Impact on Individual Schools. 

The implementation of the proposals will not increase the overall funding 
available but will redistribute resources from the Age Weighted Pupil Unit 
(AWPU) into AEN/SEN factors. This will move resources into those schools 
with the highest levels of deprivation and will inevitably reduce the potential 
formula funded budgets of schools with lower levels of deprivation. In the 
latter case, a school may be eligible for support through the Minimum Funding 
Guarantee (MFG). The guarantee ensures that every school receives a 
minimum annual increase per pupil and because the MFG is contained within 
the DSG this will act as a brake on the speed with which the proposals can be 
implemented. The MFG is currently 3.7% but is expected to fall next year. 

It is proposed that the pass porting of additional deprivation funding through 
AEN factors will be achieved as quickly as possible and will be fully in place 
no later than 1 April 2010. As far as possible this will be achieved by allocating 
all headroom, defined as the difference between the percentage increase per 
pupil in the DSG and the percentage increase per pupil in the MFG, to AEN 
factors. In addition, the funding released by increasing the threshold for 
statements will be transferred into AEN. However, these measures will not be 
sufficient to achieve the desired outcome by 2010 and it is estimated that a 
transfer of £2.5m from AWPU into AEN will be needed. The achievement of 
this will depend on the DSG and MFG settlements for the next three years 
and the need to ensure that the MFG is met; a model of how funding may be 
released for AEN purposes is shown in Appendix 5.

The impact on individual schools’ budgets will depend on the interaction of 
three factors: 

 the effect of redistributing resources from the AWPU into AEN/SEN 
factors;

 the effect of changing the AEN/SEN factors; 

 the effect of MFG. 

The appendices illustrate the relative shift in resources, that is some schools 
will be receiving a larger share of the ISB than currently and others a smaller 
share. But because the ISB will be growing and schools are protected by the 
MFG school budgets will not fall because of these proposals. School budgets, 
however, could reduce in cash terms as a result of fewer pupils, but as 
already stated, not because of these proposals.  

5. Proposals

The proposals outlined in this document should, if fully implemented, provide 
an open and transparent means of distributing resources for AEN / SEN to 
schools in line with the principles set out above.  In particular, by providing 
resources early and usually without the requirement for a Statement, they will 
better support early intervention and inclusion. 

Page 181



 -  -  11

The proposals are: 

5.1 That, in principle, the proportion of deprivation funding that schools 
receive in the Individual Schools Budget (ISB ) should reflect the 
proportion of additional deprivation funding received by Haringey 
Council in the DSG.

Appendix 3 shows the impact of this proposal for 2008/09 (including MFG) 
and Appendix 4 the impact on formula funded budgets of fully pass porting 
deprivation funding (excluding MFG) . 

5.2 That the factors to be used in distributing AEN/SEN Funding will be: 

 Eligibility for Free School Meals. As determined at the time of the 
January PLASC. Funding to be allocated pro rata to the number of 
eligible pupils. 

 a prior attainment factor to be calculated from end of Key Stage 
attainment data in Maths, English and Science.  Key Stage 1 data 
would be used to calculate a prior attainment factor for Key Stage 2, 
Key Stage 2 for Key Stage 3 and Key Stage 3 data for Key Stage 4.  
This factor will not apply to the infant and early years phases; 

 a mobility factor for unplanned admissions calculated on the basis of 
any children who start at a school 3 months after the majority of their 
peers;

 a factor to increase the rate of progress of underachieving groups, 
specifically pupils of African, African-Caribbean, Turkish and Kurdish 
background. Funding will be allocated pro-rata to the numbers of pupils 
in these groups. 

The proposed percentages applied to these factors in the different phases 
are:

Phase FSM Prior 
Attainment

Mobility Targeted 
Ethnic

Minority 
Groups

 % % % % 

Infant & 
Nursery 50 0 20 30

Junior 40 20 20 20

Secondary 30 30 20 20

Page 182



 -  -  12

Appendix 2 shows the impact of this proposal on individual school budgets. 

5.3 That the threshold for receiving funding for specific statements 
should be raised by 2.5 hours to 15 hours of special needs assistance 
support costed at Scale 4 (or a mixture of support of equivalent value). 

A small number of children who attend mainstream schools have very 
complex special educational needs.  Such children will require some 
individualised specialist support in order to ensure that their opportunities to 
learn and develop are maximised.  Some attend special units or resourced 
schools where recurrent funding is available.  Others attend schools where 
there are few peers with similar needs. The proposal applies to children with 
complex needs who do not attend designated specialist units or resourced 
provision.  It ensures that additional resources will continue to be provided for 
statements above this level to meet the exceptional costs that can be incurred 
when supporting children with the most complex needs. 

6. Consultation. 

To respond to the proposals please use the attached Consultation Response 
Form.

Appendices:

1. Current AEN/SEN Factors. 
The appendix shows the current percentage allocations of AEN factors. 
It also shows the amounts, including personalised learning, paid 
through each factor plus funding for the cost of providing free school 
meals.

2. Comparison of Current and Proposed AEN/SEN Factors by 
School.
The appendix compares AEN allocations using the current factors, 
shown in Appendix 1, and the factors proposed in paragraph 5.2 
above.

3. Impact on Budgets of Proposed Changes for 2008/09. 
The appendix shows the indicative impact on 2006/07 budget shares of 
the movement of resources from AWPU and statements into AEN/SEN 
factors.

4. Formula Funded Budgets with Full Implementation of Proposals. 
The appendix illustrates the potential impact on budgets if resources 
could be immediately moved from AWPU into AEN and there was no 
MFG or transitional relief in place. 

5. Model of Growth in ISB and Deprivation Funding. 

Page 183



 -  -  13

This is a model of how resources could be moved into AEN factors 
over the next three years. In reality this will depend upon the DSG and 
MFG settlements for these years. 

Notes:

(1) The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is a ring fenced government grant 
that must be spent on pupil related expenditure. The majority of the 
money, 88%, is either delegated to schools at the start of the financial 
year or retained in contingencies for later delegation. 

(2) The Individual Schools Budget (ISB) is that part of the DSG that is 
delegated to schools.

Page 184



14

Appendix 1 

The Allocation of AEN/SEN Funding 2007/08 

Table 1 sets out the current percentage allocation of AEN/SEN funding as agreed following the 
autumn 2002 consultation.  

Table 1: AEN Weightings 

 KS1 KS2 Secondary 

Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (IMD) 

60% 20% 20% 

Mobility 20% 20% 5% 

Acquisition of English 
Language

20% 20% 25% 

Prior Attainment  40% 50% 

In addition, specific funding is provided through the Dedicated Schools Grant for personalised 
learning which is delegated using the IMD and prior attainment factors. With this addition, the total 
funding allocated through AEN/SEN factors in 2007/08 is shown in Table 2. 

Table 2: AEN Funding 2007/08 

 KS1 KS2 Secondary Total 

Index of 
Multiple
Deprivation
(IMD)

£1,347,646 £506,642 £982,194 £2,836,482 

Mobility £302,889 £317,290 £136,589 £756,768 

Acquisition of 
English
Language

£302,889 £317,290 £682,945 £1,303,124 

Prior Attainment £905,083 £1,988,515 £2,893,598 

Total £1,953,424 £2,046,305 £3,790,243 £7,789,972 

Cost of 
Providing Free 
School Meals. 

£2,066,001 £1,152,271 £3,218,272 

 £6,065,730 £4,942,514 £11,008,244 

Page 185



C
o
m

p
a
ri

so
n

 o
f 

C
u

rr
en

t 
a
n

d
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

a
ct

o
rs

 b
y
 S

ch
o
o
l.

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e

IM
D

M
o
b
ili

ty
E

A
L

P
ri
o
r

A
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t

T
o
ta

l
F

S
M

M
o
b
ili

ty
T

E
M

G

P
ri
o
r

A
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t

T
o
ta

l

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

 A
le

x
a
n
d
ra

 P
ri
m

a
ry

2
5
,7

2
3

2
0
,4

5
6

1
0
,0

8
7

1
7
,8

8
9

7
4
,1

5
5

3
6
,4

7
7

2
3
,2

9
3

1
5
,9

2
0

8
,4

6
0

8
4
,1

4
9

9
,9

9
4

 B
e
lm

o
n
t 
In

fa
n
t

3
2
,5

0
9

1
1
,9

2
1

9
,6

4
4

5
4
,0

7
3

1
8
,9

1
4

1
3
,5

7
4

7
,1

6
3

0
3
9
,6

5
1

-1
4
,4

2
2

 B
e
lm

o
n
t 
J
u
n
io

r
1
1
,3

0
9

7
,8

9
3

1
1
,3

2
7

2
6
,2

8
3

5
6
,8

1
3

2
1
,7

9
7

8
,9

8
8

7
,6

5
1

1
2
,4

2
9

5
0
,8

6
6

-5
,9

4
7

 B
o
u
n
d
s
 G

re
e
n
 I
n
fa

n
t

3
6
,2

9
5

1
7
,9

1
3

1
2
,4

1
4

6
6
,6

2
1

3
2
,2

4
0

2
0
,3

9
8

1
4
,5

6
4

0
6
7
,2

0
2

5
8
1

 B
o
u
n
d
s
 G

re
e
n
 J

u
n
io

r
1
1
,8

3
9

1
1
,7

0
7

1
1
,4

9
6

2
7
,7

2
8

6
2
,7

7
0

2
5
,4

3
0

1
3
,3

3
1

1
1
,1

8
3

1
3
,1

1
2

6
3
,0

5
6

2
8
6

 B
ro

a
d
w

a
te

r 
F

a
rm

 P
ri
m

a
ry

7
7
,2

6
8

2
3
,0

8
1

3
1
,6

6
0

3
8
,4

0
6

1
7
0
,4

1
5

6
9
,3

4
2

2
6
,2

8
3

4
8
,1

6
4

1
8
,1

6
2

1
6
1
,9

5
1

-8
,4

6
5

 B
ru

c
e
 G

ro
v
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

6
0
,3

2
2

3
0
,7

5
7

2
6
,4

2
7

3
5
,3

5
1

1
5
2
,8

5
8

6
7
,4

0
8

3
5
,0

2
3

3
8
,0

9
2

1
6
,7

1
7

1
5
7
,2

4
0

4
,3

8
2

 C
a
m

p
s
b
o
u
rn

e
 I
n
fa

n
t

2
8
,5

5
4

1
3
,2

0
3

6
,7

7
1

4
8
,5

2
8

2
9
,2

3
1

1
5
,0

3
5

1
1
,4

6
0

0
5
5
,7

2
6

7
,1

9
8

 C
a
m

p
s
b
o
u
rn

e
 J

u
n
io

r
1
0
,9

2
2

5
,7

3
7

7
,0

1
6

1
3
,3

4
8

3
7
,0

2
3

1
9
,2

8
2

6
,5

3
2

8
,5

9
3

6
,3

1
2

4
0
,7

1
9

3
,6

9
7

C
h
e
s
tn

u
ts

4
4
,4

3
2

1
7
,4

4
4

2
1
,5

4
4

2
8
,9

6
6

1
1
2
,3

8
6

5
9
,5

8
4

1
9
,8

6
4

3
3
,4

7
7

1
3
,6

9
8

1
2
6
,6

2
3

1
4
,2

3
7

 C
o
ld

fa
ll 

P
ri
m

a
ry

2
7
,6

0
1

1
7
,3

2
8

1
2
,4

5
3

1
8
,3

7
1

7
5
,7

5
2

2
2
,0

1
0

1
9
,7

3
1

1
0
,5

6
6

8
,6

8
7

6
0
,9

9
5

-1
4
,7

5
7

 C
o
le

ra
in

e
 P

a
rk

 P
ri
m

a
ry

5
1
,7

9
6

2
4
,9

0
9

2
1
,8

4
0

4
0
,1

9
5

1
3
8
,7

4
0

6
1
,1

9
6

2
8
,3

6
4

3
9
,5

2
1

1
9
,0

0
8

1
4
8
,0

8
8

9
,3

4
8

 C
o
le

ri
d
g
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

3
0
,5

7
7

1
0
,2

3
3

5
,6

2
6

1
5
,0

6
8

6
1
,5

0
3

1
2
,1

6
6

1
1
,6

5
2

4
,2

5
8

7
,1

2
6

3
5
,2

0
1

-2
6
,3

0
2

 C
ro

w
la

n
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

4
7
,4

1
5

1
7
,6

2
5

1
7
,5

6
0

2
9
,0

3
5

1
1
1
,6

3
5

3
3
,2

9
5

2
0
,0

7
0

2
0
,5

2
4

1
3
,7

3
1

8
7
,6

2
0

-2
4
,0

1
6

 D
e
v
o
n
s
h
ir
e
 H

ill
 P

ri
m

a
ry

6
2
,3

2
0

2
5
,3

7
9

2
5
,5

3
5

2
8
,2

7
8

1
4
1
,5

1
3

9
9
,6

0
7

2
8
,9

0
0

3
7
,9

7
4

1
3
,3

7
3

1
7
9
,8

5
3

3
8
,3

4
0

 D
o
w

n
h
ill

s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

5
1
,7

8
7

3
5
,9

4
1

2
6
,7

5
3

2
2
,1

1
4

1
3
6
,5

9
5

7
0
,8

4
7

4
0
,9

2
6

3
1
,3

0
5

1
0
,4

5
7

1
5
3
,5

3
6

1
6
,9

4
1

 E
a
rl
h
a
m

 P
ri
m

a
ry

4
7
,6

7
0

4
0
,3

4
7

2
7
,1

6
4

3
3
,0

9
5

1
4
8
,2

7
5

6
2
,3

7
8

4
5
,9

4
3

2
7
,1

7
6

1
5
,6

5
0

1
5
1
,1

4
7

2
,8

7
2

 E
a
rl
s
m

e
a
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

5
7
,8

7
1

2
1
,9

1
8

2
1
,8

9
4

2
6
,6

2
7

1
2
8
,3

1
0

5
6
,9

1
8

2
4
,9

5
8

3
5
,1

2
9

1
2
,5

9
2

1
2
9
,5

9
7

1
,2

8
7

 F
e
rr

y
 L

a
n
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

2
6
,4

9
0

7
,2

6
7

1
2
,1

3
3

1
8
,3

7
1

6
4
,2

6
0

2
8
,0

0
8

8
,2

7
5

1
5
,5

5
0

8
,6

8
7

6
0
,5

2
0

-3
,7

4
1

 T
h
e
 G

re
e
n
 C

E
 P

ri
m

a
ry

3
1
,5

8
5

5
,3

5
1

8
,2

7
6

1
1
,3

5
3

5
6
,5

6
4

2
0
,4

4
1

6
,0

9
3

2
7
,7

7
7

5
,3

6
9

5
9
,6

8
0

3
,1

1
6

 H
ig

h
g
a
te

 P
ri
m

a
ry

2
3
,6

1
6

2
2
,2

6
4

1
0
,7

9
9

1
5
,4

8
1

7
2
,1

5
9

2
6
,5

2
4

2
5
,3

5
2

1
0
,3

2
1

7
,3

2
1

6
9
,5

1
8

-2
,6

4
1

 L
a
n
c
a
s
te

ri
a
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

6
5
,9

3
8

1
8
,3

0
1

2
2
,7

3
3

1
7
,2

0
1

1
2
4
,1

7
2

6
9
,7

2
9

2
0
,8

3
9

3
5
,6

9
4

8
,1

3
4

1
3
4
,3

9
7

1
0
,2

2
4

 L
e
a
 V

a
lle

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

6
7
,2

0
4

2
3
,4

3
7

2
3
,8

5
6

3
0
,9

6
2

1
4
5
,4

5
8

7
7
,4

6
7

2
6
,6

8
8

4
5
,8

2
3

1
4
,6

4
2

1
6
4
,6

1
9

1
9
,1

6
1

 L
o
rd

s
h
ip

 L
a
n
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

8
4
,3

5
9

3
4
,8

8
9

3
8
,8

5
6

4
0
,8

0
1

1
9
8
,9

0
6

1
1
3
,1

7
0

3
9
,7

2
9

5
0
,3

3
9

1
9
,2

9
4

2
2
2
,5

3
2

2
3
,6

2
7

M
u
lb

e
rr

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

8
5
,7

3
0

4
0
,3

8
1

3
9
,9

5
4

6
5
,0

8
8

2
3
1
,1

5
4

1
0
9
,4

9
5

4
5
,9

8
2

4
8
,8

7
0

3
0
,7

8
0

2
3
5
,1

2
7

3
,9

7
2

M
u
s
w

e
ll 

H
ill

 P
ri
m

a
ry

2
5
,2

3
1

9
,9

2
2

1
3
,5

0
8

1
2
,3

8
5

6
1
,0

4
6

1
7
,7

1
2

1
1
,2

9
8

6
,4

0
6

5
,8

5
7

4
1
,2

7
3

-1
9
,7

7
3

 N
ig

h
ti
n
g
a
le

 P
ri
m

a
ry

5
2
,4

0
0

2
5
,1

2
7

1
5
,9

9
6

2
5
,8

0
1

1
1
9
,3

2
5

6
8
,9

9
8

2
8
,6

1
2

3
8
,8

3
4

1
2
,2

0
1

1
4
8
,6

4
6

2
9
,3

2
1

 N
o
e
l 
P

a
rk

 P
ri
m

a
ry

6
5
,8

8
7

3
1
,5

0
3

2
7
,9

8
4

3
7
,9

8
0

1
6
3
,3

5
5

8
6
,1

7
3

3
5
,8

7
3

4
3
,9

3
3

1
7
,9

6
0

1
8
3
,9

3
9

2
0
,5

8
4

N
o
rt

h
 H

a
rr

in
g
a
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

5
4
,6

6
1

1
6
,8

8
5

2
4
,2

8
4

2
3
,2

5
6

1
1
9
,0

8
6

6
2
,0

5
5

1
9
,2

2
7

3
3
,7

4
6

1
0
,9

9
7

1
2
6
,0

2
6

6
,9

4
0

 O
u
r 

L
a
d
y
 o

f 
M

u
s
w

e
ll 

R
C

 P
ri
m

a
ry

2
1
,9

0
8

1
2
,0

2
1

6
,7

5
4

9
,1

5
1

4
9
,8

3
4

1
3
,3

0
5

1
3
,6

8
8

5
,1

0
8

4
,3

2
7

3
6
,4

2
9

-1
3
,4

0
5

 R
h
o
d
e
s
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

2
3
,7

6
3

8
,4

9
7

4
,7

9
3

7
,4

3
1

4
4
,4

8
3

4
,6

6
4

9
,6

7
6

1
,5

3
4

3
,5

1
4

1
9
,3

8
8

-2
5
,0

9
6

 R
is

le
y
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

9
5
,5

3
3

2
9
,4

1
0

3
3
,3

6
3

5
1
,2

5
9

2
0
9
,5

6
5

1
2
1
,3

1
6

3
3
,4

8
9

5
9
,9

5
7

2
4
,2

4
0

2
3
9
,0

0
2

2
9
,4

3
7

 R
o
k
e
s
ly

 I
n
fa

n
t

4
0
,8

0
0

6
,8

5
5

6
,7

7
1

5
4
,4

2
6

1
9
,3

4
4

7
,8

0
6

9
,5

5
0

0
3
6
,7

0
0

-1
7
,7

2
6

 R
o
k
e
s
ly

 J
u
n
io

r
1
4
,6

0
8

9
,1

4
7

9
,7

2
1

2
9
,0

3
5

6
2
,5

1
1

2
0
,1

2
0

1
0
,4

1
5

9
,0

6
4

1
3
,7

3
1

5
3
,3

3
0

-9
,1

8
0

 S
t.
A

id
a
n
's

 P
ri
m

a
ry

2
1
,0

6
9

4
,0

7
1

3
,1

6
3

8
,6

6
9

3
6
,9

7
3

1
4
,7

0
3

4
,6

3
6

5
,4

5
5

4
,1

0
0

2
8
,8

9
3

-8
,0

8
0

 S
t.
A

n
n
's

 C
E

 P
ri
m

a
ry

3
0
,0

9
3

6
,8

3
2

9
,5

0
1

6
,9

4
9

5
3
,3

7
6

2
7
,9

4
3

7
,7

8
0

2
0
,0

7
3

3
,2

8
6

5
9
,0

8
2

5
,7

0
6

 S
t.
F

ra
n
c
is

 d
e
 S

a
le

s
 R

C
 I
n
fa

n
t

6
0
,1

1
0

4
,4

7
9

1
6
,1

0
7

8
0
,6

9
5

3
9
,1

1
8

5
,1

0
0

3
9
,6

3
3

0
8
3
,8

5
1

3
,1

5
5

 S
t.
F

ra
n
c
is

 d
e
 S

a
le

s
 R

C
 J

u
n
io

r
2
2
,7

5
8

3
,1

3
1

1
7
,8

3
6

1
8
,8

5
2

6
2
,5

7
7

2
7
,9

4
5

3
,5

6
5

2
3
,5

4
2

8
,9

1
5

6
3
,9

6
8

1
,3

9
1

 S
t 
G

ild
a
s
' 
R

C
 J

u
n
io

r
9
,0

7
9

2
,9

4
9

6
,5

0
9

8
,4

6
3

2
7
,0

0
0

1
5
,9

2
9

3
,3

5
8

5
,8

8
6

4
,0

0
2

2
9
,1

7
5

2
,1

7
4

 S
t.
Ig

n
a
ti
u
s
 R

C
 P

ri
m

a
ry

3
9
,7

2
3

7
,1

5
6

2
5
,3

7
6

1
9
,7

4
7

9
2
,0

0
2

3
7
,4

6
6

8
,1

4
8

3
5
,4

7
5

9
,3

3
8

9
0
,4

2
7

-1
,5

7
5

 S
t.
J
a
m

e
s
' 
C

E
 P

ri
m

a
ry

1
2
,6

1
7

7
,9

0
4

2
,1

3
7

4
,4

0
3

2
7
,0

6
2

0
9
,0

0
1

7
1
3

2
,0

8
2

1
1
,7

9
6

-1
5
,2

6
6

 S
t.
J
o
h
n
 V

ia
n
n
e
y
 R

C
 P

ri
m

a
ry

2
5
,2

8
1

4
,2

0
1

1
2
,5

4
4

5
,8

4
8

4
7
,8

7
4

1
8
,6

7
9

4
,7

8
4

9
,7

2
2

2
,7

6
6

3
5
,9

5
1

-1
1
,9

2
3

 S
t.
M

a
rt

in
 o

f 
P

o
rr

e
s
 R

C
 P

ri
m

a
ry

1
5
,5

4
6

6
,4

0
8

4
,7

7
5

5
,0

9
1

3
1
,8

2
1

7
,0

5
0

7
,2

9
7

3
,4

3
4

2
,4

0
8

2
0
,1

8
9

-1
1
,6

3
2

 S
t.
M

a
ry

's
 C

E
 I
n
fa

n
t

3
3
,4

1
3

2
,9

7
0

6
,3

6
1

4
2
,7

4
3

2
4
,5

0
3

3
,3

8
2

1
5
,5

1
9

0
4
3
,4

0
3

6
6
0

 S
t.
M

a
ry

's
 C

E
 J

u
n
io

r
1
0
,9

1
2

5
,2

2
3

5
,6

6
4

1
7
,7

5
1

3
9
,5

5
0

1
4
,8

1
1

5
,9

4
8

1
0
,1

2
3

8
,3

9
5

3
9
,2

7
7

-2
7
4

 S
t.
M

a
ry

's
 R

C
 I
n
fa

n
t

3
4
,3

9
7

4
,8

9
4

1
3
,4

3
9

5
2
,7

3
0

2
3
,2

1
3

5
,5

7
3

1
6
,4

7
4

0
4
5
,2

5
9

-7
,4

7
0

 S
t.
M

a
ry

's
 R

C
 J

u
n
io

r
1
3
,7

7
2

6
,9

9
8

1
3
,3

5
6

1
9
,1

9
6

5
3
,3

2
1

2
2
,9

1
5

7
,9

6
8

1
2
,2

4
2

9
,0

7
8

5
2
,2

0
3

-1
,1

1
8

 S
t.
M

ic
h
a
e
l's

 C
E

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 N
6

2
1
,7

8
2

1
3
,1

6
6

4
,5

5
7

1
1
,7

6
5

5
1
,2

7
2

5
,6

3
2

1
4
,9

9
3

1
6
,2

5
3

5
,5

6
4

4
2
,4

4
1

-8
,8

3
0

 S
t.
M

ic
h
a
e
l's

 C
E

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 N
2
2

2
2
,1

1
2

7
,3

8
7

7
,3

4
6

1
4
,4

4
9

5
1
,2

9
4

2
1
,1

9
4

8
,4

1
2

2
,8

5
2

6
,8

3
3

3
9
,2

9
0

-1
2
,0

0
4

 S
t.
P

a
u
l's

 &
 A

ll 
H

a
llo

w
s
 C

E
 I
n
fa

n
t

4
8
,7

2
4

5
,3

8
3

1
0
,7

7
2

6
4
,8

8
0

2
3
,6

4
3

6
,1

3
0

3
6
,0

5
1

0
6
5
,8

2
4

9
4
4

 S
t.
P

a
u
l's

 &
 A

ll 
H

a
llo

w
s
 C

E
 J

u
n
io

r
1
6
,4

8
0

4
,1

2
9

1
2
,5

1
1

2
,8

9
0

3
6
,0

1
0

1
6
,2

0
8

4
,7

0
2

2
2
,4

8
3

1
,3

6
7

4
4
,7

6
0

8
,7

5
0

 S
t 
P

a
u
l's

 R
C

 P
ri
m

a
ry

2
4
,0

9
9

1
0
,4

1
0

1
1
,8

6
2

1
4
,3

8
0

6
0
,7

5
1

2
5
,2

1
3

1
1
,8

5
4

1
2
,3

3
8

6
,8

0
0

5
6
,2

0
6

-4
,5

4
5

 S
t.
P

e
te

r 
in

 C
h
a
in

s
 R

C
 I
n
fa

n
t

2
1
,1

6
1

3
,2

1
8

4
,1

0
4

2
8
,4

8
3

9
,4

5
7

3
,6

6
4

3
,1

0
4

0
1
6
,2

2
5

-1
2
,2

5
7

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

a
c
to

rs
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

a
c
to

rs

1
5

Page 186



C
o
m

p
a
ri

so
n

 o
f 

C
u

rr
en

t 
a
n

d
 P

ro
p

o
se

d
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

a
ct

o
rs

 b
y
 S

ch
o
o
l.

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e

IM
D

M
o
b
ili

ty
E

A
L

P
ri
o
r

A
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t

T
o
ta

l
F

S
M

M
o
b
ili

ty
T

E
M

G

P
ri
o
r

A
tt

a
in

m
e
n
t

T
o
ta

l

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

a
c
to

rs
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 F

a
c
to

rs

 S
e
v
e
n
 S

is
te

rs
 P

ri
m

a
ry

7
3
,3

8
5

3
4
,7

6
9

3
2
,6

4
5

5
8
,6

9
0

1
9
9
,4

8
9

6
3
,8

6
1

3
9
,5

9
2

4
1
,3

0
6

2
7
,7

5
4

1
7
2
,5

1
3

-2
6
,9

7
6

 S
o
u
th

 H
a
rr

in
g
a
y
 I
n
fa

n
t

3
3
,5

2
8

2
0
,0

6
1

1
4
,7

7
3

6
8
,3

6
2

3
1
,8

1
1

2
2
,8

4
4

1
5
,2

8
0

0
6
9
,9

3
4

1
,5

7
2

 S
o
u
th

 H
a
rr

in
g
a
y
 J

u
n
io

r
1
1
,9

7
4

1
9
,0

7
8

1
5
,6

3
8

3
2
,4

2
0

7
9
,1

1
1

2
8
,5

0
4

2
1
,7

2
4

1
0
,5

9
4

1
5
,3

3
1

7
6
,1

5
4

-2
,9

5
7

 S
ta

m
fo

rd
 H

ill
 P

ri
m

a
ry

3
1
,5

7
5

1
9
,6

7
7

9
,7

9
1

2
5
,4

5
7

8
6
,5

0
0

3
2
,2

6
3

2
2
,4

0
6

1
5
,0

8
2

1
2
,0

3
9

8
1
,7

9
0

-4
,7

1
0

 S
tr

o
u
d
 G

re
e
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

3
7
,6

3
3

1
6
,9

2
9

1
5
,7

6
1

1
9
,0

5
9

8
9
,3

8
1

4
8
,4

0
6

1
9
,2

7
7

2
6
,8

4
6

9
,0

1
3

1
0
3
,5

4
1

1
4
,1

6
0

 T
e
th

e
rd

o
w

n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

8
,2

9
3

1
,7

0
2

1
,0

8
7

3
,7

8
4

1
4
,8

6
6

4
3
0

1
,9

3
8

8
3
4

1
,7

9
0

4
,9

9
1

-9
,8

7
4

 T
iv

e
rt

o
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

4
6
,0

5
0

2
2
,6

9
3

2
0
,1

0
1

2
5
,8

0
1

1
1
4
,6

4
5

5
7
,7

3
5

2
5
,8

4
1

3
3
,1

2
8

1
2
,2

0
1

1
2
8
,9

0
4

1
4
,2

5
9

 W
e
lb

o
u
rn

e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

6
1
,4

9
6

2
3
,5

4
6

2
3
,6

9
9

3
0
,3

4
3

1
3
9
,0

8
3

7
3
,5

5
5

2
6
,8

1
1

3
9
,1

6
8

1
4
,3

4
9

1
5
3
,8

8
3

1
4
,8

0
0

 W
e
s
t 
G

re
e
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

3
0
,7

6
1

1
8
,8

3
7

1
6
,2

6
2

1
1
,8

3
4

7
7
,6

9
4

3
8
,4

1
1

2
1
,4

5
0

1
8
,7

6
5

5
,5

9
6

8
4
,2

2
3

6
,5

2
9

W
e
s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 P
ri
m

a
ry

2
2
,4

3
1

5
,8

0
0

4
,3

8
3

7
,0

1
8

3
9
,6

3
2

1
8
,0

3
5

6
,6

0
5

6
,9

9
2

3
,3

1
9

3
4
,9

5
0

-4
,6

8
2

P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 T

O
T

A
L
S

2
,3

3
6
,1

7
5

9
4
9
,0

5
1

9
4
9
,0

5
1

1
,1

6
9
,1

7
1

5
,4

0
3
,4

4
7

2
,4

2
5
,2

7
8

1
,0

8
0
,6

8
9

1
,3

4
4
,5

8
8

5
5

2
,8

9
2

5
,4

0
3
,4

4
7

0

A
le

x
a
n
d
ra

 P
a
rk

6
9
,0

8
1

1
0
,2

2
6

4
4
,0

6
2

1
5
6
,7

2
8

2
8
0
,0

9
7

9
6
,1

4
9

4
5
,9

7
4

5
9
,0

8
1

9
2
,2

4
1

2
9
3
,4

4
5

1
3
,3

4
8

F
o
rt

is
m

e
re

7
1
,3

3
1

1
1
,0

2
7

2
2
,1

0
1

1
0
7
,7

9
2

2
1
2
,2

5
1

4
6
,5

9
5

4
9
,5

7
6

3
1
,6

6
0

6
3
,4

4
1

1
9
1
,2

7
3

-2
0
,9

7
9

G
la

d
e
s
m

o
re

1
5
3
,8

5
2

2
2
,5

3
0

1
5
9
,2

7
7

3
0
5
,0

1
6

6
4
0
,6

7
5

3
0
3
,6

1
0

1
0
1
,2

9
5

1
5
2
,9

3
1

1
7

9
,5

1
5

7
3
7
,3

5
1

9
6
,6

7
6

H
ig

h
g
a
te

 W
o
o
d

1
0
4
,5

9
0

2
1
,0

6
5

9
6
,8

6
5

2
0
6
,3

5
9

4
2
8
,8

7
9

9
3
,1

9
1

9
4
,7

0
6

6
0
,2

1
1

1
2

1
,4

5
1

3
6
9
,5

6
0

-5
9
,3

1
9

H
o
rn

s
e
y

1
4
2
,3

5
1

2
6
,2

6
7

1
4
8
,7

7
2

1
9
9
,4

0
5

5
1
6
,7

9
6

1
8
3
,0

5
4

1
1
8
,0

9
6

1
2
9
,7

5
1

1
1

7
,3

5
9

5
4
8
,2

6
0

3
1
,4

6
3

J
o
h
n
 L

o
u
g
h
b
o
ro

u
g
h

3
6
,8

6
4

9
,5

0
5

5
,0

8
8

7
7
,2

4
2

1
2
8
,7

0
0

2
1
,4

4
9

4
2
,7

3
3

7
2
,0

8
4

4
5
,4

6
1

1
8
1
,7

2
7

5
3
,0

2
7

N
o
rt

h
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

1
4
0
,5

3
7

1
9
,5

5
0

1
4
9
,9

8
6

3
9
4
,5

3
7

7
0
4
,6

0
9

2
2
3
,3

6
2

8
7
,8

9
4

1
3
2
,2

9
5

2
3

2
,2

0
2

6
7
5
,7

5
4

-2
8
,8

5
5

P
a
rk

 V
ie

w
1
3
6
,6

5
5

2
9
,1

6
6

1
5
9
,0

3
0

3
8
4
,2

6
9

7
0
9
,1

2
1

1
9
4
,1

4
8

1
3
1
,1

3
0

1
0
8
,2

6
7

2
2

6
,1

5
9

6
5
9
,7

0
4

-4
9
,4

1
6

S
t 
T

h
o
m

a
s
 M

o
re

1
2
2
,3

3
6

2
1
,6

2
1

1
3
8
,2

3
3

2
5
5
,1

5
0

5
3
7
,3

4
1

1
1
2
,4

2
1

9
7
,2

0
8

1
5
6
,0

4
1

1
5

0
,1

6
7

5
1
5
,8

3
6

-2
1
,5

0
5

W
o
o
d
s
id

e
 H

ig
h

1
2
7
,0

2
8

4
9
,0

4
3

1
7
6
,5

8
9

4
3
4
,3

9
8

7
8
7
,0

5
8

2
0
9
,6

7
9

2
2
0
,4

9
2

8
6
,7

8
3

2
5

5
,6

6
2

7
7
2
,6

1
7

-1
4
,4

4
0

T
o
ta

l 
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

1
,1

0
4
,6

2
5

2
2
0
,0

0
1

1
,1

0
0
,0

0
4

2
,5

2
0
,8

9
7

4
,9

4
5
,5

2
7

1
,4

8
3
,6

5
8

9
8
9
,1

0
5

9
8
9
,1

0
5

1
,4

8
3
,6

5
8

4
,9

4
5
,5

2
7

0

T
o
ta

l 
M

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

3
,4

4
0
,8

0
0

1
,1

6
9
,0

5
1

2
,0

4
9
,0

5
5

3
,6

9
0
,0

6
8

1
0
,3

4
8
,9

7
4

3
,9

0
8
,9

3
6

2
,0

6
9
,7

9
5

2
,3

3
3
,6

9
3

2
,0

3
6
,5

5
0

1
0
,3

4
8
,9

7
4

0

N
o
te

s
:

T
h
is

 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
re

p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A

E
N

/S
E

N
 R

e
v
ie

w
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 F
o
ru

m
 a

n
d
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 u

s
in

g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fa

c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
n
 5

.2
.

It
 u

s
e
s
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 A

E
N

/S
E

N
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
£
6
m

 p
lu

s
 t
h
e
 £

1
m

 r
e
in

s
ta

te
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
te

d
 p

u
p
ils

 p
lu

s
 a

n
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

£
2
.5

m
 f

ro
m

 A
W

P
U

, 

£
0
.6

m
 f
ro

m
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

 f
o
r 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 £

0
.2

m
 f
ro

m
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 M

F
G

 f
u
n
d
in

g
.

1
6

Page 187



Impact on Budgets of Proposed Changes for 2008/09. Appendix 3

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

Change in Total 

Budget incl MFG

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

Change in Total 

Budget incl MFG

DfES £ £ £ £

 Alexandra Primary 2078 9,784 9,784 19,778 19,778

 Belmont Infant 2003 9,318 9,318 -5,104 -5,104

 Belmont Junior 2002 -2,990 -2,990 -8,937 -8,937

 Bounds Green Infant 2005 10,403 10,403 10,984 10,984

 Bounds Green Junior 2004 8,684 8,684 8,970 8,970

 Broadwater Farm Primary 2077 36,748 36,748 28,283 28,283

 Bruce Grove Primary 2083 35,882 35,882 40,264 40,264

 Campsbourne Infant 2009 7,758 7,758 14,956 14,956

 Campsbourne Junior 2008 919 -2,849 4,616 848

Chestnuts 3511 14,893 14,893 29,130 29,130

 Coldfall Primary 2029 150 -1,033 -14,607 -1,033

 Coleraine Park Primary 2010 25,558 25,558 34,906 34,906

 Coleridge Primary 2058 -3,029 -3,029 -29,331 -29,331

 Crowland Primary 2075 19,774 19,774 -4,241 -4,241

 Devonshire Hill Primary 2015 10,207 10,207 48,547 48,547

 Downhills Primary 2087 30,523 30,523 47,464 47,464

 Earlham Primary 2080 36,558 36,558 39,430 39,430

 Earlsmead Primary 2020 19,791 19,791 21,078 21,078

 Ferry Lane Primary 2065 12,928 12,928 9,187 9,187

 The Green CE Primary 3301 8,536 8,536 11,652 11,652

 Highgate Primary 2022 6,596 6,596 3,954 3,954

 Lancasterian Primary 2025 11,550 11,550 21,774 21,774

 Lea Valley Primary 2063 10,882 10,882 30,044 30,044

 Lordship Lane Primary 2082 25,540 25,540 49,167 49,167

Mulberry Primary 3001 46,703 46,703 50,675 50,675

Muswell Hill Primary 2085 -7,919 -7,919 -27,692 -27,692

 Nightingale Primary 2064 20,272 20,272 49,593 49,593

 Noel Park Primary 2086 31,315 31,315 51,899 51,899

North Harringay Primary 3512 11,521 1,707 18,461 8,647

 Our Lady of Muswell RC Primary 3500 -6,110 -6,110 -19,515 -14,523

 Rhodes Avenue Primary 2072 -22,361 -22,361 -47,457 -38,767

 Risley Avenue Primary 2084 43,327 43,327 72,764 72,764

 Rokesly Infant 2042 2,117 2,117 -15,609 -15,609

 Rokesly Junior 2041 -5,819 -5,819 -14,999 -14,999

 St.Aidan's Primary 3000 -8,297 -7,399 -16,377 -7,399

 St.Ann's CE Primary 3304 7,224 7,224 12,930 12,930

 St.Francis de Sales RC Infant 3507 12,190 12,190 15,346 15,346

 St.Francis de Sales RC Junior 3501 4,699 4,699 6,090 6,090

 St Gildas' RC Junior 3509 -1,326 0 848 0

 St.Ignatius RC Primary 3502 12,946 6,623 11,371 5,048

 St.James' CE Primary 3303 -2,597 0 -17,863 0

 St.John Vianney RC Primary 3510 5,857 5,161 -6,066 0

 St.Martin of Porres RC Primary 3508 -1,282 0 -12,914 0

 St.Mary's CE Infant 3306 3,144 3,144 3,804 3,804

 St.Mary's CE Junior 3305 3,156 0 2,882 0

 St.Mary's RC Infant 3505 8,214 8,214 743 743

 St.Mary's RC Junior 3503 8,539 8,539 7,421 7,421

 St.Michael's CE Primary N6 3302 -20,278 -20,278 -29,108 -29,108

 St.Michael's CE Primary N22 3307 8,581 8,581 -3,423 -3,423

 St.Paul's & All Hallows CE Infant 3300 9,875 0 10,820 0

 St.Paul's & All Hallows CE Junior 3308 1,195 1,195 9,945 9,945

 St Paul's RC Primary 3504 12,263 12,263 7,718 7,718

 St.Peter in Chains RC Infant 3506 158 0 -12,099 0

 Seven Sisters Primary 2088 38,675 38,675 11,699 11,699

 South Harringay Infant 2046 14,182 14,182 15,754 15,754

Transfer of £2.5m from AWPU to AEN/SEN Factors Plus Increase in 

Statemented Threshold to 15 Hours. 

Change in School Budgets 

No Change in Factors Change in Factors

17

Page 188



Impact on Budgets of Proposed Changes for 2008/09. Appendix 3

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

Change in Total 

Budget incl MFG

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

Change in Total 

Budget incl MFG

DfES £ £ £ £

No Change in Factors Change in Factors

 South Harringay Junior 2045 12,263 12,263 9,306 9,306

 Stamford Hill Primary 2047 5,767 5,767 1,057 1,057

 Stroud Green Primary 2079 -3,059 -3,059 11,101 11,101

 Tetherdown Primary 2031 -9,002 -9,002 -18,876 -18,876

 Tiverton Primary 2057 22,448 22,448 36,708 36,708

 Welbourne Primary 2062 23,131 23,131 37,931 37,931

 West Green Primary 2051 9,983 -7,145 16,512 -7,145

Weston Park Primary 2076 -13,256 -13,256 -17,938 -17,938

PRIMARY SCHOOL TOTALS 625,404 579,406 625,404 652,470

Alexandra Park 4036 -20,863 -13,156 -10,347 -13,156

Fortismere 4032 -149,704 -77,645 -166,008 -77,645

Gladesmore 4033 108,760 108,760 200,672 200,672

Highgate Wood 4030 -12,058 -39,227 -65,083 -39,227

Hornsey 4029 34,844 34,844 59,953 59,953

John Loughborough 5900 18,158 18,158 70,963 70,963

Northumberland Park 4031 154,061 154,061 124,436 124,436

Park View 4037 122,770 122,770 74,696 74,696

St Thomas More 4703 62,289 62,289 43,140 43,140

Woodside High 4034 182,042 182,042 167,879 167,879

Total Secondary Schools 500,300 552,896 500,300 611,710

Total Mainstream 1,125,704 1,132,302 1,125,704 1,264,179

Blanche Nevile 7000 0 0 0 0

Moselle 7006 0 0 0 0

Vale 7001 0 0 0 0

William C Harvey 7005 0 0 0 0

Total Specials 0 0 0 0

Total All Schools 1,125,704 1,132,302 1,125,704 1,264,179

Pembury 1000 781 781 781 781

Rowland Hill 1001 440 440 440 440

Woodland Park 1003 -1,221 -1,221 -1,221 -1,221

Total Nurseries -1 -1 -1 -1

Grand total 1,125,704 1,132,302 1,125,704 1,264,179

Transfer From Contingency to MFG 6,598 138,475

Notes:

This Appendix is based on earlier reports to the AEN/SEN Review Group and Schools Forum.

It uses 2006/07 AEN/SEN allocations plus the £1m reinstated following the recovery of the 2005/06 overspend on statemented

 pupils plus an assumed movement of £2.5m from AWPU, £0.6m from increasing the threshold for statements and £0.2m from reduction

The appendix shows the impact on 2006/07 budgets of this movement in resources. The overall growth in resources of £1.125m is due

of the £1m SEN savings and the reduction in the MFG from the increase in the statement threshold.

18

Page 189



No Change in 

Factors

Change in 

Factors

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

DfES £ £

 Alexandra Primary 2078 24,420 41,250

 Belmont Infant 2003 10,659 -14,673

 Belmont Junior 2002 917 -9,256

 Bounds Green Infant 2005 8,509 8,392

 Bounds Green Junior 2004 12,940 13,259

 Broadwater Farm Primary 2077 63,966 50,629

 Bruce Grove Primary 2083 68,049 75,705

 Campsbourne Infant 2009 7,123 19,109

 Campsbourne Junior 2008 -4,874 1,550

Chestnuts 3511 23,748 48,581

 Coldfall Primary 2029 -35,873 -62,724

 Coleraine Park Primary 2010 53,291 70,224

 Coleridge Primary 2058 -40,649 -86,053

 Crowland Primary 2075 25,010 -15,909

 Devonshire Hill Primary 2015 28,644 95,247

 Downhills Primary 2087 53,655 81,258

 Earlham Primary 2080 71,643 74,824

 Earlsmead Primary 2020 37,084 39,901

 Ferry Lane Primary 2065 20,554 14,661

 The Green CE Primary 3301 7,328 13,726

 Highgate Primary 2022 -9,259 -15,451

 Lancasterian Primary 2025 17,526 36,006

 Lea Valley Primary 2063 33,018 67,305

 Lordship Lane Primary 2082 45,146 85,878

Mulberry Primary 3001 94,691 102,380

Muswell Hill Primary 2085 -38,727 -73,878

 Nightingale Primary 2064 23,016 73,910

 Noel Park Primary 2086 54,247 89,939

North Harringay Primary 3512 10,444 22,581

 Our Lady of Muswell RC Primary 3500 -47,929 -72,190

 Rhodes Avenue Primary 2072 -71,649 -115,680

 Risley Avenue Primary 2084 71,817 125,025

 Rokesly Infant 2042 -17,045 -47,268

 Rokesly Junior 2041 -15,085 -30,711

 St.Aidan's Primary 3000 -27,959 -41,441

 St.Ann's CE Primary 3304 3,327 13,611

 St.Francis de Sales RC Infant 3507 10,333 16,967

 St.Francis de Sales RC Junior 3501 -10,981 -8,384

 St Gildas' RC Junior 3509 -18,005 -14,459

 St.Ignatius RC Primary 3502 7,111 4,236

 St.James' CE Primary 3303 -23,160 -50,068

 St.John Vianney RC Primary 3510 329 -20,298

 St.Martin of Porres RC Primary 3508 -20,192 -40,686

 St.Mary's CE Infant 3306 -7,413 -5,605

 St.Mary's CE Junior 3305 -6,089 -6,248

 St.Mary's RC Infant 3505 7,231 -5,689

 St.Mary's RC Junior 3503 8,113 6,016

 St.Michael's CE Primary N6 3302 -62,284 -78,419

 St.Michael's CE Primary N22 3307 9,657 -10,616

 St.Paul's & All Hallows CE Infant 3300 8,641 11,286

 St.Paul's & All Hallows CE Junior 3308 -12,586 2,070

Transfer of Resources to Achieve 

16% delegated Through 

deprivation Factors. 

19

Page 190



No Change in 

Factors

Change in 

Factors

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

DfES £ £

 St Paul's RC Primary 3504 19,236 11,365

 St.Peter in Chains RC Infant 3506 -12,678 -33,743

 Seven Sisters Primary 2088 75,969 30,205

 South Harringay Infant 2046 22,162 23,361

 South Harringay Junior 2045 31,517 25,572

 Stamford Hill Primary 2047 21,853 13,998

 Stroud Green Primary 2079 -11,332 12,753

 Tetherdown Primary 2031 -42,278 -59,675

 Tiverton Primary 2057 33,434 57,847

 Welbourne Primary 2062 43,604 69,867

 West Green Primary 2051 22,493 32,858

Weston Park Primary 2076 -31,004 -38,822

PRIMARY SCHOOL TOTALS 625,404 625,404

Alexandra Park 4036 -162,635 -144,536

Fortismere 4032 -438,982 -470,992

Gladesmore 4033 177,987 342,897

Highgate Wood 4030 -124,801 -221,484

Hornsey 4029 -40,489 795

John Loughborough 5900 16,240 113,113

Northumberland Park 4031 353,639 306,029

Park View 4037 243,062 158,673

St Thomas More 4703 91,642 56,722

Woodside High 4034 384,637 359,082

Total Secondary Schools 500,300 500,300

Total Mainstream 1,125,704 1,125,704

Blanche Nevile 7000 0 0

Moselle 7006 0 0

Vale 7001 0 0

William C Harvey 7005 0 0

Total Specials 0 0

Total All Schools 1,125,704 1,125,704

Pembury 1000 1,205 1,919

Rowland Hill 1001 593 1,027

Woodland Park 1003 -1,799 -2,935

Total Nurseries -1 11

Grand total 1,125,704 1,125,715

Transfer From Contingency

Notes:

This Appendix does not show the mpact of MFG, which will act to limit changes. 

The figuresare the 2006/07 budgets adjusted to reflect the increase of AEN/SEN funding to 16% of the ISB.

20

Page 191



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 5

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

IS
B

1
2
5
.7

3
7
m

1
3
4
.4

2
5
m

1
4
1
.6

0
0
m

1
4
9
.1

5
8
m

£
1
5
7
.1

2
0
m

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 I
S

B
 a

n
d
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
's

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
rm

u
la

.
£
8
.8

5
6
m

£
1
1
.0

0
8
m

£
1
7
.5

8
1
m

£
2
1
.4

1
8
m

£
2
5
.5

4
8
m

D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 F

u
n
d
in

g
T

a
rg

e
t 
%

1
6
%

1
6
%

1
6
%

1
6
%

1
6
%

D
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 F

u
n
d
in

g
T

a
rg

e
t 
£

£
2
0
.3

6
2
m

£
2
1
.8

5
8
m

£
2
3
.0

2
4
m

£
2
4
.2

5
3
m

£
2
5
.5

4
8
m

A
c
tu

a
l 
D

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 %

 
7
%

8
%

1
2
%

1
4
%

1
6
%

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 D

S
G

 %
5
.3

%
5
.3

%
5
.3

%

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 M

F
G

 %
3
%

3
%

3
%

H
e
a
d
ro

o
m

£
3
.1

4
2
m

£
3
.3

1
0
m

£
3
.4

8
7
m

N
o
te

s
:

In
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
te

d
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

 t
o
 1

5
 h

rs
 (

£
0
.6

m
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 
fu

n
d
s
) 

p
lu

s
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 
£
2
.5

m
 f
ro

m
 A

W
P

U
 t
o
 A

E
N

/S
E

N
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
.

T
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 
n
e
a
rl
y
 £

6
m

, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 M

F
G

 l
im

it
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 t
o

 £
3
.1

m
. 

A
s
s
u

m
e
d

 G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 I
S

B
 a

n
d

 D
e
p

ri
v
a
ti

o
n

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 

2
1

Page 192



22

Haringey Council 

Children and Young People’s Service 

Fair Funding Consultation Paper 

Autumn 2007 

Scheme for Financing Schools 
Section 14 – Community Facilities 

The Scheme for Financing Schools is a statutory document that sets out the 
financial relationship between the Authority and its schools. The Department 
for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) provides a template that each 
authority tailors to its own needs. 

The DCSF in approving Haringey’s 2007 Scheme recommended expanding 
and strengthening Section 14, Community Facilities, for future years. This 
section deals with the financial implications of using school facilities for 
community use, the need to account properly for this provision and the 
prohibition on using the school’s budget share to fund community use. 

The attached revision, which will replace the existing Section 14, is based on 
the DCSF’s template and upon the experience of other authorities. 

Page 193



23

SECTION 14 COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

14.1  Introduction 

Community facilities are defined in the Education Act 2002 as: any facilities or 
services whose provision furthers any charitable purpose for the benefit of: 

 pupils at the school or their families, or 

 people who live or work in the locality in which the school is situated. 

14.2  Controls 

Schools which choose to exercise the power conferred by s.27 (1) of the 
Education Act 2002 to provide community facilities will be subject to a range 
of controls:

 The budget share of a school may not be used to fund community facilities 
– either start-up costs or ongoing expenditure – or to meet deficits arising 
from such activities.  This restriction also applies to any brought forward 
surplus balances relating to previous years budget shares. 

 Regulations made under s.28 (2), if made, can specify activities which may 
not be undertaken at all under the main enabling power. 

 The school is obliged to consult its authority and have regard to advice 
from the authority.

 The Secretary of State issues guidance to governing bodies about a range 
of issues connected with exercise of the power, and a school must have 
regard to that. 

However, under s.28(1) of the Education Act 2002, the main limitations and 
restrictions on the power will be those contained in the Haringey Council 
scheme for financing schools (made under section 48 of the School 
Standards and Framework Act 1998).

Schools are therefore subject to prohibitions, restrictions and limitations in the 
scheme for financing schools.  

This section of the scheme does not extend to joint-use agreements; transfer 
of control agreements, or agreements between the Authority and schools to 
secure the provision of adult and community learning. 

Page 194



24

14.3  Existing Community Arrangements 

Where a school is already carrying out any of the activities covered by this 
power, under the terms of an existing funding or management agreement with 
the LA, then the terms of that agreement continue to apply. 

14.4  Consultation with the LA 

Section 28(4) of the Education Act 2002 requires that before exercising the 
community facilities power, governing bodies must consult the authority, and 
have regard to advice given to them by their authority.

Schools are likely to benefit from informal contacts and advice from officers 
with the relevant professional expertise well before the formal consultation 
commences.  It would also be helpful to all parties if schools gave the LA 
notice of their intent to exercise the power in advance of the formal 
consultation itself. 

Formal consultation with the LA will commence when the full consultation 
material has been submitted in writing and the response period will begin from 
receipt of the full material. Major uses of the power where services have an 
annual turnover in excess of £100,000 or capital schemes costing more than 
£100,000 are involved will lead to the LA providing formal advice in writing 
(which may be e-mail) within eight weeks. In the case of more minor uses, 
advice will be provided within six weeks. Subsequently the governing body 
should inform the LA of the action taken in response to this advice. 

The school should provide the following information in the formal consultation 
document:

 a full business plan for the provision of the proposed community facilities 
or services covering the first three years of operation;

 in the case of capital projects affecting the existing buildings on the school 
site and/or the construction of new buildings then the full plans and costing 
of the works proposed ;

 details of any planning and environmental considerations and evidence of 
discussions with relevant regulatory agencies;

 details of the progress on consultations with school staff and parents;

 expressions of support from potential user groups, district and parish 
councils, local community groups, neighbouring schools, business 
representatives, as appropriate;

 details as to how the facility will be managed and how this relates to the 
management of the school;

Page 195



25

 a statement that the proposed activities will not interfere with the over 
riding purpose of the school in achieving higher standards for pupils; 

 details of any proposed funding agreements with third parties;

 the insurance arrangements proposed. 

14.5  Funding Agreements 

The provision of community facilities in many schools may be dependent on 
the conclusion of a funding agreement with a third party which will either be 
supplying funding and/or taking part on the provision. A very wide range of 
bodies and organisations are potentially involved.  

Any funding agreements with third parties (as opposed to funding agreements 
with the LA itself) should be submitted to the LA for its comments and advice. 
Such draft agreements should form part of the consultation with the LA. 
Schools must have regard to the advice. 

Funding agreements with third parties should contain adequate provision for 
access by the LA to the records and other property of those parties which are 
held on the school premises in order for the LA to satisfy itself as to the 
propriety of expenditure on the facilities in question. 

However, schools are reminded that if an agreement has been or is to be 
concluded against the wishes of the LA or has been concluded without 
informing the LA and is judged to be seriously prejudicial to the interests of 
the school or the LA, that may constitute grounds for suspension of the right 
to a delegated budget 

14.6 Other Prohibitions, Restrictions and Limitations 

Where a school makes a proposal for a community facility which carries 
significant financial risks, the LA may require that the governing body shall 
make arrangements for the activity concerned to be carried out through the 
vehicle of a limited company formed for the purpose, or obtain indemnity 
insurance for risks associated with the project in question. 

14.7  Supply of financial information 

Schools which exercise the community facilities power must provide the LA 
(as part of their quarterly return) with a summary statement, in a form 
determined by the LA, showing the income and expenditure for the school 
arising from the facilities in question for the previous six months and on an 
estimated basis, for the next six months. 

If the LA believes there to be cause for concern as to the school’s 

Page 196



26

management of the financial consequences of the exercise of the community 
facilities power, then it may, after giving notice to the school, require the 
submission of a recovery plan for the activity in question. 

Financial information relating to community facilities will be included in returns 
made by schools under the Consistent Financial Reporting (CFR) Framework, 
and these will be relied upon by the LA as its main source of information for 
the financial aspects of community facilities.  

14.8  Audit 

Schools are required to grant access to the school’s records connected with 
exercise of the community facilities power, in order to facilitate internal and 
external audit of relevant income and expenditure.

In concluding funding agreements with third parties, schools must ensure that 
such agreements contain adequate provision for access by the LA to the 
records and other property of those parties held on the school premises, or 
held elsewhere in so far as they relate to the activity in question, in order for 
the authority to satisfy itself as to the propriety of expenditure on the facilities 
in question. 

14.9  Treatment of surpluses and deficits 

Schools may retain all surpluses derived from community facilities except 
where otherwise agreed with a funding provider.  When a surplus has been 
derived after a proper charging of all relevant costs, then the school may carry 
that surplus over from one financial year to the next as a separate community 
facilities surplus. 

If the school is a community or community special school, and the LA ceases 
to maintain the school, any accumulated retained income obtained from 
exercise of the community facilities power reverts to the LA unless otherwise 
agreed with a funding provider. 

Liabilities to third parties incurred in the exercise of this power are a charge on 
surpluses retained from these activities. 

The governing body are liable for any deficit arising from the exercise of the 
community facilities power.  The schools budget share cannot be used to 
discharge this liability.

14.10  Health and safety matters 

The health and safety provisions of the main scheme also apply to the 
community facilities power. 

Page 197



27

The governing body has a responsibility for the costs of securing Criminal 
Records Bureau clearance for all adults involved in community activities 
taking place during the school day. Governing bodies would be free to pass 
on such costs to a funding partner as part of an agreement with that partner. 

14.11  Insurance 

It is the responsibility of the governing body to ensure adequate arrangements 
are made for insurance against risks arising from the exercise of the 
community facilities power, taking professional advice as necessary. Such 
insurance should not be funded from the school budget share. The school 
should seek advice from the LA before finalising any insurance arrangement 
for community facilities. 

A school proposing to provide community facilities should, as an integral part 
of its plans, undertake an assessment of the insurance implications and costs, 
seeking professional advice if necessary. 

The LA will undertake its own assessment of the insurance arrangements 
made by a school in respect of community facilities, and if it judges those 
arrangements to be inadequate, make arrangements itself and charge the 
resultant cost to the school. Such costs could not be charged to the school’s 
budget share.  Such a provision is necessary in order for the LA to protect 
itself against possible third party claims.

14.12  Taxation 

Value Added Tax (VAT)

Schools should seek the advice of the LA and the local VAT office on any 
issues relating to the possible imposition of Value Added Tax on expenditure 
in connection with community facilities, including the use of the LA VAT 
reclaim facility. 

Employee Costs

Schools are reminded that if any member of staff employed by the school or 
LA in connection with community facilities at the school is paid from funds 
held in a school’s own bank account (whether a separate account is used for 
community facilities or not – see section 11), the school is likely to be held 
liable for payment of income tax and National Insurance, in line with Inland 
Revenue rules. 

Construction Industry Scheme (CIS)

14.24 The scheme contains a provision requiring schools to follow authority 
advice in relation to the Construction Industry Scheme where this is relevant 
to the exercise of the community facilities power. 

Page 198



28

14.13 Banking

The regulations relating to banking arrangements detailed in section 3 of the 
main scheme, also apply to the communities facilities power. 

The school must ensure that internal accounting controls are sufficient to 
maintain separation of funds.  This can be achieved using the school’s main 
bank account and the appropriate CFR codes, sub-divided as necessary.
Alternatively, schools may set up a deposit bank account for the provision of 
community facilities. 

Where a bank account is set up specifically in relation to the use of the 
community facilities power, then the account mandate should not imply that 
the LA is the owner of the funds. 

Page 199



29

Haringey Council 

Children and Young People’s Service 

Fair Funding Consultation Paper 

Autumn 2007 

Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scale. 

Background. 

Until April 2006, funding for the additional cost of teachers on the Upper Pay 
Scale was provided (on a reducing scale as a teacher progressed through the 
upper pay scale) through a specific government grant. From April 2006 
funding for this was incorporated within the mainstream Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG).

The Autumn 2005 consultation offered the following three options for UPS 
funding through the DSG: 

1. Retain the status quo; 
2. Formula funding through the Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU); 
3. A phased move to option 2 from option 1.  

The Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCFS, formerly the 
DfES) favoured the formula approach, but Option 1 was favoured by Haringey 
schools and incorporated into Haringey’s Schools Funding Formula from April 
2006.

This year’s consultation puts forward an option to retain the advantage of the 
current method in targeting funding at schools facing the greatest cost 
pressures whilst giving greater transparency and certainty of funding prior to 
the start of the financial year.

Options.

The two options for consideration are: 

Option 1. 

Use the information provided by schools each January in the 618G return to 
identify the numbers of teachers on the upper pay scale. Funding would be 
provided for each teacher based on agreed levels of support averaged over 
numbers of teachers on the UPS. The Schools Forum will be consulted 
annually on the sum to be distributed through this factor.

The advantages of this option are: 

Page 200



30

1. Funds are still targeted are costs, so those schools facing the greatest 
costs will receive the greatest support. 

2. It is administratively simple. The return is completed by all schools so 
no additional information needs to be provided.

3. It is transparent. Schools can see from their 618G returns their eligible 
numbers and how much funding they are due. 

4. Funding for the year is known in advance allowing for greater certainty 
when setting and monitoring budgets. 

5. The Schools Forum has more direct control over the funds allocated. 
6. There is no need for a centrally held contingency so all funds can be 

delegated at the start of the year.

The disadvantages are: 

1. The matching of funding to costs is less precise than the current 
arrangements.

Option 2. Retain the Status Quo.

At present, funding is distributed as follows: 

Prior to the start of the financial year, the numbers of teachers on upper pay 
scales is established using either SAP payroll data or information provided by 
schools not using Haringey’s payroll service. Eligible funding is calculated as 
follows:

a. UPS1 – the difference between UPS1 and M6. 
b. UPS2 – as for a. plus 60% of the difference between UPS2 and 

UPS1.
c. UPS3 – as for b. plus 40% of the difference between UPS3 and 

UPS2.
Oncosts are included in each case and an allowance is made for 
pay awards. 

The resulting sum, plus an allowance for pay awards, for each school is 
included in the original budget share for the coming year. 

In the autumn term payroll data, or information from schools, is obtained and 
the budget allocations of schools re-assessed to take account of re-gradings 
and staff movements. Budget adjustments between schools and the 
contingency are then made where necessary. 

The advantages of this option are: 

1. It accurately targets funding at costs. 

The disadvantages are: 

1. It is more complex to administer and requires some schools 
to provide additional data. 

Page 201



31

2. The full year allocation for teachers’ pay is not known when 
budgets are being set. 

3. It requires the setting aside of a contingency that might or 
might not be sufficient for in year changes. 

Action Required. 

Please use the attached form to respond on which of the these options you favour, 
together with any comments you wish to make. 

Page 202



32

Haringey Council 

Children and Young People’s Service 

Fair Funding Consultation Paper Response Forms 

Autumn 2007 

The Delegation of Resources for Children with Additional and 
Special Educational Needs 

Scheme for Financing Schools 
Section 14 – Community Facilities 

Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scale. 

Page 203



33

Haringey Council 

Children and Young People’s Service 

Fair Funding Consultation Paper Response Form 

Autumn 2007 

The Delegation of Resources for Children with Additional and Special 
Educational Needs 

School Name 

Respondee(s)

5.1 Do you agree that, in principle, the proportion of deprivation funding 
that schools receive in the Individual Schools Budget (ISB ) should 
reflect the proportion of additional deprivation funding that Haringey 
receives in the DSG (16%)?  

Yes

No  

If No, what percentage of the ISB do you 
think is appropriate 

Status Quo (8%)  

Other – please specify  

Comments:

5.2 Do you agree that the factors to be used in distributing AEN/SEN 
Funding should be: 

 Eligibility for Free School Meals. As determined at the time of the 
January PLASC. Funding to be allocated pro rata to the number of 
eligible pupils. 

Page 204



34

Yes

No  

 a prior attainment factor to be calculated from end of Key Stage 
attainment data in Maths, English and Science.  Key Stage 1 data 
would be used to calculate a prior attainment factor for Key Stage 2, 
Key Stage 2 for Key Stage 3 and Key Stage 3 data for Key Stage 4.  
This factor will not apply to the infant and early years phases; 

Yes

No  

 a factor for unplanned admissions calculated on the basis of any 
children who start at a school 3 months after the majority of their peers; 

Yes

No  

 a factor to increase the rate of progress of underachieving groups, 
specifically pupils of African, African-Caribbean, Turkish and Kurdish 
background. Funding will be allocated pro-rata to the numbers of pupils 
in these groups. 

Yes

No  

Do you agree that the proposed percentages applied to these factors in the 
different phases should be: 

Phase FSM Prior 
Attainment

Mobility Targeted 
Ethnic

Minority 
Groups

 % % % % 

Infant & 
Nursery 50 0 20 30

Junior 40 20 20 20

Secondary 30 30 20 20

Page 205



35

Yes

No  

If No, please indicate below whether you wish to retain the status quo as 
shown in Appendix 1 or set out the alternative factors/percentages you wish to 
see used. 

Status Quo  

Alternative Factors Phase

 % % % % 

Infant & 
Nursery

Junior

Secondary

Comments:

5.3 Do you agree that the threshold for receiving funding for specific 
statements should be set at 15 hours of special needs assistance 
support costed at Scale 4 (or a mixture of support of equivalent value)? 

Yes

No  

If No what do you think is an 
appropriate threshold. 

Comments:

Page 206



36

Please complete and return to: 

Roland Odell, 
School Funding Team, 
48 Station Road, 
Wood Green, 
London,
N22 7TY. 

e-mail: roland.odell@haringey.gov.uk 

By:  7th November 2007 

Page 207



37

Haringey Council 

Children and Young People’s Service 

Fair Funding Consultation Paper Response Form 

Autumn 2007 

Scheme for Financing Schools 
Section 14 – Community Facilities 

School Name 

Respondee(s)

The Council proposes to incorporate the attached revised Section14 
within the Scheme for Financing Schools. Please provide below any 
comments you may have on the inclusion of this revised scheme. 

Comments

Please complete and return to: 

Roland Odell, 
School Funding Team, 
48 Station Road, 
Wood Green, 
London,
N22 7TY. 

e-mail: roland.odell@haringey.gov.uk

By:  7th November 2007 

Page 208



38

Haringey Council 

Children and Young People’s Service 

Fair Funding Consultation Paper Response Form 

Autumn 2007 

Funding for Teachers on the Upper Pay Scale. 

School Name 

Respondee(s)

Which option do you support?

Option 1  

Option 2  

Another option  

If you prefer another option, please give 
details below.. 

Other Options: 

Comments:

Page 209



39

Please complete and return to: 

Roland Odell, 
School Funding Team, 
48 Station Road, 
Wood Green, 
London,
N22 7TY. 

e-mail: roland.odell@haringey.gov.uk 

By:  7th November 2007 

Page 210



Impact on Budgets of Proposed Changes for 2008/09. Appendix 3

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

Change in Total 

Budget incl MFG

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

Change in Total 

Budget incl MFG

DfES £ £ £ £

 Alexandra Primary 2078 9,784 9,784 19,778 19,778

 Belmont Infant 2003 9,318 9,318 -5,104 -5,104

 Belmont Junior 2002 -2,990 -2,990 -8,937 -8,937

 Bounds Green Infant 2005 10,403 10,403 10,984 10,984

 Bounds Green Junior 2004 8,684 8,684 8,970 8,970

 Broadwater Farm Primary 2077 36,748 36,748 28,283 28,283

 Bruce Grove Primary 2083 35,882 35,882 40,264 40,264

 Campsbourne Infant 2009 7,758 7,758 14,956 14,956

 Campsbourne Junior 2008 919 -2,849 4,616 848

Chestnuts 3511 14,893 14,893 29,130 29,130

 Coldfall Primary 2029 150 -1,033 -14,607 -1,033

 Coleraine Park Primary 2010 25,558 25,558 34,906 34,906

 Coleridge Primary 2058 -3,029 -3,029 -29,331 -29,331

 Crowland Primary 2075 19,774 19,774 -4,241 -4,241

 Devonshire Hill Primary 2015 10,207 10,207 48,547 48,547

 Downhills Primary 2087 30,523 30,523 47,464 47,464

 Earlham Primary 2080 36,558 36,558 39,430 39,430

 Earlsmead Primary 2020 19,791 19,791 21,078 21,078

 Ferry Lane Primary 2065 12,928 12,928 9,187 9,187

 The Green CE Primary 3301 8,536 8,536 11,652 11,652

 Highgate Primary 2022 6,596 6,596 3,954 3,954

 Lancasterian Primary 2025 11,550 11,550 21,774 21,774

 Lea Valley Primary 2063 10,882 10,882 30,044 30,044

 Lordship Lane Primary 2082 25,540 25,540 49,167 49,167

Mulberry Primary 3001 46,703 46,703 50,675 50,675

Muswell Hill Primary 2085 -7,919 -7,919 -27,692 -27,692

 Nightingale Primary 2064 20,272 20,272 49,593 49,593

 Noel Park Primary 2086 31,315 31,315 51,899 51,899

North Harringay Primary 3512 11,521 1,707 18,461 8,647

 Our Lady of Muswell RC Primary 3500 -6,110 -6,110 -19,515 -14,523

 Rhodes Avenue Primary 2072 -22,361 -22,361 -47,457 -38,767

 Risley Avenue Primary 2084 43,327 43,327 72,764 72,764

 Rokesly Infant 2042 2,117 2,117 -15,609 -15,609

 Rokesly Junior 2041 -5,819 -5,819 -14,999 -14,999

 St.Aidan's Primary 3000 -8,297 -7,399 -16,377 -7,399

 St.Ann's CE Primary 3304 7,224 7,224 12,930 12,930

 St.Francis de Sales RC Infant 3507 12,190 12,190 15,346 15,346

 St.Francis de Sales RC Junior 3501 4,699 4,699 6,090 6,090

 St Gildas' RC Junior 3509 -1,326 0 848 0

 St.Ignatius RC Primary 3502 12,946 6,623 11,371 5,048

 St.James' CE Primary 3303 -2,597 0 -17,863 0

 St.John Vianney RC Primary 3510 5,857 5,161 -6,066 0

 St.Martin of Porres RC Primary 3508 -1,282 0 -12,914 0

 St.Mary's CE Infant 3306 3,144 3,144 3,804 3,804

 St.Mary's CE Junior 3305 3,156 0 2,882 0

 St.Mary's RC Infant 3505 8,214 8,214 743 743

 St.Mary's RC Junior 3503 8,539 8,539 7,421 7,421

 St.Michael's CE Primary N6 3302 -20,278 -20,278 -29,108 -29,108

 St.Michael's CE Primary N22 3307 8,581 8,581 -3,423 -3,423

 St.Paul's & All Hallows CE Infant 3300 9,875 0 10,820 0

 St.Paul's & All Hallows CE Junior 3308 1,195 1,195 9,945 9,945

 St Paul's RC Primary 3504 12,263 12,263 7,718 7,718

 St.Peter in Chains RC Infant 3506 158 0 -12,099 0

 Seven Sisters Primary 2088 38,675 38,675 11,699 11,699

 South Harringay Infant 2046 14,182 14,182 15,754 15,754

No Change in Factors Change in Factors

Appendix 3.Redistribution of New Resources between Individual Schools.

Page 211



Impact on Budgets of Proposed Changes for 2008/09. Appendix 3

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

Change in Total 

Budget incl MFG

Change in 

Formula Funded 

Budget

Change in Total 

Budget incl MFG

DfES £ £ £ £

No Change in Factors Change in Factors

 South Harringay Junior 2045 12,263 12,263 9,306 9,306

 Stamford Hill Primary 2047 5,767 5,767 1,057 1,057

 Stroud Green Primary 2079 -3,059 -3,059 11,101 11,101

 Tetherdown Primary 2031 -9,002 -9,002 -18,876 -18,876

 Tiverton Primary 2057 22,448 22,448 36,708 36,708

 Welbourne Primary 2062 23,131 23,131 37,931 37,931

 West Green Primary 2051 9,983 -7,145 16,512 -7,145

Weston Park Primary 2076 -13,256 -13,256 -17,938 -17,938

PRIMARY SCHOOL TOTALS 625,404 579,406 625,404 652,470

Alexandra Park 4036 -20,863 -13,156 -10,347 -13,156

Fortismere 4032 -149,704 -77,645 -166,008 -77,645

Gladesmore 4033 108,760 108,760 200,672 200,672

Highgate Wood 4030 -12,058 -39,227 -65,083 -39,227

Hornsey 4029 34,844 34,844 59,953 59,953

John Loughborough 5900 18,158 18,158 70,963 70,963

Northumberland Park 4031 154,061 154,061 124,436 124,436

Park View 4037 122,770 122,770 74,696 74,696

St Thomas More 4703 62,289 62,289 43,140 43,140

Woodside High 4034 182,042 182,042 167,879 167,879

Total Secondary Schools 500,300 552,896 500,300 611,710

Total Mainstream 1,125,704 1,132,302 1,125,704 1,264,179

Blanche Nevile 7000 0 0 0 0

Moselle 7006 0 0 0 0

Vale 7001 0 0 0 0

William C Harvey 7005 0 0 0 0

Total Specials 0 0 0 0

Total All Schools 1,125,704 1,132,302 1,125,704 1,264,179

Pembury 1000 781 781 781 781

Rowland Hill 1001 440 440 440 440

Woodland Park 1003 -1,221 -1,221 -1,221 -1,221

Total Nurseries -1 -1 -1 -1

Grand total 1,125,704 1,132,302 1,125,704 1,264,179

Transfer From Contingency to MFG 6,598 138,475

Notes:

This Appendix is based on earlier reports to the AEN/SEN Review Group and Schools Forum.

It uses 2006/07 AEN/SEN allocations plus the £1m reinstated following the recovery of the 2005/06 overspend on statemented

 pupils plus an assumed movement of £2.5m from AWPU, £0.6m from increasing the threshold for statements and £0.2m from reductions in MFG funding.

The appendix shows the impact on 2006/07 budgets of this movement in resources. The overall growth in resources of £1.125m is due to the re-instatement

of the £1m SEN savings and the reduction in the MFG from the increase in the statement threshold.

Page 212



Impact on Budgets of Proposed Changes for 2008/09. Appendix 3

Page 213



Impact on Budgets of Proposed Changes for 2008/09. Appendix 3

 pupils plus an assumed movement of £2.5m from AWPU, £0.6m from increasing the threshold for statements and £0.2m from reductions in MFG funding.

The appendix shows the impact on 2006/07 budgets of this movement in resources. The overall growth in resources of £1.125m is due to the re-instatement

Page 214



 

 
 
Agenda item:  

 

  Report to Cabinet    18 December 2007                                          

 

Report Title:  Introduction of free national off peak bus travel for elderly and disabled 
people and implications for Haringey. 

 

 
Forward Plan reference number (if applicable):  
 

Report of: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key 

1. Purpose  
1.1 To inform the Cabinet of the introduction of free national off peak bus travel for elderly 

and disabled people and the implications for Haringey. To seek approval to align the 
qualifying criteria for the ‘London’ disabled freedom pass with that of the new national 
pass.     

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary) 
2.1  
 

3. Recommendations 
3.1 That the Cabinet note the introduction of the new national bus pass and implications 

arising for Haringey 
3.2 That the Cabinet agree to align the criteria for the disabled freedom pass to the seven 

categories of disabled person defined in national legislation. 

 
Report Authorised by: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment 
 

 
Contact Officer: Ann Cunningham, Head of Parking 
 
 
 
 
 

[No.] 

Agenda Item 11Page 215



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2 

4. Director of Finance Comments 
4.1 The Government is introducing free national off peak bus travel for elderly and 

disabled people from 1 April 2008.  To fund the additional costs of the scheme the 
government is making available £250 million for the country as a whole, of which 
£212 million will be for England including London. It is currently unclear whether this 
level of grant will fully cover the additional costs.    

 
4.2 Funding for the first three financial years – 2008/09 to 2010/11 – will be by means of 

a non-ringfenced specific grant and the DfT issued a consultation paper on 28 
September 2007, setting out four options for allocating grant to relevant authorities in 
England. Furthermore for the first three years, the additional grant will be paid as a 
single sum to London and it will be possible to net this off the settlement with 
Transport for London (TfL), avoiding a mismatch between grant and expenditure at 
borough level.  London Council’s are supporting option 2 for distributing grant to 
authorities, this maximises the funding available for London.    

 
4.3 The new scheme also makes it clear that the qualifying criteria for the disabled 

persons freedom pass should be in line with national legislation. The Council currently 
also uses discretionary criteria to issue disabled persons freedom passes and 
Haringey has the highest number of disabled freedom passes in issue of any London 
Borough. Reviewing the criteria so that it is in line with national legislation could 
potentially generate a saving for the Council.   

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 
5.1 The Head of Legal Services comments that the Concessionary Bus Travel Act 2007 

provides that everyone aged 60 and over and disabled people will have free off-peak 
travel on all local buses anywhere in England from April 2008.  The Act provides a 
power, via regulations in the future, for mutual recognition of national concessionary 
bus passes across the United Kingdom.  

 
5.2 Schedule 1 to the 2007 Act  amends Schedule 16 of the Greater London Authority Act 

1999 (The London Free Travel Scheme) to allow for the additional concessions 
required for all eligible England Residents, and reserves to the Secretary of State the 
power to make regulations about the form and period of validity of the travel 
concession permits. 

 
5.3 The Head of Legal Services supports the recommendations and has no specific 

additional  comments to make. 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
6.1 Concessionary Bus Travel Act 2007  
6.2 Transport Act 2000  
6.3 Greater London Authority Act 1999 

 

Page 216



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3 

7. Strategic Implications 
7.1 The Government is introducing a national off peak free travel concession for elderly and 

disabled people from 1 April 2008. The key impact for Local Authorities is that there will 
now be a statutory requirement to provide a free off peak bus concession in Greater 
London for all elderly and disabled people whether their sole or principle residence is in 
Greater London or elsewhere in England   
 

7.2 This has two implications for Haringey; the cost of  the scheme will rise and there is a need 
to bring the qualifying criteria for the disabled persons freedom pass in line with national 
legislation. Both of those issues are addressed in this report. 

8 Financial Implications  
 

8.1 The cost of the Freedom Pass scheme will rise as a result of the new national concession 
because of the additional routes and journeys which will be covered. The government will 
be giving authorities extra grant, and while the London Councils are pressing for full 
reimbursement of all additional costs, the extra cost and amount of grant is still unclear.   

 
8.2 Haringey currently has by far the highest number of disabled freedom passes in issue 

across London. It is estimated that aligning the qualifying criteria of the disabled persons 
freedom pass with national legislation will generate savings of approximately £100k 
annually on the concessionary travel budget.  

 
8.3 All existing disabled freedom pass holders are now being asked to submit new applications 

, which will reassessed over the coming months in advance of the 2008/9 reissue ensuring 
that they still meet the criteria . If the recommendation in this report is agreed, those 
applications will be assessed only in line with national legislation and those not meeting 
the national criteria will not be issued with a disabled freedom pass for April 2008.    

 
8.4 The London Councils carry out the apportionment biannually.  The next apportionment will 

be carried in next year and will be based on the total number of freedom passes issued 
between February and September 2008. The savings referred to in paragraph 8.2 would 
as such be achieved in the following year in 2009/10.  

 
9.1 Equalities Implications  

9.2  Proposals in this report will  ensure that resources are targeted at those who need the 
service most. The parking Service will closely with  Adult Services [whose mental health 
Team assess applications based on Severe Mental Disorder] who will assist in identifying 
those most in need.   

10.1Consultation 

10.2 The mobility forum has been consulted and their feedback is appended to this report.  

 11.  Background  

Page 217



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4 

 
11.1 The Council issues the London Freedom Pass under two categories; The Older Persons 

and Disabled Persons Freedom Pass.  
 
11.2 The Older Persons Freedom Pass is issued automatically to those aged 60 yrs or over. 

There are seven categories of disabled people defined in the Transport Act 2000 for the 
purpose of qualifying for a Disabled Freedom Pass; 

 
1. people who are blind or partially sighted  
2. people who are profoundly or severely deaf 
3. people without speech 
4. people who have a disability, or have suffered an injury, which has left them with a 

substantial and long-term adverse effect on their ability to walk 
5. people who do not have arms or have a long-term loss of the use of both arms  
6. people who have a learning disability, that is defined as, a state of arrested or 

incomplete development of mind which includes significant impairment of 
intelligence and social functioning  

7. people who, if they applied for the grant for a licence to drive a motor vehicle under 
Part III of the Road Traffic Act 1988, would have their application refused pursuant 
to section 92 of the Act (physical fitness) otherwise than on the ground of persistent 
misuse of drugs or alcohol. 

 
11.3  Local Authorities may at their discretion issue freedom passes to disabled people that 

do not meet one of the above criteria.  Haringey use this discretionary power to issue 
passes to persons with a long-term mental health disability. Applications are assessed 
by the Haringey Council’s Mental Health team. This discretion is used by some other 
neighbouring boroughs, who are also in the process of reviewing their position. The 
information available at present indicates that some boroughs are changing the criteria 
now in advance of the introduction of the new national scheme, while others will review 
their position in advance of the 2010 reissue.  

 
11.4   Many residents currently qualifying under the additional criteria, will continue to qualify 

under Criterion 7 [explained above ],  which specifically makes reference to those with 
Severe Mental Disorder. This will ensure that those in genuine need of the service will 
continue to qualify for the service. 

 
11.5   The Older Person’s Freedom Pass is valid between 9am and 4.30 am Monday to 

Friday and all day at weekends and public holidays. The Disabled Persons Freedom is 
valid 24 hours, 7 days a week.  

 
11.6   Passes are renewed on biannual basis and the service is currently reassessing all 

existing applications in advance of the reissue due in April 2008.There are currently 
6993 disabled persons freedom passes in issue , of which 660 are issued under the 
discretionary Mental Health criteria. 

 
11.7   The Department for Transport have made it very clear that there are no powers to give 

the new national concession to those outside the categories of disabled persons defined 

Page 218



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5 

in legislation. This means that if the Council continues using their existing criteria for 
Disabled Freedom Passes some will qualify for a ‘London only’ pass , while others will 
qualify for the new national pass.  

 
11.8    The London Council’s are urging all boroughs who currently issue under additional 

criteria to align their scheme to that of the new national scheme, to ease administration, 
clarity for service users and providers, and to keep the cost of scheme down.    

  
12.   Recommendations; 
 
12.1 a) that the Cabinet note the introduction of the new national bus pass and the issues 

arising for Haringey. 
         b) That the Cabinet agree to align the criteria for the disabled freedom pass to the seven 

categories of disabled person defined in national legislation. 
 
13.  Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs 

Page 219



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - Response to consultation on Freedom Pass review  
  
Thank you for contacting Transport for London (TfL) to provide input into this 
report on aligning the free national off peak bus travel criteria with the London 
Disabled Persons’ Freedom Pass criteria. The email was forward to me as I 
am in TfL's Equality and Inclusion Unit.  
 
Local borough councils issue freedom passes to disabled people who meet 
one of the categories in the Transport Act 2000, covered under the Greater 
London Authority Act 1999. In addition to these categories, Local councils 
may at their discretion issue freedom passes to disabled people that do not 
meet one of the above criteria. 
 
The key proposal within this report is to remove the power to issue the 
Disabled Persons Freedom Pass on a discretionary basis with a near 
immediate effect (applying to all current users that were eligible on a 
discretionary basis and to all future applicants from April 2008). While councils 
may make such decisions on a discretionary basis, there are significant 
equality and inclusion impacts to consider.  
 
Transport provides a key role in improving disabled peoples quality of life 
through access to basic services and activities such as work, learning, 
healthcare, food, shops, social, cultural and sporting activities.  The Freedom 
Pass encourages greater social and economic participation and inclusion by 
disabled people, removes financial barriers to access and helps reduce a lack 
of confidence in using the transport network resulting from past and present 
transport barriers.  
 
Removing discretionary decisions will not only impact on those with long term 
mental health conditions but is also likely to impact upon other groups of 
disabled people who do not fall into the categories specified (under a strict 
interpretation of the Act).  
 
Once the Freedom Pass is removed there is no alternative travel concession 
for this group, particularly if they are not young children, students, older 
people or registered unemployed or receiving income support. Free fares only 
apply to children, older people and disabled people - according to the 
categories specified in the Transport Act. Travel concessions apply to New 
Deal Photocard holders (registered unemployed with local Job Centre or 
Social Security Office).  Travel concessions also apply to people receiving 
income support but only to bus and tram. Note that if discretionary decisions 
are removed from the Disabled Persons’ Freedom Pass and some of those 
people receive income support (e.g. some people with mental health 
conditions that are receiving income support such as the lower rate Disability 
Living Allowance) the discount only applies to bus and tram (half price bus 
season tickets and Oyster Pay As You Go travel) and not across the transport 
network like the Freedom Pass.   
 
With regards to people with mental health conditions, the paper notes that 
many of those residents would qualify under other categories. Are there any 

Page 221



statistics on this?  It is widely recognised that social and economic conditions 
impact upon health and there is a correlation between mental and physical 
health. While it is known that the physical health of those experiencing mental 
health problems, particularly those with long term and serious mental health 
problems, tends to be poor, this does not necessarily mean that the physical 
impact is a substantial and long-term adverse effect on ability to walk (if this is 
the category that they are thought to qualify under).   
 
People with mental health conditions are more likely to find it difficult to study 
and achieve qualifications, more difficult to hold down a responsible job, more 
likely to be discriminated against and are more likely to have low incomes. 
The National Programme for Improving Mental Health and Well-Being: 
Addressing Mental Health Inequalities in Scotland provides more detail: 

People with mental health problems are more likely to be in debt and 
have difficulties managing money than other members of the general 
population ( SEU, 2004). Those who have a long term mental health problem 
are likely to be trapped in poverty for longer periods than other people and 
persistent low incomes make it more difficult for individuals to take part in 
social activities that would alleviate isolation. Lack of practical support and 
assistance with finance matters and benefit claims can reinforce the vicious 
cycle of poverty, exclusion and poor mental health (Cullen, 2004; SEU, 2004). 

 
Has a full Equality Impact Assessment been carried out on the proposal to 
remove the discretionary powers to issue the Freedom Pass? 
 
The Haringey Disability Equality Statement provides a commitment (on page 
3) that “impact assessments will ensure that the council’s activities do not 
disadvantage disabled people in any way (either intentionally or not)”. 
 
It would also be useful to consider the Duty to Promote Disability Equality 
under the Disability Discrimination Act 2005. The Duty requires all public 
authorities to have due regard to the need to promote equality of opportunity 
between disabled persons and other persons, and to take steps to take 
account of disabled persons’ disabilities, even where that involves treating 
disabled persons more favourably than other persons.  
 
In addition the Haringey Disability Equality Statement sets out the Councils 
commitment to work in partnership with disabled people and involving 
disabled people in the changes and improvements made. Has there been any 
consultation outside the mobility forum or any direct consultation with people 
with mental health conditions? I am not sure of the level of presence of people 
with mental health conditions attending this forum.  
 

 

With kind regards,  
  
Jane Hill 
Project Manager Door to Door Policy 
Equality and Inclusion 

Page 222



Transport for London 
10th Floor Windsor House 
SW1H 0TL 
Tel: (020) 7126 1506 
  
 Council Response  
 
Dear Ms Hill  
 
Thank you for taking the time to respond to our consultation on proposals to 
review the Disabled Freedom Pass qualifying criteria and align it with national 
legislation.  
 
The categories of disabled people defined in the Transport Act 2000 are very 
comprehensive and we feel that we should not continue to issue Freedom 
Passes to people outside of those categories.  
 
Haringey has as present the highest number of Disabled Freedom passes in 
issue across London. There are 6993 in issue, of which 660 are issued under 
an additional discretionary criterion – Mental Health. This is in addition to 
those who would qualify under criterion 7 of the Transport Act 2000 [the 
refused or would be refused a driving licence element].  Proposals in the 
report relate only to the additional discretionary criteria and not to any of the 
categories specified in legislation where discretion will also apply. 
 
It is impossible at this stage to state exactly how many people will be affected. 
It is clear that a significant number of those currently issued with Disabled 
Freedom Passes under the additional criteria will still qualify under criterion 7 
of the Transport Act 2000. We currently preparing for the 2008 reissue which 
involves re-assessing all existing applications and it is clear even at this early 
stage that individual circumstances change, which will impact on eligibility 
even under the additional criteria.  
 
The new national pass being introduced in April 2008 will only be issued to 
those qualifying under the categories of disabled persons defined in 
legislation. Our proposals are aimed at bringing us in line with legislation and  
with many other boroughs and such we will still meet all our statutory 
obligations.   
 

 

Page 223



Page 224

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

                                                                           Agenda item: 
 
  Cabinet                                                                                                    18 December 2007  
 

Report Title: Central Leeside Area Action Plan Issues and Options Paper   
 

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): 

Report of: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment 
 

Wards(s) affected: Northumberland Park 
and Tottenham Hale  

Report for:  

1. Purpose   

1.1  The Central Leeside Area Action Plan (CLAPP) is a joint work with London Borough 
of Enfield which aims to provide an investment and improvement framework for this 
particular area.    The process for developing an Area Action Plan (AAP) for Central 
Leeside was approved by the Full Council in January 2007. The Plan is included in 
Haringey’s Local Development Scheme.  

 
1.2 The purpose of the current report is to seek members’ approval for the draft Issues 

and Options report for Central Leeside for public consultation in accordance with the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004. The Issues and Options report 
represents the first public consultation stage and will be followed by a further public 
consultation on the preferred options and an Examination in Public. The papers are  
attached.  

   

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary) 

2.1 This report is brought to this committee for Cabinet Members to consider related issues and 
options and approve the Central Leeside Area Action Plan. 

 
 

3.  Recommendations 

3.1 That Members consider and approve the Central Leeside Area Action Plan Issues and 
Options report for public consultation. 

 
3.2 That Members agree that the Cabinet Member for Enterprise and Regeneration in 

consultation with the Director of Urban Environment make any necessary minor changes to 
the Issues and Options report prior to public consultation. 

 

 

[No.] 

Agenda Item 12Page 225



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2 

Report Authorised by: Shifa Mustafa, Assistant Director, Planning Policy & Development  
 

 
Contact Officer: Sule Nisancioglu, Head of Planning Policy and Design  020 8489 5562 

4. Director of Finance Comments 
4.1   As part of the 2006/07 budget process £75,000 revenue investment was approved for the  

UDP/LDF for years 2006/07 and 2007/08 only. 
4.2  The estimated costs of £10,000 (Haringey share) for producing the joint plan will be 

contained within service budget provision in 2007/08. 
4.3  Further costs associated with Examination in Public process will need to be identified and 

contained within existing service cash limits for     2008/09.   
 
 

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 
5.1  The proposals in the Issues and Options Paper summarised in this report will need 

to be in general conformity with the London Plan before the Development Plan Document 
mentioned in paragraph 9.1 of the report can be adopted.  At the present time there are 
proposals for Central Leeside to be designated as Strategic Industrial Land in the Draft 
Alterations to the London Plan, and the Greater London Authority will need to confirm the 
conformity of the selected preferred option in due course. 

 

 
6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

6.1  The following documents were used in the preparation of this report:- 

•  London Plan  and further draft Alterations to London Plan 2006   

• Haringey UDP 2006  

• Executive  Committee Report on Central Leeside  December 2006 

• Full Council Report in January 2007  

 

7. Strategic Implications  
7.1 Central Leeside is the collective name given to the strategic employment sites that lie on 

the border between the London boroughs of Enfield and Haringey. Central Leeside is an 
important location for industrial activity. Some of the employment land in the study area is 
designated as Strategic Industrial Land (SIL) in the further Alterations to London Plan. 
This designation is a framework intended to protect industrial land and reconcile the 
demand for, and supply of, productive industrial land in London. SILs are seen as 
London’s strategic reservoir of industrial capacity.  

 
7.2 Central Leeside’s historic role as a location for traditional industrial activity has been in 

decline for some time and this trend is likely to continue in the future. (See appendix 1 for 
the map of the area). Where land is no longer needed for industrial uses, further draft 
Alterations to the London Plan (2006) allow for a managed approach to its release for 
other purposes, based on local demand assessments. 

 
7.3 The Area Action Plan for Central Leeside is set within a broader policy context. The area 

falls within the London- Stansted-Cambridge-Peterborough Growth Area and Upper Lee 

Page 226



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3 

Valley Opportunity Area, and provide opportunities for regeneration and change.  The 
policy context includes the London Plan, the emerging Core Strategy for Enfield and the 
Haringey UDP, together with the Area Action Plan for North East Enfield. There is also a 
non-statutory Plan for the Lee Valley Regional Park, a new Master Plan for Tottenham 
Hale and the neighbouring borough of Waltham Forest is also working on regeneration 
plans for nearby Blackhorse Road. Reference is also made to the emerging Joint Waste 
Plan. Recently, the North London Strategic Alliance, which includes the London 
Boroughs of Enfield, Haringey and Waltham Forest, produced a Vision for the Upper Lee 
Valley as North London’s waterside. This looks at the long-term potential of the valley to 
raise its performance in every way and make much more of its assets: its good 
connections, growth potential, housing capacity and the Lee Valley Park. Central Leeside 
is in a crucial position to help achieve this vision.  

 
7.4 The primary challenge therefore for the Central Leeside Area Action Plan (CLAPP) is to 

identify investment and improvements required to ensure the long term viability of the 
area as an employment location. The area requires a coherent framework of actions that 
can improve the quality of existing employment estates and support the growth of higher 
value added activities and enhanced employment densities and introduce mixed uses.  

 

8. Financial Implications 
 
8.1 The estimated cost of producing the joint plan is £150k in total phased over the period 

2006/07 to 2007/08. The bulk of this cost will be incurred by Enfield and Haringey’s share 
is estimated at about £10k. The project is managed by LB Enfield. There will be further 
additional costs in 2008-2010 for the Examination in Public process which will again be 
shared between the two Boroughs. The project will require updating Haringey’s 
employment land study which was carried out in 2004. This will include reassessing 
Haringey’s employment base and future trends, and the level of activity and opportunity 
for change and improvement for each of the Employment area within the Central Leeside 
area.   The AAP is   expected to be adopted by autumn 2010. 

 
8.2 The Council’s budget process for 2006/07 allocated additional resources of £75k in each 

of the 2 financial years 2006/07 and 2007/08 in respect of the UDP/LDF processes. 
Planning service put forward a service revenue investment bid for the next three years, 
2008/09 to 2010/11 to fund the cost of Local Development Framework (LDF) work to 
meet Government targets.   

   

9. Legal Implications 
 

9.1 The Central Leeside Area Action Plan (CLAAP) will constitute a Development Plan 
Document for each authority. The majority of the Central Leeside business area is 
contained within the London Borough of Enfield and hence Enfield is the lead authority 
and commissioning body for the Plan.  

 
9.2 Town Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) enable local authorities to develop 

area action plans subject to significant change. Central Leeside Area Action Plan is listed 
as one of the key documents in Haringey’s Local Development Scheme.  

 

Page 227



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4 

10. Equalities Implications  

10.1 During plan preparation, issues around equalities will be addressed. The Plan will be 
subject to sustainability appraisal which includes consideration on economic, social and 
environmental factors. The Plan will also be subject to equalities impact assessment. 
Care will be taken to ensure that consultation exercises reach all sections of the 
community and that national and the borough’s equal opportunity policies are complied 
with. 

  

11. Consultation  
11.1 The Issues and Options paper is the first formal step in a wide-scale consultation with 

stakeholders, residents and businesses in the study area.  At informal level, the 
consultants managed by LB Enfield collected initial views and ideas from the key 
stakeholders, and these are incorporated into the Issues and Options paper.   

 
11.2 The aim of the Issues and Options Paper is to raise issues that need to be tackled in 

the area and the set out a number of options which could offer viable solutions to the 
challenges facing the Central Leeside.  These options will be further assessed in the 
light of consultation responses and in terms of their viability and sustainability. The next 
step will be drawing up preferred options for further consultation.   

 
 
11.3 Internal consultation on the development of issues and options included reports to the 

Regeneration Stream Board and Transforming Tottenham Members Working group.  A 
site visit was arranged for officers and Northumberland Park and Tottenham Hale ward 
members in November. 

 
12.  Background   

 
12.1 The process for developing an Area Action Plan for Central Leeside was approved by 

the Full Council in January 2007. Urban Initiatives consultants were commissioned by 
LB Enfield to develop the Action Plan and manage the public consultation process.  
Most of the study area lie within borough of Enfield (please see Appendix1 for the area 
map) including the land around Tesco and IKEA near Angel Road, land around London 
Waste Edmonton Incinerator and the Pickett’s Lock area.  

 
12.2 In Haringey the area covers the Brantwood Road, Willoughby Lane, North East 

Tottenham and Marsh Lane employment sites which are identified in the Haringey UDP 
as defined employment areas and it extends to Northumberland Park station and 
includes parts of Lee valley Regional Park around Stonebridge Lock.  The Issues and 
Options paper will pose the question whether the area covered by the Action Plan 
should extend to cover a wider area than it currently set out.   

 

12.3 The proposed area covers parts of Northumberland Park Ward. The ward is 
characterised as being one of the most severely deprived areas not only in Haringey, 
but the whole country.  Results from the Indices of Deprivation 2004 found that 85 per 
cent of residents in Northumberland Park live in areas that are amongst the 10 per cent 
most deprived in Haringey.  Much of the deprivation stems from labour market 
disadvantage.  According to the last Census, residents in Northumberland Park has 
proportionately more low skilled residents than found elsewhere in Haringey and 
England.  According to the 2001 Census, Northumberland Park residents aged 16 to 74 
are more likely to be employed in the distribution, hotels and restaurants, public 
administration, education and health  when compared with Haringey and England. 

Page 228



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5 

 
What is the primary challenge facing Central Leeside?  

 
12.4 Central Leeside’s historic role as a location for traditional industrial activity has been in 

decline for some time and this trend is likely to continue in the future. The sectors now 
occupying the greatest percentage of employment land are warehousing, logistics 
operations, refuse and recycling, utilities, motor vehicle sale and repair, and wholesale.  
These uses still provide a valuable source of jobs but employment deprivation is high in 
the surrounding residential areas. The area also suffers from a poor image, and 
outdated industrial stock.  In some locations, there are a number of ‘bad neighbour’ 
industrial uses.  

 
12.5 The relevant local demand assessments in Enfield and Haringey indicate that there is 

likely to be only very limited scope for the release of employment land for other uses. 
This conclusion might seem to suggest that Central Leeside will not change much in its 
function. Indeed, those logistics operations, warehouses and other similar large space 
users are a necessary part of the overall metropolitan employment scene and that 
Central Leeside plays an essential role in providing that space.  

 
12.6 However, some sites within the Central Leeside area do offer a ‘significant future 

development opportunity’.  In Enfield part of the area, there are a greater proportion of 
vacant and derelict sites with most vacant land concentrated south of the A406 at 
Kimberley Road/Meridian Way. Furthermore, the integrity of the strategic employment 
land has already been compromised in the heart of Central Leeside, when permission 
was granted by LB Enfield to Tesco and Ikea. This area is likely to offer a ‘significant 
future development opportunity’ and likely to come under development pressures. In 
fact, there is already a landowner interested in developing a masterplan for this part of 
Central Leeside. This is an area which is very close to Haringey borough boundary and 
the employment areas in north Tottenham. Any future changes in this area will have 
implications for Haringey.  

 
12.7 The economy of London and the southeast continues to shift towards more knowledge-

based, service sector and high-technology activities. There is also significant potential 
growth in green technologies, which would build an existing core of refuse and recycling 
activities already in the area. There is a scope within Central Leeside to accommodate 
these activities, which often have greater employment densities than traditional 
industrial sheds. This could help to make more efficient use of the limited supply of 
employment land and inject more wealth into the local economy.   

 
12.8 Between 2007/08 and 2016/17 the London Plan requires a minimum of 3,950 new 

homes to be provided in Enfield and 6,800 in Haringey, based on existing housing 
capacity estimates.  There could be a scope in central Leeside to accommodate new 
housing. Mixed use in some sites in the Central Leeside area would also bring 
investment, which could be a catalyst for further regeneration and investment. In 
addition to employment related issues, Central Leeside needs major improvements in 
walking, public transport and the environment, as well as a substantial uplift in its image. 
The social and economic changes of the last 30 years are also reflected in other 
problems in the wider area including low average household income and educational 
achievement, under-investment in the housing and employment stock, and deterioration 
and shrinkage in local shopping streets as a result of changing shopping patterns and 
relatively low spending power. The overwhelming impression is that Central Leeside has 
drifted; it has adapted to economic change to some extent, but has not yet found a new 
role.  If the existing economies and communities are to be revitalised, a step change is 
now needed. The following are some of the issues facing the area:  

Page 229



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 6 

 

• Poor public transport accessibility  

• Frequency of service at Angel Road and Northumberland Park Train Station 

•  Lack of east-west local road connections  

• Need to improve employment skills in the area  

• Pressure on social and community infrastructure  

• Lack of access to Lee Valley Regional Park  

• Deficiency  in quality  public space  

• Quality of existing housing stock  

• Need to improve environmental infrastructure  

• Need for flood mitigation measures 
 
12.9 The key purpose of the Issues and Options paper is to highlight these challenges and 

possible options for a wider debate and assessment to enable both authorities to make 
informed choices about the future direction of growth in the area. The Issues and 
Options Paper cover issues, options and questions  for the following  areas:  

 

• future direction and options for Employment land (working in central leeside)  

• transport ( connecting central leeside)  

• mixed use options and housing including housing density, affordability (living in central 
leeside)  

• use of open space and leisure (central leeside’ s image and open spaces )  

• retails uses( living in central leeside)  

• community facilities including schools and health (living in central leeside)   

• issues and options for Pickett’s  Lock 

• issues and options for Angel Road  

• issues and options for Northumberland Park/ Northeast Tottenham 
 
For a summary of options please see appendix 2 
 
Key Issues and Options  
 

A) Employment Uses  

Given Central Leeside’s location in the growth corridor, its socio-economic context, 
and the changing nature of industry, it is highly unlikely that the existing situation can 
simply be maintained without any investment or improvement.  Therefore three broad 
options are envisaged. 

 
Option 1: Reinforce the existing employment function 
This would involve reinforcing the role of Central Leeside as an important industrial 
employment location, providing as much land as possible for low-density sectors that 
are forecast to grow in the next ten years, such as warehousing, distribution, 
transport, construction. The focus would be very much on supporting existing 
businesses.  
 
Implications: This option would maintain existing levels of employment land, which 
are essential for these activities, and continue to provide employment to meet growth 
corridor jobs targets but is unlikely to generate the investment levels required for 
significant environmental improvement or the upgrading of the area’s image.  
 
Option 2: Take a pro-active approach to upgrading employment and developing 
niche sectors. 

Page 230



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 7 

This could involve a number of different interventions including proactively 
encouraging growth sectors and industries by, for example, identifying a site for a 
logistics park, promoting a cluster of new green waste technologies, and promoting 
investment required to attract high value manufacturing.  The growth potential of the 
green sector is significant and could help to create a ‘unique selling point’ and identity 
for Central Leeside.  

 
Implications: 
This approach would require very significant public sector intervention and 
commitment.  This interventionist approach to improving the economic value of 
employment land would require actively facilitating redevelopment through the 
application of mechanisms such as land use planning and land-owner agreement, 
acquisition by private treatise or compulsory purchase. 
 
Option 3: Transforming the area through intensification and mixed use 
 
This option would require formulating pro-active planning policies for designated parts 
of Central Leeside, which allow for their transformation into mixed use developments 
including higher value business and commercial activities, space for start-up 
businesses, offices, healthcare, hotel, smaller scale retail and other complementary 
uses together with housing. 

 
Implications: This option could kick start a step-change in transforming the image of 
Central Leeside, creating a new community based on a network of streets with good 
walking and public transport connections. There is also the potential to maximise 
opportunities of Central Leeside’s waterside location.  However, there will be a 
challenge to maintain or enhance projected employment levels, in order to 
compensate for the loss of strategic employment land. It is unknown whether this is 
likely to be a successful location for start-up businesses and other office uses – the 
market is untested here. This approach may require intervention on behalf of relevant 
public agencies and the co-operation of private interests.  
 
 
B) Travel and Connectivity    
 
Private car use currently dominates movement within Central Leeside. This situation is 
made worse by poor public transport accessibility, infrequent rail services, a lack of 
bus services to and from employment and residential areas, and unwelcoming walking 
and cycling routes. In addition, east-west movement is severely restricted within 
Central Leeside.  Improving access and movement within Central Leeside is a key 
issue, particularly if Enfield and Haringey are to accommodate significant growth for 
future housing and employment growth. Various options are explored under the 
following key headings:   
 

• Encouraging people to use public transport in Central Leeside 

• Encouraging people to walk and cycle in Central Leeside 

• Improving access to the North Circular Road 

• Encouraging more sustainable modes of transport for moving freight 
 
One of the options looked at by LB Enfield for encouraging people to use public 
transport includes relocating Angel Road station, to the south of its current 
location. By relocating the station to the south, it could potentially provide a focus for 
new mixed-use development and activity. 
 

Page 231



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 8 

However, in this option the distance between the relocated Angel Road station and 
Northumberland Park station will need to be considered.   One issue that faces 
Northumberland Park station is the long term possibility of 4- tracking. 4- tracking may 
increase frequency of local services but it will make already congested situation at the 
level crossing at Northumberland Park worse.   
 
C) Housing  
 
Key question here is that the Upper Lee Valley is identified as an area for growth and 
the provision of new housing. How much of this should be provided within Central 
Leeside, and where should this new housing be located? Options include the 
following:  
 

• Provide a small amount of housing within Central Leeside. 

• Provide new housing within mixed use development on currently under-utilised 
or vacant sites within the Central Leeside Strategic Employment Area.  

• Provide a higher level of new housing within a major new mixed use 
development area, incorporating underutilised or vacant employment land, as 
well as some surrounding existing employment estates. 

 
The paper explores further options about the level of affordable housing, density and 
size of housing units.    
 
D) Schools and Other Community Facilities  
 
The key challenge here is that if significant new residential development is to take 
place, expanding the capacity of surrounding schools will not be sufficient.  The same 
applies to health care and community facilities. Options explored include  
 

• Identify potential locations for new health care facilities in Central Leeside, 
which could be considered by the Primary Care Trust in its forward plan. 

• If only a minimal amount of housing is to be accommodated in Central 
Leeside, without a significant new mixed use development, seek to 
accommodate new demand within existing schools in Haringey or Enfield 
through expansion, where possible. 

• If a significant new residential population is to be accommodated in Central 
Leeside, identify a suitable location for a new primary school (or schools) in the 
heart of the area. 

 
E) Retail  
 
Key question here is that if a significant new residential community is to grow in 
Central Leeside, should we assume that the existing Tesco store provides suitable 
local provision, or should we be more ambitious and build the community around a 
new local centre, incorporating shops, services (such as a post office, launderette 
etc), cafes, and restaurants?    
 
Before intensification of retail uses around the Angel Road area becomes a preferred 
option, it is important to assess the impact on neighbouring retail facilities and local 
centres such as Tottenham High Road.  
 
 
F) Open Spaces and Leisure  
  

Page 232



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 9 

Key challenges here are the lack of open space, access to open space and access to 
Lee Valley Regional Park and leisure facilities.  The options that are explored include 
improving the access to and quality of existing open space, creating new open 
spaces, creating a new east–west link to the Lee Valley Regional Park in the Angel 
Road area, extending the LVRP on a north–south axis through the North Circular.    
 
 
E) Focus on Northumberland Park /North East Tottenham  
 
The proximity of the Northumberland Park /Northeast Tottenham to the major 
opportunity area in Angel Road means that change and improvement at one will have 
an impact upon the other.  In particular, it is the opportunity for major transformation 
around Angel Road that will drive change in the Northumberland Park area.  The 
regeneration efforts in both areas must therefore be complementary. 
 
There are two possible scenarios for Northumberland Park.  On one level, the area 
could continue in its existing role as a preferred location for employment uses, 
although improvement in the quality of the employment uses would be needed. This 
would include managed change, small scale redevelopment and environmental 
improvements. There could be a role for this area to promote seed-bed, green 
industries and start-up businesses or absorb displaced employment from elsewhere in 
Haringey and Enfield.  
 
Alternatively, greater levels of change could be promoted in the area. In addition to 
improvements to the quality of employment areas, this alternative approach would 
also see redevelopment and improvement to selected employment areas with 
potentially higher-value employment uses integrated with the potential new living and 
working quarter around Ikea and Tesco.  As part of this approach, it may be possible 
to introduce a mix of other uses and also to explore ways in which access to and the 
relationship of development to the Lee Valley Regional Park might be enhanced. 
 

 
13. Next steps  

 
13.1 Issues and Options paper for Central Leeside will be subject to comprehensive 

consultation with those living and working in the area and also with the GLA family and 
key stakeholders before a more detailed study can identify preferred options. The 
process is managed by LB Enfield and a consultation and communication strategy is in 
place to start the process in January 2008.  

 

14. Conclusion 
 
14.1 The key question facing Central Leeside is the future approach to employment land in 

order to ensure the long term viability of this part of Upper Lee Valley. If it is accepted 
that the essential character and function of the area is to stay the same, then better 
estate management, and clear planning guidelines might help to achieve some 
improvement. 

 
14.2 Transformation of Central Leeside, however, will not happen without major new 

investment. A more urban, mixed-use approach based on a proper street pattern could 
potentially deliver higher value uses, greater employment densities and a 
complementary range of uses in a more attractive and pedestrian-friendly and better 
connected layout. 

Page 233



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 10

 
14.3 The key questions for Haringey involve future directions for employment areas in 

northeast Tottenham, Brantwood Road, Willoughy Lane and March Lane areas. Also 
the initial analysis indicated that the vacant and underused land near Haringey 
boundary around Tesco and IKEA is likely to come under development pressure which 
will have impact on Haringey.  

 
14.4 The Area Action Plan can provide a coherent framework of actions that can improve the 

quality of existing employment estates and support the growth of higher value added 
activities and enhanced employment densities and introduce mixed uses. 

 
14.5 The Central Leeside Issues and Options paper therefore sets out key questions and 

options on living in Central Leeside, working in Central Leeside, connectivity including 
public transport, retail and leisure activities, use of and access to open space, social 
and community facilities. The paper also sets out the location-specific questions and 
options for improvements in Picketts Lock area, Angel Road area and North East 
Tottenham/ Northumberland Park Area. 

 
14.6 The outcome of the consultation will help shape the preferred options which will be 

subject to further public consultation.   The development of preferred options will require 
updating Haringey’s employment land study which was carried out in 2003. This will 
include reassessing Haringey’s employment base, businesses, future trends and 
expansion plans, and the level of activity and opportunity for change and improvement 
for each of the Employment area within the Central Leeside area.   

 

15. Use of Appendices 

Appendix 1- Map- Central Leeside  

Appendix 2- List of Options  

Appendix 3- Draft Issues and Options Paper   

    

Page 234



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 11

Appendix 1- CENTRAL LEESIDE EMPLOYMENT LAND  

Page 235



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 12

Appendix 2- Summary of Options  (draft)   
 
 
CENTRAL LEESIDE AREA ACTION PLAN ISSUES AND OPTIONS STAGE  
 
LIST OF DRAFT  OPTIONS and QUESTIONS  
 
WORKING IN CENTRAL LEESIDE  – what are the options? 
 
Given Central Leeside’s location in the growth corridor, its socio-economic context, and the 

changing nature of industry, we do not believe that the existing situation can simply be 

maintained without any investment or improvement.  We think there are therefore three broad 

options. 

 
Option 1: Reinforce the existing employment function 
This would involve reinforcing the role of Central Leeside as an important industrial 
employment location, providing as much land as possible for low-density sectors that 
are forecast to grow in the next ten years, such as warehousing, distribution, 
transport, construction1. The focus would be very much on supporting existing 
businesses. The approach could be similar to that taken at Brimsdown, which is 
considered a successful example of estate investment, with a focus on rationalisation 
of layouts and better use of currently under-utilised space to provide larger plot sizes 
to accommodate expanding businesses2 and improving the infrastructure and 
environmental management of the estates.  

 
Ø Implications: This option would maintain existing levels of employment land, which are 

essential for these activities, and continue to provide employment to meet growth 
corridor jobs targets but is unlikely to generate the investment levels required for 
significant environmental improvement or the upgrading of the area’s image.  

 
Question: Which estates in Central Leeside are working well? Which should be a priority for 
intervention? 
 

Option 2: Take a pro-active approach to upgrading employment and developing niche 
sectors. 

This could involve a number of different interventions including: 

• Proactively encouraging growth sectors and industries by, for example, identifying a 
site for a logistics park, promoting a cluster of new green waste technologies, and 
promoting investment required to attract high value manufacturing.  The growth 
potential of the green sector is significant and could help to create a ‘unique selling 
point’ and identity for Central Leeside. It would require specifically dedicating land in 
Central Leeside as a main centre for environmental industries and evaluating how the 
policy regime in London and the southeast might help to drive the growth of those 
industries. 

                                            
1 Although there is a general shift towards high technology sectors, there are still some low-density sectors that are forecast to grow.  
2 Two-thirds of businesses in the Enfield Business Survey (EELS, 2006) anticipated that their business would grow in the next three years and 

14% of businesses required larger premises to facilitate expansion. 

Page 236



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 13

• Undertaking an assessment of skills required to nurture these sectors and seek to 
train local people in skills required to access new jobs.  

• Dealing with bad neighbour uses.  For example, identifying vacant or underutilised 
land within existing employment areas for the relocation of bad neighbour uses from 
Montagu Estate.  Opportunities for relocation are, however, extremely limited and 
costs of relocating businesses, who often own the freehold, could be prohibitive.  

 
Implications: 
This option is likely to be more expensive and might not be feasible in the absence of mixed-
use development in parts of the study area (see Option 3).  There might also be some 
‘opportunity costs’, for example the lack of availability of suitable sites means that the 
relocation of bad neighbour uses might make it more difficult to establish a base for ‘green’ 
industries.  Criteria used to evaluate potential sites for new industries could include 
accessibility, quality of surrounding environment, access to amenities and a lack of physical 
or institutional (e.g. ownership) constraints. This approach would maximise the control of the 
public sector over potential future change but would require very significant public sector 
intervention and commitment.  This interventionist approach to improving the economic value 
of employment land would require actively facilitating redevelopment through the application 
of mechanisms such as land use planning and land-owner agreement, acquisition by private 
treatise or compulsory purchase. 
 
Question: Which of these interventions do you support? Are there any others that you can 
suggest? 
 
Option 3: Transforming the area through intensification and mixed use 
Can parts of Central Leeside be transformed into a more urban character with mixed use 
development fronting on to streets? These might attract different kinds of employment and a 
complementary range of other uses including residential. This option would require 
formulating pro-active planning policies for designated parts of Central Leeside, which allow 
for their transformation into mixed use developments including higher value business and 
commercial activities, space for start-up businesses, offices, healthcare, hotel, smaller scale 
retail and other complementary uses together with housing. 

 
Implications: This option could kick start a step-change in transforming the image of Central 
Leeside, creating a new community based on a network of streets with good walking and 
public transport connections. There is also the potential to maximise opportunities of Central 
Leeside’s waterside location.  However, there will be a challenge to maintain or enhance 
projected employment levels, in order to compensate for the loss of strategic employment 
land. It is unknown whether this is likely to be a successful location for start-up businesses 
and other office uses – the market is untested here. Policies should be set out in the Area 
Action Plan and detailed concepts worked up through supplementary planning documents. 
This approach may require intervention on behalf of relevant public agencies and the co-
operation of private interests.  
 
Question: where would intensification/higher density mixed use development be appropriate? 
 

Page 237



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 14

LIVING IN CENTRAL LEESIDE- what are the options   
 
Housing 
 
1) Amount and location of new housing: background to the issue 
 
The London Plan currently requires a minimum of 3,950 new homes to be provided in Enfield 
and 6,800 in Haringey between 2007/8 and 2016/17.  These targets are based on housing 
capacity studies, which do not include any major potential sites within the Central Leeside 
study area.  So any major new housing provision in the area will help the two boroughs to 
exceed their minimum targets and contribute to the next phase of housing growth.   
 
Potential locations for new housing development within Central Leeside are explored in 
further detail within section 7 of this report. At this stage we just want to know what you think 
about the broad principles. 
 
1) What are the options for the amount and location of new housing? 
 

Ø Question: The Upper Lee Valley is identified as an area for growth and the provision 
of new housing. How much of this should be provided within Central Leeside, and 
where should this new housing be located? 

 
We think that there are three options. Please tell us if you agree with any of these, or if you 
think there are alternative options. 
 

Ø Option 1: Provide a small amount of housing within Central Leeside. 
 

Implications: This approach would see most of the area’s employment land and 
premises, including some currently under-utilised sites, remain in employment use.  
Any new housing would be accommodated on the fringes of the employment areas, 
as close as possible to existing housing and community infrastructure. 

 
Ø Option 2: Provide new housing within mixed use development on currently under-

utilised or vacant sites within the Central Leeside Strategic Employment Area.  
 
Implications: The option identifies Central Leeside as a key location for new housing 
development but has a minimal impact on the existing functioning industrial estates. 
However, the scale of development within this option might not be sufficient to justify 
significant improvements to public transport or highways infrastructure, or to deliver 
necessary social infrastructure - for example schools, healthcare and shops - to 
support a new community. Central Leeside does sit on a floodplain, however, within 
this option, housing could be concentrated in a location away from Lee Valley’s 
waterways. 

 
Option 3: Provide a higher level of new housing within a major new mixed use 
development area, incorporating underutilised or vacant employment land, as well as 
some surrounding existing employment estates. 
 
Implications: This option identifies Central Leeside as a key location for new housing 
development, and requires change of use of some existing industrial estates. The 
scale of development in this option would help to build a strong business case for 
significant improvements to the public transport and highways infrastructure, as well 
as provide a critical mass of new residents to support a new school, healthcare 
facilities and local amenities.  A development of this size could also enable an 

Page 238



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 15

exemplary eco-development, taking advantage of opportunities afforded by its location 
adjacent to the waterways and Lee Valley Regional Park. The floodplain is, however, 
a more critical issue in this option, and satisfactory assessments would need to be 
undertaken. 
 

2) Housing density: background to the issue 
 
New housing developments should make the most efficient use of suitable land, whilst 
respecting the local context, history and character of the area.   
 
In London, the potential for a site to accommodate new homes is guided by a Density Matrix 
in the London Plan, which links housing density with public transport accessibility, as well as 
the surrounding context of an area. Central Leeside meets the Matrix’s description of an 
‘urban’ area, and therefore able to accommodate higher housing densities, however, access 
to public transport in large parts of the study area is limited3 and transport accessibility needs 
to be improved if higher ‘urban’ densities are to be workable in Central Leeside. 
 
2) What are the options for housing density? 
 

Ø Question: If Central Leeside is to be a key location for new housing, at what density 
should housing be provided? 

 
We think that there are three options. Please tell us if you agree with any of these, or if you 
think there are alternative options.  

Ø Option 1: Encourage new housing of a similar density to existing and adjacent housing 
areas within Central Leeside. 

 
Implications: This option would ensure that new residential development respects the 
context of the surrounding area. However, this may not always be the most efficient 
use of suitable land. Where existing densities, for example, do not reflect public 
transport accessibility levels, new housing developments may be unnecessarily limited 
in terms of their density. A smaller number of residents can be accommodated in 
lower density developments, which minimises the potential for a critical mass to be 
accommodated in Central Leeside to support new transport and social infrastructure. 
Furthermore, higher density housing developments might better complement the scale 
of the road infrastructure and existing land uses in Central Leeside, and allow 
development to make the best use of assets in the area, such as the waterways.    

 
Ø Option 2: Encourage higher housing density in Central Leeside, in areas that are more 

accessible by public transport. 
 

Implications: Given many parts of the area currently suffer from limited access to 
public transport, within this option efforts would be made to secure public transport 
infrastructure improvements.  As indicated above, higher density development would 
enable a critical mass of residents to be accommodated in the area, helping to build a 
business case for public transport improvements and investment in social 
infrastructure. 
 

Ø Option 3: Encourage higher density housing development at appropriate locations, 
using a ‘design-led’ approach. 

 

                                            
 

Page 239



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 16

Implications: Whereas option 2 could be described as a ‘transport-led’ approach, this 
design-led option would allow elements of the built and natural environment to also 
determine the best locations for higher density development.  For example, along the 
waterways and designated thoroughfares (both existing and new), higher density 
would be promoted, which would complement the scale of these features, and allow 
housing to benefit from the views made available. Relatively lower density family 
housing would be located in the heart of the community, away from main 
thoroughfares. As with option 2, this option would make efficient use of available land, 
and help to create a critical mass of people within Central Leeside to support the 
provision of new services and public transport facilities.  

 
 
3) Housing type and mix: background to the issue 
 
Current guidance at all levels highlights the importance of encouraging mixed and balanced 
communities. In order to achieve this, new housing developments must include a suitable 
range of housing types and tenures.  
 
In terms of housing tenure, our background research has identified that there is a need for 
affordable housing in the wider area around and including Central Leeside. Enfield’s Housing 
Needs Study (2005) estimated that there is a net annual shortfall of 2,916 affordable homes, 
whilst Haringey’s Housing Needs Assessment 2007 has identified a shortfall of 4,885 
affordable housing units. The target for affordable homes is set as 50% in Haringey’s UDP, 
and is being explored for the borough of Enfield through its  Core Strategy Issues and 
Options Report. The Enfield and Haringey targets need to reflect the London Plan strategic 
target for 50% of all new housing within the capital to be affordable. 
 
Central Leeside should encourage housing in a range of sizes and tenures. There is a 
particular need for larger, family-sized homes in both boroughs, especially units of four or 
more bedrooms. Equally, there is a shortage of affordable homes of all sizes in the action 
plan area. One of the Council’s strategic housing objectives is “to support the aspirations of 
residents to become homeowners.” Affordable housing products such as low-cost home 
ownership are key to achieving this vision. Whilst addressing the boroughs’ housing needs, 
the AAP should also ensure that development across the Central Leeside area offers 
accessible homes in a mixture of sizes and tenures, to achieve a balanced and successful 
community. 
 
 
3) What are the options for housing type and mix? 
 

Ø Question: What housing tenures should be provided within Central Leeside? 
 
We think that there are two options. Please tell us if you agree with any of these, or if you 
think there are alternative options. 
 

Option 1: Provide a mix of housing tenures within new housing developments, including a 
balance of private-for-sale housing, affordable social and intermediate housing, reflecting 
Haringey and London Plan targets of 50% affordable housing with a 70/30 split between 
social and intermediate housing.  

Implications: This option will ensure the creation of a mixed and balanced community, 
although an opportunity might be lost to address the annual shortfall in affordable housing in 
both boroughs.  
 

Page 240



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 17

Ø Option 2: Provide a greater proportion of affordable housing within new developments 
in Central Leeside than other areas in the two boroughs.  
 
Implications: This option will take advantage of opportunity sites in the area to deliver 
a high proportion of affordable housing, reflecting current need and demand. 
However, this may not contribute towards the creation of a mixed and balanced 
community.  The requirement for a higher proportion of affordable housing may 
reduce the value of land where private developers are seeking to promote change and 
minimise the potential for new development to cross-fund the social and transport 
infrastructure required.  
. 

 
Ø Question: What house sizes should be provided within Central Leeside? 

 
We think that there are two options. Please tell us if you agree with any of these, or if you 
think there are alternative options. 

 
Ø Option 1: Ensure that all new residential development in Central Leeside includes a 

high proportion of family housing 
 

Implications: This option would encourage families to move to and stay in the area, 
helping to create a vibrant community. The provision of family housing would, 
however, have implications for social and community infrastructure. In other words, if 
there are more families within the Central Leeside area there will need to be sufficient 
schools, health facilities, play areas etc. Given the lack of these facilities in Central 
Leeside at present, new developments will need to generate sufficient profit in order to 
be able to cross-fund social infrastructure.  Developers’ profits tender to be greater 
with smaller sized units, therefore a balance to be struck. This option would help to 
meet the need for larger owner occupied units within both boroughs.  However, it may 
result in lower development densities across the area, therefore reducing the numbers 
of extra homes which both boroughs can secure. 

 
Ø Option 2: Provide a mix of house sizes within Central Leeside, with a greater priority 

on one and two bed flats. 
 
Implications: This option will result in the provision of less family housing and more 
flats, therefore reflecting future predictions of demographic change. Under this option, 
higher development densities may be achieved, which could help to cross-fund 
required transport and social infrastructure.  
 
Question: How could development opportunities in Central Leeside help improve the 
condition of the existing housing stock? Are there any areas of housing in the 
immediate vicinity that could benefit from energy efficiency schemes? 

 
 
Community facilities 
 
Background to the issue 
 
People living within the Central Leeside study area tend to be part of adjoining communities 
rather than part of a coherent Central Leeside residential neighbourhood.  So their community 
facilities, such as schools, health centres, post offices, community centres and libraries, are 
typically outside the study area.  However, this means that there are some residents within 
the study area that are under-provided for. The area to the south of Pickett’s Lock and to the 

Page 241



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 18

north of the North Circular, for example, lies outside of the recommended catchment for either 
a primary school or a secondary school4  
 
The community facilities that do exist in the periphery of the study area will be placed under 
increasing pressure if Central Leeside’s population increases over the coming years. The 
possibility of new or extended services therefore needs to be considered, so that new 
residents would be supported by an appropriate range of community facilities, which are both 
easily accessible and of a high quality. Indeed, both boroughs recognise the importance of 
community facilities within their current development plans, and acknowledge the role of 
these facilities in supporting the creation of a successful, healthy and inclusive society5. 
 
In response to these pressures the Enfield, Barnet and Haringey Primary Care Trust is in the 
process of developing a strategy that will enable care to be provided closer to people’s 
homes. This could include the provision of new primary care facilities distributed across the 
three boroughs. Although there are currently no plans for a new facility in Central Leeside, 
this may need to be reconsidered if the area is to accommodate substantial new housing 
development. It is also important to recognise that the provision of safe and attractive open 
spaces, parks and leisure facilities provides the opportunity for people to take part in sports 
and physical activities, therefore contributing to health and general well-being.  
 
There are no schools in the study area, although there are a number close by. Most have 
been expanded over the last 10-20 years because of growing demand for places and are 
reaching capacity. The potential to extend and expand these schools  is extremely limited. 
The only option for limited expansion is in Enfield at St. John & St. James's CE Primary 
School on Grove Street, where some of the need arising from new development in Central 
Leeside could potentially be accommodated, but expansion here depends on loss of adjacent 
open space, which would be a significant compromise due to open space deficiencies in the 
area. The boroughs have identified a need for at least one new 2-form entry primary school, 
depending on the amount of housing that might be accommodated in Central Leeside, 
therefore if significant new residential development is to take place, it is not an option to 
simply expand the capacity of surrounding primary and secondary schools.  
 
The following options therefore ask what community facilities should be provided in Central 
Leeside in order to support the creation of a mixed and balanced community.  
 
What are the options for community facilities? 
 

Ø Question: How can we work with the Primary Care Trust to ensure that there are 
adequate health facilities to support Central Leeside’s local community? 

 
We think that there are two options, both of which could be implemented if necessary. Please 
tell us if you agree with any of these, or if you think there are alternative options.  

 
Ø Option 1: Identify potential locations for new health care facilities in Central Leeside, 

which could be considered by the Primary Care Trust in its forward plan. 
 

Implications: This option will work towards providing new health facilities in the heart 
of any potential new Central Leeside residential community.   This, combined with 
other community facilities, could help to create a sense of community in Central 
Leeside.  

 

                                            
4 Central Leeside Area Action Plan Baseline Report (2007). Urban Initiatives for LB Enfield and LB Haringey. 
5 Enfield Council, April 2007, The Enfield Plan Issues and Options Report (section 8 – social infrastructure); and Haringey Council, July 

2006, Haringey UDP (section 10 – community well being).  

Page 242



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 19

Ø Option 2: Make the exiting health care provision in the boroughs of Enfield and 
Haringey more accessible to existing and future populations in Central Leeside. 

 
Implications: This option will require improved links and connections to be made 
between any potential new residential communities in Central Leeside and those 
existing facilities outside of the study area. However, if implemented on its own, this  
option may not provide adequate provision should the population of the area 
significantly increase through new housing development. 

 
 
Ø Question: How can we ensure that there are adequate schools to support a potential 

new residential community in Central Leeside? 
 

We think that there are two options, which relate to the amount of potential new housing 
(especially family housing) to be accommodated in Central Leeside. Please tell us if you 
agree with any of these, or if you think there are alternative options. 

 
Ø Option 1: If only a minimal amount of housing is to be accommodated in Central 

Leeside, without a significant new mixed use development, seek to accommodate new 
demand within existing schools in Haringey or Enfield through expansion, where 
possible.  

 
Implications: Improved links and connections would be required between any new 
housing and these schools. This option may, however, compromise the amount of 
available play space within the expanding schools, which is a significant issue in an 
area that is already deficient in open space.  

 
Option 2: If a significant new residential population is to be accommodated in Central 
Leeside, identify a suitable location for a new primary school (or schools) in the heart 
of the area. 
 
Implications: Depending on the level of potential population increase and family 
housing in Central Leeside, either one or two new primary schools are likely to be 
required. This option would provide new education facilities in the heart of the area, 
which would help to foster a sense of community, provide out-of-hours facilities for the 
wider population and promote sustainability, in particular through minimising the 
‘school run’.  

 
Question: If significant new housing is to be developed in Central Leeside, where would be 
the most appropriate location for a new school (or schools)? 

  
 

 Retail 
 
The only significant shopping area within Central Leeside is around the North Circular and is 
characterised by big box retail units such as Ikea and Tesco. The proximity of the area to the 
North Circular and the ready availability of space has encouraged such development to locate 
in the area. These facilities attract people from far beyond the Central Leeside study 
boundary.  
 
Large format retailing is aimed at car-based shoppers and does not provide an attractive 
urban environment; typically the scene is one of large sheds sitting in big expanses of car 
parking.  The surrounding environment is unwelcoming to both pedestrians and cyclists – the 

Page 243



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 20

streets are poorly maintained and lit, and there are very few buildings providing ‘eyes onto the 
street’ at all times of the day.  
 
The nearest district centres to Central Leeside are Edmonton Green, Angel Edmonton and 
Tottenham High Road. To the south of Central Leeside, the area around Tottenham Hale has 
been the subject of a Supplementary Planning Document and masterplan. As a result there 
are plans to transform the area, with new housing, improved public transport, retail space and 
community facilities.  
 
If the future directions for Central Leeside indicate that population in this area is set to 
increase in the coming years, and is to develop into a thriving community,  decisions need to 
be made about the type of retailing that would complement a new residential community in 
Angel Road. We can therefore assume that further ‘big-box’ retailing is not an option here. 
Furthermore, it would not be supported by the need for a sequential test, which supports retail 
in existing town centres.  However, there is a decision to be made about the scale and 
breadth of new local retail and amenity facilities to be provided, which is considered in the 
options below.  
 
We recognise that in order to effectively answer these questions a more detailed 
understanding of Central Leeside’s future population is needed. So at this stage we are just 
asking you about the principles of retail development. This is based on the assumption that 
the area’s demographics will significantly change. Look at the following options and tell us 
what you think. 
 
What are the options for retail? 
 

Ø Question: If a significant new residential community is to grow in Central Leeside, 
should we assume that the existing Tesco store provides suitable local provision, or 
should we be more ambitious and build the community around a new local centre, 
incorporating shops, services (such as a post office, launderette etc), cafes, and 
restaurants?    

 
We think that there are two options. Please tell us if you agree with any of these, or if you 
think there are alternative options.. 
 

Ø Option 1: Incorporate only minimal units for retail and services within potential new 
development at Central Leeside, assuming that most people can shop at Tesco.  

 
Implications: This option would enable a greater proportion of the development to be 
residential, which could maximise potential cross-funding for other social 
infrastructure, such as schools and healthcare and transport.  It might help to support 
nearby district centres, which might benefit from an increased residential catchment 
for custom.  However, it would miss the opportunity to create a vibrant new local 
centre, which could help to bring life and safety to the area. 

 
Option 2: Any new residential community in Central Leeside would be built around a 
new local centre, incorporating shops, services (such as a post office, launderette 
etc), cafes, and restaurants. 
 
Implications: This option would allow for the creation of a new local shopping area, 
with small scale shops and services, that would support Central Leeside’s growing 
population. This may in turn act as a focus for other uses, including public transport 
facilities, a school, healthcare facility and higher density housing development. 
Potential impacts on surrounding district centres and other shopping facilities would 

Page 244



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 21

need to be considered. There could also be an issue of viability of convenience shops 
in this location, given the proximity of Tesco.   
  
 

CONNECTING CENTRAL LEESIDE  – what are the options? 
 
The options presented in the following sections seek to address some of these issues. Have 
a look at these options and tell us what you think. 
 

Encouraging people to use public transport in Central Leeside 
 
Question: How can more people be encouraged to use bus services in Central Leeside? 
 
We think that there are three options; more than one could be pursued. Please give us your 
views, and if you wish to suggest further options, please do so.  
 

Ø Option 1: Seek the maintenance and improvement of existing bus services and 
facilities.  
 
Implications: This option will include seeking an increase in the frequency of existing 
bus services, as well as improved bus facilities, such as the provision of real time 
information and improved waiting facilities. This option would encourage more people 
to use public transport, although there will be cumulative benefits if it is combined with 
the option below.  

 
Ø Option 2: Seek the provision of new bus routes within Central Leeside – such new 

routes should improve accessibility within the area to existing industrial estates and 
residential areas, as well as to areas beyond Central Leeside, including Waltham 
Forest, Tottenham Hale and Edmonton Green. 
 
Implications: By providing more bus routes, this option would provide a viable 
alternative for individuals currently dependent upon their car. This would have a 
positive environmental effect as traffic congestion would be reduced, especially at 
peak times, and it could also help to resolve the car parking problems currently faced 
in many of the employment areas.  The provision of better services along Meridian 
Way to Tottenham Hale would be particularly important in the short term, ahead of 
four-tracking. 

 
Ø Option 3: Investigate the potential for leisure and recreational water-bus or water-taxi 

services from Tottenham Hale to Central Leeside. 
 
Implications: This service would only be directed at the leisure market as journey 
times would not make it a viable option for businesses and commuters. It would, 
however, be a way of raising the profile of Central Leeside and the Lee Valley Park. 

 

 
Question: How can more people be encouraged to use rail services in Central Leeside? 
 
We think that there are four options; more than one could be pursued. Please give us your 
views, and if you wish to suggest further options, please do so.  

Page 245



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 22

 
Ø Option 1: Seek to increase the frequency of rail services at all stations within Central 

Leeside.  
 

Implications: While this option will encourage more people to use local rail services, 
the limited track capacity at present will mean that any improvements to the frequency 
of existing services will not result in a step-change in the use of the railways. 
Increased frequency can only be supported if there is sufficient residential population 
to patronise the extra services. This has implications for the amount of new homes in 
the area and the density of residential development. 

 
Ø Option 2: Improve access to all rail stations within Central Leeside. 

 
Implications: This option will significantly improve the safety and security of the railway 
stations, therefore encouraging more people to use local rail services. This option, 
however, will have far greater benefits if combined with improvements to the 
frequency of services and, in particular, with four-tracking. 

 
Ø Option 3: Relocate Angel Road station, to the south of its current location. 

 
Implications: This option would ensure that Angel Road station relates well to both 
existing and new development in the Angel Road area. By relocating the station to the 
south, it could potentially provide a focus for new mixed-use development and activity. 
However, the distance between the relocated Angel Road station and neighbouring 
stations, particularly Northumberland Park, will need to be considered, as well as any 
potential impacts upon the frequency and quality of services to these stations. The 
costs associated with relocation will be considerable. These costs, however, should 
be viewed with the understanding that there is already a need for substantial 
investment in the station.  
 

Ø Option 4: Create a new station at Pickett’s Lock.  
 

Implications: A new station at Pickett's Lock would only be a viable consideration in 
conjunction with significant proposals for a major new sports and leisure event centre 
on the Pickett’s Lock site, that would attract large crowds.  This number of visitors to 
the existing athletics centre and cinema complex would not justify a new station.  In 
the event of major new proposals coming forward, a new station in this location could 
also help to improve station access for nearby residents and businesses (see options 
presented in Section 7.4).  The impact of a new station on Angel Road and Ponders 
End stations would also need to be considered. 

 

Encouraging people to walk and cycle in Central Leeside 
 
Question: How can more attractive and useable walking and cycling routes be provided in 
Central Leeside? 
 
We think that there are two main options; more than one could be pursued. Within each 
option, there are other choices to be made. Please give us your views, and if you wish to 
suggest further options, please do so.  
 

Ø Option 1: Improving walking and cycling routes within the Central Leeside area.  If 
significant transformation of the Angel Road area through mixed-use development 
were to take place, this could provide an opportunity to create a proper street 

Page 246



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 23

environment in this location, with residential and commercial buildings fronting onto 
the street, pavements and lighting.  Within the employment areas, any future 
development or projects undertaken to improve access should seek to improve the 
potential for walking, including proper footpaths and pavements, improved lighting and 
security features.  Conditions to improve walking and cycling along key routes, such 
as Meridian Way/Watermead Way as well as along routes to and from Angel Road 
and Northumberland Park stations and to and from bus stops. 

 
Implications: This option would make it easier to move around the Central Leeside on 
foot or by bicycle, and remove barriers to internal movement. However, significant 
improvements could only really be achieved in conjunction with new development.   

 
Ø Option 2: Improve the walking and cycling connections to the wider area beyond 

Central Leeside, helping to connect the area to key facilities and amenities.  This 
could focus on (a) improved connections to the national cycle route and Lee Valley 
pathway, which could involve new crossings across the Lee Valley railway line, and 
better connections to Banbury Reservoir and Waltham Forest (b) improved 
connections to Angel Road shopping area and through to Edmonton Green, which 
could involve upgrading the pedestrian link alongside the former rail alignment 
between Angel Road and Edmonton Green.   

 
Implications: Any new mixed-use development would be expected to contribute to 
improved connections to improve accessibility to employment, social facilities, public 
transport and open spaces including the Regional Park. New crossings would help to 
reduce the barrier to walking and cycling caused by the Lee Valley railway line.  

 

Relieving congestion and improving the environment 
 
We would like to pose a few questions in relation to relieving congestion in the Central 
Leeside area and reducing the dominance of car use.  Previous sections on improving public 
transport and walking and cycling connections are likely to have a significant impact on the 
dominance of the car in the area.  However, these questions consider options for the 
management of traffic and the road network. Please consider these and give us your views.  
If you think there are other options, please let us know.   
 

Ø Question 1: Should we provide more protection from heavy road traffic to residential 
areas, for example around Montagu Road, Dyson Road and in Northumberland Park? 
 
Implications: This could include road closures or traffic calming measures to protect 
residents from heavy vehicular traffic and rat-running on residential streets.  However, 
this could increase some congestion on main routes.  

 
Ø Question 2: If major new development is to go ahead in the area, should additional 

traffic movements be catered for through improvements to the highway network, 
including increased capacity? 

 
Implications: If major new development takes place in the area, increasing the number 
of people living and working in Central Leeside, there is likely to be an increase in car 
movements, unless the level of improvements to public transport in the area could 
justify car-free developments.  This would add congestion to the network, which is 
already under pressure.  Small-scale improvements to the highway network and traffic 
management could be sought, alternatively new east-west local road links north and 

Page 247



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 24

south of the North Circular could be considered, which would help to alleviate 
congestion on the North Circular. 

 
Ø Question 3: Should we seek to introduce management of the currently informal 

parking arrangements in the employment areas?  
 
Implications: This would help to improve the image of the employment areas, as well 
as conditions for walking within them. In the event of new mixed use development in 
Central Leeside and an increase in the residential population, it would also help to 
manage the parking available in employment areas, so that it is only used for 
businesses and visitors.   

 
Ø Question: Is there potential for freight, bulky goods, waste and construction material to 

be transferred from the roads to more sustainable modes of transport, including rail 
and the waterways? 
 
Implications: Operational wharfage already exists at the Edmonton Incinerator and 
there is protected wharfage south of the IKEA store, as well as proposals for Pickett’s 
Lock.  The potential therefore exists to  encourage a step-change in how freight, bulky 
materials and waste are moved around the area, through the use of the waterways. 
Whilst initial set up costs will be relatively high, this option would have benefits both 
for businesses as well as the environment, as traffic congestion will be significantly 
reduced. This option will also make use of the waterways, which are currently 
underused, although there may be negative visual and aesthetic impacts.  
The current limited capacity of the Lee Valley Line would be a barrier to increasing rail 
freight, but this could be an option for consideration in the future with improvements to 
capacity being progressed.  
  

 
Central Leeside as North London’s Waterside 
 

Ø Question: How could Central Leeside contribute to the North London Strategic 
Alliance’s Vision for the Upper Lee Valley as North London’s Waterside? 

 
The options below set out a range of interventions that relate to the level of potential change 
and development envisaged in the area as a whole.  Please tell us which option you support, 
or if you think there are alternative options. 
 

Ø Option 1: Improve access to the Lee Valley Regional Park at Pickett’s Lock and North 
East Tottenham/Northumberland Park and the recreational facilities at Pickett’s Lock 
and Banbury Reservoir. 

 
Implications: This option presents smaller-scale interventions that could be 
undertaken in the absence of significant mixed use development in the area.  It would 
help to connect the park with existing surrounding communities, and would help to 
raise the overall profile of the park within Central Leeside and the wider area.  The first 
aim would be to improve existing access points to the Regional Park at Pickett’s Lock 
and North East Tottenham/Northumberland Park.  At Pickett’s Lock, the focus would 
be on improvements to Pickett’s Lane, which lies between the leisure complex and 
Deephams Sewage Works. The other focus for intervention would be on the route 
running east-west to the Park between North East Tottenham and Marsh Lane 
employment areas in Haringey. This would include improving safe pedestrian access 
along River Lee, and navigation to link Central Leeside with Tottenham Hale. This 

Page 248



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 25

could include the creation of new visible gateways to the park, better signs, defined 
walking and cycling routes.  
 
 In terms of improving recreational facilities, the focus in this option would be on 
Pickett’s Lock, and Banbury Reservoir, with the potential introduction of new 
recreation and leisure activities within the park and on the waterways (for example, 
sailing and fishing on the reservoirs). Access to the reservoirs, would need to be 
balanced against health and safety as well as security concerns. Any new facilities in 
the Park would need to take into account both Enfield and Haringey’s Green Belt 
policies.  
 
Question: How can the role and function of the Lee Valley Leisure Complex at 
Pickett’s Lock be enhanced? 
 

Ø Option 2: Create new east-west links to the Lee Valley Regional Park in the Angel 
Road area.  

 
Implications: This option would be achieved most effectively if large-scale mixed use 
development were pursued that included land up to the edge of the Regional Park.  
However, there are also likely to be options for improved east-west links if more a 
moderate development option is pursued.  This could be achieved both by introducing 
new east-west routes within the development itself, but also through potential cross-
funding of improving pedestrian and cycle routes to the Park. 

 
Ø Option 3: Extend and create new areas of the Regional Park. 
 

Implications: Extending the park on a north-south axis through the North Circular 
would reconnect the park which is currently disjointed at this point, providing a 
continuous park environment along the Upper Lee Valley.  This option could only be 
achieved if large-scale mixed use development were to be pursued in heart of Central 
Leeside, which included sites up to the edge of the Regional Park.  An appropriate 
location for the extension of the park could be between Pymmes Brooke and the River 
Lee Navigation, which could provide an attractive setting for new development and 
create new opportunities for recreation and leisure activities.  

 
Ø Question: What other leisure and cultural facilities should be provided in Central 

Leeside? 
 
Ø Question: Are there opportunities for the provision of large-scale leisure facilities, 

including spectator sports facilities and attractions in the AAP area? 
 
Creating new Open Spaces in Central Leeside 
 
Our research has shown that not all parts of the action plan area have adequate access to 
open spaces, including the Lee Valley Park and other smaller, more local areas of open 
space. Current guidance recommends that all households should be within an 800m 
catchment area for a public park and a 400m catchment area for children’s play provision. At 
the moment, however, some residents in Jubilee and Lower Edmonton wards are beyond 
these recommended catchment areas, as well as residents in the Northumberland Park area6.  
 

                                            
6
 London Borough of Enfield, August 2006, Enfield Open Space and Sports 

Assessment; and London Borough of Haringey, October 2003, Haringey Open 

Space and Sports Assessment. 

Page 249



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 26

Measures are therefore needed to address deficiencies in the provision of open space across 
the Central Leeside study area – deficiencies that are only likely to increase with additional 
development.  
 

What are the options for creating new open space within Central Leeside? 
 

Ø Question: What form should new open space take within the Central Leeside area?    
Should small new open spaces be distributed evenly within new developments or 
should we focus instead on creating one large area of new open space?  

 
We think that there are two options. Please tell us which option you support, or if you 
think there are alternative options.  
 

Ø Option 1: Integrate small new open spaces within new developments. 
 

Implications: This option would make it easier for new residents and workers to have access 
to some open space in the vicinity of their homes or place of work.  However, the range and 
scale of facilities (playgrounds, sports facilities) would be more limited, the open spaces may 
appear more private, and they would serve a more local role.  The open spaces would also 
naturally be of a more ‘urban’ nature, and it would not be easy to create areas of naturalised 
open space.  
 

Ø Option 2: Secure sufficient funding for the creation and maintenance of a large new 
open spaces by pooling money from developers. 

 
Implications: This option would result in the creation of a larger public area of open 
space, although this  may be further away from residential areas.  It would, however, 
enable an extension of the Regional Park to be achieved, helping to establish a 
stronger north-south green link.  

 
Improving the quality of existing open spaces in Central Leeside 
 
The Open Space Assessments undertaken for the boroughs of Enfield and Haringey 
recommend scope for improvement to the following open spaces within the study area: 
 

• Montagu Recreation Ground (Enfield)– this lies to the north of Montagu Industrial 
Estate and serves the residential communities to the north west of the study area. It is 
classified as a Local Park of good quality, but lacking in natural green space.  The 
Open Space Assessment considers there to be potential for landscaping and for 
introducing other open space uses, including children’s play. 

• Kenning Hall Open Space (Enfield) – this is sandwiched between the rail lands at 
Angel Road station, the North Circular and a scrap yard.  It is difficult to access and 
poorly overlooked. The Open Space Assessment classifies Kenning Hall as a Green 
Amenity Space of ‘fair’ quality and low value.  The opportunity for it be converted into 
allotments is highlighted.  The Assessment does not consider there to be scope for 
other real improvement to the space, given its inaccessibility and the surrounding 
hostile environment.  

• Ladysmith Road Open Space (Enfield) – this lies immediately to the north of the Gas 
Holder site to the south of the North Circular and east of Meridian Way.  It is classified 
as a good quality Small Local Park, ‘visually attractive’ but with low value.  The Open 
Space Assessment does not consider there to be scope for other real improvement to 
the space.  However, any future development of the Gas Holder site to the south 
could be linked to improvements to its value or an extension of this space. 

Page 250



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 27

• Frederick Knight Sports Ground (Haringey) – this is a playing field/sports ground 
that lies between the Brantwood Road and Willoughby Lane industrial estates.  It 
measures 3.92ha and is in reasonable condition. It is owned and managed by the 
private sector, but has five sports pitches secured in public use.  

• Tottenham Marshes (Haringey) – the marshes are one of Tottenham’s most 
important assets, given this part of Haringey is lacking in open space. In 2005, the 
visitor’s centre at Stonebridge Lock was opened as part of a concerted effort to 
improve the River Lea for all its users. Recently, the Lea Valley Regional Park 
Authority and Haringey and Waltham Forest Councils have secured funding and 
implemented a project to improve access for local communities onto Tottenham 
Marshes.  

• Marsh Lane allotments (Haringey) – these allotments are located south of the North 
East Tottenham employment area, on the corner of Marsh lane and Garman Road. 
Haringey’s Open Space and Sports Assessment (2003) stated a 100% occupancy 
rate for these allotments with a small waiting list.  

 
The clearest candidate for intervention and improvement is Kenning Hall open space in 
Haringey, which is the poorest quality of all the open spaces.  It is particularly isolated, 
inhospitable and inaccessible, which means that it is underused and poorly maintained.  
 
We believe there are two options for Kenning Hall open space.  Please tell us which you 
support or if you think there are any other alternatives. 
 

Ø Option 1: Turn Kenning Hall open space into allotments. 
 

Ø Implications: This would provide allotment space in the Enfield part of the study area 
and potentially put this rather leftover space into better use.  However, it would 
remove a public open space in an area that is already deficient and issues of poor 
access and an inhospitable environment would still be an issue.   

 
Ø Option 2: Relocate the existing Council Depot to the Kenning Hall site and reprovide 

the open space on Rays Lane. 
 

Ø Implications: Rays Lane would be a better and more accessible location for a public 
open space, and the land at Kenning Hall could be put to good use.  Both sites are 
owned by the Council and therefore a land swap is possible. 

 
Ø Question: Do you agree with the recommendations of the Open Space Assessments 

for the other open spaces in the Central Leeside area? Are there any other 
improvements that you can suggest?  Which other spaces should be a priority for 
improvement? 

 

Page 251



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 28

Improving the image of Central Leeside 
 
The potential interventions considered so far would help to enhance the image of Central 
Leeside as a place to live and work.  However,  in addition there is a general need to ensure 
that the public realm within the study area is of a high quality. The public realm is defined as 
the space between buildings, including streets and squares and it has a major impact on how 
attractive, safe and welcoming a place feels. 
 
At the moment, the public realm in Central Leeside is dominated by traffic, with poor quality 
and poorly defined routes and spaces for pedestrians and cyclists. In Central Leeside the aim 
should be to create a legible network of streets, squares, parks and other spaces that will 
positively transform the image of the area for residents, visitors, workers and investors. 
 
Question: Are there any parts of Central Leeside that should be prioritised in terms of 
improvements to the public realm? Potential interventions include better paving, lighting, 
street furniture and public art. How should the public realm be improved?  
 
ANGEL ROAD AREA  
 
Alternative ways forward for Angel Road 
 
The purpose of this Issues and Options report is to set out options for the broad direction for 
the Angel Road area. This has to be done in order for the final AAP to be able to formulate 
policies and proposals for the sites and land uses within it. 
 
Options range from managed, incremental small-scale change to major transformation. On 
the one hand, it is possible to see this area as continuing in its existing role: a location for 
large warehouse operations, retail warehouses, smaller industrial and storage uses in existing 
industrial estates. It could also continue to accommodate the kind of uses that need a home 
in and around urban areas but are difficult to place, such as waste transfer facilities. In these 
circumstances, managed change, small-scale redevelopment and environmental 
improvements would take place but the essential characteristics of the area would remain.  
 
At the other end of the spectrum, major changes can be envisaged: redeveloping outworn 
industrial areas and replacing shed-based B2 to B8 industrial floor space and retail 
warehouses over time with finer-grained mixed uses with higher levels of residential 
occupation and employment density. These strategic options for Angel Road are set out 
below. 
 
 
Scenario A: Retain emphasis on the existing range and type of employment uses 
 
The objectives of this scenario would be: 
 

Ø To retain, protect and enhance strategic employment land status; 
Ø To facilitate gradual improvements over time to premises, internal access, servicing 

and parking in order to improve the quality of employment land; 
Ø To ensure that land is available for B2 to B8 employment purposes; and 
Ø To focus retail warehouse uses around IKEA and Tesco. 

 
This scenario would ensure that the area remains as a base for traditional employment land 
and retail warehousing, taking advantage of the good connections provided by the North 
Circular Road and the connections northwards to the M25. Industrial and warehousing 

Page 252



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 29

designations would include currently vacant land. This approach would recognise that 
warehouse operations are required within easy reach of London’s residential and employment 
uses. Policies would therefore be geared to retaining and improving employment land and 
consolidating retail warehousing around IKEA and Tesco.  
 
This scenario would seek to strengthen the strategic importance of the employment land, as 
designated in the London Plan, whilst ensuring targeted investment and improvements to its 
quality. In particular, the evidence base has pointed to the need to improve the quality of 
premises, circulation, access and parking arrangements, so that the employment areas are fit 
for modern commercial purposes. Under this scenario Angel Road station would be kept in 
the same place. There is no justification in terms of the level and type of new development to 
consider its relocation. 
This scenario relates to Option 1 in the ‘Working in Central Leeside’ chapter and to Option 1 
in the housing growth section of ‘Living in Central Leeside’  
 
Scenario B: Moderate transformation of selected areas 
 
The objectives of this scenario would be: 
 

Ø To retain and improve strategic employment land that is currently in use; 
Ø To redevelop vacant or underused employment land at Kimberley Road for other 

uses, including residential, linking to nearby existing residential areas; 
Ø To promote new mixed use development around IKEA to create an environment which 

people, particularly pedestrians, enjoy and feel safe using; 
Ø To relocate Angel Road station to a better position to the south, related to 

development opportunities; 
Ø To introduce some B1 floorspace onto employment land that is currently vacant or 

underused; and 
Ø To concentrate change south of the North Circular Road. 

 
In this scenario, strategic employment land that still contains viable uses at Montagu, Eley’s 
and Harbet Road would be retained but options to upgrade employment and develop niche 
sectors (see Option 2, ‘Working in Central Leeside’) could be explored. Vacant and 
underutilised employment land would be redeveloped for other purposes including mixed use 
development. The main focus would be south of theNorth Circular, where mixed use 
development would be permitted on a number of sites to make the area more people friendly 
and to encourage higher employment densities in finer grained mixed use developments. 
Under this scenario, there might be potential to relocate Angel Road station  to the south of 
the North Circular. Here the station would relate better to the new development opportunities 
to the east and west of the railway line. However, an assessment of potential patronage 
generated by new mixed use and residential development would need to be undertaken, to 
see if this would be significant enough to justify relocation of the station. In addition, the 
reduced distance between the relocated Angel Road station and Northumberland Park station 
would have implications for the frequency and quality of services at these stations, which 
would need to be fully investigated. 
 
Scenario C: Major transformation to create a new living and working quarter for north London 
 
The objectives of this scenario would be: 
 

Ø To introduce higher-value uses; 
Ø To establish a major growth area in the Upper Lee Valley; 
Ø To provide aspirational housing exploiting the position of the area near the Lee Valley 

Regional Park; 

Page 253



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 30

Ø To create a mix of employment and other uses; 
Ø To transform the areas north and south of the North Circular Road; 
Ø To relocate Angel Road station to a better position to the south, to improve its 

potential; 
Ø To provide new social and community infrastructure commensurate with the growth in 

population; and 
Ø To encourage major investment in employment opportunities. 

 
This scenario recognises that a more visionary approach is required to take advantage of the 
area’s favourable position in the London-Stansted-Cambridge-Peterborough  growth corridor. 
A new mixed use growth centre could be created. The approach requires a long-term vision 
and a willingness to look critically and creatively at the existing policy framework, recognising 
that economic growth is likely to come from sectors other than traditional warehousing and 
shed-based manufacturing. It proposes substantial redevelopment of existing industrial areas, 
although this might take place as a phased approach, depending on the success of the 
mixed-use development around IKEA. Over time this could facilitate the transformation of the 
unattractive areas of retail sheds into residential and living quarters based on walking and 
public transport rather than dominated by roads and parking.  In this scenario, Eley’s estate 
would be consolidated, wherease Montagu estate and Kimberley Road would be redeveloped 
for mixed use, given their proximity to existing residential areas to the west. The approach 
taken at Harbet Road would be to selectively redevelop parts of the estate, using some mixed 
use development as a catalyst for upgrading the employment uses, but retaining a 
predominantly employment character.  In considering the redevelopment of employment land 
in this scenario, full assessments of ground conditions and other potential constraints to 
redevelopment would need to be undertaken and arrangements would need to be put in place 
to re-locate any businesses displaced as a direct result of the redevelopment scheme to 
suitable premises elsewhere.  . Under this scenario Angel Road station could be moved to the 
south, although this would need to be considered in the context of potential further residential 
development at Montagu Road. Again, the distance between the relocated Angel Road 
station and neighbouring stations, particularly Northumberland Park, would need to be 
considered, as well as any potential impacts upon the frequency and quality of services to 
neighbouring stations. 
 
 

Question 
 

Ø Which scenario do you prefer? Can you give us your reasons? Are there any other 
scenarios that you think we should consider?  

 
 
NORTHUMBERLAND PARK / NORTHEAST TOTTENHAM  
 
 
Alternative ways forward for Northumberland Park 
 

There are two scenarios for Northumberland Park.  On one level, the area could continue in 
its existing role as a preferred  location for employment uses, although improvement in the 

quality of the employment uses would be needed. This could include managed change, small-
scale redevelopment and environmental improvements. There could be a role for this area to 
promote seed bed and start-up businesses or  absorb displaced employment from elsewhere 

in Haringey and Enfield.  
 
Alternatively, greater levels of change could be promoted in the area. In addition to 
improvements to the quality of employment areas, this alternative approach would also see 

Page 254



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 31

redevelopment and improvement to much of the North East Tottenham employment area, 
with potentially higher-value employment uses integrated with the potential new living and 
working quarter around Ikea and Tesco.  As part of this approach, it may be possible to 
introduce a mix of other uses and also to explore ways in which access to the Lee Valley Park 
might be enhanced and the relationship between the Park and adjacent development might 
be improved.  
 

Scenario A: Retain emphasis on the existing range and type of employment uses 

The objectives of this scenario would be: 

• To retain, protect and enhance employment land status; 

• To facilitate gradual improvements over time to premises, internal access, public 
realm and servicing and parking in order to improve the quality of employment land; 
and 

• To ensure that land is available for B2 to B8 employment purposes. 

This scenario would ensure that the area remains a location for traditional employment 
uses, reflecting the defined employment area allocations in Haringey’s UDP, building on 
links to the North Circular . It would seek to bring back into use those areas currently 
identified as employment land but which are under-utilised. This scenario would seek to 
strengthen the employment land, ensuring targeted investment and improvements to its 
quality, and potentially inject some new uses such as green industries in synergy with an 
existing core of refuse and recycling activities already in the area, or seed-bed and start-
up businesses (see options 2 and 3 of Working in Central Leeside). In particular, our 
research has pointed to the need to improve the quality of premises, circulation, access 
and parking arrangements, so that the employment areas are fit for modern commercial 
purposes.  Funding for such improvements would need to be identified, in particular the 
potential to secure regional funding would need to be investigated. Another key source of 
funding for improvements to these employment areas could come from potential mixed 
use development in the Angel Road area.  The scale of improvements that could be 
undertaken might therefore depend on the preferred option chosen for the Angel Road 
area and the scale of mixed use development pursued there.  

Scenario B: Transformation of selected areas  

The objectives of this scenario would be: 

o To redevelop selected employment land for higher-value employment uses and 
other mixed-use including housing as appropriate in synergy with the 
achievements of a new living and working quarter in the Angel Road area; 

o To raise the quality of employment land and introduce some B1 floorspace 

o To ensure that land is available for B2 to B8 employment purposes; 

o To facilitate gradual improvements over time to premises, internal access, public 
realm, servicing and parking in order to improve the quality of employment land   

Scenario B provides a significant change in the approach towards employment land over 
some or all of the area. It ensures that change and improvements in the area are well related 
to the potential for major transformation around Ikea and Tesco.   
 
The main differences between this Scenario and Scenario A described above is that selected 
employment areas would be promoted for higher-value and higher density employment uses, 

Page 255



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 32

overlooking and integrated with adjacent development opportunities.  All employment areas, 
Brantwood, Willoughby Lane and North East Tottenham and Marsh Lane contain areas 
where such transformation can take place. Within this it may also be possible to integrate a 
mix of other uses supporting the wider redevelopment, such as housing, and leisure, and 
creating attractive people-friendly development.   Mixed use development in these areas 
would bring investment which could act as a catalyst for further regeneration and investment.  
This could provide a context for investment on the remaining employment areas, through 
development for higher density employment uses, which would not necessarily be viable on 
its own.  In this option, the southern portion of the North East Tottenham employment area 
needs to be considered carefully. Marsh Lane and to the southern end of the North East 
Tottenham employment area have relatively low employment density and inefficient uses of 
the land.  The potential for higher density development in this location is closely linked   to 
improved rail and road access.   

Question 29:  Which scenario do you prefer? Can you give us your reasons? Are 
there any other scenarios that you think we should consider?  

Question 30:  Which locations  should be considered for more intensified employment 
uses and other redevelopment opportunities ?   

PICKETT’S LOCK 
 
Alternative Ways Forward For Pickett’s Lock 
 
Although the Pickett’s Lock complex is disconnected from the main area of potential 
transformation in Central Leeside, i.e. land around Angel Road at the North Circular, 
opportunities for change and improvement here must be set within the wider context of 
change in Central Leeside.  Pickett’s Lock is also in close proximity to the North East Enfield 
AAP area and the potential improvements currently being explored in and around Ponders 
End.   
 
A holistic approach to any future proposals for Pickett’s Lock is required, taking into 
consideration potential wider transformation at Central Leeside and in North East Enfield. For 
example, if existing employment land in Angel Road is developed for housing, employment 
land may need to be retained in Pickett’s Lock.   
 
There are two scenarios for Pickett’s Lock. One is that the area could continue in its existing 
role as a location for leisure activities pepper-potted with employment uses.  This approach 
would require the role of the park to be strengthened, access to the waterfront improved, and 
the quality of the employment uses enhanced, which would include managed change, small 
scale redevelopment and environmental improvements.   
 
The second scenario involves greater levels of change. This scenario would see the area 
playing a stronger leisure and recreational role, supported by residential development on 
under-used employment land.  Within this approach, opportunities could exist to improve 
public transport connections to the area through a new railway station located on land close 
to the former Coca-Cola premises.  However, a new station would only be an option if a new 
sports or leisure facility attracted significant numbers of visitors for large-scale events in order 
to justify a new station and if improvements to the rail infrastructure were provided as part of 
the four-tracking scheme. A new station could also provide improved facilities for existing 
residents and businesses in the area.   
 
More detail on the Scenarios for Pickett’s Lock is set out below. 
 

Scenario A: Retain an emphasis on the existing range and type of uses 

Page 256



Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 33

The objectives of this scenario would be: 

• To retain, protect and enhance employment land status; 

• To facilitate gradual improvements over time to employment premises, internal 
access, servicing and parking in order to improve the quality of employment land; 

• To reinforce existing residential development along Pickett’s Lock Lane; and 

• To strengthen the area as a location for sports, leisure and recreational activities. 

This scenario ensures that the area retains its current mix of uses and activities, while 
seeking improvements to the quality of these.  It also seeks to enhance the relationship of the 
area with the waterfront and improve access to this key feature through residential 
development along the length of Pickett’s Lane.  This is important, given that it is one of the 
few locations within the Central Leeside area where it is possible to access the waterfront.  In 
this scenario, opportunities are envisaged for the transportation of goods and materials to and 
from Pickett’s Lock. 

Scenario B: Transformation of selected areas 

The objectives of this scenario would be: 

• To significantly strengthen the sports, leisure and recreational role of the area, through 
a major new sports or leisure attraction on the Pickett’s Lock site, with additional 
facilities on the waterfront; 

• To develop some existing employment land for residential development; 

• To reinforce existing residential development along Pickett’s Lock Lane; and 

• To improve accessibility through the provision of a new railway station. 

This Scenario seeks to strengthen the role of Pickett’s Lock as a sports and leisure complex 
in line with the vision for the Upper Lee Valley.  The scenario reinforces existing residential 
uses along Pickett’s Lock Lane.  It also seeks to partially redevelop the Claverings Industrial 
Estate for residential use in line with recommendations within the Enfield Employment Land 
Study.  The major difference between Scenarios A and B is that this scenario would envisage 
the new leisure or sports facility to be capable of hosting events attracting significant numbers 
of visitors, which might provide a case for providing a  new railway station in the area, which 
would also serve existing communities, and new development.  The proposal for a new 
station would need to be tested in terms of cost, patronage and the effect on services to other 
stations along the Lee Valley railway line. 

Ø Question 31: Which scenario do you prefer? Can you give us your reasons? Are there 
any other scenarios that you think we should consider?   

 
 
 

 

Page 257



Page 258

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



This document has been produced by Urban Initiatives for Enfield Council.

For further details, please contact:

The Planning Policy Team

Enfield Council

PO Box 53

Civic Centre
Silver Street

Enfield

EN1 3XE

Tel: 020 8379 5181

Tel: 020 8379 3887

Email: ldf@enfield.gov.uk

October 2007

Page 372



 

 
 
Agenda item:  

 

   Cabinet                       On 18 December 2007 

 

Report Title:  Core Strategy – Issues and Options 
 

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): 

Report of:  Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment. 
 

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision 

1. Purpose  
1.1 To approve the Core Strategy Issues and Options report for public consultation in 

accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town 
and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004. The Core 
Strategy will replace the key policies and objectives of the Unitary Development 
Plan. The Issues and Options report represents the first public consultation stage 
and will be followed by a further two public consultation stages and an examination 
in public. The Core Strategy builds on the Sustainable Community Strategy and the 
Council’s key strategies and policies. 

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member 
2.1  This report is brought to this committee for Cabinet Members to approve the core 

strategy issues and options report before public consultation. 
 

3. Recommendations 

3.1 That Members consider and approve the Core Strategy Issues and Options report 
for public consultation. 

 
3.2 That Members agree that the Cabinet Member for Enterprise and Regeneration in 

consultation with the Director of Urban Environment make any necessary minor 
changes to the Issues and Options report prior to public consultation. 

 
Report Authorised by: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment 
 

 
Contact Officer: Malcolm Souch, Planning Policy Team Leader  

[No.] 

Agenda Item 13Page 373



 

 2 

 

4. Director of Finance Comments 

4.1 As part of the budget setting process 2006/07 a two year revenue investment for 
UDP/LDF was agreed in the sum of £75,000 which will be taken back in 2008/09. 

4.2 The service confirms that £20,000 will be spent in 2007/08 on producing the core 
strategy which includes public consultation on issues and options. This will be 
contained within service budget provision for 2007/08. Further costs of £80,000 will 
be incurred in both 2008/09 and 2009/10 to complete the strategy. 

4.3 Costs £80,000 in 2008/09 are for research studies and consultation on preferred 
options. These will need to be contained within service cash limits. The Housing and 
Planning Delivery Grant referred in Para 12.2 can be used to fund these costs and it 
is anticipated that the settlement for 2008/09 will be at the same level as 2007/08.  

4.4 Costs £80,000 in 2009/10 are for submission and examination, service will need to 
make appropriate budget provision in 2009/10 for these costs. 

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 

5.1 The Head of Legal Services comments that the Core Strategy should integrate 
relevant strategies and policies which together aim to achieve a sustainable 
community and have a far broader scope and greater need of social analysis than 
land use planning on its own.  The Government Policy Statement PPS12 (which is to 
be revised and republished before the end of 2007) advises that the core strategy 
should take account of the community strategy, and strategies for education, health,  
social inclusion, waste, biodiversity, recycling and environmental protection, and 
consult closely with the bodies responsible for those strategies to ensure effective 
integration and while addressing short, medium and long term priorities. 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
6.1 The following documents were used in the preparation of this report: 

•  Haringey Core Strategy Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report, Sept 2007  

•  Haringey Sustainable Community Strategy 2007-2016 

•  Planning Policy Statement 12: Local Development Frameworks (ODPM, 
September 2004) 

7.  Strategic Implications 

7.1 The Core Strategy is a strategic document and seeks to coordinate and deliver other 
strategies, plans and programmes, based on the concept of spatial planning. There is 
no single definition of spatial planning, but it can be defined by six principles: 

  

• Should provide a vision of how an area will develop and change 

• A strategy that goes beyond land use planning  

• Strengthens community involvement 

Page 374



 

 3 

• Helps to deliver other strategies and programmes 

• Is flexible and responds to the need for change 

• Is focused on implementation   
 

A clear and distinctive vision for Haringey’s future 
 

7.2 A vision should emphasise local distinctiveness with a focus on delivery. The core 
strategy should identify sufficient land for new development to meet local and 
strategic needs as well as taking account of community and other stakeholder 
aspirations in terms of the location of development. 

 
Integrated with other bodies and strategies 

 
7.3 The core strategy should be informed by an assessment of the land use implications 

of other relevant strategies and programmes including economic development, 
regeneration, transport, education, health, crime prevention, waste, recycling and 
environmental protection. In particular, it should seek to share objectives and 
processes where possible with the Council’s Sustainable Community Strategy and 
adjoining borough and sub-regional plans and strategies.   

 
Widespread ownership and front loading 

 
7.4 Strengthening community and stakeholder involvement in planning is a key principle 

underlying the new planning system. The process is focused on community 
engagement at an early stage when developing issues and options. The principles 
and methods of community engagement are set out in the Council’s Statement of 
Community Engagement. 

 
A chain of conformity 

 
7.5 A core strategy cannot be developed in isolation. It must be consistent with national 

planning policy and in general conformity with the London Plan. In turn, all 
development plan documents and supplementary planning documents should be in 
conformity with the core strategy. 

 
Producing a ‘sound’ core strategy 

 
7.6 A core strategy should be based upon a robust evidence base and an appropriate 

level of community involvement. Sustainability appraisal is integral to document 
preparation. An independent examination will assess the soundness of the document 
and an inspector will apply nine tests. 

 

Page 375



 

 4 

Is focused on implementation 
 
7.7 The Core Strategy, Sustainable Community Strategy and Local Area Agreement 

(LAA) documents  need to be closely aligned to deliver the Council’s strategic 
objectives. A practical guide produced by the DCLG’s “Planning Together: Local 
Strategic Partnerships and Spatial Planning” gives examples of how planning policy 
can achieve LAA outcomes. 

 

Outcomes Planning Contribution 

Health & Wellbeing • parks, recreation and sports provision, transport, walking 
and cycling, air quality, access to goods and services, 
strong economies and access to employment 

Combating Climate 
Change 

 

• transport, walking and cycling, energy supply, recycling, 
housing design and renewal, bio-diversity, access to 
goods and services, minerals and waste, flood risk 

Safer Communities • licensing decisions, design, landscaping, recreational 
and sports provision, transport 

Vibrant and Sustainable 
Neighbourhoods 

 

• housing, strong economies and access to employment, 
social and community infrastructure, transport, walking 
and cycling, service co-location, safe and green 
environments, school provision and design 

Social Inclusion • equal access to goods and services, transport, strong 
economies and access to employment, housing quality 
and housing provision, affordable energy, involving 
communities in plan making 

Economic Development • availability of employment sites and access, transport, 
social and environmental infrastructure, housing – 
location, accessibility, levels and type of tenure, access 
to goods and services, energy provision 

 
7.8 The Core Strategy will contain an infrastructure implementation and investment plan 

which should will refer not only to private sector and Council investment and 
initiatives, but also to planned investment from other service providers. This 
investment plan should link with the implementation of the Community Strategy and 
LAA outcomes. 

 
 
8. Executive Summary 
 
8.1  The Core Strategy is a statutory planning document which will It sets out a vision and 

objectives and policies for the use and development of land in the borough up to 
2020. It takes forward the priorities of Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy 
and other plans and strategies to identify a vision for Haringey as a place to live, work 
and visit and will contain key policies and an implementation framework to deliver the 
vision. The Core Strategy will outline how the Council will deliver local and strategic 
development needs including housing, employment, leisure and retail provision.  

Page 376



 

 5 

 
8.2 The Core Strategy is the main development plan document which will form part of the 

Council’s Local Development Framework (LDF). All other LDF documents must be in 
conformity with it and it will become one the of the Council’s key strategies.  

 
8.3 The Issues and Options report is the first consultation stage and will be followed by 

public consultation on the Council’s ‘preferred options’ before the document is 
submitted to the Government for independent examination. 

 
8.4 A number of supporting documents are being undertaken as part of the process, 

including a sustainability appraisal, a habitats assessment and an equalities impact 
assessment. A copy of the sustainability appraisal scoping report has been placed in 
the Members’ room. 

 
9. Background  

9.1 The Council adopted its Unitary Development Plan in July 2006. The Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace its existing Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP) with a new Local Development Framework (LDF). The 
Council must prepare a Core Strategy to replace the strategic policies and objectives 
of the Unitary Development Plan. 

 
9.2 Under the 2004 Act, the UDP policies are automatically saved for three years from the 

date of adoption (until July 2009). The Council has the option to ask the Government 
Office for London to save all or some of the UDP policies beyond this period. 

 
What is a Core Strategy? 

9.3 The Core Strategy is the main development plan document for Haringey. It will set out 
a spatial (geographic) vision and objectives for the borough up to 2020 and will 
contain key policies and an implementation framework to deliver the vision. It must 
draw on any strategies of the Council and its partner organisations that have 
implications for the development and use of land, such as the Sustainable Community 
Strategy. It should also reflect national planning policy guidance and seek to 
implement the spatial and transport polices of the London Plan, incorporating its 
housing requirement. It should set out the broad locations for delivering housing and 
other strategic development needs such as employment, retail, leisure, community, 
essential public services and transport infrastructure and will set out an 
implementation and investment framework. It will also address the links between 
planning and climate change. 

 
9.4 The Core Strategy is supported by a sustainability appraisal which is a continuous 

process and seeks to ensure that the principles of sustainable development are 
embedded into the strategy. A scoping report will identify sustainability appraisal 
objectives and an appraisal framework which will be used to assess the Core Strategy 
and other local development documents. A strategic flood risk assessment also forms 
part of the evidence base, which is being prepared as part of the North London Waste 
Plan.  

Page 377



 

 6 

 
10. Description  

10.1 The Issues and Options report represents the first stage of the Core Strategy. The 
report has been drawn up within the framework of national guidance in Planning 
Policy Statement 12. 

 
10.2 The key elements of the core strategy are: 

• A description of the essential characteristics of the area 

• The critical issues, problems and challenges facing the area 

• The articulation of the spatial vision for the area 

• The objectives to achieve the spatial vision 

• Core policies to set out the activities and actions to deliver the strategy 

• A implementation and monitoring framework 
 

 
 
10.3 The first stage of the Core Strategy process is to identify issues and options for 

Haringey. However, the Council is not starting from a ‘blank sheet’ - issues and 
priorities will be identified from the following: 

 

• National planning policy and advice 

Sustainability 
Appraisal 

Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 

Core policies for 
issues e.g. 
climate change, 
housing, 
employment 

Core policies for 
places e.g. 
regeneration 
areas, town 
centres 

Characteristics of 
the area 

Issues & challenges 

Spatial vision 

Priorities & 
objectives 

Monitoring and 
Implementation 

Framework 

Borough strategy 

Page 378



 

 7 

• The London Plan and Mayor of London’s strategies 

• Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy  

• The Council’s key plans and strategies, including the Unitary Development Plan 
and emerging strategies such as the draft Regeneration Strategy and Greenest 
Borough Strategy 

• Other external plans and strategies, such as the Primary Care Strategy 

• Sustainability objectives and key issues and opportunities identified in the Core 
Strategy Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report 

• An evidence base of research and studies and the emerging Borough Profile. 
 

10.4 The issues and options report identifies future challenges which are cross-cutting 
themes for the core strategy. The key challenges are: 

• Climate change 

• Demographic change 

• Use of resources 

• Health and well-being 

• High quality design 

• Equality and inclusion 

• Economic change  

• Technological change 

• Transport 

• Crime and safety 

• Sub-regional issues 
 
10.5 It then develops strategic priorities from the Haringey’s Sustainable Community 

Strategy and the Council’s key plans and strategies. The strategic priorities are as 
follows: 

 

An environmentally sustainable future by responding to climate change and managing 
our environmental resources more effectively to make Haringey one of London’s greenest 
boroughs. 
 
Managing development with people at the heart of change by delivering new homes 
and new jobs, with supporting services and transport and utility infrastructure at the right 
place and the right time. 
 
A safer, attractive and valued urban environment by reducing both crime and fear of 
crime through good design and improvements to the public realm and by creating safer, 
cleaner streets. 
 
Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all by meeting business needs and 
providing local employment opportunities, and promoting a vibrant economy and 
independent living. 
 
Improving health and community well-being by providing better housing, meeting 
health and community needs and encouraging lifetime wellbeing at home, work, play and 
learning. 

Page 379



 

 8 

 
Vision and Spatial Objectives 

10.6 The Core Strategy issue and options report proposes a vision and objectives for 
the future development of the borough. It is proposed that the Council use the 
vision from the Sustainable Community Strategy as the overarching vision for the 
Core Strategy, which is to: 

 
“A place for diverse communities that people are proud to belong to”  

 
10.7 The spatial objectives take forward the strategic priorities identified above and set 

out the basis for the Core Strategy and its key policies. These objectives also link 
with the sustainability appraisal objectives. The proposed spatial objectives are as 
follows:  

 
An environmentally sustainable future 

• To limit climate change by reducing CO2 emissions 

• To adapt to climate change by improving the sustainability of buildings against 
flood risk, water stress and overheating. 

• To manage air quality within the borough by travel planning and promotion of 
walking and cycling. 

• To protect and enhance the quality of water features and resources. 

• To reduce and manage flood risk. 

• To increase energy efficiency and increase the use of renewable energy 
sources. 

• To ensure the sustainable use of natural resources – by reducing, reusing and 
recycling waste and supporting the use of sustainable materials and construction 
methods. 

• To manage air and noise pollution and land contamination  

• To promote the use of more sustainable modes of transport. 
 

Managing development and areas of change 

• To manage growth in Haringey so that it meets our needs for homes, jobs and 
services, is supported by necessary infrastructure and maximises the benefits 
for the local area and community and the borough as a whole. 

• To provide homes to meet housing needs, in terms of affordability, quality and 
diversity and to help create mixed communities. 

• To promote the efficient and effective use of land whilst minimising 
environmental impacts. 

• To strengthen the role of town centres as accessible locations for retail, office, 
leisure and community uses and new homes. 

 
A safer, attractive and valued urban environment 

• To promote high quality buildings and public realm to improve townscape 
character  

Page 380



 

 9 

• To promote safe and secure buildings and spaces.  

• To promote a network of quality, accessible open spaces as areas for 
recreation, visual interest and biodiversity. 

• To protect and enhance the Borough’s buildings and areas of architectural and 
historic interest. 

 
Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all 

• To reduce worklessness by increasing skills, raising educational attainment and 
improving childcare and nursery provision. 

• To enhance the environmental quality and attractiveness of the borough’s town 
centres in response to changing economic and retail demands. 

• To link deprived areas with the employment benefits arising from the 
development of major sites and key locations in the borough and to improve 
access to new employment opportunities outside of the borough. 

• To meet the needs of different sectors of the economy, including SMEs and 
those organisations within the voluntary sector through the provision of a range 
of premises of different types, sizes and costs. 

• To support the development of Haringey’s most successful growth sectors. 
 

Improving health and community wellbeing 

• To improve the health and wellbeing of Haringey’s residents by reducing 
inequalities in access to health services and promoting healthy lifestyles. 

• To improve the provision of, and access to, education and training facilities 

• To improve access to local services and facilities for all groups 

• To ensure that community, cultural and leisure facilities are provided to meet 
local needs. 

 
10.8 The report sets out proposed areas for growth which are based on the established 

regeneration areas of Tottenham Hale and Haringey Heartlands and the areas of 
change identified in the Unitary Development Plan (UDP). It takes forward the area 
priorities and objectives identified in the UDP and asks whether they are still valid.   

 
Issues and options 

10.9 The report takes forward the objectives above and develops 20 issues to address 
them. Under each issue, it proposes options. The report seeks comments from the 
public and stakeholders on these options in the form of the following questions: 
The questions are set out in Appendix 2. 

 
Issue 1 - An environmentally sustainable future 

1a Limiting the impact of climate change 
1b Adapting to climate change 
1c Reducing environmental impact 
1d Promoting sustainable travel 

Issue 2 - Managing development and areas of change 

Page 381



 

 10

2a  Managing growth 
2b  Managing the impact of growth 
2c  Providing affordable housing 
2d Providing a range of housing types 

Issue 3 - Creating a safer, attractive and valued urban environment 

3a  Creating high quality buildings and spaces 
3b Protecting and enhancing the borough’s built environment and its local 

distinctiveness 
3c Improving the quality and appearance of Haringey’s public spaces and street 

scene 
3d Protecting, enhancing and improving access to public open spaces and areas 

of nature 

Issue 4 - Creating a vibrant and prosperous economy 

4a Increasing job opportunities for Haringey’s population 
4b Protecting viable employment land and buildings 
4c Strengthening Haringey’s town centres 
4d Helping our local shops 

Issue 5 - Improving health and community wellbeing 

5a Making Haringey a safer place 
5b Improving our health and wellbeing 
5c Promoting equality of opportunity and access 
5d Supporting education and community services and facilities 

 

11. Process and consultation  

11.1 Following approval, the Issues and Options report will be published for public 
consultation in early 2008. Responses to the issues and options will inform the 
preparation of ‘preferred options’ which will be subject to a further period of public 
consultation 

 

Page 382



 

 11

11.2 An outline timetable for the Core Strategy is given below. 
 

Timetable for the preparation of the Core Strategy  

Milestone Date 

Public consultation on Issues and Options February 2008  

Publish and Consult on Preferred Options September 2008 

Submission to the Secretary of State January 2009 

Pre-Examination Meeting May 2009 

Examination July 2009 

Inspectors Report October 2009 

Adoption December 2009 
 

11.3 Appendix 3 sets out the broad methods for community engagement in the Core 
Strategy which have been identified from the Council’s Statement of Community 
Involvement. These methods will be refined by a consultation plan. The plan will 
incorporate elements and lessons learnt from the ‘Have your say’ consultation on the 
Community Strategy. Community engagement on the core strategy issues and 
options will include a summary leaflet and questionnaire, articles in newsletters, an 
exhibition, focus groups and workshops, an updated website and presentations to 
groups and forums. 

12.  Financial Implications  

12.1 The Council’s budget setting process for 2006/07 approved an investment bid of 
£75k for each of 2006/07 and 2007/08 for the preparation and adoption of the 
Unitary Development Plan and the Local Development Framework. 

 
12.2 In 2008/09, Planning Delivery Grant will be replaced by the Housing and Planning 

Delivery Grant (HPDG) which focuses on plan making and housing delivery. The 
plan making element will be £194m over three years and local authorities will be 
rewarded for the delivery of the Local Development Framework (LDF). The Council 
should expect to receive an award of HPDG from 2008/09 if it progresses its LDF 
documents according to the milestones in its Local Development Scheme. 

13.  Legal Implications  

13.1   The Core Strategy is fundamental to the Local Development Framework and must 
meet the tests of soundness when independently examined , and must be kept up to 
date with the evidence base for relevant strategies.  A thorough gross-cutting policy 
analysis must inform the core strategy if the risk of failing at independent 
examination stage is to be minimised. The extent to which the Core Strategy is able 
to set priorities for growth, economic development and health depend in part on the 
Alterations to the London Plan, Government legislation and sub-regional co-
operation with other statutory agencies. 

Page 383



 

 12

14. Equalities Implications  

14.1 An initial Equalities Impact Assessment Scoping Report has been prepared as part 
of the scoping stage of the sustainability appraisal. The Core Strategy issues and 
options addresses equalities issues. 

15. Conclusion  

15.1 The Core Strategy is the primary document of the Council’s Local Development 
Framework and its production is a statutory requirement. Its aim is to contribute to 
sustainable development and to coordinate the delivery of the spatial priorities of the 
Sustainable Community Strategy and the Council’s plans and strategies. As such, 
the preparation of the Core Strategy is a corporate function. This report seeks 
approval for the Issues and Options report to be published for public consultation. 
Public consultation will begin in early 2008. 

 
16. Use of Appendices 

 
• Appendix 1 – Core Strategy Issues and Options report 

• Appendix 2 – List of Core Strategy issues and questions 

• Appendix 3 - Community involvement in the preparation of the Core Strategy 
 

Page 384



 

 13

Appendix 2 – List of Core Strategy issues and questions 
 
Objectives 

Q1 Do the spatial objectives provide a useful approach to identifying the issues and options 
for Haringey’s future? Are there any other important objectives that should be included? 

Q2 To identify area specific priorities and objectives, the Unitary Development Plan divided 
the borough eastern, central and western areas. Do you agree with this approach? Are 
the objectives for these areas still appropriate? Have we missed any key priorities? 

 
Issue 1. An environmentally sustainable future 

1a Limiting the impact of climate change 

Q3 Do you think that the borough should adopt the London Plan carbon reduction targets or 
seek higher targets? 

Q4 Should we require all new development to provide a proportion of their energy 
requirement from renewable sources? Should we require higher renewable energy 
targets (at least 20%) for major developments on selected sites? 

Q5 Where developments cannot meet on-site renewable energy targets, should we allow 
them to make carbon reduction contributions in another way, for example by making a 
financial contribution to make existing buildings more energy efficient? 

Q6 Should all developments meet high standards of energy efficiency and environmental 
performance, taking into account the specifics of the site, technology and cost? or should 
this only apply to schemes of certain types or certain sizes? 

Q7 Should we require large development schemes to include decentralised energy / district 
heating and cooling systems? 

Q8 Should we build local energy generation and distribution systems? 

Q9 The Council is considering developing at least one zero carbon development in Haringey 
by 2013. Do you agree? 

Q10 How could we encourage households to use less energy? Should we encourage 
measures to improve the energy performance of existing buildings, for example, by 
extending energy efficiency measures to the rest of the house when applications are 
made for extensions? 

Q11 When considering the impact of solar panels, wind turbines and other ‘green’ 
technologies on their surroundings should we treat them in the same way as other 
building works or give environmental factors greater priority than other considerations, 
such as conservation/heritage? 

1b Adapting to climate change 

Q12 Should we require all developments to include sustainable urban drainage systems and 
incorporates facilities to reduce water consumption and re-use grey water.  

Q13 Should we require a proportion of front gardens to be retained with vegetation to reduce 
surface water run-off? 

Q14 Should we require design and landscaping measures to reduce overheating and the ‘heat 
island effect’  

1c Reducing environmental impact 

Q15 Should we expect major developments to provide for the sorting and storage of waste to 
aid waste handling and collection and encourage recycling? 

Page 385



 

 14

Q16 Should we require developments adjacent to or above watercourses to improve the water 
environment and quality? 

Q17 What steps should we take to reduce noise pollution in the borough? 

Q18 Should we require all developments which generate additional travel to introduce 
measures to manage air quality? 

 
1d Promoting sustainable travel 

Q19 Do you support the sustainable transport measures in the Unitary Development Plan and 
Local Implementation Plan? Are there other measures we should be promoting? 

Q20 Where large development schemes are taking place at or near transport interchanges 
should we require schemes to improve, or make a financial contribution towards, the 
capacity and accessible of the interchange? 

Q21 Do you support car free housing, or are there other ways where we can reduce car use? 

Q22 Should we require new and expanding schools to produce and implement a travel plan to 
reduce car use? 

Q23 Do you support the public transport proposals listed in the Unitary Development Plan? 
Are there any other transport schemes for which we should be safeguarding land? 

 
Issue 2. Managing development and areas of change 

2a Managing growth 

Q24 Should we try to concentrate most growth in identified areas of change and on identified 
housing sites or should we try to spread growth more equally across the borough? 

Q25 Should we ensure that all housing development takes place on previously-developed 
‘brownfield’ land? What types of brownfield land should we give priority to? 

Q26 Should we resist higher density housing where it is poorly designed and does not fit in 
with its surroundings, or should we set maximum and minimum levels of density, such as 
the London Plan density standards? 

Q27 Should we identify locations suitable for tall buildings or identify areas where they are not 
suitable? 

Q28 Should we resist the conversion of single dwelling houses into flats or houses in multiple 
occupation in some parts of the borough? What proportion of conversions in a street is 
acceptable? 

Q29 How should we encourage the reuse of empty homes? 

2b Managing the impact of growth 

Q30 Have we identified all the infrastructure implications from future housing growth? Do you 
think we should ‘pool’ developer contributions towards infrastructure requirements in 
certain areas? 

Q31 Should we restrict or limit development in areas which have insufficient services and 
facilities, such as schools, health facilities and utility infrastructure and resources? 

Q32 Should we encourage mixed uses in certain developments and on particular sites in the 
borough? If so, should this be in the most accessible parts of the borough or should this 
also apply to other areas? 

Page 386



 

 15

2c Providing affordable housing 

Q33 Should we consider lowering the threshold (from 10 units) at which housing 
developments are required to contribute to affordable housing?  

Q34 For smaller sites below 10 units, should we require less than 50% affordable housing, or 
allow a financial contribution to be made instead of providing units?  

Q35 Should we require more than 50% affordable housing on very large sites? 

Q36 What factors may affect the financial viability of providing affordable housing on sites? 
Should these be taken into account? 

Q37 What mix of social rented and intermediate housing should we seek? To encourage 
balanced communities, should this mix vary in different parts of the borough according to 
existing concentrations of social housing?   

2d Providing a range of housing types 

Q38 Should we encourage more family housing in developments? 

Q39 Are larger family homes suitable everywhere in the borough and in all developments? If 
not, should we specify areas or certain developments which are suitable for family 
housing? 

Q40 In which locations should we encourage special needs housing? 

Q41 Should we encourage more lifetime homes and require more generous minimum 
floorspace standards for new dwellings and conversions? 

 
Issue 3. Creating a safer, attractive and valued urban environment 

3a Creating high quality buildings and spaces 

Q42 Should we resist design that fails to improve the character and quality of an area or 
should design be considered acceptable provided it does not harm the appearance of an 
area?  

Q43 Should we provide specific design guidance for different areas of the borough or should 
we seek good design everywhere? 

3b Protecting and enhancing the borough’s built environment and its local distinctiveness 

Q44 Should we continue to protect and enhance the borough’s buildings and areas of 
architectural and historic interest? Or should housing requirements mean that we take a 
more flexible to the use and reuse of historic areas or buildings? 

Q45 In addition to the protection given to conservation areas and listed buildings, how should 
we seek to protect the local distinctiveness of certain parts of the borough? 

3c Improving the quality and appearance of Haringey’s public spaces and street scene 

Q46 Should we expect all developments to contribute to physical works to streets and public 
places? 

Q47 What physical works do you consider best improve the visual attractiveness and use of 
public spaces? 

Q48 Are there other approaches to improving streets and public places in Haringey that we 
should consider? 

3d Protecting, enhancing and improving access to public open spaces and areas of nature 

Q49 Should we protect all green open spaces or allow new housing on some sites? 

Page 387



 

 16

Q50 Should we seek to create new parks and open spaces or improve the quality of existing 
spaces and access from residential areas? How can we encourage better use of our 
parks and sports facilities? 

Q51 Should we encourage developments to do more to protect habitats for wildlife in 
Haringey?  What measures should we seek? 

 
Issue 4. Creating a vibrant and prosperous economy 

4a Increasing job opportunities for Haringey’s population 

Q52 Should we encourage developers to recruit local people and use local businesses and 
suppliers during the construction of a scheme and its final use, particularly in or near 
deprived areas? 

Q53 Should we encourage developers of large schemes to produce an employment and 
training plan to encourage job opportunities for local people and reduce barriers to work? 

4b Protecting viable employment land and buildings 

Q54 Should we protect all employment land for business and employment use? 

Q55 Where vacant and surplus to requirements, should we allow employment land to be 
reused for housing or community uses? 

Q56 Where under-utilised, should we encourage mixed use development which increases the 
number and range of jobs on site or provides other regeneration benefits? 

Q57 Are there locations where we could allocate specific uses or ‘clusters’ of uses?  

4c Strengthening Haringey’s town centres 

Q58 Should any of Haringey’s town centres be increased or decreased in size?   

Q59 Should the Core Strategy recognise the wider role of town centres as a focus for 
development? 

Q60 Should we seek to resist new shopping developments that are not compatible with the 
character and function of a centres, for example in terms of shop unit sizes and design 
and protect areas of specialist shopping? 

Q61 Should we apply stricter controls to restaurants, cafes, bars and clubs and manage the 
night time economy? 

4d Helping our local shops 

Q62 What role should our local shopping centres play in future? 

Q63 Should we increase or decrease the number and size of our local shopping centres? 

Q64 Should we seek to protect public houses which serve as a local community resource? 

 
Issue 5. Improving health and community well-being 

5a Making Haringey a safer place 

Q65 Do you agree with the planning measures to discourage crime and promote safer streets 
in the borough set out above?  Are there other measures that we can take? 

Q66 Should we require all developments to demonstrate how they have addressed safer and 
security issues and have ‘designed out’ crime? 

Q67 Do crime “hotspots” need a specific approach in terms of community safety and 
planning?  if so, what measures do you think are needed in these places? 

Page 388



 

 17

5b Improving our health and well-being 

Q68 Have we identified the right measures that planning can take to improve health and well-
being in Haringey? Should we prioritise some of these measure above others?  

Q69 Should we require all developments to assess health impacts? 

Q70 Should we take a different approach to planning for health in certain parts of the borough 
to reflect different health issues and access to facilities? 

5c Promoting equality of opportunity and access 

Q71 Are the measures identified appropriate in promoting equality of opportunity and 
preventing discrimination in Haringey? Are there other measures that we can take?  

Q72 Should we expect developers submitting major schemes to commission independent 
equalities impact assessments? 

Q73 Do you support the measures to promote accessibility of services and facilities in the 
borough? Are there other measures we should consider? 

5d Supporting education and community services and facilities 

Q74 What community facilities are needed in Haringey to deal with a growing population in 
addition to those already identified in current plans and programmes? 

Q75 Are there certain parts of the borough where particular facilities need to be provided? 

Q76 Should we require all developments to make a contribution to education facilities and 
services? 

Page 389



 

 18

Appendix 3 - Community involvement in the preparation of the Core Strategy 

Stage Method of Involvement Timescale 

Regulation 25 

Issues and 
Options 

• Published issues and options report and 
summary report (with translation service 
offered) 

• Direct mailing letters / emails from 
consultation database 

• Updated website and online consultation 

• Leaflet and questionnaire 

• Public notice in local papers / press 
release 

• Articles in Haringey People and Area 
Assembly newsletters  

• Workshops and focus groups with 
targeted groups 

• Exhibitions at a public venue / Area 
Assemblies 

• ‘Planning for Real’ exercises 

• Presentations to participatory / 
community forums 

February – April 
2008  

Regulation 26 

Preferred options 
• Published preferred options report and 

summary report (with translation service 
offered) 

• Direct mailing letters / emails from 
consultation database 

• Updated website and online consultation 

• Structured consultation form 

• Public notice in local papers / press 
release 

• Articles in Haringey People and Area 
Assembly newsletters 

• Targeted discussions on themes, ie 
housing, employment with user panels 
and representative groups 

• Publicity of new studies / research  

• One to one meetings as required 

September – 
November 2008 

 

 

 

 

 

Regulation 28 

Submission of the 
Core Strategy 

• Published preferred options report and 
summary report (with translation service 
offered) 

• Direct mailing letters / emails from 
consultation database 

• Updated website and online consultation 

• Structured consultation form 

• Public notice in local papers / press 
release 

• Articles in Haringey People and Area 
Assembly newsletters 

January – March 
2009 

Page 390



 

 19

Stage Method of Involvement Timescale 

Regulation 34 

Examination / 
Inspectors report 

• Updated website 

• Public notice in local papers / press 
release 

• Direct mailing letters / emails from 
consultation database 

• Articles in Haringey People and Area 
Assembly newsletters 

• Pre-examination public meeting 

• Examination organised by dedicated 
programme officer 

May – October 2009 

Regulation 36 

Adoption of the 
Core Strategy 

• Public notice of adoption. 

• Press release 

• Statement of responses / feedback on 
the process 

December 2009 

 

Page 391



Page 392

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 

Haringey Local Development Framework 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Haringey 2020 
Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 
 
 
 

Have your say – public consultation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Draft Report - December 2007 

Page 393



 

Core Strategy Issues and Options - Draft Report 
 

Contents 
 
Introduction..................................................................................................................................... 1 

What is the Local Development Framework? .............................................................................. 1 
Why produce a new plan?........................................................................................................... 1 
What is a Core Strategy? ............................................................................................................ 2 
Key elements of the Core Strategy.............................................................................................. 3 
Opportunity to comment.............................................................................................................. 5 

Short description of the Borough..................................................................................................... 6 
Identifying Issues and Options ........................................................................................................ 9 

Future challenges facing Haringey ............................................................................................ 13 
Developing a vision and spatial objectives .................................................................................... 18 

Strategic Priorities ................................................................................................................. 18 
Vision and Spatial Objectives ................................................................................................ 18 
Haringey’s Places ................................................................................................................. 20 

Issues and Options ....................................................................................................................... 24 
An environmentally sustainable future....................................................................................... 25 

Issue 1a – Limiting the impact of climate change .................................................................. 25 
Issue 1b – Adapting to climate change.................................................................................. 27 
Issue 1c – Reducing environmental impact ........................................................................... 28 
Issue 1e - Promoting sustainable travel................................................................................. 30 

Managing development and areas of change............................................................................ 32 
Issue 2a – Managing growth ................................................................................................. 32 
Issue 2b – Managing the impact of growth ............................................................................ 34 
Issue 2c – Providing affordable housing................................................................................ 35 
Issue 2d - Providing a range of housing types....................................................................... 36 

Creating a safer, attractive and valued urban environment ....................................................... 39 
Issue 3a - Creating high quality buildings and spaces ........................................................... 39 
Issue 3b - Protecting and enhancing the borough’s built environment and its local 
distinctiveness....................................................................................................................... 40 
Issue 3c - Improving the quality and appearance of Haringey’s public spaces and street scene
.............................................................................................................................................. 41 
Issue 3d - Protecting, enhancing and improving access to public open spaces and areas of 
nature.................................................................................................................................... 42 

Creating a vibrant and prosperous local economy .................................................................... 44 
Issue 4a - Increasing job opportunities for Haringey’s population .......................................... 44 
Issue 4b - Protecting viable employment land and buildings.................................................. 45 
Issue 4c - Strengthening Haringey’s town centres................................................................. 47 
Issue 4d - Helping our local shops......................................................................................... 48 

Improving health and community wellbeing .............................................................................. 49 
Issue 5a - Making Haringey a safer place.............................................................................. 49 
Issue 5b - Improving our health and well-being ..................................................................... 50 
Issue 5c - Promoting equality of opportunity and access ....................................................... 52 
Issue 5d - Supporting education and community services and facilities................................. 53 

Implementation Framework....................................................................................................... 55 
Appendicies 

Plans and Strategies.............................................................................................................. 58 
Sustainability Appraisal.......................................................................................................... 65 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment .......................................................................................... 68 
Habitats Regulations Assessment ......................................................................................... 69 
Equalities Impact Assessment ............................................................................................... 71 

 

Page 394



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 1 

Introduction 
 

What is the Local Development Framework? 
 
The Local Development Framework (LDF) is a folder of planning policy documents, known as 
Local Development Documents. These documents are divided into three types:- Development Plan 
Documents, Supplementary Planning Documents and other documents, such as a Statement of 
Community Involvement and an Annual Monitoring Report. 
 
The Council is also producing other Development Plan Documents – a North London Waste Plan 
and a Central Leeside Area Action Plan. These documents must be conformity with the Core 
Strategy. 
 
The work programme for the LDF is set out in a Local Development Scheme, which includes a 
description and timetable for each document. 
 
The Local Development Framework is illustrated below: 
 

Development Plan Documents
- Core Strategy
- Area Action Plan
- Joint Waste Development Plan Document

Other Documents
- Statement of Community Involvement 
- Annual Monitoring Report
- Local Development Scheme

London Plan (as altered)

Supplementary Planning Documents

L
o

cal D
evelo

pm
en

t D
o

cu
m

en
ts

‘Saved’ policies from the Unitary 
Development Plan
Supplementary Planning Guidance

 
 

Why produce a new plan? 
 
The Council adopted its Unitary Development Plan in July 2006. The Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to replace its existing Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 
with a new Local Development Framework (LDF). The Council must prepare a Core Strategy to 
update the key policies and proposals in the Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Under the 2004 Act, the UDP policies are automatically saved for three years from the date of 
adoption (until July 2009). The Council has the option to ask the Government Office for London to 
save all or some of the UDP policies beyond this period. 
 

Page 395



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 2 

The Council is producing a core strategy to: 
 

• respond to future challenges such as climate change 

• give spatial interpretation to the recently adopted Sustainable Community Strategy and to 
other Council plans and strategies 

• have regard to new and emerging Government policy 

• respond to the alterations to the London Plan 

• respond to give local issues and priorities facing the borough 
 

What is a Core Strategy? 
 
The Core Strategy will become the main planning document for Haringey. It sets out a vision and 
objectives and policies for the use and development of land in the borough up to 2020. It takes 
forward the priorities of Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy and other plans and strategies 
to identify a vision for Haringey as a place to live, work and visit and will contain key policies and 
an implementation framework to deliver the vision. The Core Strategy will outline how the Council 
will deliver local and strategic development needs including housing, employment, leisure and 
retail provision. 
 
The Core Strategy will go beyond traditional land use planning to also consider other plans and 
strategies that influence the use of land and the way that the places around us look and work.  It 
will cover the physical aspects of location and land use but also address other factors that make 
places attractive, sustainable and successful, such as social and economic matters. 
 

Page 396



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 3 

Key elements of the Core Strategy 
Figure 1 illustrates the key elements of the core strategy. The core strategy will set out a vision and 
key policies for the future development of the borough up to 2020. The priorities of Haringey’s 
Sustainable Community Strategy and the sustainability appraisal process feed into the core 
strategy. 
 
Figure 1. Core strategy key elements 
 

Sustainability 
Appraisal 

Sustainable 
Community 

Strategy 

Core policies for 
issues e.g. 
climate change, 
housing, 
employment 

Core policies for 
places e.g. 
regeneration 
areas, town 
centres 

Characteristics of 
the area 

Issues & challenges 

Spatial vision 

Priorities & 
objectives 

Monitoring and 
Implementation 

Framework 

Borough strategy 

Page 397



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 4 

The first stage of the core strategy process is to identify issues and options for Haringey. This 
document begins with a short description of the borough and its characteristics. To identify local 
issues and priorities, the document outlines the policy context and the wider challenges, such as 
climate change affecting Haringey. It explains the relationship between the core strategy and the 
community strategy and other plans and strategies and identifies crosscutting themes.   
 
The report then examines the key issues, challenges and priorities that face Haringey up to 2020 
and explores options for policies for issues, such as housing and for places, such as town centres 
which together will deliver a spatial strategy for Haringey. Finally it summarises an implementation 
framework that will help to deliver the strategy.  
 

Page 398



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 5 

Opportunity to comment 
 
This document is the first stage in the preparation of the Core Strategy. It will be followed by a 
further consultation on the Council’s ‘preferred options’ before the document is submitted to the 
Government for independent examination. 
 
The Council has identified the main planning issues that the Core Strategy will need to cover and is 
developing policy options to address them. It is important that the local community and our 
stakeholders are given the opportunity to participate in the development of these policy issues and 
options at this early stage. 
 
We have developed strategic priorities from Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy and the 
Council’s key plans and strategies. These priorities have been use to develop spatial objectives for 
the borough. In turn, we have identified major issues facing Haringey up to 2020 and we set out 
policy options in the form of questions. Your views are sought on: 

• the Core Strategy objectives; 

• the options to tackle the issues facing the borough; and 

• any objectives, issues and options that we may have missed. 
 
This document is available for public consultation from February to March 2008. We are consulting 
local groups and organisations and key stakeholders on the document. The response to this 
consultation will be used to develop the Council’s ‘preferred options’ for the new strategy, which 
will be subject to a further consultation period. Following this the Council will have the opportunity 
to refine its preferred approach prior to submitting the Core Strategy to the Secretary of State for 
independent examination. 
 
Work on other policy documents for the Local Development Framework (LDF) is also underway. 
Further information on these documents and the Council's programme for preparing the LDF is set 
out in the Local Development Scheme. 
 
For further information, please contact:  
 
Planning Policy Team 
London Borough of Haringey Council 
639 High Road 
Tottenham 
N17 8BD 
  
Tel: 020 8489 5269 
Email: ldf@haringey.gov.uk  

Page 399



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 6 

Short description of the Borough 

 
Haringey is one of London’s 32 boroughs and is located in the centre of north London. It is home to 
225,700 people living in an area of 30 square kilometres. Approximately a quarter (27%) of the 
borough is green spaces and areas of water. Domestic buildings and gardens account for 41% of 
the total land area of the borough and commercial buildings and land, road and rail account for 
about a third (32%) of the land area. 
 
Historically considered an outer London borough, large parts of Haringey have the social and 
economic characteristics of an inner London borough. 30% of Haringey’s population live in central 
and eastern areas in the borough which are amongst the 10% most deprived in England. This has 
been recognised in recent years by the award of neighbourhood renewal funding for deprived parts 
of the borough. Nevertheless, it is recognised that the borough has significant potential to deliver 
major growth and regenerate communities and has received growth area and community 
infrastructure funding from the Government to redevelop major opportunity sites in the borough – 
at Haringey Heartlands and Tottenham Hale. 
 
Haringey boasts national landmarks like Alexandra Palace and is the home of Tottenham Hotspur 
Football Club. Some parts of the borough have good tube and rail links to central London and to 
Heathrow and Stansted Airports. 
 
Haringey’s places 

 
The borough is place of contrasts. Some areas display suburban characteristics with lower density 
housing whilst the majority of the borough is urban with higher density terrace housing and blocks 
of flats.  
 
The Haringey Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy identifies five priority areas of the borough which 
contain the highest levels of deprivation and where regeneration initiatives are targeted. The 
priority areas are:- 

• Wood Green town centre, Noel park estate and parts of Woodside ward 

• Central Tottenham and Seven sisters wards 

• Northumberland Park 

• White Hart Lane ward 

• Bruce Grove / High Cross, including Broadwater Farm Estate 
 
The Mayor’s London Plan designates Tottenham Hale as an Opportunity Area and Haringey 
Heartlands as an Area for Intensification in recognition of their potential to provide significant 
numbers of new homes, new jobs and wider regeneration benefits. 
 
The borough retains concentrations of employment in industry, offices and warehousing. The 
Unitary Development Plan identifies 22 Defined Employment Areas (DEAs) in the borough. 
Collectively the DEAs provide 138 hectares of employment land, over 1,000 buildings, 722 
business establishments and nearly 800,000 sq.m of employment floorspace. The borough also 
contains other smaller employment locations which total a further 17 hectares of employment land. 
 
The borough contains 28 conservation areas and over 350 listed buildings. Haringey’s historic 
buildings and conservation areas are cherished landmarks that relate to the borough’s rich history 
and give it a vital sense of place. 
 
Haringey contains six main town centres. Wood Green is classified as a Metropolitan Centre – one 
of only ten in London. Tottenham High Road, Crouch End, Green Lanes, Muswell Hill and West 

Page 400



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 7 

Green Road are classified as District Centres. In addition, Haringey has 38 Local Shopping 
Centres. 
 
Haringey’s people 
 
Haringey’s population has grown by 8.4% since 1991 and is projected to grow by a further 5.3% to 
237,700 people by 2021. 
 
Nearly half of the population comes from ethnic minority backgrounds. This diversity is reflected in 
the fact that almost half of all pupils in Haringey schools speak English as an additional language. 
Haringey has a relatively transient population. At the time of the 2001 Census, there were 36,000 
migrants in the borough, the 9th highest proportion in London. 
 
In April 2007, 6.8% of Haringey’s economically active residents were unemployed and claiming 
Jobseekers Allowance, which was higher than the London rate (4.6%) and more double the 
national unemployment rate. 
 
Northumberland Park has the highest unemployment rate of all wards in London at 15.8%. In 
contrast, unemployment in Alexandra ward stands at 2.5%. The 2001 Census suggests that long-
term unemployment is a serious issue for Haringey. Over 50% of unemployed Haringey residents 
have not worked for over 2 years or have never worked. 
 
The borough’s age structure is similar to that of London as a whole, although the east of the 
borough tends to have more young people and the west more older people. In January 2006, 
Haringey’s school population was approximately 35,000 children. There are 63 primary schools in 
Haringey and there 11 secondary schools in the borough, 9 of which have sixth form provision. A 
new Sixth Form Centre opened in Tottenham in September 2007. 
 
At June 2006, 35% of Haringey primary school pupils and 37% of secondary pupils were eligible 
for free school meals. In 2005, average gross annual earnings (at £28,763) were lower than the 
London average (at £33,373). 
 
Infant mortality and the proportion of low birth-weight babies are key indicators of health and 
inequality. Infant mortality in Haringey (2002) was 6.9 per 1000 live births compared to 5.7 in 
London. Pregnancy in adolescence increases the risk of poor health and social outcome for both 
mother and baby. In Haringey the rate of teenage conceptions is above the national average and 
has steadily increased during the 1990s. The rate in Haringey has increased, whilst the national 
rate appears to have stabilised. Under-18 conception rate is 68.1 per 1000 (in 2004), with highest 
rates in wards with the highest levels of poverty and deprivation. 
 
Haringey’s economy 
 
The borough has a diverse industrial base, with companies operating in a large number of sectors 
including retail, real estate and manufacturing. There are 8,200 businesses in Haringey employing 
a total of 64,700 people. 
 
Haringey’s economy is dominated by small businesses. There are approximately 8,200 
businesses, in the borough, together employing some 64,700 people. 94% of the businesses 
employ fewer than 24 people. The major sectors of employment in Haringey are retail and 
wholesale distribution (19.9%) and health and social work (19.0%). Manufacturing and construction 
account for 11.8% of all employment. 
 
In 2004, 14.0% of VAT registered businesses in Haringey were newly registered compared with 
12.4% in London. However, Haringey experienced a slightly higher turnover of businesses with a 

Page 401



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 8 

net loss of 0.9% compared to 0.2% in London as a whole. In 2001, 11.1% of the working age 
population in Haringey are self-employed compared with 9.4% in London. 
 
Haringey is strategically located in the London-Stansted-Cambridge-Peterborough growth area. 
With strong links to the City, West End and Stansted Airport the borough is very well placed for 
both business and commuting. By 2016 it is estimated that approximately 350,000 new London 
jobs will have been created within one hours commuting time of Haringey. These include the new 
job opportunities being created at Stratford City and the Olympic 2012 – accessible by rail in 15 
minutes from Tottenham Hale. 

 
Haringey’s housing 
 
According to the 2001 Census there are over 94,600 dwellings in Haringey. Of those 46% are 
owner occupied, 20% are council rented, 10.5% are rented from a registered social landlord and 
20.1% are rented from a private landlord. At March 2006, Haringey had an estimated 2,765 empty 
private sector properties, which was the 13 highest proportion in London. Of this, 1,275 were 
vacant for longer than six months. 
 
Haringey has a smaller proportion of home ownership in comparison to other London boroughs. 
However, since 2001 it is estimated that the proportion of owner occupied households has risen by 
about 4%. 

 
In 2005/06 1,093 households were accepted as homeless by the Council. At 1st April 2006 there 
were 5,997 households in temporary accommodation in Haringey, one of the highest levels in the 
UK. Given the high levels of temporary housing and homelessness there is the need to ensure that 
affordable housing meets those households in priority need. A 2007 Housing Needs Study 
estimates a need for 4,500 affordable housing units per annum for the next five years. There are 
over 20,000 households registered on the Council’s housing register. 
 
Environment 
 
A network of parks, open space, wildlife sites and Green Belt is one of Haringey’s strengths, 
making an important contribution to the quality of life. Despite this, parts of Haringey are deficient 
in different types of open space provision. 
 
The borough has numerous natural and historical assets. It includes part of the Lee Valley 
Regional Park, which is Green Belt, areas of Metropolitan Open Land, including Alexandra Park 
and Ecological Valuable Sites of Metropolitan Importance. 

 

Page 402



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 9 

Identifying Issues and Options 

 
A core strategy cannot be developed in isolation. It will contribute to achieving the vision and 
objectives of Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy and help the Council’s partners and 
other organisations deliver relevant parts of their plans and programmes. It will help shape the kind 
of place Haringey will be in 2020, balancing the needs and aspirations of residents and businesses 
against strategic development needs. It must also be consistent with national planning policy and 
in general conformity with the London Plan. 
 
Therefore, in identifying issues and priorities, the Council is not starting from a ‘blank sheet’ - 
issues and priorities have been identified from the following: 

• National planning policy and advice 

• The London Plan and the Mayor of London’s strategies 

• Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy  

• The Council’s key plans and strategies, including the Unitary Development Plan and 
emerging strategies such as the Regeneration Strategy and the Greenest Borough Strategy  

• Other external plans and strategies identified in Appendix A 

• Sustainability objectives and key issues and opportunities identified in the Core Strategy 
Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report 

• An evidence base of research and studies and the emerging Borough Profile 
 
A full list of plans and strategies and the evidence base is found in Appendix A. 
 
The Core Strategy is supported by a sustainability appraisal which is a continuous process and 
seeks to ensure that the principles of sustainable development are embedded into the strategy. A 
scoping report has identified sustainability appraisal objectives and an appraisal framework which 
will be used to assess the Core Strategy and other local development documents. The 
sustainability objectives are found in Appendix B. 
 
National Guidance 
 
The Government's Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development identifies the 
principles of sustainable development which the Core Strategy must address.  
 
This will include policies that: 

• promote sustainable economic growth; 

• promote urban and rural regeneration; 

• promote communities which are inclusive, healthy, safe and crime free; 

• bring forward sufficient land for housing, industrial development and other uses; 

• seek to locate all facilities in locations that everyone can reach on foot, bicycle or public 
transport, rather than by car; 

• focus development that attracts a large number of people in existing centres; 

• reduce the need to travel and encourage accessible public transport provision; 

• promote the more efficient use of land through higher density, mixed use development and 
bring vacant and under-used land and buildings into productive use; 

• enhance and protect biodiversity, natural habitats, the historic environment and landscape and 
townscape character; and 

• address the causes and impacts of climate change, manage pollution and natural hazards and 

• safeguard natural resources. 
 
Regional Policy 

Page 403



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 10 

 
The London Plan contains six key objectives: 

1. Making the most sustainable and efficient use of space in London; encouraging intensification 
and growth in areas of need and opportunity; 

2. Making London a better city for people to live in; 
3. Making London a more prosperous city with strong and diverse economic growth; 
4. Promoting social inclusion and tacking deprivation and discrimination; 
5. Improving London’s transport; 
6. Making London a more attractive, well-designed and green city 
 
Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy 
 
In July 2007, the Council and its partners produced a Community Strategy for Haringey (2007-
2016), which aims to make the borough a better place by working together to improve local 
services. 
 
It sets out a shared vision to make Haringey: 

“A place for diverse communities that people are proud to belong to” 
 
The Community Strategy identifies six priorities: 
 

• people at the heart of change 

• environmentally sustainable future 

• economic vitality and prosperity shared by all 

• safer for all 

• healthier people with a better quality of life 

• people and customer focused 
 
Local Area Agreement and Theme Boards 
 
The Council and its partners have developed a Local Area Agreement (LAA) which provides a 
substantial part of the delivery mechanism for the Sustainable Community Strategy. The LAA is an 
agreement with Central Government that sets out our priorities for Haringey over the next 3 years. 
The issues covered by the LAA for 2007-2010 are unemployment, poor housing conditions, health 
inequalities and low educational attainment. 
 
The thematic partnership boards are tasked with co-ordinating the delivery of the Haringey 
Strategic Partnership's priorities 
 
The Well-being Partnership Board is primarily responsible for the social aspects of well-being. 
 
Better Places Partnership Board is responsible for better and safer local transport and traffic 
management and sports and leisure opportunities.  
 
Children’s and Young People’s Strategic Partnership Board is responsible for the welfare of 
children and young people and will link with the WBPB around the transition to adulthood for all 
aspects of life through universal and targeted services to achieve key targets such as reducing 
teenage pregnancy. 
 
Enterprise Partnership Board is responsible for achieving economic well-being through the 
strategic planning and provision of training and jobs.  
 

Page 404



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 11 

Safer Communities Partnership Board is responsible for issues surrounding drugs and alcohol 
misuse related crime, as well as having a role in ensuring the protection of vulnerable adults.  
 
Integrated Housing Partnership Board is responsible for meeting current and future housing needs. 
 
 
The Council Plan 
 
The Council Plan 2007/2010 sets out how the Council will further improve its services to meet the 
needs of Haringey’s residents. It outlines how the council will contribute to Haringey’s Sustainable 
Community Strategy. Its priorities are closely aligned with those in the Community Strategy. 
 
Better Haringey 
 
The Better Haringey initiative, launched in September 2003, has been successful in promoting 
improvements to the built and natural environment. The campaign has focused on strengthening 
civic pride, encouraging residents, businesses and visitors to help look after the local environment. 
The first ever Better Haringey Green Fair and Better Haringey Awards, held in June 2007, 
celebrated achievements and marked the starting point for a new focus on environmental 
sustainability. 
 
Greenest Borough Strategy 
 
A Draft Greenest Borough Strategy was approved for consultation in October 2007. It identifies six 
priorities for action over the next ten years: 
 
1. Improving the urban environment 
2. Protecting the natural environment 
3. Managing environmental resources efficiently 
4. Leading by example - managing the Council sustainably 
5. Sustainable design and construction 
6. Promoting sustainable travel 
 
The emerging key actions which influence the core strategy are: 
 

• Agreeing carbon reduction targets for the council and the borough 

• Setting up eco-grants to support projects reducing carbon emissions 

• Installing energy efficient street lighting across the borough 

• Reducing the council's energy use by 10 per cent by 2010 

• Developing at least one zero carbon development in Haringey by 2013 

• Purchasing electric cars for council business 

• Building on Haringey's success in having the joint highest number of Green Flag parks within 
any London borough 

• Ensuring everyone in Haringey receives the same quality recycling services 

• Developing on-street recycling bins for commuters 

 
People, Places & Prosperity: Haringey’s Regeneration Strategy 
 
The Council has drafted a regeneration strategy for the borough based on a vision: 
 
“To create economic vitality and prosperity for all through exploitation of Haringey’s strategic 
location in a global city, major development site opportunities and by developing the Boroughs 21st 
century business economy”. 

Page 405



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 12 

 
The strategy sets out three objectives: 
 

1. People - To increase skills, raise employment and reduce worklessness so that residents 
can contribute to and benefit from being part of one of the most successful cities in the 
world 

2. Places - To make Haringey a place in which more people want to live and invest by using 
the opportunity of major sites and key locations to create positive change 

3. Prosperity - To maintain and develop a 21st century business economy that offers 
opportunities for sustainable employment and enterprise, to help make Haringey a place 
people want to work and visit. 

 

Page 406



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 13 

Future challenges facing Haringey 
 
Sustainable development is the core principle underpinning planning. It involves meeting our 
social, environmental and economic needs in ways that protect the environment and do not harm 
our ability to meet our needs in the future. 

• Environmental – responding to climate change and protection of the environment and 
natural resources 

• Social – social progress which recognises the needs of everyone access and inequalities, 
healthy urban environment 

• Economic – vibrant local economy and maintenance of high and stable levels of economic 
growth and employment 

 
In developing a strategy to guide change and development up to 2020, there are a number 
of environmental, social and economic challenges that we need to respond to. These challenges 
are ‘cross-cutting’ issues which shape the Core Strategy issues and options.  
 
The key challenges are as follows: 

• Climate change 

• Demographic change 

• Use of resources 

• Health and well-being 

• High quality design 

• Equality and inclusion 

• Economic change  

• Technological change 

• Transport 

• Crime and safety 

• Sub-regional issues 
 
Climate change 
 
There is now a wide body of scientific evidence to support the view that climate change is a serious 
and urgent issue. Globally, three of the hottest years ever recorded have been in the last decade 
and the world is warmer now than at any other time over the last 12,000 years. Extreme weather 
events around the world are becoming common. Growing economic wealth has lead to excessive 
generation of waste and an increasing demand on energy. The Stern Review, commissioned by 
the government, gives a stark warning of worldwide economic recession if action is not taken now. 
 
It is widely recognised that climate change will affect all our lives and those of future generations, 
with global changes having local impacts.  We need to respond to this by greatly reducing 
Haringey’s impact on the environment and planning measures to deal with the effects of climate 
change in the borough. Our response to these issues must be sensitive to the high quality 
environment in much of the borough. 
 
There are practical steps we can take in using less energy and increasing the use of energy from 
renewable sources. We will also need to ensure that new buildings are designed to 
take account of climate change. This is easier and cheaper option to ‘retro-fitting’ existing 
buildings. 
 

Page 407



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 14 

Haringey Council signed the Nottingham Declaration in December 2006, committing itself to 
preparing a plan of action to significantly reduce greenhouse gas emissions and to work towards 
the government target of a 60% reduction in carbon dioxide (CO2) levels by 2050 (against a 1990 
baseline). Baseline carbon emission data (in 2003) reveals that CO2 emissions for Haringey 49% 
are from dwellings, 33% from non-domestic buildings and 18% from transport. 
 
Demographic Change 
 
Haringey’s population is expected to grow by about 12,000 people by 2021. The population is also 
changing, for example households are getting smaller and people are living longer. Family 
structures are expected to change with a continued increase in the number of single-person 
households and a fall in average household size. 
 
All London boroughs are experiencing high levels of population turnover. This has implications for 
housing and the need to house people on a temporary basis and on pupil mobility in schools. 
 
Use of natural resources 
 
The need to protect and enhance the environment and the prudent use of natural resources is 
increasingly recognised. Future developments in the Borough will be driven by the need to make 
better use of key resources such as land, buildings and construction materials, water, energy and 
waste, whilst reducing emissions that contribute towards climate change. The landfill of waste is no 
longer an option and we must seek to ensure that waste is reused and recycled locally. 
 
Land is a finite resource and in responding to population and housing growth we must seek to 
reuse brownfield land and promote the more efficient use of land as an alternative to developing on 
green spaces. 
 
Health and well-being 
 
The promotion of health and well-being cuts across many issues. There is an important link 
between how places are planned and the health of the people who live in them. Health should be 
considered as a key issue in the planning of development, where the health impacts of the 
development are assessed and actions taken to create a healthy environment. Mixed and 
sustainable communities should improve access to health facilities as well has encouraging 
healthy lifestyles, for example by providing access to open spaces and recreation facilities, 
reducing noise and air pollution and designing walking routes and cycle lanes.    
 
High quality design 
 
High quality design is a key element in achieving sustainable development. High quality design can 
create safe environments, make best use of a site responding to its setting and context, minimise 
the use of resources through sustainable design and construction and make developments 
accessible to everyone. 
 
Equality and inclusion 
 
In accordance with government legislation and policy, as defined in The Race Relations 
Amendment Act 2000 and The Disability Discrimination Act 1995, Haringey's Local Development 
Framework will incorporate policies that promote fairness, inclusion and respect for people from all 
sections of society, regardless of their age, disability, gender, sexual orientation, race, culture or 
religion. 
 
Everyone should have an equal opportunity to access the services and opportunities available 

Page 408



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 15 

within Haringey. The Core Strategy will, therefore, promote socially inclusive communities through 
new development by: 

• ensuring that the impact of development on the social fabric of communities is considered and 
taken into account; 

• seeking to reduce social inequalities; 

• addressing accessibility (both in terms of location and physical access) for all members of the         
community to jobs, health, housing, education, shops, leisure and community facilities; 

• encouraging a variety of services and facilities and their accessibility e.g. recycling facilities, 

• schools, hospitals and open space, public transport and training facilities, as well as 
employment and residential accommodation opportunities; and 

• taking into account the needs of all the community. 
 
Economic Change  
 
A net growth of 636,000 jobs is forecast for London from 2001 to 2016. The most significant growth 
is expected in the finance and business services sector and people-orientated services. The North 
London Sub-Regional Development Framework suggests a growth in jobs of 26,000 across the 
north London sub-region. 
 
Haringey has a relatively large amount of industrial land. In the past, this land provided many jobs 
in manufacturing. But manufacturing has declined and we need to plan for new jobs to replace 
those being lost and to provide jobs for the increasing population. Travel-to-work patterns have 
become increasing complex. It is accepted that many working residents in Haringey travel to work 
outside of the borough.  
 
Technological Change 
 
The growth of in the internet and electronic communication has changed the way we live, work, 
shop and spend our leisure time. It has changed the way the public sector operates and how 
private companies provide goods and services. Such changes place different demands on land 
and the use of buildings, but also generate new economic activity. In particular, technology will 
provide some environmental solutions to climate change and as a result there will be opportunities 
from an expanding ‘green’ economy. The environmental goods and services industry is becoming 
well-established in the UK and turnover in this market is expected to grow from £25 billion in 2005 
to £34 billion in 2010 and to £46 billion in 2015. 
 
Transport 
 
Levels of car ownership and car use continue to rise. This places increasing pressure on the 
borough’s roads and on parking. Travel patterns are becoming more complex, particularly at peak 
times with commuting and the ‘school run’. The borough is relatively well served by north-south 
routes, but movement east-west, particularly by public transport is often difficult. Increasing car use 
and road congestion can harm local air quality and, in turn, affect the health of residents. The 
Council wants to promote travel in Haringey is that easy, safe, healthy and does not harm our local 
environment or contribute to climate change. In response, a package of measures is required to 
restrict car use, promote sustainable transport options and change travel behaviour.   
 

Page 409



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 16 

Crime and safety 
 
The need to tackle crime, drugs and anti-social behaviour, which harm the quality of life for many in 
the borough is a key priority in Haringey’s Community Strategy. We need to make sure that 
Haringey becomes a safer place while retaining the vibrancy that makes it such an interesting and 
popular place to live and visit. There are solutions to ‘design out crime’ from our buildings and 
places. 
 
Sub Regional Issues 
 
Haringey is part of North London. The Council, along with the boroughs of Barnet, Enfield, 
Haringey and Waltham Forest and public, private and voluntary organisations work together as 
part of the North London Strategic Alliance (NLSA). NLSA seek to raise the profile of North London 
and increase public sector and private sector investment into the sub-region to address the 
following issues: 

• Coordinating housing growth with social and transport infrastructure 

• Supporting the outer London economy, including promoting the role of town centres  

• Increasing access to employment though skills development and training 

• Promoting a vision for the Upper Lee 
 
Haringey along with Barnet, Enfield, Hackney, Redbridge and Waltham Forest form the London 
part of the London-Stansted-Cambridge-Peterborough Growth Area – which is projected to deliver 
nearly 20% of London’s housing growth by 2016. 
 
The Upper Lee Valley has experienced a long period of decline due to structural decline of 
manufacturing in London. Several programmes have attempted to halt, including substantial 
investment from the European Union. In addition, new opportunities such as the 2012 Olympics 
and the pressure for increased housing supply mean a new vision for the area is needed to ensure 
comprehensive redevelopment and regeneration and avoid the area being developed on a 
piecemeal, site by site basis. 
 
Through the North London Strategic Alliance, the boroughs of Haringey, Enfield and Waltham 
Forest together with the London Development Agency and the Greater London Authority have 
worked to develop a new vision that can guide the future of the area over a 20-30 year period. 
 
The vision seeks to: 

• Make better use of and access to the unique assets of the Upper Lee Vallley improving 
biodiversity and promoting it as North London’s Waterside 

• Reverse economic decline and create a strong platform for economic growth using its strategic 
location as part of a world city 

• Improve transport connections to the City, Central London and Stratford and enhance internal 
connectivity 

• Promote social inclusion, environmental and economic sustainability and an improved quality 
for life 

• Make better use of urban land enabling more housing and business. 

• Create an improved and sustainable housing environment and to support community facilities 

• Promote good urban design 

• Promote mixed use approach in the Central Leeside area making it the centre point and focus 
of the wider place. 

 
 

Page 410



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 17 

Other sub regional partnerships have been established to address housing and waste issues. A 
north London grouping of Barnet, Enfield, Haringey, Islington, Camden and Westminster are 
preparing a sub regional housing strategy and the seven boroughs of the North London Waste 
Authority are working to prepare a North London Waste Plan development plan document. 
 

 

Page 411



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 18 

Developing a vision and spatial objectives 
 

Strategic Priorities 
 
The following strategic priorities have been developed from Haringey’s Sustainable Community 
Strategy and the Council’s key plans and strategies. 

 

An environmentally sustainable future by responding to climate change and managing our 
environmental resources more effectively to make Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs. 
 
Managing development with people at the heart of change by delivering new homes and new 
jobs, with supporting services and transport and utility infrastructure at the right place and the right 
time. 
 
A safer, attractive and valued urban environment by reducing both crime and fear of crime 
through good design and improvements to the public realm and by creating safer, cleaner streets. 
 
Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all by meeting business needs and providing local 
employment opportunities, and promoting a vibrant economy and independent living. 
 
Improving health and community well-being by providing better housing, meeting health and 
community needs and encouraging lifetime wellbeing at home, work, play and learning. 

 

Vision and Spatial Objectives 
 
Vision 
 
The Council intends to use the vision from the Sustainable Community Strategy as the overarching 
vision for the Core Strategy, which is to: 
 
“A place for diverse communities that people are proud to belong to” 

 
Spatial Objectives 

 
The spatial objectives below take forward the strategic priorities identified above and set out the 
basis for the Core Strategy and its key policies. These objectives also link with the sustainability 
appraisal objectives in Appendix B. The spatial objectives are as follows: 
 
An environmentally sustainable future 

• To limit climate change by reducing CO2 emissions 

• To adapt to climate change by improving the sustainability of buildings against flood risk, water 
stress and overheating. 

• To manage air quality within the borough by travel planning and promotion of walking and 
cycling. 

• To protect and enhance the quality of water features and resources. 

• To reduce and manage flood risk. 

• To increase energy efficiency and increase the use of renewable energy sources. 

Page 412



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 19 

• To ensure the sustainable use of natural resources – by reducing, reusing and recycling waste 
and supporting the use of sustainable materials and construction methods. 

• To manage air and noise pollution and land contamination  

• To promote the use of more sustainable modes of transport. 
 
Managing development and areas of change 

• To manage growth in Haringey so that it meets our needs for homes, jobs and services, is 
supported by necessary infrastructure and maximises the benefits for the local area and 
community and the borough as a whole. 

• To provide homes to meet housing needs, in terms of affordability, quality and diversity and to 
help create mixed communities. 

• To promote the efficient and effective use of land whilst minimising environmental impacts. 

• To strengthen the role of town centres as accessible locations for retail, office, leisure and 
community uses and new homes. 

 
A safer, attractive and valued urban environment 

• To promote high quality buildings and public realm to improve townscape character  

• To promote safe and secure buildings and spaces.  

• To promote a network of quality, accessible open spaces as areas for recreation, visual interest 
and biodiversity. 

• To protect and enhance the Borough’s buildings and areas of architectural and historic interest. 
 
Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all 

• To reduce worklessness by increasing skills, raising educational attainment and improving 
childcare and nursery provision. 

• To enhance the environmental quality and attractiveness of the borough’s town centres in 
response to changing economic and retail demands. 

• To link deprived areas with the employment benefits arising from the development of major sites 
and key locations in the borough and to improve access to new employment opportunities 
outside of the borough. 

• To meet the needs of different sectors of the economy, including SMEs and those organisations 
within the voluntary sector through the provision of a range of premises of different types, sizes 
and costs. 

• To support the development of Haringey’s most successful growth sectors. 
 
Improving health and community well-being 

• To improve the health and wellbeing of Haringey’s residents by reducing inequalities in access 
to health services and promoting healthy lifestyles. 

• To improve the provision of, and access to, education and training facilities 

• To improve access to local services and facilities for all groups 

• To ensure that community, cultural and leisure facilities are provided to meet local needs. 
 

Question 1 
Do the spatial objectives provide a useful approach to identifying the issues and options for 
Haringey’s future?  

Are there any other important objectives that should be included? 

 
 

Page 413



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 20 

Haringey’s Places 
 
Haringey contains places or areas which make it distinctive. The Core Strategy seeks to develop a 
spatial strategy which addresses the priorities for different areas of the borough. 
 
These areas can be divided into four categories: 

• Areas of change such as regeneration areas and major sites where change is promoted and 
facilitated. In the case of Tottenham Hale and Haringey Heartlands there is the opportunity to 
create new places and communities. 

• Areas where change is managed, focused on the borough’s town centres. 

• Areas of the borough where the emphasis is on preservation and enhancement, including the 
borough’s 28 conservation areas. 

• Areas of neighbourhood renewal, such as Myddleton Road, Archway Road and Tottenham 
Lane. 

 
Areas of change 
 
The following areas of change are identified in the borough and are illustrated on Map 1. 

• Tottenham – delivering the Transforming Tottenham Project through the delivery of the 
masterplan for Tottenham Hale, developing the gateway sites at Seven Sisters and at the 
northern end of the High Road and developing the old Town Hall site including the Bernie 
Grant Centre. 

• Seven Sisters – a New Deal for Communities area where targeted initiatives seeks to promote 
regeneration, tackle poverty and social exclusion in the area 

• Haringey Heartlands – delivering major mixed use developments on the eastern and western 
utilities lands, linked to the regeneration of Wood Green town centre. 

• Working with Enfield to regenerate a strategic employment location at Central Leeside which 
includes parts of Northumberland Park 

• Transforming Alexandra Palace into the leisure and entertainment centre for North London 

• Strengthening the role of town centres – the borough contains six town centres where change 
needs to be managed. 

• Neighbourhood areas where plans have been prepared to assist with the renewal of these 
areas. 

 
Haringey does not sit in isolation. Therefore, when we are developing our strategy for the borough 
it is important for us to take account the borough’s relationship with neighbouring boroughs and 
other parts of London. 
 
There are other areas of the borough which adjoin neighbouring boroughs, which require 
partnership working with neighbouring boroughs: 

• The Upper Lee Valley 

• North Tottenham and Central Leeside 

• South Tottenham and Stamford Hill 

• Bounds Green and the North Circular Road corridor 

• Highgate 

• Finsbury Park and Manor House – with major regeneration projects at Finsbury Park station 
(in Islington) and at Woodberry Down (in Hackney) 

 
There are also major redevelopment proposals in adjoining boroughs which will have a significant 
effect on the borough, for example Cricklewood / Brent Cross area and London 2012 / Stratford 
City. 

Page 414



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 21 

Map 1 - Areas of Change in Haringey 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

1
5



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 22 

The Council’s Haringey's Neighbourhood Management Service works with local people to improve 
their neighbourhoods, focusing on the priority wards as defined in Haringey’s Neighbourhood 
Renewal Strategy. The borough is also divided into seven area assemblies where local residents 
to contribute ideas on how we can improve the area where you live. These are White Hart Lane 
and Northumberland Park, West Green Road and Bruce Grove, Tottenham and Seven Sisters, 
St.Anns and Harringay, Wood Green, Crouch End and Muswell Hill. 
 
The Unitary Development Plan divided the borough into three main areas – east, central and west - 
with different objectives for each to tackle specific problems and opportunities. 
 
Eastern Haringey 
Deprivation is concentrated in the east of the borough and the focus here is regeneration and 
renewal. The main objectives for the Eastern area are: 

• Greater opportunity for large-scale redevelopment to address the area’s deprivation.  

• Environmental management to create a high quality environment with a sense of place. 

• Improved access to jobs and supporting a variety of regeneration initiatives. 

• Greater private investment. 

• Encouraging a greater choice of housing. 

• Tackle problems of a transient population. 

• Encourage more trees and improved public spaces. 

• Improve public transport. 

• Improve quality of life 

• Protect the areas built heritage and green spaces 

• Identify the appropriate scale of development 
 
Central Haringey 
Central Haringey is dominated by Haringey Heartlands and Wood Green Metropolitan Centre. It is 
characterised by pockets of deprivation. The main objectives for the Central area are: 

• Protect and enhance Wood Green as a Metropolitan Town Centre 

• Improve physical, social and economic linkages 

• Promote and enhance major visitor attractions 

• Tackle problems of a transient population and create more balanced communities 

• Manage a night time economy. 

• Pursue environmental management to improve quality of life and its environmental assets 
such as its attractive open spaces. 

• Protect the area’s built heritage and green spaces 

• Identify the appropriate scale of development 
 
Western Haringey 
Western Haringey is a predominantly residential area with the boroughs heaviest concentration of 
conservation areas. The priorities in this area are ones of environmental management, improving 
the quality of life and its environmental assets such as its attractive open spaces. For the western 
area the objectives are: 

• Environmental management to create an attractive sustainable environment. 

• Identify development opportunities. 

• Support the town centres of Muswell Hill and Crouch End  

• Support shopping facilities in Highgate and on Archway Road 

• Protect the areas built heritage  and green spaces 

• Identify the appropriate scale of development  

• Tackle pockets of deprivation 

• Encourage a greater percentage of socially rented affordable homes 

Page 416



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 23 

 

Question 2: 
To identify area specific priorities and objectives, the Unitary Development Plan divided the 
borough eastern, central and western areas. Do you agree with this approach? 
 
Are the objectives for these areas still appropriate? Have we missed any key priorities? 

 
 

Page 417



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 24 

Issues and Options 

 
This section takes forward the issues and challenges identified and develops options to address 
them. At this stage, the options are offered for discussion and comment and the Council has yet to 
decide its preferred way forward. 
 
For each issue we would like to know which of any the options you support. We would also like to 
know whether we have identified the right issues and whether there are other issues or options 
which need to be considered. 

 
The issues are grouped under the following strategic priorities: 
 

1. An environmentally sustainable future 
1a Limiting the impact of climate change 
1b Adapting to climate change 
1c Reducing environmental impact 
1d Promoting sustainable travel 

2. Managing development and areas of change 
2a Managing growth 
2b Managing the impact of growth 
2c Providing affordable housing 
2d Providing a range of housing types 

3. Creating a safer, attractive and valued urban environment 
3a  Creating high quality buildings and spaces 
3b Protecting and enhancing the borough’s built environment and its local distinctiveness 
3c Improving the quality and appearance of Haringey’s public spaces and street scene 
3d Protecting, enhancing and improving access to public open spaces and areas of nature 

4. Creating a vibrant and prosperous economy 
4a Increasing job opportunities for Haringey’s population 
4b Protecting viable employment land and buildings 
4c Strengthening Haringey’s town centres 
4d Helping our local shops 

5. Improving health and community well-being 

5a Making Haringey a safer place 
5b Improving our health and well-being 
5c Promoting equality of opportunity and access 
5d Supporting education and community services and facilities 

 

 

 

Page 418



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 25 

An environmentally sustainable future 

 
A strategic priority facing Haringey is the need to secure an environmentally sustainable future.  A 
key issue for the borough is the need to adapt to and lessen the impact of climate change.  
 
Responding to climate change needs to be address in an integrated way. For example, increased 
energy efficiency and use of renewable energy addresses the aim of a prudent use of natural 
resources. It can also positively address the social issue of fuel poverty and contribute to 
employment growth through the design and manufacture of new forms of renewable energy 
installations. 
 
The Council is already taken steps to respond to climate change. Planning has a key role to play in 
ensuring that development and places have a lower environmental impact to help limit climate 
change and be able to adapt to the effects of climate change in the future. Ways in which planning 
can contribute to reducing the environmental impacts include seeking and securing: 

• design solutions which optimise passive solar energy and energy efficiency 

• measures to reduce heat loss from buildings and spaces and limit the ‘head island’ effect 

• technology for energy efficiency and renewable energy from small scale measures to large 
scale energy infrastructure; 

• the most efficient use of resources and water; 

• measures to mitigate and adapt to flood risk; 

• the re-use and most efficient use of land and buildings (this is addressed in Issue 2a); 

• the location of development and patterns of growth that reduce the need to travel by car and 
car use (this is addressed in Issue 1d). 

 
An integrated approach will be to require developments to contribute to the mitigation of, and 
adaptation to, climate change, in particular by minimising carbon dioxide emissions, adopting 
sustainable design and construction measures and prioritising decentralised energy generation. 
Given the extent of carbon dioxide emissions from existing buildings, it is also necessary to ‘retrofit’ 
measures to reduce their environmental impact. 
 
The following ‘energy hierarchy’ includes initiatives which will limit and adapt to climate change.  

• Using less energy, including sustainable design and construction methods  

• Supplying energy efficiently in particular by prioritising decentralised energy generation (CHP, 
CCHP), 

• Using renewable energy 

• Integration of adaptation measures with mitigation to tackle climate change, such as living roofs 
and walls and water use targets 

 

Issue 1a – Limiting the impact of climate change  
 
Carbon reduction targets 
The further alterations to the London Plan set the following minimum targets for London (against a 
1990 base). 

• 15% by 2010 

• 20% by 2015 

• 25% by 2020 

• 30% by 2025 
 

Page 419



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 26 

Question 3: 
Do you think that the borough should adopt the London Plan carbon reduction targets or seek 
higher targets? 

 
Renewable energy 
A proportion of the energy requirement from new development should be provided from on site 
renewable sources. At present, the UDP requires major developments to provide 10% of the 
projected carbon dioxide emissions from renewable sources. We require an assessment of energy 
demand and carbon dioxide emissions from proposed major developments. 
 
Whilst biomass (biological material derived from living, or recently living organisms) is currently 
being accepted as a renewable energy supply, there are concerns that the availability of the source 
is limited in north London and that the burning of biomass can harm air quality due to the release of 
small particulates. As a result, this may affect the potential to increase the proportion of on-site 
renewable energy. 
 

Question 4: 
Should we require all new development to provide a proportion of their energy requirement from 
renewable sources? Should we require higher renewable energy targets (at least 20%) for major 
developments on selected sites? 

 

Question 5: 
Where developments cannot meet on-site renewable energy targets, should we allow them to 
make carbon reduction contributions in another way, for example by making a financial contribution 
to make existing buildings more energy efficient? 

 
Energy efficiency 
There are several ways in which the energy efficiency of new development can be improved. The 
Government has introduced a Code for Sustainable Homes for assessing the environmental 
performance of new residential buildings. At present the Code is voluntary and does not apply to 
public or commercial buildings. 
 
Combined Heat and Power systems are decentralised energy systems that generate power close 
to the point of use which allows the waste heat produced to be used locally. This avoids the heat 
loss during the production and distribution of power which occurs with the national electricity grid. 
“Trigeneration” systems that provide cooling as well as heat and power can also be used although 
the technology is not as well established as for combined heat and power. Investment in 
community heating, cooling and electricity networks are seen as the most beneficial and cost 
effective long term solution to reduce carbon dioxide emissions. 
 
Local energy generation and distribution systems generate heat and power close to where the 
energy is to be used thus minimising energy losses through distribution. 
 

Question 6: 
Should all developments meet high standards of energy efficiency and environmental performance, 
taking into account the specifics of the site, technology and cost? or should this only apply to 
schemes of certain types or certain sizes? 

 

Question 7: 

Page 420



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 27 

Should we require large development schemes to include decentralised energy / district heating 
and cooling systems?   

 

Question 8: 
Should we build local energy generation and distribution systems? 

 
Zero carbon development 
By maximising energy efficiency of a building, its energy requirements can be minimised to the 
point where all or most of this can be met through renewable energy on-site. In this way, zero or 
dramatically reduced net carbon emission can be achieved. The new Code for Sustainable Homes 
aims to achieve a zero carbon rating for all new homes by 2016. 
 

Question 9: 
The Council is considering developing at least one zero carbon development in Haringey by 2013 
Do you agree? 

 
Existing Homes 
As new homes account for just 1% per year of all housing stock, we should also consider how 
existing homes and buildings could have better energy performance. 
 

Question 10: 
How could we encourage households to use less energy? Should we encourage measures to 
improve the energy performance of existing buildings, for example, by extending energy efficiency 
measures to the rest of the house when applications are made for extensions? 

 
‘Retrofitting’ renewable energy 
The government is considering measures to make it easier for people to install small scale 
equipment to generate energy, such as solar panels and wind turbines.  These have environmental 
benefits but can have a visual impact on their surroundings.  As Haringey has many conservation 
areas and listed buildings we face the challenge of encouraging such measures while protecting 
the quality of the borough’s environment. 
 

Question 11: 
When considering the impact of solar panels, wind turbines and other ‘green’ technologies on their 
surroundings should we treat them in the same way as other building works or give environmental 
factors greater priority than other considerations, such as conservation/heritage? 

 

Issue 1b – Adapting to climate change 
 
Managing flood risk 
The borough contains areas of flood risk in proximity to the River Lee and the Moselle Brook. 
Government guidance requires developers to carry out a flood risk assessment for proposals within 
identified flood zones and expects a sequential approach to be followed to explore other options for 
development in lower risk locations.  
 
The planning system has a major role to play in managing flood risk. It should: 

• manage flood risk to and from new development through location, layout and design, including 
the application of a sustainable approach to drainage; 

Page 421



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 28 

• using opportunities offered by new development to manage flood risk to communities; 

• permitting development in areas of flood risk only when there are no other suitable alternative 
sites in areas of lower flood risk and where flood risk can be managed through design and the 
benefits of the development outweigh the risks from flooding; 

• planning to locate less vulnerable land uses in flood risk areas; and, 

• retaining areas of open space for water storage in the event of flooding. 
 

Question 12: 
Should we require all developments to include sustainable urban drainage systems and 
incorporate facilities to reduce water consumption and re-use grey water? 

 

Question 13: 
Should we require a proportion of front gardens to be retained with vegetation to reduce surface 
water run-off? 

 
Overheating 
There is a phenomenon known as the ‘heat island effect’ where urban areas are significantly 
warmer than the surrounding countryside during hot weather. Buildings and man-made surfaces 
absorb more energy from the sun than green spaces. Human activity is also responsible, for 
example with the use of air conditioning which releases hot air out into the atmosphere. In 
response, buildings can be designed so that they stay naturally cool, use vegetation and 
landscaping to cool and shade buildings and open spaces and use materials on buildings and 
streets that do not absorb heat. 
 

Question 14: 
Should we require design and landscaping measures to reduce overheating and the ‘heat island 
effect’? 

 

Issue 1c – Reducing environmental impact 
 
The implications of our actions on the environment are increasingly clear. Planning has an 
important role in reducing our environmental impact and achieving sustainable development by 
reducing waste and increasing reuse and recycling waste, managing air and noise pollution and 
enhancing and protecting the water environment.  

 
Waste and recycling 
The three ‘Rs’ of recycling Reduce, Re-use and Recycle are all ways of reducing the amount of 
waste to be sent to landfill. They are also known as the waste hierarchy. 
 
The amount of waste we produce is increasing and the traditional ways of dealing with it (landfill 
and incineration) are becoming increasingly unacceptable, financially and environmentally.  
Therefore we need to find better ways of dealing with our waste in the future. This will include 
reducing the amount of waste we produce, increasing re-use and recycling and finding sites for 
new waste facilities. 
 
Over 48,000 households in Haringey receive a full doorstep recycling service and the Council 
intends to offer the service borough-wide by 2008. Recycling rates have increased from 2% in 
2001 to almost 25% at present. The borough contains two reuse and recycling centres, with the 
Hornsey Reuse & Recycling Centre having opened in October 2005 which a maximum capacity of 
12,700 tonnes of waste per year. 

Page 422



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 29 

 
Haringey is a member of the North London Waste Authority, which is responsible for the disposal 
of waste collected in the boroughs of Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey, Hackney, Islington and 
Waltham Forest. The seven boroughs are producing a Joint Waste Plan which will include policies 
and identify locations for waste management facilities to deal with the area’s waste. It is likely that 
a range of facilities of different types and sizes will be needed. Issues relating to this will be 
considered during consultation on issues and options for the North London Waste Plan.   
 
Planning can play its part in helping people to reduce waste and re-use and recycle, for example 
by making it as easy as possible to recycle by making sure waste and recycling facilities are 
included in all new developments. 
 

Question 15: 
Should we expect major developments to provide for the sorting and storage of waste to aid waste 
handling and collection and encourage recycling? 

 
Enhancing and protecting the water environment 
The Council, in consultation with the Environment Agency and where appropriate Thames Water 
Utilities Ltd and Lea Valley Regional Park Authority, seek to restore and enhance the natural 
elements of the river environment, for example by deculverting and/or naturalisation and by 
supporting initiatives which will result in improvements to water quality. Foul and surface water 
misconnections can harm water quality and aquatic wildlife in rivers. 
 

Question 16: 
Should we require developments adjacent to or above watercourses to improve the water 
environment and quality? 

 
Managing air and noise pollution 
Noise pollution has a major effect on amenity and health and therefore the quality of life in general. 
Its effect can be minimised by separating new noise sensitive development from major noise 
sources, by separating new noisy development from existing noise sensitive development and by 
taking measures to reduce any impact, such as through sensitive design and construction, 
controlling hours of use or appropriate technical measures. 
 
Poor air quality can arise from transport, industrial processes and energy consumption. The 
Council monitors air quality in the borough and has declared the whole borough an Air Quality 
Management Area. Of particular concern is the high levels of particulates (PM10s) and nitrogen 
dioxide, caused by high traffic levels. This issue is therefore closely linked to promoting sustainable 
travel. 
 
The Council will control potential air pollution resulting from development in the borough by: 
requiring development to locate close to facilities and public transport; requiring developments to 
include measures to avoid, reduce and only then mitigate the emissions of pollutants; and 
separating potentially polluting activities from sensitive areas or uses. 
 

Question 17: 
What steps should we take to reduce noise pollution in the borough? 

 
 

Question 18: 

Page 423



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 30 

Should we require all developments which generate additional travel to introduce measures to 
manage air quality? 

 

Issue 1e - Promoting sustainable travel 
 
The choices we make about when and how we travel have implications for the environment and 
health and safety as well as for the ease and speed of our journeys. Cycling and walking are 
healthier and less polluting ways to travel than using motor vehicles which produce greenhouse 
gases and harm local air quality. 
 
Haringey is well served by radial north-south public transport services, but has limited orbital east-
west routes and services. These are needed to tackle existing overcrowding and increase 
passenger numbers caused by a growing population. Forecast increases in passenger numbers 
mean that there could be major overcrowding problems on London’s public transport system. The 
Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy includes proposals to upgrade the Piccadilly and Victoria 
lines and the West Anglia rail line. Measures to increase walking and cycling can help to reduce 
pressure on public transport. 
 
The concentration of schools in some parts of Haringey has lead to traffic congestion and parking 
problems related to the “school run”. This has implications for road safety and air pollution and can 
cause disturbance to local residents. The school run is a complex issue with no single solution. 
Measures that can be taken include encouraging walking and cycling and promoting school travel 
plans.  
 
Sustainable transport measures 

In line with national and regional policy, Haringey’s Unitary Development Plan seeks to: 

• reduce the need to travel;  

• manage and reduce the amount of traffic on the borough’s roads;  

• encourage forms of travel that cause the minimum harm to the environment; 

• maximise the accessibility of transport; and  

• guide development which generates a significant demand for travel to locations which are 
accessible by public transport, walking and cycling. 

• Restrict parking at development through maximum standards 

• Promote car free housing 
 
The Council’s Local Implementation Plan seeks to: 

• improving bus service reliability by putting in measures to give buses priority over other traffic 

• supporting sustainable transport through travel awareness projects 

• promotion of cycling through more cycle routes, integrating existing routes. cycle training and 
cycle parking 

• Promotion of walking, including projects to improve accessibility and signage 

• Environmental projects such as the provision of on-street charging points for electric vehicles 
and purchase of electric vehicles 

• Promoting sustainable access to schools through the school travel plan programme and to 
work through workplace travel plans 

• improving access to bus stops, rail and underground stations. 
 
 

Question 19: 

Page 424



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 31 

Do you support the sustainable transport measures in the Unitary Development Plan and Local 
Implementation Plan? Are there other measures we should be promoting? 

 

Question 20: 
Where large development schemes are taking place at or near transport interchanges should we 
require schemes to improve, or make a financial contribution towards, the capacity and accessible 
of the interchange? 

 

Question 21: 
Do you support car free housing, or are there other ways where we can reduce car use? 

 

Question 22: 
Should we require new and expanding schools to produce and implement a travel plan to reduce 
car use? 

 
 
Public transport proposals 
 
The UDP supports the following public transport proposals: 

• East London Line Extension to Finsbury Park 

• Crossrail 

• Thameslink 2000 

• West Anglia Route Development, including additional services and stations between 
Tottenham Hale and Stratford 

• Orbirail including Barking – Gospel Oak line 

• Improvements at Finsbury Park station 

• Improved public transport and highway movement on the North Circular Road 

• Improvements to Tottenham Hale Interchange 

• Extension of the Victoria Line to Northumberland Park 
 

Question 23: 
Do you support the public transport proposals listed in the Unitary Development Plan? Are there 
any other transport schemes for which we should be safeguarding land? 

 
 

Page 425



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 32 

Managing development and areas of change 
 
It is estimated that London’s population will grow by around a million people between 2006 and 
2021, while Haringey’s population will grow by around 12,000 people (about 5.3%) over the same 
period. The population is also changing, for example households are getting smaller and people 
are living longer. Family structures are expected to change with a continued increase in the 
number of single-person households and a fall in average household size. 
 
The core strategy will seek to manage development and areas of change so that sufficient housing 
is provided to meet the projected population and to address existing housing needs. This housing 
growth should be supported by sufficient jobs, services, health, education and community facilities. 

Issue 2a – Managing growth 
 
A London Housing Capacity Study was carried out in 2004 to provide a comprehensive 
assessment of London’s potential housing capacity. The assessment underpins the borough 
housing targets in the altered London Plan. The housing target is based on potential capacity for 
net additional homes provided through: 

• development and redevelopment, conversions from residential and non-residential properties 
(known as conventional supply) 

• long-term vacant properties brought back into use 

• household spaces in new non self-contained accommodation.  
 

Table 1. Housing capacity in Haringey 

  Conventional 
Supply 

Vacant units 
returning to use 

New non-self 
contained 

Total  

Additional homes 
per annum 

595 77 9 680 

  
Conventional supply is made up of large and small sites. The majority of conventional supply (at 
78%) is provided by large sites of over 0.5 hectares.  
 
In accordance with PPS3, the Council has identified a five year supply of deliverable land for 
housing. It relates to the conventional supply component of housing capacity in Table 1 and 
includes identified sites with capacity of 10 units or more. It identifies that the borough has a five 
year supply of 5,188 dwellings up to 2011/12. This list of sites will be regularly updated. At March 
2007, there were 2,699 units in the development pipeline, comprising sites with unimplemented 
planning permissions and sites where development has started but has not completed. 

 
Location of housing 
 
The London Plan also identifies a number of locations suitable for large scale redevelopment or 
significant increases in jobs and homes (called Opportunity Areas and Areas for Intensification).  
The borough contains two of these areas at Tottenham Hale and Haringey Heartlands. Together 
they have the potential to provide a minimum of 6,500 jobs and 4,200 homes. The borough’s town 
centres also have the potential to deliver new homes and jobs. Together these areas are identified 
as areas of change. If we decide not to concentrate growth in these locations, it is likely that other 
parts of the borough will have to take more development and at higher densities. 
 

Question 24: 

Page 426



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 33 

Should we try to concentrate most growth in identified areas of change and on identified housing 
sites or should we try to spread growth more equally across the borough? 

 
Although the Council has identified a five year supply of housing sites, there will be sites that come 
forward for development in addition to those identified. These sites are known as ‘windfall’ sites 
and will contribute to meeting housing requirements in Haringey.  
 
Government guidance strongly encourages the use of previously developed ‘brownfield’ land for 
housing, whereas building on protected areas of green spaces is discouraged. There are a number 
of different types of brownfield land where we could consider new housing:- 

• Town centres and locations with good accessibility to public transport; 

• Re-use of buildings, including empty properties and conversion of vacant commercial buildings 
into residential use 

• Redevelopment of vacant or derelict sites 

• Mixed use redevelopment of under-utilised commercial sites 

• On backland sites or rear gardens. 
 

Question 25: 
Should we ensure that all housing development takes place on previously-developed ‘brownfield’ 
land? What types of brownfield land should we give priority to? 

 
More efficient use of land 
 
Government policy encourages more efficient use of land for new housing. The London Plan 
expects development to achieve the maximum possible intensity of use compatible with the local 
area and includes housing density ranges for different locations. Good design is fundamental to 
using land efficiently and higher density does not necessarily mean tall buildings.  
 
The Unitary Development Plan expects development proposals to achieve the most efficient use of 
land in order to meet local and strategic housing needs and protect open spaces in the borough. 
However, new development should be compatible with the existing pattern of development and 
character of an area and should not harm the amenity of neighbours. It recognises that existing 
densities vary across the borough according to the character of areas.  
 

Question 26: 
Should we resist higher density housing where it is poorly designed and does not fit in with its 
surroundings, or should we set maximum and minimum levels of density, such as the London Plan 
density standards? 

 
Recent guidance encourages local authorities to identify appropriate locations for tall buildings. 
Haringey’s UDP does not identify locations for tall buildings, but requires them to be compatible 
with their surroundings, to be of high design quality and not to cause wind turbulence and 
overshadowing. In addition all development proposals should not harm the strategic views of St 
Paul’s Cathedral and the City from Alexandra Palace. 
 

Question 27: 
Should we identify locations suitable for tall buildings or identify areas where they are not suitable? 

 
Making best use of existing housing 
 

Page 427



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 34 

New units created through conversions and new non self-contained units in Houses in Multiple 
Occupation (HMOs) make a contribution towards new housing and can make more efficient use of 
land. However, they can result in the loss of family housing, create on-street parking problems and 
change the character of areas. There are areas in the borough where over the years many 
properties have been converted from single dwellings into a large number of flats. The UDP resists 
further conversions in these areas. 
 

Question 28: 
Should we resist the conversion of single dwelling houses into flats or houses in multiple 
occupation in some parts of the borough? What proportion of conversions in a street is 
acceptable? 

 
Another way of making better use of the existing housing is to bring empty homes back into use. 
Local authorities are encouraged to develop positive policies to identify and bring into use empty 
housing in line with local housing and empty homes strategies and, where appropriate, acquire 
properties under compulsory purchase procedures. The Council has produced an empty property 
strategy which sets out how it will bring empty properties back into use and it includes targets for 
the number of units to be bought back into use each year. 
 

Question 29: 
How should we encourage the reuse of empty homes? 

 

Issue 2b – Managing the impact of growth 
 
The Council and other organisations have to consider the infrastructure requirements of growth 
and new development, in terms of transport, utilities and social infrastructure, to ensure that this is 
provided to support Haringey’s existing and growing communities. 
 
Infrastructure provision and the use of planning obligations 
 
Good development can bring benefits to the local community, for example, by providing new 
facilities, homes or jobs, or improving the local environment. Planning obligations can be a way of 
making sure that developments deliver such benefits and do not cause harm to the local area. 
They can also address the cumulative impact of development on facilities and services, such as 
health and education. For example, Haringey will experience particularly high growth in school 
numbers up to 2021. 
 
Where additional housing creates a need for supporting facilities and infrastructure, the Council will 
negotiate planning obligations to secure contributions, either in kind or financial. In some cases, 
financial contributions can be ‘pooled’ to address the cumulative impacts of development. As a 
guide, the following contributions are sought: 

• Affordable housing 

• Education facilities 

• Health facilities 

• Open space and recreation facilities 

• Employment and training 

• Improvements to public transport infrastructure and services 
 
In areas which will experience large scale population and housing growth, the Council and its 
partners need to plan for and implement major improvements to infrastructure, such as transport, 

Page 428



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 35 

new schools and energy provision. A significant amount of new housing is to be provided in the two 
main regeneration areas in the borough, at Haringey Heartlands and Tottenham Hale. These areas 
have the potential to deliver additional homes over and above the borough’s housing target. 
However, this uplift in housing delivery is dependent on the provision of supporting infrastructure in 
these areas, such as transport, education and health facilities. The Council has prepared a policy 
framework to guide development in these areas: namely a Tottenham Hale Urban Centre 
Masterplan and a Haringey Heartlands Development Framework. The Council has secured Growth 
Area Funding from the Government to deliver new housing in these areas and provide necessary 
supporting infrastructure. 
 

Question 30: 
Have we identified all the infrastructure implications from future housing growth? Do you think we 
should ‘pool’ developer contributions towards infrastructure requirements in certain areas? 

 

Question 31: 
Should we restrict or limit development in areas which have insufficient services and facilities, such 
as schools, health facilities and utility infrastructure and resources? 

 
Mixed use development 
 
A mix of uses on a site or within a development can contribute to sustainable development by 
making more efficient use of land, reducing the need to travel and creating activity and vitality, 
particularly in town centres. It can also increase the provision of housing in commercial areas. 
There is also scope to include community uses in developments to improve access to services. 
Mixed uses can contribute to the success and diversity of places, ensuring they have a range of 
activities and are used throughout the day, increasing safety and security. However, the uses 
included in development need to be compatible with each other and do not cause nuisance, 
particularly for residential occupiers. 
 

Question 32: 
Should we encourage mixed uses in certain developments and on particular sites in the borough? 
If so, should this continue to be in the most accessible parts of the borough or should this also 
apply to other areas? 

 

Issue 2c – Providing affordable housing 
 
The planning system has an important role to play in providing affordable housing to those people 
who cannot afford to buy or rent housing on the open market. There is a high level of housing need 
from homeless households and households in temporary housing who require permanent social 
housing. House prices in Haringey have increased but incomes have not matched this rate of 
growth. This has led to a wider issue of housing affordability amongst households who are not 
eligible for social housing, but are unable to afford the cost of open market housing in the borough. 
This widening group is known as the intermediate market. Therefore, affordable housing includes 
social housing and intermediate forms of housing, such as shared ownership and key worker 
housing.  
 
A 2007 Housing Needs Assessment for Haringey estimates a requirement for an additional 4,865 
affordable dwellings per annum for the next five years. This figure is over seven times Haringey’s 
annual housing target. It is estimated that 56% of overall need could be met by social housing and 
44% could be met by intermediate housing. The assessment also identifies a high level of 

Page 429



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 36 

overcrowding, particularly in the social rented sector; a shortfall for affordable housing across all 
Haringey wards; an acute requirement for three and four bedroom affordable properties; and that 
only the cheapest intermediate housing is affordable. 
 
At present the Unitary Development Plan requires housing developments capable of providing 10 
or more units to include a proportion of affordable housing to meet an overall borough target of 
50%. The affordable housing provided should include social rented and intermediate affordable 
housing and in most cases the affordable housing should be provided on site as part of the 
development. Nevertheless, there may be exceptional circumstances where affordable housing 
can only be provided off-site or as a last resort by means of a financial contribution. 
 
Areas with high levels of owner-occupation tend to experience far lower levels of benefit 
dependency than those areas that are dominated by rented accommodation, whether social or 
private. Studies have suggested that a significant amount of market housing in London has been 
bought to let, potentially leading to private developments that are dominated by private renting. 
 
Given the overwhelming need for affordable housing in the borough, the Council must focus on 
those in greatest need and reduce the numbers of homeless households and those in temporary 
housing. However, a lack of intermediate affordable homes could force those households on 
middle incomes to live elsewhere, leaving Haringey increasingly polarised between more affluent 
households and those who require social housing. Government and London Plan policy support 
inclusive and balanced communities and the Council must provide a mix of social housing and 
intermediate affordable housing.  
 

Question 33: 
Should we consider lowering the threshold at which housing developments are required to 
contribute to affordable housing?  

 

Question 34: 
For smaller sites below 10 units, should we require less than 50% affordable housing, or allow a 
financial contribution to be made instead of providing units?  

 

Question 35: 
Should we require more than 50% affordable housing on very large sites? 

 

Question 36: 
What factors may affect the financial viability of providing affordable housing on all sites? Should 
these be taken into account?  

 

Question 37:  
What mix of social rented and intermediate housing should we seek? To encourage balanced 
communities, should this mix vary in different parts of the borough according to existing 
concentrations of social housing?   

 
 

Issue 2d - Providing a range of housing types 
 

Page 430



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 37 

Government guidance and the London Plan expect the housing needs of different groups to be 
considered, for example smaller households, larger households with children, those with mobility 
difficulties and those who require an element of care.  
 
New residential developments and conversions should provide a mix of dwelling types and sizes to 
meet local housing requirements. In certain locations, where there is an unsuitable external 
environment for children and no opportunity to provide sufficient amenity space, the provision of 
family housing of 3 or more bedrooms may be inappropriate. Conversely, in other locations family 
housing will be particularly encouraged. 
 
There is evidence that too many smaller units are being built in the borough inhibiting the supply of 
family housing of 3 or more bedrooms. However, there is a potential conflict between the need to 
increase densities to meet the housing target for new homes and the need to provide more family 
homes, as lower densities tend to be more suitable for family housing.   
 
The Council recognises the needs of gypsies and travellers within the borough. The Greater 
London Authority, in conjunction with London Councils and the five London sub-regional housing 
partnerships, have commissioned an assessment of gypsy and traveller accommodation 
requirements. It is proposed that targets for each borough, based on the new research, will be 
introduced through the Mayor’s Housing Strategy, which will be subject to public consultation. It is 
intended that the targets can be introduced into the next alterations to the London Plan. Currently, 
there are two permanent gypsy and traveller sites in Haringey providing 20 pitches. 
 

Question 38: 
Should we encourage more family housing in developments?  

 

Question 39: 
Are larger family homes suitable everywhere in the borough and in all developments? If not, should 
we specify areas or certain developments which are suitable for family housing? 

 
 
Housing for special needs 
 
The Unitary Development Plan defines special needs accommodation as sheltered housing, 
residential care and nursing homes, children’s homes and other supported housing schemes. The 
Council’s Housing Strategy identifies vulnerable groups in acute need for specialist 
accommodation. Supported housing is for older people, or people with disabilities, who live 
independently but have support needs. Haringey Council has over 50 supported housing schemes 
throughout the borough and Haringey’s Supporting People programme aims to prevent 
homelessness, crime and community care breakdown and to promote greater choice, 
independence and social inclusion for vulnerable people. 
 
The UDP aims to locate specialist housing close to public transport, shops and local community / 
support services. However, it is important to ensure that a concentration of such housing in an area 
does not harm the amenity of residential areas or result in an uneven distribution across the 
borough. 
  

Question 40: 
In which locations should we encourage special needs housing? 

 
Lifetime homes and wheelchair accessible housing 
 

Page 431



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 38 

Homes for people with mobility difficulties will generally be adapted or specially designed flats.  
Adapting an existing home can be the best way to meet the needs of someone with mobility 
difficulties, avoiding the need for them to move, taking into account their specific difficulty, and 
taking into account the needs of other people in their household.  New homes designed to lifetime 
homes standards are more readily adaptable for people with mobility difficulties, and are also 
easier to live in or visit for people with young children, elderly people, wheelchair users, and people 
who have temporary difficulties such as broken limbs. 
 
The Unitary Development Plan requires that housing developments take account of the needs of 
people with mobility difficulties. All new housing must be designed to lifetime homes standards, 
and 10% is to be designed to meet, or be easily adapted to meet, wheelchair housing 
requirements. 
 

Question 41: 
Should we encourage more lifetime homes and require more generous minimum floorspace 
standards for new dwellings and conversions? 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 432



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 39 

Creating a safer, attractive and valued urban environment  

 
Haringey benefits from many high quality places, buildings and open spaces. Haringey has 28 
conservation areas, over 350 listed buildings and green spaces varying in size from part of the Lee 
Valley Regional Park, Alexandra Park to small ‘pocket’ parks. Historic buildings are landmarks that 
create a sense of place and stability. Heritage conservation is recognised as a key factor in 
facilitating urban regeneration and promoting civic pride. 
 
How the urban environment looks and functions can have a significant impact on people’s quality 
of life. This will also influence the image of a place, which in turn can affect the economy of an 
area. Urban design is about how places work as well as how they look. 
 

Issue 3a - Creating high quality buildings and spaces 
 
High quality design is a key element in achieving sustainable development. Good design makes 
places that put people first, are attractive, welcoming, feel safe and are easy to use for everyone. 
High quality design also seeks to protect the environment through the prudent use of natural 
resources, sustainable methods of construction and measures to adapt to climate change. The 
construction and use of buildings are a major source of carbon emissions and resource and energy 
use. This is addressed in Issues 1a and 1b. 
 
High quality design will therefore incorporate the following elements: 

• a safe environment, that is free from crime and the fear of crime (see also Issue 5a); 

• an environment that everyone can get to and move around in; 

• minimising the use of natural resources, through the sustainable design and construction of 

• buildings; 

• responding to the local context and creating or reinforcing local distinctiveness; 

• making the best use of the site to accommodate development, including creating and sustaining 
a suitable mix of uses; and 

• creating visually attractive developments through architecture and landscaping. 
 
New development schemes can provide an opportunity to improve the quality of buildings and the 
street environment. Good design can help to bring rundown, neglected places back to life. On the 
other hand, poor design can damage the character of its local area and the quality of life of those 
using and experiencing the building or place. 
 
The Council is working to promote and celebrate excellence in design and improve public buildings 
and the street environment; for example through the Haringey Design Awards. The Unitary 
Development Plan promotes a ‘design-led’ approach to development which seeks to balance the 
need for development and making efficient use of land against the need to respond to the local 
context and pattern of development and to build on local identity. This could include traditional or 
contemporary designs for new buildings. 
 
Providing detail design guidance through design coding is one option open to local authorities to 
achieve consistently better quality development. Design codes are based on a specific design 
vision for a site or an area, usually specified in a planning brief for a site or a masterplan for an 
area. 
 

Question 42: 
Should we resist design that fails to improve the character and quality of an area or should any 
design be considered acceptable provided it does not harm the appearance of an area?  

Page 433



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 40 

 

Question 43: 
Should we provide specific design guidance for different areas of the borough or should we seek 
good design everywhere? 

 

Issue 3b - Protecting and enhancing the borough’s built environment and its 
local distinctiveness 
 
Conservation areas are designated to preserve and enhance their character and appearance. 
Designation does not mean that future development cannot take place but that change must be 
sensitive to the area. Some of the growth predicted for Haringey will take place in conservation 
areas. 
 
The Unitary Development Plan seeks to protect buildings of architectural or historic interest and 
their settings, to preserve or enhance the character and appearance of conservation areas and 
promote the conservation, protection or enhancement of the archaeological heritage of the 
borough, including historic parks and gardens. 
 
In consultation with residents and the appropriate Conservation Area Advisory Committee (CAAC), 
the Council will designate conservation areas that are considered to be of special architectural or 
historic interest and will keep these conservation areas under review. At present, the Council is 
carrying out a programme of character appraisals of its conservation areas. 
 
The Council will protect buildings in Haringey that are statutory listed for their historic or 
architectural interest. The Council needs to balance the need for development with its duty to 
protect historic buildings. With care and thoughtful design, historic buildings can adapt to modern 
ways of life, whilst people can still enjoy them and their original character in appropriate settings. 
Often the best use of a listed building is the use the building was originally designed for. Where a 
change of use is proposed which affects the special character of a listed building, it will need to be 
fully justified. 
 
Buildings of local interest in Haringey often play a crucial role in anchoring local visual and historic 
identity. Locally listed buildings may also act as a significant focus for encouraging urban vitality. 
The Council attaches special importance to their protection. Buildings on the local list are not 
subject to the statutory protection as nationally listed buildings. 
 
The Council will utilise its planning powers to ensure that wherever possible the special character 
of conservation areas and locally listed buildings is preserved. In appropriate cases it will seek 
Article 4 Directions to remove permitted development rights. 
 

Question 44: 
Should we continue to protect and enhance the borough’s buildings and areas of architectural and 
historic interest? Or should housing requirements mean that we take a more flexible to the use and 
reuse of historic areas or buildings? 

 

In addition to conservation areas and listed buildings, the borough contains other important 
historical assets. The Unitary Development Plan (UDP) identifies a number of parks, gardens, 
cemeteries and churchyards of local historic interest. 
 

Page 434



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 41 

The history of the Borough indicates that there is considerable likelihood that archaeological 
remains will be found in certain parts of the borough. There is also evidence of Haringey’s past in 
its industrial heritage. The UDP identifies areas of archaeological importance and sites of industrial 
heritage interest. 
 
The UDP also identifies a Cultural Quarter in Wood Green which has at its heart the Chocolate 
Factory, a former Barratt's sweet factory, now a complex of more than 80 artists' studios and small 
business units. It is important to ensure that development and change respects all aspects of the 
borough’s history, including its cultural heritage. 

 

Question 45: 
In addition to the protection given to conservation areas and listed buildings, how should we seek 
to protect the local distinctiveness of certain parts of the borough? 

 

Issue 3c - Improving the quality and appearance of Haringey’s public spaces 
and street scene 
 
The quality of our streets and public spaces affects our quality of life. Clean, well-maintained and 
attractive streets and public places encourages activity, improves safety and security and 
encourages better health and wellbeing. The Council is committed to improving Haringey’s streets 
and public spaces. Its Better Haringey campaign was launched in September 2003 and has been 
successful in promoting improvements to the built and natural environment. The campaign has 
focused on strengthening civic pride, encouraging residents, businesses and visitors to help look 
after the local environment. The first ever Better Haringey Green Fair and Better Haringey Awards 
was held in June 2007 and celebrated everyone’s achievements and marked the starting point for 
a new focus on environmental sustainability. 
 
Most physical works to streets and public spaces are not covered by the planning system. 
However, where a development does have an impact on surrounding streets and places we can 
ensure that this impact is properly considered and that any necessary works are carried out to an 
appropriate standard.  Planning can also influence the quality of our spaces by: 

• requiring high quality building design and landscaping;  

• promoting buildings and spaces that are accessible to all members of the community; 

• securing new public spaces; 

• encouraging public art; and 

• promoting measures to reduce air and noise pollution. 
 

Question 46: 
Should we expect all developments to contribute to physical works to streets and public places? 

 
The Council has produced a Streetscape Manual to improve the design of streets and its furniture, 
such as litter bins and signs. This includes reducing street clutter, co-ordinating the different 
elements of the streetscape and limiting the range of materials used. The manual also seeks to 
protect and enhance the historic character and identity of Haringey. 
 
Improving streets and public spaces will improve the pedestrian environment and encourage 
walking. In town centres, improvements to the pedestrian environment will encourage vitality and 
viability. The concept of ‘living streets’ aims to improve the pedestrian environment and seeks to 
balance the needs of pedestrians and vehicles.  
 

Page 435



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 42 

Question 47: 
What physical works do you consider best improve the visual attractiveness and use of public 
spaces? 

 

Question 48: 
Are there other approaches to improving streets and public places in Haringey that we should 
consider? 

 

Issue 3d - Protecting, enhancing and improving access to public open spaces 
and areas of nature 
 
Haringey’s parks and green open spaces are valuable assets and are a key part of the borough’s 
character. The borough contains a large number of parks and green spaces of varying sizes and 
roles totalling 383 hectares and containing in excess of 40,000 trees. There are 70 sites with 
ecological value containing a diverse range of wildlife. Parks and green open spaces provide 
places for play and recreation, are a focus for local communities and have environmental and 
visual benefits. They also contribute to health and wellbeing and the quality of life of residents. 
 
Eight of Haringey’s parks have been awarded Green Flag status and the Council has published ten 
Park Management Plans. Significant external funding has been secured for major improvements to 
Markfield Recreation Ground and Finsbury Park. 
 
Population and housing growth will place pressure on Haringey’s existing green spaces. As 
Haringey becomes more compact, it is increasingly important that existing public open space is 
protected from development. Of equal importance is the need to improve the accessibility and 
quality of existing open spaces.  
 
Protecting open space 
 
The Unitary Development Plan (UDP) has designated open areas of the borough which are 
protected from development:- Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Significant Local Open 
Land. The plan also protects other smaller open spaces, playing fields and allotments which satisfy 
a local need.  
 

Question 49: 
Should we protect all green open spaces or allow new housing on some sites? 

 
Improving existing parks and open spaces 
 
The Council has produced a Sport and Physical Activity Strategy which identifies the need to 
improve the number and quality of sports pitches and facilities in the borough. Play spaces and 
open spaces predominantly for the benefit of children are often undervalued and there continues to 
be a shortage of both supervised and unsupervised play spaces throughout the borough. A key 
objective of the Council’s Play Strategy is to increase the amount and range of local play provision 
in the borough and improve and ensure consistency of quality in local play provision. 
 
The UDP identifies areas of the borough which are deficient in public open space. In these areas it 
is important that opportunities are taken to create new open spaces, or extend existing spaces 
wherever possible, or to improve the accessibility or quality of nearby existing open spaces. The 

Page 436



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 43 

need for open space will relate to the character and density of different areas of the borough, as for 
example, areas with a more suburban character tend to have properties with back gardens.   
 
The Council supports the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority’s proposals to increase the range and 
quality of leisure and amenity provision available to Haringey residents. However, a balance needs 
to be struck between protecting the open character and appearance of the regional park and its 
biodiversity and the aim to attract more people to the park through increased recreation and visitor 
attractions and making the park more accessible from residential areas. The waterside character of 
the regional park is a key element of the emerging vision for the Upper Lee Valley. The emerging 
East London Green Grid Framework presents an opportunity to enhance inter-borough green 
corridors. 
 

Question 50: 
Should we seek to create new parks and open spaces or improve the quality of existing spaces 
and access from residential areas? How can we encourage better use of our parks and sports 
facilities?  

 
Protecting biodiversity 
 
The UDP protects sites which have ecological value and requires developments to assess, 
conserve and enhance habitats and species. The Council has published a Biodiversity Action Plan 
which includes specific plans to maintain and wherever possible increase the population of rare or 
locally important species and their habitats. Trees play a major biodiversity role as well as having 
visual and environmental benefits. It is also important to recognise the biodiversity value of 
‘brownfield’ land and derelict sites.  
 
This document has been prepared in conjunction with a screening report on the European Habitats 
Regulations. This report has concluded that the core strategy is unlikely to have any significant 
impact of sites of international importance (a Ramsar site or Natura 2000 site). Please refer to 
Appendix D. 
  

Question 51: 
Should we encourage developments to do more to protect habitats for wildlife in Haringey? What 
measures should we seek? 

 

Page 437



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 44 

Creating a vibrant and prosperous local economy 
 
A key priority of Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy is to ensure economic vitality and 
prosperity shared by all. This will be achieved by promoting a vibrant economy and meeting 
business needs and by increasing skills, raising employment and reducing worklessness so that all 
residents can contribute to and benefit from a prosperous economy. In addition, it is important to 
provide the right conditions for economic growth, by providing affordable business premises, 
creating a pleasant and safe local environment and providing infrastructure, such as transport 
links.   
 
Haringey's economy is characterised by a high proportion of small companies. Over 90% of 
companies employ less than 24 people, which accounts for about 40% of total employment. In 
terms of the number of people employed, the retailing and wholesale distribution sector dominates. 
 
Haringey’s City Growth Strategy is a business led strategy for economic redevelopment and 
regeneration, focussing on the eastern part of Haringey. It contains strategies and actions that aim 
to: 

• Make Haringey a more competitive location for new and existing businesses. 

• Increase income, wealth and job opportunities for Haringey residents. 

• Change perceptions and attitude regarding opportunities in Haringey especially Tottenham. 

• Uncover and unlock economic advantages and opportunities within the deprived inner city 
areas. 

 
The borough’s employment locations are its defined employment areas and its town and local 
shopping centres. The borough’s town centres also play an important role as a focus for shopping, 
leisure and night-time activity and contain civic, cultural and community facilities and services. 
Local shopping centres and individual shops provide local services and day to day retail needs. 
Many local services such as car repair garages are also located in employment areas.  
 

Issue 4a - Increasing job opportunities for Haringey’s population 
 
Employment and worklessness is a key strategic issue for Haringey. Many local people do not 
currently have the skills or qualifications sought by the borough’s employers, particularly in 
“knowledge-based” businesses (for example, IT and creative industries), while traditional industries 
with low-skilled jobs have declined. 
 
There is an imbalance between the acquired skills of the local labour force and the job 
opportunities within the borough. Some of the characteristics of the local labour market include low 
qualifications and skill levels, low levels of numeracy and literacy, and a significant number of 
skilled labour travelling out of the borough for work. 
 
The Employment and Skills Strategy sets out objectives for all partners and providers in Haringey 
to tackle the high rates of economic inactivity. It provides a framework to build strong links with 
employers both locally and across the region. Haringey Guarantee is the Worklessness Statement, 
launched in April 2007 which sets out how partners and providers will tackle the high rates of 
economic inactivity in Haringey. 
 
Measures that can help to increase employment opportunities include: 

• providing a range of suitable premises to suit the needs of different businesses; 

• encouraging new business by securing affordable workspaces for small firms; 

• providing appropriate support for businesses; 

Page 438



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 45 

• making sure that children and young people have access to high quality education;  

• making sure good quality, accessible and affordable childcare is available; and  

• make sure that Haringey residents have opportunities to access further and higher education, 
training and employment 

 
The Council is involved in a range of initiatives that support local recruitment by employers and 
help meet employers’ recruitment, staff training and development needs. The Council has formed a 
partnership with Construction Web to facilitate the construction training and employment 
programme in Haringey. Urban Futures, who are an urban regeneration agency, manage the 
Construction Web initiative 
 
Major employment generating construction projects have the potential to provide the training and 
experience necessary to acquire and improve the local labour skills base, thus allowing them to 
attain greater job security and professional development. Training has a pivotal role in reducing 
unemployment and providing greater flexibility in the local economy. The training of local people 
provides positive feedback into the local economy by allowing businesses to have access to an 
appropriately skilled workforce. 
 
The Council seeks to ensure that local businesses have free and fair opportunity to compete for 
trading opportunities emanating from developments in the borough. This will ensure that 
competitive businesses are allowed to grow and take on new employees, to the benefit of the local 
economy. The procurement and purchasing power of businesses, especially the public sector is 
able to create opportunities for local businesses including social enterprise businesses. 
 

Question 52: 
Should we encourage developers to recruit local people and use local businesses and suppliers 
during the construction of a scheme and its final use, particularly in or near deprived areas? 

 

Question 53: 
Should we encourage developers of large schemes to produce an employment and training plan to 
encourage job opportunities for local people and reduce barriers to work? 

 

Issue 4b - Protecting viable employment land and buildings 
 
The need to provide homes and other facilities for Haringey’s growing population has increased the 
pressure to redevelop employment land. Given this pressure, we have to decide whether to 
continue to strongly protect employment sites in the borough or allow change to other uses or a 
mix of uses. The loss of employment sites would reduce local job opportunities and increase 
commuting to and travel to services outside of the borough. 
 
Government planning policy encourages local authorities to consider where employment sites 
should be redeveloped for housing. The Mayor of London’s draft guidance on industrial capacity 
includes Haringey as one of the boroughs within a “limited transfer of industrial sites” where 
boroughs are encouraged to manage and where possible redefine their industrial land, 
safeguarding the best quality sites and phasing the release of industrial land to reduce vacancy 
rates.  The draft SPG also urges boroughs to make employment land available for transport 
functions, such as rail freight facilities and bus garages and waste management facilities. The 
identification of sites for future waste management facilities will be addressed by an emerging 
North London Waste Plan. The identification of rail freight sites in London is part of ongoing work 
by Transport for London on a Rail Freight Strategy. 

Page 439



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 46 

 
An employment land study undertaken in 2003 led to the identification of Defined Employment 
Areas in Haringey’s UDP. The Council identified a hierarchy of employment areas where certain 
types of employment uses should be concentrated. These employment areas vary in age, quality 
and size of buildings, access and the nature of the businesses within them. Within some 
employment areas mixed use regeneration including housing is encouraged. 
 
The borough contains a wide range of employment sites ranging from Strategic Industrial 
Locations identified in the London Plan to small industrial sites. These vary considerably in terms 
of quality, in terms of age of buildings, quality of the environment and transport links. The demand 
for premises and vacancy rates varies between them. 
 

Question 54: 
Should we protect all employment land for business and employment use? 

 

Question 55: 
Where vacant and surplus to requirements, should we allow employment land to be reused for 
housing or community uses? 

 
The Council manages commercial property in the borough and as part of an Urban Centres for City 
Growth programme, has provided new and upgraded commercial space and improved shop fronts 
in the borough’s town centres. 
 
When considering development proposals for vacant or under-utilised commercial sites, it may be 
appropriate to consider the contribution that such proposals can make towards delivering wider 
regeneration benefits and stimulating investment in an area. This contribution could include: 

• Provision of units for employment use on site as part of a mixed use development, which could 
include affordable, or managed workspace with a level of business support. 

• Replacement of outmoded, unattractive and potentially unviable employment units with modern 
premises and facilities. 

• Contribution towards maintaining a diverse range of job opportunities for local residents. 

• Options to relocate smaller businesses as a result of large, comprehensive redevelopment 
proposals. 

 

Question 56: 
Where under-utilised, should we encourage mixed use development which increases the number 
and range of jobs on site or provides other regeneration benefits? 

 
The Council’s draft Regeneration Strategy supports the development of Haringey’s most 
successful growth sectors based on development of the City Growth model. These are: 

• Cultural & creative industries 
• Food and drink production and distribution 
• Professional services 
• Hospitality, leisure & tourism 
• Retail  
 
The Council could consider directing related or specialist industries who can both compete and 
cooperate with each other towards geographical ‘clusters’. In Haringey, certain industries are 
considered particularly suitable for clustering such as cultural and creative industries, business 
services, food and drink and ICT. 

Page 440



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 47 

 

Question 57: 
Are there locations where we could allocate specific uses or ‘clusters’ of uses?  

 

Issue 4c - Strengthening Haringey’s town centres 
 
Haringey contains six main town centres. Wood Green is classified as a Metropolitan Centre – one 
of only ten in London. Tottenham High Road, Crouch End, Green Lanes, Muswell Hill and West 
Green Road are classified as District Centres. In addition, Haringey has 38 Local Shopping 
Centres. 

 
Haringey’s Unitary Development Plan (UDP) aims to promote our centres as successful places for 
shopping and services with an appropriate level of work and leisure activity, while protecting 
residents from any harmful impacts of entertainment, shopping and service uses.  It aims to make 
use of their generally good public transport accessibility by promoting them as the most suitable 
locations for development that generates significant demand for travel. The UDP also guides 
appropriate development to existing centres in the first instance, before edge-of-centre sites, or, 
sites out of centre are considered. Development should be of appropriate scale and character to 
the centre in which it is located. 

 
The growth in Haringey’s population will increase local spending power. In particular, Wood Green 
needs new investment if it to withstand competition from neighbouring centres. But our other town 
centres are also in need of investment in shops if they are to remain attractive to local people. We 
need to plan for the best place for new shops to go, so as to provide the most benefit for residents. 
 
The preparation of the Core Strategy gives us the opportunity to review our approach towards town 
centres, for example by considering whether we should do more to recognise the different 
characters of our centres and redefine the boundaries of our centres if necessary. 
 

Question 58: 
Should any of Haringey’s town centres be increased or decreased in size?  

 
The draft regeneration strategy aims to deliver high quality town centres to ensure they thrive in a 
changing retail world. In addition, the role of town centres as a focus for office and leisure activity 
and civic, cultural and community facilities and services should be strengthened. There may also 
be opportunities to encourage additional housing in the centres. In terms of the evening economy, 
a balance needs to be struck between the activity and vitality attracted outside of normal working 
hours and the impact this may have noise nuisance, crime and anti-social behaviour. As such, an 
evening economy may need to be managed. 
 

Question 59: 
Should the Core Strategy recognise the wider role of town centres as a focus for development? 

 

Question 60: 
Should we seek to resist new shopping developments that are not compatible with the character 
and function of a centres, for example in terms of shop unit sizes and design and protect areas of 
specialist shopping? 

 

Page 441



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 48 

Question 61: 
Should we apply stricter controls to restaurants, cafes, bars and clubs and manage the night time 
economy? 

 

Issue 4d - Helping our local shops 
 
A recent report into “retail conservation” in inner London found that small specialist shops are 
essential to sustain the diversity, vibrancy and character of shopping areas but that they are 
threatened by the continuing trend towards fewer, larger shops.  It also found that councils’ powers 
to tackle this issue are limited; for example, the biggest threat to the long term viability of small 
specialist retailers is automatic, upward-only rent reviews, which is outside of council control.  
However, the report made a series of recommendations for action by to local authorities, such as 
encouraging and retaining small shopping units and using legal agreements to secure a levy to 
support independent retailers where there are new developments involving major stores. 
 
Haringey’s Unitary Development Plan resists the loss of shop units within centres where this would 
harm the character, function, vitality and viability of the area. It allows the loss of shops outside 
centres where alternative provision is made nearby, taking into account the prospect of achieving 
an alternative occupier for the shop. 
 
The core strategy provides the opportunity to review the role of local shopping centres.  
 

Question 62:  
What role should our local shopping centres play in future? 

 

Question 63: 
Should we increase or decrease the number and size of our local shopping centres? 

 
Public houses can play a valuable community, cultural and tourism role and are often an important 
part of the character and appearance of conservation areas. They are often important and 
distinctive local landmarks of significant architectural quality. They are also an important element of 
the night time economy as many offer meeting and function rooms and live music and other 
entertainment.  
 
However, in recent years, the borough has experienced a loss of public houses, particularly from 
locations outside the town centres. As drinking habits and local populations have changed, some 
have declined and there is pressure from their owners to convert them to residential use.  

 

Question 64: 
Should we seek to protect public houses which serve as a local community resource? 

Page 442



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 49 

Improving health and community wellbeing 

 
This section looks at cross-cutting themes which directly influence quality of life and community 
wellbeing. These include safety, health, equality of opportunity and access to community facilities.  
Population increase and additional housing will place pressure on existing schools, health and 
community facilities. 
 

Issue 5a - Making Haringey a safer place 
 
Safety is a key priority of Haringey’s Sustainable Community Strategy. The Council considers that 
people deserve a safe environment in which they can live and move around without fearing that 
they might be a victim of crime. This is an important component of peoples’ quality of life. Good 
design of buildings and their relationship with their environment affects the perception of an area, 
as well as the opportunity to address crime and anti-social behaviour. This is addressed in Issue 
3a. 
 
The Haringey Safer Communities Strategy sets out a wide range of objectives and initiatives to 
tackle crime and anti-social behaviour.  
 
The planning system also plays an important part in reducing the opportunity for crime and 
disorder and making the borough feel safer; for example by:  

• requiring development schemes to be designed to reduce opportunities for crime and asking 
for crime impact assessments; 

• promoting safer streets and public areas; 

• ensuring businesses and organisations take responsibility for reducing the opportunities for 
crime through effective management and design; 

• using controls on planning permissions to address the impact of certain uses. 
 

Question 65: 
Do you agree with the planning measures to discourage crime and promote safer streets in the 
borough set out above?  Are there other measures that we can take? 

 

Question 66: 
Should we require all developments to demonstrate how they have addressed safer and security 
issues and have ‘designed out’ crime? 

 
The level and type of crime and anti-social behaviour varies across the borough and “hotspots” 
have been identified. There is no single solution to crime and anti-social behaviour and different 
measures may be appropriate in different locations. Crime and anti-social behaviour can also be 
linked to deprivation.  Measures taken to tackle deprivation and encourage regeneration also 
contribute to reducing crime and anti-social behaviour. 
 
There are currently five police stations in Haringey. The Metropolitan Police are seeking to 
modernise their estate and provide for new ways of policing with the introduction of safer 
neighbourhood teams and sub-regional depots and custody suites. This will have land use 
implications in the borough’s employment areas and town centres. 
 
 

Question 67: 

Page 443



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 50 

Do crime “hotspots” need a specific approach in terms of community safety and planning?  if so, 
what measures do you think are needed in these places? 

 

Issue 5b - Improving our health and well-being 
 
Many factors influence our health, including the lifestyles we lead, the environment we live in and 
the opportunities will have to exercise and to access health facilities. A wider sense of well-being is 
influenced by a variety of factors such as opportunities for work and recreation, personal relations, 
feelings of safety and community. General levels of health vary across the borough with the most 
deprived areas tending to experience the poorest health. Worklessness, isolation and low income 
have adverse effects upon resident’s health and wellbeing. 
 
Measures taken through our planning policies include:  

• providing for health facilities where they are needed; 

• protecting and providing parks, play areas and leisure facilities; 

• encouraging walking and cycling; 

• improving housing standards; 

• providing job and education opportunities; 

• improving air quality and reducing pollution;  

• promoting road safety. 
 

Question 68: 
Have we identified the right measures that planning can take to improve health and well-being in 
Haringey? Should we prioritise some of these measures above others?  

 
Developments should consider all aspects of health and physical activity. This can be addressed 
through a health impact assessment. 
 

Question 69: 
Should we require all developments to assess health impacts? 

 
Haringey is bottom fifth of local authority areas nationally for male and female life expectancy, 
heart and circulatory disease mortality and the Index of Multiple Deprivation. The high levels of 
teenage pregnancy have implications for health service provision, housing and educational 
attainment. 
 
The Department of Health’s 2006 White Paper Our Health, Our Care, Our Say shifts from the 
narrow focus of treating illness to promotion of the broader concept of well-being. It requires local 
areas to promote outcomes that address health inequalities, inclusion and well-being across the 
range of public services that affect people’s lives. There will be a new focus on preventative 
healthcare and well-being and the structure of healthcare and provision is changing from hospital-
based to community-based healthcare. In turn hospitals will focus on specialist care and services. 
Integral to this is greater partnership working between local authorities, PCTs and the community 
and voluntary sector. 
 
The health system in London needs to adapt to meet the specific health challenges and needs of 
the diverse, mobile and aging population. The system needs to address some of the issues 
concerning health inequalities and variability in services. There is the need to provide greater 
access to primary care in deprived areas and improve and modernise existing facilities. At present 
modernising healthcare has focused on services, rather than institutions and buildings. 

Page 444



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 51 

 
The Council supports the need for high quality healthcare and more care being provided closer to 
people's homes. However, it is concerned about a proposed reduction in the number of General 
Practices (GPs) in the borough over the next few years. 
 
The proposed changes to the health system are set in the consultation document Barnet, Enfield & 
Haringey Clinical Strategy ‘Your Health, Your Future: Safer, Closer Better’. There is no acute or 
community hospital nor a walk-in-centre with Haringey, although North Middlesex Hospital lies 
immediately to the north of the borough. It is vitally important that accident and emergency 
provision continues and is improved at North Middlesex Hospital. Transport links should be 
improved from Haringey to the North Middlesex and Chase Farm hospitals. 
 
The draft Primary Care Strategy ‘Developing World Class Primary Care in Haringey’ proposes a 
model of super health centres/polyclinics which is related to changes in hospital and community 
health provision. Polyclinics should offer a far greater range of services than GP practices (eg 
extended urgent care, healthy living services, community mental health services and social care) 
whilst being more accessible and less ‘medicalised’ than hospitals. It is also proposed that health 
centres are co-located with other community facilities (community hubs). These proposals raise 
spatial planning implications, in particular issues of accessibility and quality of health provision. The 
Council is keen to ensure a fully joined-up approach is taken to the future of all local healthcare 
facilities, including the future of St Ann’s Hospital which is the responsibility of the Mental Health 
Trust.  
 
Under the Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) programme Barnet, Enfield and Haringey PCTs 
have collectively entered into a 25 year joint venture with a number of public sector and private 
sector partners. Under this arrangement the NHS is committed to deliver a minimum of ten capital 
schemes - new Primary Care Resource Centres or other community health facilities.   
 
At present there are 60 separate GPs in 57 premises, including seven health centres at Crouch 
End, Bounds Green, Stuart Crescent, Lordship Lane, Tynemouth Road, Broadwater Farm and at 
the Laurels Healthy Living Centre. 31 of these premises have been assessed as falling below 
minimum standards – most are owned by GPs themselves. There are also 55 community 
pharmacies in the borough.  
 
The Laurels Healthy Living Centre opened in 2004. The newly built Lordship Lane Health Centre 
offers a wide range of heathcare services including a large GP practice and a Dental practice. 
Facilities are in place to enable people to present for blood tests and many diagnostic tests that will 
reduce the need to visit the local hospital. There is space for local groups to run small exercise 
classes and teaching sessions is also available. 
 
The draft Primary Care Strategy proposes six health centres/polyclinics across the borough. They 
are each intended to serve a population of 50,000 people and are supported by a reduced number 
of other primary care premises. Services are planned around four geographical clusters or GP 
collaboratives. This includes polyclinics planned at Hornsey Central, expansion of the Lordship 
Lane and the combined facilities at Tynemouth Road and at the Laurels and a new polyclinic at 
Wood Green. In the longer term beyond 2017, it is proposed that polyclinics are based on the 
Whittington and North Middlesex Hospital sites and on the St Ann’s Hospital site twinned with the 
existing Laurels centre. 
 

Question 70: 
Should we take a different approach to planning for health in certain parts of the borough to reflect 
different health issues and access to facilities? 

 

Page 445



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 52 

Issue 5c - Promoting equality of opportunity and access 
 
Haringey’s policies need to take into account the needs of the borough’s diverse communities if 
they are to help reduce disadvantage and promote equality of opportunity for all. The Council’s 
services aim to reduce inequalities, secure opportunities for all and create a more inclusive 
borough. This includes work on neighbourhood renewal and social inclusion and strategies for 
older people and children and young persons. 
 
There are many ways that we can encourage opportunity for all and help to meet the needs of 
communities and individuals experiencing disadvantage and social exclusion. These include: 

• promoting buildings, streets and transport systems that are accessible for all; 

• measures to make places safer; 

• securing good quality housing, affordable homes and housing for specialist needs; 

• improving access to employment and training opportunities; 

• ensuring access to community and recreational facilities; 

• measures to protect and improve the quality of life. 
 
The Council also recognises that it is important to ensure equal access to, and opportunity to 
influence, planning policies and decisions. The Council’s Statement of Community Involvement 
sets out how the Council will involve local communities and people in the preparation of planning 
policy documents and in the consideration of planning applications. 
 
We recognise that sometimes general policies can have unintended consequences which may 
cause disadvantage to specific groups and seek to avoid such outcomes. Equality Impact 
Assessments are a way of looking at the implications of plans and policies on diversity and 
equality. An equalities impact assessment will be carried out on the Core Strategy and other 
documents in the Local Development Framework. 
 

Question 71: 
Are the measures identified appropriate in promoting equality of opportunity and preventing 
discrimination in Haringey? Are there other measures that we can take?  

 

Question 72: 
Should we expect developers submitting major schemes to commission independent equalities 
impact assessments? 

 
Part of ensuring equality of opportunity in Haringey is making sure everyone has access to 
important facilities, such as housing, jobs, educational opportunities and community facilities.  
Good access benefits everyone.  However, many people are disadvantaged by poor access to 
facilities and vulnerable and disadvantaged groups, such as the elderly and disabled people, can 
be particularly affected.  Poor access can be caused by difficulties in reaching facilities (for 
example due to their location or inaccessible transport) or by difficulties in using the facilities 
themselves, where poor design prevents some people entering, or moving freely within, a building.   
 
The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 makes it unlawful to discriminate against disabled people in 
employment, access to goods, facilities and services, and buying or renting land or property and 
requires ‘reasonable adjustment’ to the way in which services are provided to make them more 
accessible to disabled people. 
 

Page 446



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 53 

Planning has a role in helping to remove some of the barriers that prevent people from accessing 
facilities and opportunities and in doing so promoting social inclusion and tackling deprivation and 
discrimination.  For example by: 

• influencing the provision and location of facilities;  

• seeking to make sure that all buildings and places to meet the highest standards of access 
and inclusion; 

• requiring buildings and spaces that may be used by the public to be designed for access and 
use by all;  

• helping to make sure people can move through streets and places, easily and safely; 

• encouraging accessible public transport;  

• securing car parking for disabled people; and 

• securing homes that are accessible to all (for example, “lifetime homes”) and encouraging the 
provision of homes suitable for people who use wheelchairs.   

 

Question 73: 
Do you support the measures to promote accessibility of services and facilities in the borough? Are 
there other measures we should consider? 

 

Issue 5d - Supporting education and community services and facilities 
 
Haringey seeks to provide educational opportunities for all and encourage lifelong learning.  
The provision of community services and facilities is vital to support our local neighbourhoods, 
communities and groups. Such facilities include schools, children’s centres and other education, 
health and community services, leisure facilities, libraries, open spaces and transport provision, 
and are provided by the Council and a range of other agencies, including the voluntary and 
community sector, which is a major provider of community services in Haringey. 
 
We need to establish what community facilities are needed in response to our growing population 
and changing population structure and where they should be located. We need to establish how 
we can help our partner organisations and other service providers meet their requirements for 
facilities and deliver their services, in particular for health and education.  It is also important to 
consider the possible impact on local facilities of those moving into new developments.  New 
developments which increase the local population can put pressure on local community facilities, 
particularly if these are already stretched to meet existing demand.   
 
Haringey’s Unitary Development Plan aims to encourage new community and leisure facilities in 
suitable locations and protect existing uses. The loss of a community facility is only permitted 
where it is replaced or the use is no longer required and there is no demand for another community 
use at that location. The west of the Borough is predominantly ‘older’ than the east. This will have 
implications for provision of services for older people and community and health facilities.  
 
The core strategy gives us the opportunity to assess whether there is more we can do to secure 
and support such facilities. We can also consider whether when communities facilities are lost they 
should be replaced by another use that benefits the community, such as affordable housing.   
 

Question 74: 
What community facilities are needed in Haringey to deal with a growing population in addition to 
those already identified in current plans and programmes? 

 

Question 75: 

Page 447



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 54 

Are there certain parts of the borough where particular facilities need to be provided? 

 
Haringey is part of the Building Schools for the Future schools investment programme, which is 
intended to transform secondary school provision, for example through refurbishment and 
enhanced technology. It also seeks to expand primary school provision and development of local 
Children’s Networks. 
 
The Unitary Development Plan planned for 15,000 new homes in the borough over a 20 year 
period to 2016. The impact on infrastructure was considered as part of this process it was 
established that we would need the equivalent of five new primary schools, one secondary school 
and one- sixth form centre. There has been progress in respect of both additional primary and 
secondary school provision examples include the Coldfall extension, Tetherdown, decision to 
purchase the TUC centre, proposals for the new sixth form centre and the new secondary school 
at Haringey Heartlands. A new primary school has also been identified for the Hale Village site, in 
Tottenham Hale. All special schools will be co-located in mainstream schools with more resourced 
provision for children with special educational needs. 
 
The Council’s Needs Assessment Plan for Children and Young People identifies that 18 Children’s 
Centres will be fully operational by 2008 that will reach almost 15,000 children. By 2010 there will 
be sufficient 8am-6pm childcare to meet the needs of families in the borough. 
 
One of the aspects of school place planning is to ensure that we have enough school places in the 
right areas to meet current and future demand. School place planning involves forecasting pupil roll 
projections over a 10 year period. Housing development which generates additional children will 
have an impact on the capacity of existing schools in the borough.   
 

Question 76: 
Should we require all developments to make a contribution to education facilities and services? 

Page 448



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 55 

Implementation Framework 
 
The Council cannot implement the Local Development Framework alone. It will work with residents 
and a range of stakeholders including the GLA group, other boroughs, the government and 
statutory agencies, the private sector, the voluntary and community sectors and others to ensure 
that the objectives and policies in this plan are implemented. 
 
Implementation requires coordination of policies, resources and decisions. The Core Strategy will 
contain an infrastructure implementation and investment plan which will refer not only to private 
sector and Council investment and initiatives, but also to planned investment from other service 
providers.. 
 
The Core Strategy, Sustainable Community Strategy and Local Area Agreement (LAA) documents  
need to be closely aligned to deliver the Council’s strategic objectives. The implementation and 
investment will link with the implementation of the Community Strategy and LAA outcomes. A 
practical guide produced by the DCLG’s “Planning Together: Local Strategic Partnerships and 
Spatial Planning” gives examples of how planning policy can achieve LAA outcomes. 

 

Outcomes Planning Contribution 

Health & Wellbeing • parks, recreation and sports provision, transport, walking 
and cycling, air quality, access to goods and services, 
strong economies and access to employment 

Combating Climate 
Change 

 

• transport, walking and cycling, energy supply, recycling, 
housing design and renewal, bio-diversity, access to 
goods and services, minerals and waste, flood risk 

Safer Communities • licensing decisions, design, landscaping, recreational 
and sports provision, transport 

Vibrant and Sustainable 
Neighbourhoods 

 

• housing, strong economies and access to employment, 
social and community infrastructure, transport, walking 
and cycling, service co-location, safe and green 
environments, school provision and design 

Social Inclusion • equal access to goods and services, transport, strong 
economies and access to employment, housing quality 
and housing provision, affordable energy, involving 
communities in plan making 

Economic Development • availability of employment sites and access, transport, 
social and environmental infrastructure, housing – 
location, accessibility, levels and type of tenure, access 
to goods and services, energy provision 

 
Delivering the vision and objectives 
 
The core strategy will be implemented through the following mechanisms: 

• Partnership working with public agencies and the private sector 

• The Local Area Agreement 

• Government funding, for example Growth Area Funding and Community Infrastructure Fund 

• Utilisation of council-owned assets 

• Through the preparation of policy frameworks for areas and sites 

• Through the preparation of social and utility infrastructure frameworks to identify infrastructure 
requirements 

Page 449



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 56 

• By promoting and enabling development through site preparation and the appropriate use of 
Compulsory Purchase Powers 

• Through the promotion of Business Improvement Districts and other mechanisms to secure 
investment 

• Through the use of Planning Obligations under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 

• Through the use of planning conditions to control the impacts of development 

• Through the use of specific area or site based guidance, for example design codes to secure 
high quality design 

• Through enforcement action against unlawful development, including section 215 powers to 
clean up untidy and derelict sites. 

 
Public Funding 
 
Haringey Council’s core income is provided annually through Council tax, by central government 
and from business rates. The Council seeks and secures a significant value of additional 
temporary funding from external sources over and above this. This ‘external funding’ can be 
broken down into several categories: 
 

Source Examples Description 

Central Government 
departments – specific 
funding for specific services 

Supporting People, Building 
Schools for the Future 
(BSF), Carers Grant, 
Standards Fund 

Funding given to (by 
allocation or following 
bidding) and spent by an 
individual service, with little 
requirement to work with 
other services. 

Central Government 
Departments – 
regeneration funding 

Neighbourhood Renewal 
Fund (NRF) 

Funding spent across more 
than one service. Strategic 
partners (e.g. Haringey 
Strategic Partnership) 
responsible for allocating 
spend. 

European Funding European Regional 
Development Fund (ERDF), 
European Social Fund 
(ESF) 

Many services seek these 
through competitive bidding 
processes.  

Non-Government 
departmental public bodies 

National Lottery fund 
distributing bodies, Arts 
Council 

Many services seek funding 
through competitive 
application processes  

Trusts Shine Fund, Gates Fund Generally utlilised by 
external partners, using 
Council funding as ‘match’. 

Private Sources  Few examples of services 
seeking or winning 
philanthropic or 
sponsorship support.  

 
Haringey’s communities benefit from external funding that is raised and managed by a range of 
other local organisations. These include strategic partners, such as the Teaching and Primary Care 
Trust and the “third sector” (voluntary and community organisations and social enterprises) and for-
profit organisations who deliver services to the community. 
 
Council Assets 

Page 450



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 57 

 
The Council will manage its assets in the following ways: 

• Bringing surplus or semi-derelict sites back into productive use. 

• To achieve local economic and environmental regeneration. 

• Attracting inward private investment to secure the future of historic buildings which have 
become surplus to the Council’s needs 

 
The main aim of the Corporate Asset Management Plan 2006-2011 (AMP) is to ensure that the 
Council only holds property assets that are required in direct or indirect support of service priorities 
and corporate objectives, and that these are managed efficiently and effectively to demonstrate 
good use of resources and value for money. The AMP is closely linked to the Council’s Capital 
Strategy which sets out the approach for optimising available capital resources to maximise 
support for the corporate objectives and service priorities. 
 
The Council’s asset register includes a wide range of operational land and buildings. 
 

 
 
The plan includes a Corporate Property Strategy which adopts a pro-active approach to land and 
property developments aimed at realising maximum value and meeting the social and economic 
regeneration needs of Haringey. 
 
 
Phasing and co-ordination of development and investment in infrastructure 
 
The implementation of this strategy requires phasing to achieve a consistent supply of 
infrastructure, land, premises and labour throughout the plan period. The biggest demand will 
come from housing, waste facilities and schools. This will be offset by the controlled reduction in 
industrial land, higher intensity of development and the regular redevelopment that produces 
available development land. A particular issue is the capacity of transport infrastructure and water 
supply and capacity. As such, discussions with Network Rail, Transport for London and Thames 
Water will be ongoing. 
 

Page 451



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 58 

Appendix A 
 
Plans and Strategies 
 
International Plans and Policies 
 

• Communication for the Thematic Strategy on the Sustainable Use of Natural Resources, 
European Commission (2005) 

• Communication on a European Biodiversity Strategy, European Commission (1998) 

• Communication on the European Sustainable Development Strategy, European Commission 
(2001) 

• Communication on the Sixth Environmental Action Programme: Environment 2010: Our Future, 
Our Choice, European Commission (2001) 

• Convention for the Protection of the Architectural Heritage of Europe, European Commission 
(1985) 

• Council Decision 1600/2002/EC laying down the Sixth Community Environment Action 
Programme, European Commission (2002) 

• Council Directive 1999/30/EC First Daughter Directive, European Commission (1999) 

• Council Directive 2000/60/EC establishing a framework for Community action in the field of 
water policy, European Commission (2000) 

• Council Directive 2000/69/EC Second Daughter Directive, European Commission (1999) 

• Council Directive 2002/3/EC Third Daughter Directive, European Commission (2002) 

• Council Directive 2002/49/EC relating to the assessment and management of environmental 
noise, European Commission (2002) 

• Council Directive 2002/91/EC European Directive on the Energy Performance of Buildings, 
European Commission (2002) 

• Council Directive 2004/107/EC Forth Daughter Directive, European Commission (2004) 

• Council Directive 79/409/EEC on the Conservation of Wild Birds, European Commission (1979) 

• Council Directive 92/43/EEC Conservation of Natural Habitats and of Wild Fauna and Flora 
Directive, European Commission (1992) 

• Council Directive 96/61/EC concerning Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control, European 
Commission (1996) 

• Council Directive 96/62/EC on ambient air quality assessment and management, European 
Commission (1996) 

• European Convention on the Protection of Archaeological Heritage, European Commission 
(1992) 

• European Landscape Convention, European Commission (2000) 

• European Spatial Development Perspective, European Commission (1999) 

• Landfill Directive: Council Directive 1999/31/EC of 26 April 1999 on the landfill of waste, EU 
(1999) 

• Rio Declaration on Environment and Development, United Nations (1999) 

• Urban design for sustainability, European Commission (2004) 
 

Page 452



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 59 

National Plans and Policies 
 

• Actions for Housing Growth CABE 

• Attitudes to streetscape and street uses, ONS (2004) 

• Building in context, CABE and English Heritage (2001) 

• Business in Sport and Leisure 2005 Handbook, BISL (2005) 

• By Design, DETR (2000) 

• Census of Population, ODPM (2001) 

• Census 2001 - Enfield Workplace Statistics, National Statistics (2001) 

• Changes to Planning Obligations- A Planning Gain Supplement Consultation, DCLG (2006) 

• Children Act 2004, (2004) 

• Commissioning Framework for Health and Well-being, Department of Health (2007) 

• Conservation Principles for the Sustainable Management of the Historic Environment 
[Consultation Draft], English Heritage (2006) 

• Crime and Disorder Act, (1998) 

• Design at Appeal, CABE (2006) 

• Developing Accessible Play Space – A Good Practice Guide, ODPM (2003) 

• Education Development Plan, DfEE (undated) 

• Experian Base Year Expenditure Figures 2004, Experian (2005) 

• Experian Business Strategies (Recommended growth rates), Experian (undated) 

• Family Expenditure Survey, National Statistics (2000/01) 

• From Design Policy to Design Quality, RTPI (2002) 

• Game Plan, Cabinet Office (2002) 

• General Household Survey - Sports and Leisure Module, General Household Survey (2001 
- 2002) 

• GOAD Plans, GOAD/Experian (2005-2007) 

• Good Practice note 4: manifesto for good design, National Planning Forum (2005) 

• Greening the Green Belt for Enjoyment and Value, Environment Agency (2005) 

• Guidance on Tall Buildings, CABE and English Heritage (2003) 

• Homes for All- 5 year Plan, ODPM (2005) 

• Housing Act 2004 

• Improving Urban Parks, Play Areas and Open Spaces, DTLR (2002) 

• In Suburbia, In Suburbia Partnership (2002) 

• Indices of Multiple Deprivation, ODPM (2004) 

• Integrating Rural/Urban Divisions, Environment Agency (2003) 

• In-town Retail Rents, Colliers CRE (2005) 

• Lie of the Land: Championing Landscape Character, CPRE (2003) 

• Living Places, Cleaner, Safer, Greener (October 2002), ODPM (2002) 

• Local Authorities and Gypsies and Travellers: Guide to responsibilities and powers, ODPM 
(2006) 

• Local Culture Strategies, DCMS (2000) 

• Local Nature Reserves: Places for People and Wildlife, English Nature (2000) 

• Manual for Streets 

• Making the Connection: Final Report on Transport and Social Exclusion, Social Exclusion Unit 
(2003) 

• Management Horizons UK Shopping Index 2003/04, Management Horizons Europe (2003/04) 

• Meeting Part M and Designing Lifetime Homes, Joseph Rowntree Foundation (1999) 
 
 

Page 453



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 60 

• Moving Towards Excellence in Urban Design and Conservation, Planning Officers Society 

• NEMS Business Occupancy Survey, NEMS (2005) 

• New Urban Landscape Trans-national Programme, 

• NHS Improvement Plan 2004, Department of Health (2004) 

• NHS Plan, Department of Health (2000) 

• ODPM Circular 05/2005- Planning Obligations, ODPM (2005) 

• Our Health, Our Care, Our Say White Paper, Department of Health (2006) 

• Paving the Way, CABE (2002) 

• People and Places: Social Inclusion Policy for the Built and Historic Environment, DCMS 
(2002) 

• Planning for Delivery: a Manifesto from the Royal Town Planning Institute, RTPI 

• Planning for Gypsy and Traveller Sites Circular 01/2006, ODPM (2006) 

• Planning for Outdoor Recreation: a Report for Natural England’s Outdoor Recreation Strategy, 
Henley Centre (2005) 

• Planning Obligations- Best Practice Guidance, DCLG (2005) 

• Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development, ODPM (2005) 

• Planning Policy Guidance 2: Green Belts, ODPM (2001) 

• Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS3): Housing, DCLG (2006) 

• Delivering Affordable Housing, DCLG (2006) 

• Planning Policy Guidance 4: Industrial, Commercial Development and Small Firms, ODPM 
(2001) 

• Planning Policy Statement 6: Planning for Town Centres, ODPM (2005) 

• Planning Policy Statement 7: Sustainable Development in Rural Areas, ODPM (2004) 

• Planning Policy Statement 9: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation, (2005) 

• Planning Policy Statement 10: Planning For Sustainable Waste Management, ODPM (2005) 

• Planning Policy Statement 12: Local Development Frameworks, ODPM (2004) 

• Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport, DETR (2001) 

• Planning Policy Guidance Note 15: Planning and the Historic Environment, DoE (1994) 

• Planning Policy Guidance 16: Archaeology and Planning, DoE (1990) 

• Planning Policy Guidance 17: Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation, ODPM (2002) 

• Assessing the Needs and Opportunities: A Companion Guide to PPG 17, ODPM (2002) 

• Planning Policy Guidance Note 19: Outdoor Advertisement Control, DoE (1992) 

• Planning Policy Statement 22: Renewable Energy, ODPM (2004) 

• Planning Policy Statement 23: Planning and Pollution Control, ODPM (2004) 

• Planning Policy Guidance 24: Planning and Noise, DoE (1994) 

• Planning Policy Statement 25: Development and Flood Risk, DCLG (2006) 

• Policy Briefing 13: Parking, Living Streets (2005) 

• Position Statement: Addressing Environmental Inequalities, Environment Agency (2004) 

• Position statement: sustainable development, Environment Agency (2004) 

• Preparing Design Codes - A Practice Manual (DCLG, 2006) 

• Producing Boundaries and Statistics for Town Centres - London Pilot Study (Technical 
Report), ODPM (2005) 

• Protection of School Playing Fields, Consultation on revision of DfEE Circular No: 3/99, DfEE 
(1999) 

• Public Parks Assessment, Urban Parks Forum (2001) 

• Public Service Agreement 2005-2008: Technical Notes, (2005) 

• Regeneration and the Historic Environment, English Heritage (2005) 

• Retail Development in Historic Areas, English Heritage (2005) 

• Retail Focus - Retailer and Leisure Requirements (July 2005), Experian (2005) 

• Retail Planner Briefing Note 2.3D, (2005) 

• Safer places, ODPM (2004) 

Page 454



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 61 

• Social Exclusion Unit PAT 10 Report – Arts and Sport, DCMS (2001) 

• Sport in the Green Belt, Sport England (2003) 

• Sports Participation Reports, Mintel (2000 - 2004) 

• Strategy for Sustainable Development “A Better Quality of Life”, DEFRA (2002) 

• Survey of Sports Halls and Swimming Pools in England, Sport England (1999) 

• Sustainable Communities: Building for the Future, ODPM (2003) 

• Sustainable Residential Quality: New Approaches to Urban Living, DETR (2000) 

• Sustainable Rural Development and Green Belt policy, RICS (2002) 

• Tackling Health Inequalities- A Programme for Action, Department of Health (2003) 

• The Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland: Working together 
for Clean Air, DEFRA (2000) 

• The Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland: Working together 
for Clean Air, (undated) 

• The Disability Discrimination Act 2005, (2005) 

• The Environment Act 1995, OPSI (1995) 

• The Historic Environment: A Force for Our Future, DCMS (2001) 

• The Road Traffic Reduction Act 1997, (1997) 

• The Six Acre Standard, National Playing Fields Association (2001) 

• The Traffic Management Act 2004, (2004) 

• The Use of Public Parks in England, RSGB Market Research (2003) 

• The Value of Urban Design, CABE and DETR (2001) 

• Towards a Level Playing Field, Sport England (2003) 

• Unlocking the Potential of the Rural Urban Fringe, Countryside Agency and Groundwork 
(2004) 

• Urban Green Spaces Taskforce, Green Spaces Better Places, DTLR (2002) 

• Urban Green Spaces Taskforce, Neighbourhood Renewal, DTLR (2002) 

• Urban White Paper: Our Towns and Cities: The Future, DCLG (2002) 

• Valuation Office Statistics, VOS (2005) 

• Verdict Report on Grocery Retailers, Verdict (2006) 

• Waste Strategy 2000, DETR (2000) 

• White Paper: European Transport Policy for 2010, (2001) 

• White Paper: The Future of Transport CM 6234, (2004) 

• Working with the Grain of Nature: a Biodiversity Strategy for England, DEFRA (2002) 
 
 
 

Page 455



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 62 

Regional Plans and Policies 
 

• 2003 Round of GLA Demographic Projections (Scenario 8.1), GLA (2003) 

• 2005 Round Interim Demographic Projections, GLA (2005) 

• A City of Villages: Promoting a Sustainable Future for London’s Suburbs, Mayor of London 
(2002) 

• Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment Supplementary Planning Guidance, 
Mayor of London (2004) 

• Affordable Housing Development Control Toolkit 2004/5 version, GLA (2004) 

• Affordable Housing in London- A Report from the Greater London Authority, Three Dragons 
and Nottingham Trent University (2001) 

• Better food for London: the Mayor’s Draft Food Strategy, Mayor of London (2005) 

• Best Practice Guidance on Urban Design Principles and the Public Realm (in preparation by 
DfL  

• Cleaning London's Air: The Mayor's Air Quality Strategy, GLA (2002) 

• Comparison Goods Floorspace Need in London, GLA (2004) 

• Connecting London with Trees and Woodlands: A Tree and Woodland Framework for London, 
GLA (2005) 

• Connecting with London’s Nature: The Mayor’s Biodiversity Strategy, GLA (2002) 

• Convenience Goods Floorspace Need in London, GLA (2005) 

• Delivering Increased Housing Output- Technical Report for the London Plan (Spatial 
Development Strategy for Greater London) Examination in Public, GLA (2006) 

• Draft Best Practice Guidance - Managing the Night Time Economy, GLA (2006) 

• Empty Homes in London 2004, GLA (2004) 

• Freight on the Waterways, Inland Waterways Association (2006) 

• Further Alterations to the London Plan, GLA (2006) 

• Greater London Housing Requirements Study, GLA (2004) 

• Green Light to Clean Power: The Mayor’s Energy Strategy, GLA (2004) 

• Guide to Preparing Children’s Play Strategies, GLA (2005) 

• Guide to Preparing Open Space Strategies, GLA (2004) 

• Health in London- Review of the London Health Strategy High Level Indicators, London 

• Health Commission (2005) 

• Health Issues Best Practice Guidance-Draft, GLA (2006) 

• Housing in London: the London Housing Strategy Evidence Base 2005, GLA (2005) 

• Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, GLA (2005) 

• Industrial and Warehouse Land Demand in London, GLA (2004) 

• Industrial Capacity SPG DRAFT, GLA (2003) 

• Lee Valley Regional Park Plan, Lee Valley Regional Park Authority (2000) 

• London Employer Survey 2000-2001 North London Summary Report, London North Learning 
and Skills Council (2001) 

• London Housing Strategy, London Housing Board (2005) 

• London Office Policy Review, GLA (2006) 

• London Stansted Cambridge Corridor-Initial Assessment of Growth Potential in London, GLA 
(2004) 

• London View Management Framework: Draft SPG, Mayor of London (2005) 

• London: Cultural Capital – Realising the Potential of a World Class City, Mayor of London 
(2003) 

• London's Health- London Health Strategy, London Health Commission (2000) 
• London's Housing Submarkets, GLA (2004) 

• Making space for Londoners, Mayor of London (2002) 

• Managing the Night-Time Economy: Draft Best Practice Guidance, GLA (2006) 

Page 456



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 63 

• Mayor's Biodiversity Strategy: Connecting with London's Nature, GLA (2002) 

• North London Employment Land Study, LDA & NLSA (2006) 

• North London River Restoration Strategy, Environment Agency 

• North London Waste Plan, Issues and Options (2007) 

• North London Joint Waste Strategy, NLWA (2004) 

• North London Sub-Region's Funding Priorities (2006-2008 ADP Bidding Round), North 
London Sub-Region( Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey, Islington and Westminster (2006) 

• North London Sub-Regional Development Framework, GLA (2006) 

• North London Sub-regional Playing Field Strategy, North & East London Sports Network 
(2005) 

• Office Policy Review 2007, GLA (2007) 

• Open Space Planning in London, LPAC (1992) 

• Planning for the Future Police Estate Development, Metropolitan Police (2005) 

• Research into Non-Employment Within the Upper Lee Valley, LDA (2003) 

• Regional Flood Risk Appraisal, Draft GLA 

• Size Matters- The Need for More Family Homes in London, London Assembly (2006) 

• Sounder City: The Mayor's Ambient Noise Strategy, GLA (2004) 

• Standard NHS Planning Contribution Model for London, NHS Healthy Urban Development 
Unit (2005) 

• Streetscape Guidance [consultation draft], TfL (2004) 

• Sustainable Design and Construction SPG, GLA (2006) 

• The 2004 London Housing Capacity Study, GLA (2004) 

• The London Biodiversity Audit, LBP (2000) 

• The London Plan: Strategic Development Strategy for Greater London, GLA (2004) 

• The London Plan: Housing Provision Targets, Waste and Minerals Alterations, GLA (2006) 

• The Mayor's Municipal Waste Management Strategy, GLA (2003) 

• The Mayor's Transport Strategy, GLA (2001) 

• The North London Strategy, NLSA (2003) 

• Thresholds for Affordable Housing Requirements, GLA (2003) 

• Tomorrow's Suburbs Best Practice Guidance, Mayor of London (2006) 

• Towards a North London Sub-Regional Economic Development Implementation Plan. Draft for 
consultation, NLSA (2006) 

• Towards and Older People’s Strategy for London, (2005) 

• Transport Strategy Implementation Targets, GLA (2004) 

• Upper Lee Valley Transport Study, (2006) 

• Upper Lee Valley: A New Vision. Stage 1 Report: Towards a New Vision, NLSA (2006) 

• Watch Out for Health- Planning Checklist, NHS London Healthy Urban Development Unit 

• Working Together for London: The North London Strategy, NLSA (2003) 

• Urban Design Compendium 2, English Partnerships (2007) 
 

Page 457



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 64 

Haringey Strategies and Evidence 
 

• Air Quality Action Plan  

• Annual Monitoring Reports 2005-2007 

• Borough Spending Plan: [2006/7 to 2009/10] 

• Biodiversity Action Plan 

• Children and Young People Plan 2006-2009 

• Corporate Asset Management Plan 2006-2011 

• Greenest Borough Strategy 

• Children and Young People’s Plan 2006-09  

• Conservation Area Character Appraisals 

• Council Plan 

• Cultural Strategy 

• Developing World Class Primary Care in Haringey – Draft Haringey TPCT 2007 

• Employment and Skills Strategy 

• Haringey Employment Land Study, Atkins (2004) 

• Older People Strategy ?? 

• Open Space and Sports Assessment, Atkins (2003) 

• Haringey City Growth Strategy 

• Haringey Heartlands Development Framework (2005) 

• Haringey Housing Strategy 2003-2008 

• Haringey Homelessness Strategy 2003-2008 

• Haringey Guarantee 

• Haringey Policing Plan 

• Haringey’s Draft Strategic Framework for Improving Adults’ Well-being 2007-2010, Haringey 
Strategic Partnership  

• Local Implementation Plan 

• Local Health Delivery Plan 2005-2008, Haringey TPCT 

• Local Area Agreement  

• Needs Assessment Plan for Children and Young People 2006-2009  
• Open Spaces Strategy (2005) 

• Parks improvement programme 

• Public Health Report for Haringey, Haringey TPCT 

• People, Places and Prosperity: Haringey’s Regeneration Strategy (Draft, 2007) 

• Recycling Strategy 

• Safer Communities Strategy 

• Sports and Physical Activity Strategy 

• Supporting People Strategy 2005 - 2010 

• Strategic Service Development Plan (LIFT) - Barnet, Enfield and Haringey 

• Community Strategy for Haringey (2007-2016) 

• The Bridge New Deal for Communities – Annual Delivery Plan 2006/07 

• Tottenham Hale Urban Centre Masterplan Supplementary Planning Document (2007) 

• Tottenham High Road Regeneration Strategy (2002) 

• Unitary Development Plan, (2006) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 458



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 65 

Appendix B 
 

Sustainability Appraisal 
 
It is a legal requirement to undertake a Sustainability Appraisal (SA) of the Core Strategy under the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. The Act also stipulates that the SA must meet the 
requirements of the European Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive. Although a legal 
requirement, SA is an essential tool for ensuring that the principles of sustainable development are 
considered throughout plan development and for scrutinising planning policies, allocations and 
guidance for their broad compliance and contribution to sustainable development. 
 
This SA process comprises four stages.  

Stage A - Establishing the baseline, deciding on the scope and establishing a sustainability 
appraisal framework; 

Stage B - Developing and refining plan options and assessing the plan’s effects; 
Stage C - Preparing the SA Report; 
Stage D - Consulting on the SA Report at the same time as the Core Strategy; and 
Stage E - Monitoring the significant sustainability effects of implementing the Core Strategy (this 

will be addressed in the Annual Monitoring Report) 
 
As the first stage of the sustainability appraisal of the Core Strategy we prepared a Scoping 
Report, which looked at the baseline information and plans, policies and programmes relevant to 
the Core Strategy. This was sent to statutory consultees for comment in line with the regulations.  
At the next stage in the preparation of the Core Strategy we will carry out a full appraisal of the 
options considered in this paper and other options raised during consultation. The appraisal will 
inform the development of the Council’s preferred options for the Core Strategy 
 
The scoping report identified the following objectives and sub-objectives against which the Core 
Strategy which will assessed. 
 
 
Sustainability Appraisal Framework 
 

Objective Sub-Objectives 

Social: 

To encourage safety by design. 

To reduce levels of crime. 

To reduce the fear of crime. 

To reduce levels of anti-social behaviour. 

1 To reduce crime, disorder 

and fear of crime. 

To reduce alcohol and drug misuse. 

To increase levels of participation and attainment in 

education for all members of society 

2 To improve levels of 

educational attainment for 

all age groups and all 

sectors of society. 
To improve the provision of, and access to, education and 

training facilities. 

To improve access to health and social care services. 3 To improve physical and 

mental health for all and 
To prolong life expectancy. 

Page 459



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 66 

Objective Sub-Objectives 

To promote a network of quality, accessible open spaces. reduce health inequalities. 

To promote healthy lifestyles. 

To reduce homelessness.  

To increase the availability of affordable housing. 

To improve the condition of Local Authority housing stock. 

4 To provide greater choice, 

quality and diversity of 

housing across all tenures 

to meet the needs of 

residents. 
To improve the diversity of the housing stock. 

To promote a sense of, cultural identity, belonging and 

well-being. 

To develop opportunities for community involvement. 

5 To protect and enhance 

community spirit and 

cohesion. 

To support strong relationships between people from 

different backgrounds and communities. 

To improve access to cultural and leisure facilities. 6 To improve access to 

services and amenities for 

all groups 
To maintain and improve access to essential services 

(banking, health and education) and facilities. 

Economic: 

To retain existing local employment and create local 

employment opportunities. 

To diversify employment opportunities. 

7 To encourage sustainable 

economic growth and 

business development 

across the Borough. 

To meet the needs of different sectors of the economy 

To improve lifelong learning opportunities and work 

related training. 

8 To develop the skills and 

training needed to 

establish and maintain a 

healthy labour pool. 
To reduce high levels of unemployment and 

worklessness. 

To improve physical accessibility to local and London-

wide jobs. 

To support flexible working patterns. 

9 To encourage economic 

inclusion. 

To encourage new businesses. 

To enhance the environmental quality of the borough’s 

town centres 

To promote the borough’s town centres as a place to live, 

work and visit 

To ensure that the borough’s town centres are easily 

accessible and meet local needs and requirements. 

10 To improve the vitality and 

vibrancy of town centres. 

To promote high quality buildings and public realm. 

Environmental: 

To protect and enhance Priority Species and Habitats 

identified in the Biodiversity Action Plan. 

11 To protect and enhance 

biodiversity. 

To link and enhance habitats and wildlife corridors. 

Page 460



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 67 

Objective Sub-Objectives 

To provide opportunities for people to access wildlife and 

diverse open green spaces. 

To promote townscape character and quality. 

To preserve or enhance buildings and areas of 

architectural and historic interest 

12 To protect and enhance 

the Borough’s landscape, 

townscape and cultural 

heritage resources. 

To promote a network of quality, accessible open spaces. 

To preserve ground and surface water quality. 13 To protect and enhance 

the quality of water 

features and resources. 
To conserve water resources. 

To encourage the development and remediation of 

brownfield land. 

14 To encourage the use of 

previously developed land 

To promote the efficient and effective use of land whilst 

minimising environmental impacts. 

To reduce and manage flood risk. 

To encourage ‘green design’ solutions 

15 To adapt to climate change  

To encourage the inclusion of Sustainable Urban 

Drainage in new development 

To manage air quality within the borough. 16 To protect and improve air 

quality. 
To encourage businesses to produce travel plans. 

To reduce the use of energy  

To increase energy efficiency and support affordable 

warmth initiatives 

17 To limit climate change by 

reducing CO2 emissions 

To increase the use of renewable energy 

To reduce the consumption of raw materials (particularly 

those from finite or unsustainable sources). 

To encourage the re-use of goods 

To reduce the production of waste. 

To support the use of sustainable materials and 

construction methods. 

18 

 

To ensure the sustainable 

use of natural resources. 

To increase the proportion of waste recycling and 

composting across all sectors. 

To improve the amenity and connectivity of walking and 

cycling routes. 

To promote the use of public transport. 

19 To promote the use of 

sustainable modes of 

transport. 

To reduce the use of the private car. 

 
 
 

Page 461



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 68 

Appendix C 
 

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 

 
Following the publication of Planning Policy Statement 25 (PPS25), the GLA has published a draft 
Regional Flood Risk Appraisal (RFRA). The RFRA encourages boroughs to work together on 
Strategic Flood Risk Appraisals. 
 
As part of work undertaken on a North London Waste Plan, a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 
(SFRA) is being prepared for North London, covering the seven boroughs of  Barnet, Camden, 
Enfield, Hackney, Haringey, Islington and Waltham Forest. Although the SFRA is being co-
ordinated through the North London Waste Plan, the document will provide each individual 
boroughs with the necessary information to use as the evidence base in developing core strategies 
as part of their Local Development Framework, thus ensuring that any planned development can 
be located in areas of least flood risk in accordance with PPS25. A single report will be produced 
covering all seven Boroughs and will take into account assessments of: 

• The functional floodplain 

• Flood Zones 2 and 3 

• Historic flooding 

• Surface Water flooding 

• Groundwater flooding 

• Flooding from artificial drainage sources 

• Reservoir flood plans 

• The impact of climate change 
 
In addition to the above the assessment it will also review the following: 

-          Flood Defence standards 
-          Flood Warning Systems 
-          Emergency Planning procedures 
-          Planning Policy 
 
The report will provide advice on planning policy, advice for developers on site specific flood risk 
assessments and general advice on the application of sequential and exception tests. 
 
 

Page 462



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 69 

Appendix D 
 

Habitats Regulations Assessment 
 
The Directive 92/43/EEC on the Conservation of Natural Habitats and Wild Flora and Fauna – the 
‘Habitats Directive’ provides legal protection for habitats and species of European importance. 
Article 2 of the Habitats Directive requires the maintenance or restoration of habitats and species 
of interest to the EU in a favourable condition. 
 
Articles 6(3) and 6(4) of the Habitats Directive require an assessment of plans to prevent 
significant adverse effects on European sites. The purpose of the Habitats Regulations 
Assessment is to assess the impacts of a land-use plan against the conservation objectives of 
European sites. 
 
A Habitats Regulations screening document has been produced prior to the creation of issues and 
options for the Core Strategy. This screening report determines whether the plan ‘either alone or in 
combination with other plans or projects’ is likely to have a significant effect on a European site.  
 
Three European sites have been identified within a 10km radius of the Borough of Haringey:  

• The Lee Valley Ramsar Site; 

• The Lee Valley Special Protection Area; and 

• Epping Forest Special Area of Conservation. 
 
The 10km radius from the Borough boundary represents a ‘sphere of influence’, an area which 
Haringey’s Core Strategy may affect, either alone or in combination with other plans. The 10km 
radius from the Borough boundary was agreed in consultation with Natural England. The location 
of the European sites is illustrated on the map below. 
 
The screening report anticipates that Haringey’s core strategy will have no significant effect on the 
above sites of international importance. In consultation with Natural England, the screening report 
recommends that the core strategy should include the following policy statement: 
 
“Sites of international Importance”:  
 
"No development will be permitted unless either it is established that it is not likely to have a 
significant effect on any Ramsar site or Natura 2000 site (including Special Protection Areas, 
potential Special Protection Areas, Special Areas of Conservation, candidate or possible Special 
Areas of Conservation), or it is ascertained, following Appropriate Assessment, that it will not 
adversely affect the integrity of any Ramsar site or Natura 2000 site.”

Page 463



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 70 

Map of Extent of Habitats Regulations Assessment – Screening 

 
 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 4

6
4



 
Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options v1 71 

Appendix E 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

 
An Initial Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been produced prior to the creation of 
Options for the Core Strategy. This proactive approach will ensure that Haringey’s Core 
Strategy will take into account the Borough’s cultural and demographic diversity during the 
development of the Strategy and meets the aspirations of the Council’s Equalities Agenda 
and its statutory obligations under the Race Relations Amendment Act (2000), Disability 
Discrimination Act (2005) and Equality Act (2006). 
 
An initial scoping report identifies the key issues and processes that need to be considered 
in the development of the Core Strategy. It is based on six equality target groups, which 
are gender, race, disability, age, religion/belief and sexual orientation. It recommends 
actions that, if adopted, will help Haringey to anticipate and address negative 
consequences and identify opportunities for promoting equality. 
 
The scoping report makes recommendations for the core strategy and for consultation 
methods and processes. For the core strategy it concludes that: 

• The Core Strategy is relevant to specific duties. Therefore, it is also relevant to the 
general duties of the Race, Disability, Sex Discrimination and Equality Acts;  

• Although this Initial EqIA has looked at the different Equality Target Groups (ETGs) 
and identified particular factors to take into account for the development of the Core 
Strategy there is insufficient data available to conclude whether there will be 
adverse/negative/positive or differential impacts. It is suggested that the gaps 
identified can be addressed by engaging with different stakeholders to gain their 
perspective and factor these in the strategy as appropriate; and 

• We recommend the Core Strategy has a full Equalities Impact Assessment as part of 
its development. This assessment would include consultation and involvement as wide 
a group of interested parties; particularly form the ETG’s and their advocates and 
organizations which deliver services on behalf of the Council or in partnership. This will 
include voluntary sector organisations. 

 
The scoping report also makes recommendations on consultation which will inform the 
implementation of the Statement of Community Involvement. 

Page 465



Page 466

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Appendix 2 – List of Core Strategy issues and questions 
 
Objectives 

Q1 Do the spatial objectives provide a useful approach to identifying the issues 
and options for Haringey’s future? Are there any other important objectives that 
should be included? 

Q2 To identify area specific priorities and objectives, the Unitary Development Plan 
divided the borough eastern, central and western areas. Do you agree with this 
approach? Are the objectives for these areas still appropriate? Have we missed 
any key priorities? 

 
Issue 1. An environmentally sustainable future 

1a Limiting the impact of climate change 

Q3 Do you think that the borough should adopt the London Plan carbon reduction 
targets or seek higher targets? 

Q4 Should we require all new development to provide a proportion of their energy 
requirement from renewable sources? Should we require higher renewable 
energy targets (at least 20%) for major developments on selected sites? 

Q5 Where developments cannot meet on-site renewable energy targets, should we 
allow them to make carbon reduction contributions in another way, for example 
by making a financial contribution to make existing buildings more energy 
efficient? 

Q6 Should all developments meet high standards of energy efficiency and 
environmental performance, taking into account the specifics of the site, 
technology and cost? or should this only apply to schemes of certain types or 
certain sizes? 

Q7 Should we require large development schemes to include decentralised energy 
/ district heating and cooling systems? 

Q8 Should we build local energy generation and distribution systems? 

Q9 The Council is considering developing at least one zero carbon development in 
Haringey by 2013. Do you agree? 

Q10 How could we encourage households to use less energy? Should we 
encourage measures to improve the energy performance of existing buildings, 
for example, by extending energy efficiency measures to the rest of the house 
when applications are made for extensions? 

Q11 When considering the impact of solar panels, wind turbines and other ‘green’ 
technologies on their surroundings should we treat them in the same way as 
other building works or give environmental factors greater priority than other 
considerations, such as conservation/heritage? 

1b Adapting to climate change 

Q12 Should we require all developments to include sustainable urban drainage 
systems and incorporates facilities to reduce water consumption and re-use 
grey water.  

Q13 Should we require a proportion of front gardens to be retained with vegetation 
to reduce surface water run-off? 

Q14 Should we require design and landscaping measures to reduce overheating 
and the ‘heat island effect’  

Page 467



1c Reducing environmental impact 

Q15 Should we expect major developments to provide for the sorting and storage of 
waste to aid waste handling and collection and encourage recycling? 

Q16 Should we require developments adjacent to or above watercourses to improve 
the water environment and quality? 

Q17 What steps should we take to reduce noise pollution in the borough? 

Q18 Should we require all developments which generate additional travel to 
introduce measures to manage air quality? 

 
1d Promoting sustainable travel 

Q19 Do you support the sustainable transport measures in the Unitary Development 
Plan and Local Implementation Plan? Are there other measures we should be 
promoting? 

Q20 Where large development schemes are taking place at or near transport 
interchanges should we require schemes to improve, or make a financial 
contribution towards, the capacity and accessible of the interchange? 

Q21 Do you support car free housing, or are there other ways where we can reduce 
car use? 

Q22 Should we require new and expanding schools to produce and implement a 
travel plan to reduce car use? 

Q23 Do you support the public transport proposals listed in the Unitary Development 
Plan? Are there any other transport schemes for which we should be 
safeguarding land? 

 
Issue 2. Managing development and areas of change 

2a Managing growth 

Q24 Should we try to concentrate most growth in identified areas of change and on 
identified housing sites or should we try to spread growth more equally across 
the borough? 

Q25 Should we ensure that all housing development takes place on previously-
developed ‘brownfield’ land? What types of brownfield land should we give 
priority to? 

Q26 Should we resist higher density housing where it is poorly designed and does 
not fit in with its surroundings, or should we set maximum and minimum levels 
of density, such as the London Plan density standards? 

Q27 Should we identify locations suitable for tall buildings or identify areas where 
they are not suitable? 

Q28 Should we resist the conversion of single dwelling houses into flats or houses 
in multiple occupation in some parts of the borough? What proportion of 
conversions in a street is acceptable? 

Q29 How should we encourage the reuse of empty homes? 

2b Managing the impact of growth 

Q30 Have we identified all the infrastructure implications from future housing 
growth? Do you think we should ‘pool’ developer contributions towards 
infrastructure requirements in certain areas? 

Q31 Should we restrict or limit development in areas which have insufficient 
services and facilities, such as schools, health facilities and utility infrastructure 
and resources? 

Page 468



Q32 Should we encourage mixed uses in certain developments and on particular 
sites in the borough? If so, should this be in the most accessible parts of the 
borough or should this also apply to other areas? 

Page 469



2c Providing affordable housing 

Q33 Should we consider lowering the threshold (from 10 units) at which housing 
developments are required to contribute to affordable housing?  

Q34 For smaller sites below 10 units, should we require less than 50% affordable 
housing, or allow a financial contribution to be made instead of providing units?  

Q35 Should we require more than 50% affordable housing on very large sites? 

Q36 What factors may affect the financial viability of providing affordable housing on 
sites? Should these be taken into account? 

Q37 What mix of social rented and intermediate housing should we seek? To 
encourage balanced communities, should this mix vary in different parts of the 
borough according to existing concentrations of social housing?   

2d Providing a range of housing types 

Q38 Should we encourage more family housing in developments? 

Q39 Are larger family homes suitable everywhere in the borough and in all 
developments? If not, should we specify areas or certain developments which 
are suitable for family housing? 

Q40 In which locations should we encourage special needs housing? 

Q41 Should we encourage more lifetime homes and require more generous 
minimum floorspace standards for new dwellings and conversions? 

 
Issue 3. Creating a safer, attractive and valued urban environment 

3a Creating high quality buildings and spaces 

Q42 Should we resist design that fails to improve the character and quality of an 
area or should design be considered acceptable provided it does not harm the 
appearance of an area?  

Q43 Should we provide specific design guidance for different areas of the borough 
or should we seek good design everywhere? 

3b Protecting and enhancing the borough’s built environment and its local 
distinctiveness 

Q44 Should we continue to protect and enhance the borough’s buildings and areas 
of architectural and historic interest? Or should housing requirements mean 
that we take a more flexible to the use and reuse of historic areas or buildings? 

Q45 In addition to the protection given to conservation areas and listed buildings, 
how should we seek to protect the local distinctiveness of certain parts of the 
borough? 

3c Improving the quality and appearance of Haringey’s public spaces and street 
scene 

Q46 Should we expect all developments to contribute to physical works to streets 
and public places? 

Q47 What physical works do you consider best improve the visual attractiveness 
and use of public spaces? 

Q48 Are there other approaches to improving streets and public places in Haringey 
that we should consider? 

3d Protecting, enhancing and improving access to public open spaces and areas 
of nature 

Q49 Should we protect all green open spaces or allow new housing on some sites? 

Page 470



Q50 Should we seek to create new parks and open spaces or improve the quality of 
existing spaces and access from residential areas? How can we encourage 
better use of our parks and sports facilities? 

Q51 Should we encourage developments to do more to protect habitats for wildlife 
in Haringey?  What measures should we seek? 

 
Issue 4. Creating a vibrant and prosperous economy 

4a Increasing job opportunities for Haringey’s population 

Q52 Should we encourage developers to recruit local people and use local 
businesses and suppliers during the construction of a scheme and its final use, 
particularly in or near deprived areas? 

Q53 Should we encourage developers of large schemes to produce an employment 
and training plan to encourage job opportunities for local people and reduce 
barriers to work? 

4b Protecting viable employment land and buildings 

Q54 Should we protect all employment land for business and employment use? 

Q55 Where vacant and surplus to requirements, should we allow employment land 
to be reused for housing or community uses? 

Q56 Where under-utilised, should we encourage mixed use development which 
increases the number and range of jobs on site or provides other regeneration 
benefits? 

Q57 Are there locations where we could allocate specific uses or ‘clusters’ of uses?  

4c Strengthening Haringey’s town centres 

Q58 Should any of Haringey’s town centres be increased or decreased in size?   

Q59 Should the Core Strategy recognise the wider role of town centres as a focus 
for development? 

Q60 Should we seek to resist new shopping developments that are not compatible 
with the character and function of a centres, for example in terms of shop unit 
sizes and design and protect areas of specialist shopping? 

Q61 Should we apply stricter controls to restaurants, cafes, bars and clubs and 
manage the night time economy? 

4d Helping our local shops 

Q62 What role should our local shopping centres play in future? 

Q63 Should we increase or decrease the number and size of our local shopping 
centres? 

Q64 Should we seek to protect public houses which serve as a local community 
resource? 

 
Issue 5. Improving health and community well-being 

5a Making Haringey a safer place 

Q65 Do you agree with the planning measures to discourage crime and promote 
safer streets in the borough set out above?  Are there other measures that we 
can take? 

Q66 Should we require all developments to demonstrate how they have addressed 
safer and security issues and have ‘designed out’ crime? 

Q67 Do crime “hotspots” need a specific approach in terms of community safety and 
planning?  if so, what measures do you think are needed in these places? 

Page 471



5b Improving our health and well-being 

Q68 Have we identified the right measures that planning can take to improve health 
and well-being in Haringey? Should we prioritise some of these measure above 
others?  

Q69 Should we require all developments to assess health impacts? 

Q70 Should we take a different approach to planning for health in certain parts of 
the borough to reflect different health issues and access to facilities? 

5c Promoting equality of opportunity and access 

Q71 Are the measures identified appropriate in promoting equality of opportunity 
and preventing discrimination in Haringey? Are there other measures that we 
can take?  

Q72 Should we expect developers submitting major schemes to commission 
independent equalities impact assessments? 

Q73 Do you support the measures to promote accessibility of services and facilities 
in the borough? Are there other measures we should consider? 

5d Supporting education and community services and facilities 

Q74 What community facilities are needed in Haringey to deal with a growing 
population in addition to those already identified in current plans and 
programmes? 

Q75 Are there certain parts of the borough where particular facilities need to be 
provided? 

Q76 Should we require all developments to make a contribution to education 
facilities and services? 

 

Page 472



 

 

 

Appendix 3 - Community involvement in the preparation of the Core Strategy 

Stage Method of Involvement Timescale 

Regulation 25 

Issues and 
Options 

• Published issues and options report and 
summary report (with translation service 
offered) 

• Direct mailing letters / emails from 
consultation database 

• Updated website and online consultation 

• Leaflet and questionnaire 

• Public notice in local papers / press 
release 

• Articles in Haringey People and Area 
Assembly newsletters  

• Workshops and focus groups with 
targeted groups 

• Exhibitions at a public venue / Area 
Assemblies 

• ‘Planning for Real’ exercises 

• Presentations to participatory / 
community forums 

February – April 
2008  

Regulation 26 

Preferred options 
• Published preferred options report and 

summary report (with translation service 
offered) 

• Direct mailing letters / emails from 
consultation database 

• Updated website and online consultation 

• Structured consultation form 

• Public notice in local papers / press 
release 

• Articles in Haringey People and Area 
Assembly newsletters 

• Targeted discussions on themes, ie 
housing, employment with user panels 
and representative groups 

• Publicity of new studies / research  

• One to one meetings as required 

September – 
November 2008 

 

 

 

 

 

Regulation 28 

Submission of the 
Core Strategy 

• Published preferred options report and 
summary report (with translation service 
offered) 

• Direct mailing letters / emails from 
consultation database 

• Updated website and online consultation 

• Structured consultation form 

January – March 
2009 

Page 473



 

 2 

Stage Method of Involvement Timescale 

• Public notice in local papers / press 
release 

• Articles in Haringey People and Area 
Assembly newsletters 

Regulation 34 

Examination / 
Inspectors report 

• Updated website 

• Public notice in local papers / press 
release 

• Direct mailing letters / emails from 
consultation database 

• Articles in Haringey People and Area 
Assembly newsletters 

• Pre-examination public meeting 

• Examination organised by dedicated 
programme officer 

May – October 2009 

Regulation 36 

Adoption of the 
Core Strategy 

• Public notice of adoption. 

• Press release 

• Statement of responses / feedback on 
the process 

December 2009 

 
 

Page 474



 

 
 
Agenda item:  

 

   Cabinet                       On 18 December 2007 

 

Report Title:  Local Development Framework – Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) 
2006 / 2007 

 

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): 

Report of:  Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment. 
 

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision 

1. Purpose  
1.1 To seek Members approval for the Annual Monitoring Report for submission to the 

Government Office for London as required by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act (2004) and the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) 
(England) Regulations 2004. 

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member 
2.1  This report is brought to this committee for Cabinet Members to approve the Annual 

Monitoring Report before it is submitted to GOL. 
 

3. Recommendations 

3.1 That Members approve the Annual Monitoring Report for submission to the 
Government Office for London.  

 

 
Report Authorised by: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment 
 

 
Contact Officer: Ciara Whelehan, Senior Planning Policy Officer, ext. 5516 
 

4. Director of Finance Comments 

4.1 The milestones and targets included in the Annual Monitoring Report were achieved 
within approved PPD budgets for 2006/07.   

[No.] 

Agenda Item 14Page 475



 

 2 

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 

5.1 The Head of Legal Services comments that the statutory requirement for annual 
monitoring reports was a new provision in the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004.  The report is required to cover the 12 months from April each year and to 
be submitted within 9 months of the end of the relevant period.  As soon as 
reasonably practicable after an authority make an annual report to the Secretary of 
State it must publish the report on its web-site. 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
6.1 The following documents were used in the preparation of this report: 

•  Haringey Unitary Development Plan (July 2006)  

•  London Plan Annual Monitoring Report 3 (Mayor of London, February 2007) 

•    Local Development Framework Monitoring: A Good Practice Guide (ODPM 
March 2005) 

•    Local Development Framework Core Output Indicators Update 1/2005 (ODPM 
October 2005) 

 

7.  Strategic Implications 

7.1 The Annual Monitoring Report is a statutory document and is used for information 
purposes to assess the performance and effectiveness of planning policies and 
objectives. It is a corporate document and in particular, the significant effect 
indicators, which assess the significant social, economic and environmental effects of 
policies, share objectives where possible with the Council’s Sustainable Community 
Strategy, Local Area Agreements and the Core Strategy.  

  
8. Executive Summary 

 
8.1  Local planning authorities are required to produce an Annual Monitoring Report   

under Section 35 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and Regulation 
48 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 
2004. This AMR covers the period April 2006 to March 2007 and must be submitted 
to the Secretary of State by 31 December 2007. The publication of the AMR is also 
subject to a Best Value Performance Indicator (BV 200c).  

 
8.2  The AMR is used for information purposes to assess the performance and effectiveness 

of planning policies. It presents available statistical data relating to the planning 
policies in Haringey’s adopted Unitary Development Plan and the emerging Local 
Development Framework. It contains a monitoring framework that identifies targets 
and indicators, which will be used to assess the performance and effectiveness of the 
UDP objectives and key policies. The Report also identifies ongoing issues of data 
collection and analysis. 

 
9. Background  

Page 476



 

 3 

9.1 The Haringey Unitary Development Plan (UDP) was adopted in July 2006. The UDP 
deals with development and use of land in Haringey, and contains information on the 
Council’s policies and proposals. The UDP Review has been developed under the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Plan) (England) Regulations 1999. It was subject to three statutory 
public consultation stages and a public inquiry. The UDP Inquiry ran from April to 
September 2005 and the Council received the Inspector’s Report in January 2006. In 
response to the Inspector’s report, the Council’s Executive approved modifications to 
the UDP on 21 March 2006.  

 
9.2     On 30 March 2007, the Council submitted its revised Local Development Scheme 

(LDS) to the Government Office for London. The LDS is a three year project plan, 
which sets out a programme for replacing the UDP policies with Local Development 
Documents. The AMR monitors progress on the LDS. For 2006/07, the key 
milestones were the UDP Adoption, adoption of the Tottenham Hale Urban Centre 
Masterplan Supplementary Planning Document, and consultation and pre-submission 
consultation on the Statement of Community Involvement, as set out in Regulations 
25 and 26 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) 
Regulations 2004.  

 
9.3      This is the third AMR to be submitted to the Government Office for London. The 

previous reports (2004/05 and 2005/06) presented available statistical data relating to 
Haringey’s UDP policies and information on the Council’s development control 
performance. This Report takes forward many of the indicators used in the previous 
reports and addresses all the Core Output Indicators as identified by the Government. 
It also includes some significant effects indicators which assess the significant social, 
economic and environmental effects of policies. These indicators are linked to 
objectives for the sustainability appraisal of Local Development Documents. A full set 
of sustainability objectives and sub objectives have been identified in the 
Sustainability Appraisal for the Local Development Framework.  

 
 

10. Description – Format of the Annual Monitoring Report 

10.1 The AMR presents available statistical data relating to planning policies in Haringey’s 
adopted UDP. It also presents some contextual information on the borough’s 
population, health, housing and economy. It includes a monitoring schedule that 
identifies targets and indicators. This schedule will be used to assess the 
performance and effectiveness of the UDP objectives and key policies. It will develop 
over time as monitoring systems become more sophisticated.  

 
10.2 The AMR sets out information on the key planning policy issues in Haringey. These 

are grouped together under the following policy themes:- 
 

• Housing 

• Employment and Economic Activity 

• Retail and Town Centres 

Page 477



 

 4 

• Environment and Transport 

• Planning Obligations  
 

10.3 The AMR covers a monitoring period April 2006 – March 2007. Where possible, data 
is provided for the monitoring period, but in other cases the most recent data is 
provided.  

 
10.4 In July 2007, the Government published for consultation a list of proposed indicators 

for the new performance framework. In October 2007, as part of the Comprehensive 
Spending Review announcement, the Government published the single set of 198 
national indicators for local authorities and local authority partnerships that will 
underpin the new performance framework. The final handbook of definitions will be 
published in February 2008 for implementation from 1 April 2008.  

 
10.5  Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 12 requires local authorities to produce a housing 

trajectory as part of their AMR. A housing trajectory identifies housing performance in 
terms of net additional dwellings against a borough housing target. A housing 
trajectory has been included in the AMR to show past supply of housing and 
estimated progress towards the borough’s housing target. The trajectory will be 
updated annually and will be used to influence the delivery of major sites, reflect site 
phasing requirements or check progress of windfall sites. Reflecting guidance in 
PPS3 local authorities are required to identify a list of deliverable sites to deliver 
housing over the next five years.  

 
10.6 Housing and Planning Delivery Grant (HPDG) will replace the existing Planning 

Delivery Grant due to come into effect in April 2008. Its purpose is to incentivise 
increased housing delivery and improved plan making. The planning element of the 
HPDG is likely to be split across three components: 

 

• Assessment and delivery of land for housing over a five and 15 year timescale 
(40% of planning element) This will be measured through National Indicator (NI) 
159 – supply of ready to develop housing sites and assessed in either a five 
year land supply of housing contained within a Strategic Housing Assessment or 
the Annual Monitoring Report. 

• Delivery of ‘sound’ DPDs (50% of planning element) 

• Delivery of ‘sound’ DPDs and Strategic Housing Market Assessments through 
joint working (10% of planning element) 

 
10.7 Government advice suggests that authorities should avoid developing large sets of 

indicators, particularly during the initial stages of developing their monitoring 
frameworks. Initially a small set of local, contextual and significant effects indicators 
have been selected which currently reflect the availability of data. These indicators 
are consistent with national and regional planning policy objectives, the core output 
indicators and UDP policy and objectives. 

 
10.8 The AMR also reviews progress on the preparation of the Council’s Local 

Development Framework as indicated in the timetable and milestones set out in the 

Page 478



 

 5 

LDS. The key milestones for 2006/07 were the UDP Adoption, adoption of the 
Tottenham Hale Urban Centre Masterplan SPD, and consultation and pre-submission 
consultation on the Statement of Community Involvement, as set out in Regulations 
25 and 26 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) 
Regulations 2004.  

 
10.9 The AMR identifies that the Council is performing well against Best Value 

performance Indicators for planning and has met its 2006/07 targets for planning 
applications and appeals and for new homes built on previously developed land. It 
also submitted its revised Local Development Scheme by the end of March 2007 and 
will meet the Best Value target for monitoring by submitting this AMR by 31 
December 2007. From the information available, the AMR demonstrates that the UDP 
policies are effective and performance is improving, particularly with regard to 
housing. The Council is meeting its new housing target with all new homes built on 
previously developed land. The AMR also demonstrates that the policies for the 
borough’s employment areas and town centres are effective.  

 
10.10 From April 2008, the Government’s standard planning application form (1 App), which 

will provide authorities with a wider source of data on development proposals, will be 
mandatory. From 2006/07, development monitoring procedures have been in place to 
capture more information from planning applications. The introduction of 1 App and 
improved monitoring procedures should improve data collection and overcome a 
number of information gaps. 

 
10.11 The Greater London Authority’s monitoring database, the London Development 

Database (LDD) has been designed to record the progress of planning permissions in 
the Greater London area. The system has been altered in order to accommodate 
some of the Government’s Core Output Indicators. In February 2007, the Mayor of 
London published the third London Plan Annual Monitoring Report (AMR3). The AMR 
has a number of information gaps, which are being addressed by the LDD.  

 

11. Process and consultation  

11.1    There is no requirement to consult on the Annual Monitoring Report. For future 
AMRs, the Council will consult with other local authorities and bodies to co-ordinate 
the capture and analysis of data and to try and overcome any monitoring gaps. This 
is particularly relevant in relation to monitoring the Joint Waste Development Plan 
Document.  

 
11.2    The Council is encouraged to bring any monitoring problems to the attention of the 

Government Office. The Planning Service attends regular monitoring meetings at 
London Councils to share information and good practice.  

12.  Financial Implications 

Page 479



 

 6 

12.1    The Annual Monitoring Report reviews progress on the preparation of the Council’s 
Local Development Framework as indicated in the timetable and milestones set out 
in the Local Development Scheme.  

 
12.2 In 2008/09, Planning Delivery Grant will be replaced by the Housing and Planning 

Delivery Grant (HPDG) which focuses on plan making and housing delivery. The 
Council should expect to receive an award of HPDG from 2008/09 if it progresses 
its LDF documents according to the milestones in its Local Development Scheme. 

 

13.  Legal Implications  

13.1   Each AMR is required to include the title of the documents in the authority’s local 
development scheme and details of the timetable specified in the scheme and 
performance against the timetable.  It is expected that this performance will have 
grant implications in the future. 

14.   Equalities Implications  

14.1 The AMR provides an analysis of planning decisions. No specific issues relating to 
equalities were identified. As the LDF progresses, the sustainability appraisal of local 
planning documents will include an Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA).  

 

15. Conclusion  

15.1 The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) presents available statistical data relating to 
planning policies in Haringey’s adopted UDP and emerging Local Development 
Framework. This is the third AMR and provides a monitoring framework to assess 
the performance and effectiveness of planning policies.  

 
15.2 The publication of the AMR is a statutory requirement under the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act (2004). It is subject to a Best Value Performance 
Indicator and the award of Housing and Planning Delivery Grant. The AMR 
demonstrates that the Council has met its Best Value performance targets for 
planning and that the UDP policies are effective, with performance improving in 
housing provision.  

 
16. Use of Appendices 

 
• Appendix 1 – Executive Summary from the Annual Monitoring Report 2007 

 
 
 

 

 
 
Local Development Framework       Appendix 1 
Annual Monitoring Report 2007 

Page 480



 

 7 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) presents available statistical data relating to 
planning policies in Haringey’s adopted UDP. It also presents some background 
information on the Borough’s population, housing and economy and information on the 
Council’s development control performance as monitored by the Government’s Best 
Value (BV) performance indicators.  
 
The report covers the period 1 April 2006 – 31 March 2007. 
 
The AMR reviews progress on the preparation of the Council’s Local Development 
Framework as indicated in the timetable and milestones set out in the Local 
Development Scheme. The key milestones for 2006/2007 were the UDP Adoption, 
adoption of the Tottenham Hale Urban Centre Masterplan Supplementary Planning 
Document, and the submission of the Statement of Community Involvement 
(regulations 25 and 26). The AMR identifies that these milestones were met.  
 
The AMR includes some significant effects indicators which assess the social, 
economic and environmental effects of policies, including the amount of development 
built on previously developed land, the level of affordable housing completions and the 
number of parks managed to Green Flag Award standard. These indicators are linked 
to the objectives for the sustainability appraisal of Local Development Documents. A 
full set of sustainability objectives and indicators have been developed for the Local 
Development Framework.  
 
For further information please contact: 
The Planning Policy Team 
020 8489 5269 or 
ldf@haringey.gov.uk  
 
Population  
 

• Haringey has a population of 225,700 (mid 2006 estimate) living in an area of 30 
square kilometres. Haringey accounts for 3% of the total London population. 

 

• Haringey’s population has grown by 8.4% since 1991 and is projected to grow by a 
further 21% by 2021 

 

• 43% of the population are from black and minority ethnic groups, the 6th highest 
proportion in London, and almost half of all pupils in Haringey schools speak 
English as an additional language 

 

• Haringey’s population is relatively young in comparison to London’s and the 
national population – there are relatively more people aged between 20 to 44 

 

Page 481



 

 8 

• Haringey has a relatively transient population. At the time of the 2001 Census, there 
were 36,000 migrants in the borough, the 9th highest proportion in London. 

 
 
Development Control 
 

• In 2006/07, a total of 2,028 planning applications were determined by the Council. 
Of these:- 

- 82% of major applications were determined within 13 weeks compared to a 
Government target of 60% (BV 109a) and business plan target of 77% 

- 83% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks compared to a 
Government target of 65% (BV 109b) and business plan target of 78% 

- 92% of other applications were determined within 8 weeks compared to a 
Government target of 80% (BV 109c). and business plan target of 86% 

 

• There were 139 appeals against the Council’s decision to refuse planning 
applications, of which 37% were allowed, compared to a Council target of 35% (BV 
204). However, performance over the last three quarters stood at 39%. 

 

• In 2006/07, a total of 2,462 planning applications were received: 

- 24% were major and minor applications (614 applications) of which 56% were 
for housing development (342 applications) and 18% were for retail and 
distribution (108 applications) 

- 64% were other applications (1,552 applications) of which 54% were 
householder applications (825 applications), 6% were for change of use (101 
applications) and 7% were for Conservation Area or Listed Building Consent  
(110 applications) 

 

• There were no planning applications relating to minerals and waste management.  
 

Housing 

 

• In 2006, 100% of completions took place on previously developed land, which 
exceeded the Council target of 95% and the Government target of 60%. (BV 106) 

 

• In 2006/07, 1067 dwellings were completed in the Borough, comprising:  

- 64% new build (681 dwellings) 
- 31% conversions & extensions (333 dwellings) 
- 5% changes of use (53 dwellings) 
 

The number of new dwellings exceeds the completions component of the new 
housing target for Haringey. 

 

Page 482



 

 9 

• Of the proportion of new build units completed in 2006/07, 312 affordable housing 
units were completed. This represents 46% of all housing completions 
 

• At March 2006, Haringey had an estimated 1961 empty private sector properties, 
which was the 13 highest proportion in London. Of this, 1,001 were vacant for 
longer than six months.  

 

• In 2006/07, 101 empty private sector properties were brought back into use.  
 

• In 2005-06, residential developments were completed at an average density of 116 
dwellings per hectare, above the average for outer London and in accordance with 
PPS3. This compares to an average density of 84 dwellings per hectare for 2001-
2004. 

 

• Of the housing completions in 2006/07, 58% were one bedroom units and 36% 
were two bedroom units. 

 

• Of these completions, 75% were social rented units and 25% were intermediate 
units. 

 

• Of the affordable housing completed in 2004-2006 only 9.8% were three or four 
bedrooms. Over half (55.9%) were two bedroom units and 34.3% were one 
bedroom units. 

 

• In January 2007, a Gypsy Caravan Count identified two gypsy and traveller sites in 
the borough, both of which were authorised Council sites. The count identified 10 
caravans on these sites. The sites have a total caravan capacity of 20 pitches. No 
unauthorised encampments were identified, compared to 10 unauthorised caravans 
in January 2003. 

 

Employment and economic activity 

 

• In March 2006, 7.7% of Haringey’s residents were unemployed, which was higher 
than the London rate (4.6%) and more double the national unemployment rate. 

 

• In 2006/07, 8 major applications for non-residential use were received. 
 

• Haringey is home to approximately 8,200 businesses, together employing some 
64,700 people. 94% of the businesses are small, employing fewer than 24 people. 
The major sectors of employment in Haringey are retail and wholesale distribution 
(19.9%) and health and social work (19.0%). Manufacturing and construction 
account for 11.8% of all employment. 

 

• In 2006, 11.5% of VAT registered businesses were newly registered in Haringey 
compared with 11.3% in London.  

Page 483



 

 10

Retail and Town Centres 

 

• In 2003, the Borough ‘lost’ a significant amount of retail expenditure to centres 
outside of the borough, as the borough had an overall 38% market share for 
convenience (food) shopping and an overall 27% market share for comparison (non 
food) shopping.  

 

• In 2006/07, four major applications for retail development were received. 
 

• It is predicted that the borough will require an additional 40,430 sq.m. of comparison 
goods floorspace and an additional 5,250 sq.m. of convenience goods floorspace 
by 2016. 

 

• In 2005/2006, vacancy rates in Haringey’s six main town centres varied from 2% to 
10%, compared to a national vacancy rate of 11%. Vacancy rates have risen since 
2002/03. 

 

• The proportion of non A1 (retail) use varies between 31% in Wood Green 
Metropolitan Centre and 46% in Green Lanes District Centre. 

 

• Haringey has 38 Local Shopping Centres. There are 119 vacant shops in these 
centres representing an overall vacancy rate of 11%. Overall, the proportion of non 
A1 (retail) use in these centres is 42%. 

 

Environment and Transport 

 

• 27% of the land area of Haringey is green spaces and areas of water.  
 

• Haringey has 1.7 hectares of open space per 1,000 of the population. In 2006/2007 
there was no net loss of designated open space. 

 

• Eight parks were managed to Green Flag Award standard in 2006/07. This 
amounted to 17 hectares and represented 76% of total designated open space in 
the borough. 

 

• 95% of Haringey residents have access to recycling services. In 2005/06 Haringey 
achieved a recycling rate of 19.2% of all waste, significantly higher than its 18% 
target. Recycling rates have increased from 4% in 2003. 

 

• In 2006/07 the Council received seven planning applications for solar power and 
two planning applications for wind turbines. 

 

• During 2006/07, no planning permissions were granted contrary to advice of the 
Environment Agency on either flood defence grounds or water quality. 

 

Page 484



 

 11

• In terms of ecology, Haringey contains 12 National Priority Species, six London 
Priority Species, 19 Haringey Priority Species, five London Flagship Species and 16 
Haringey Flagship Species (a flagship species is one that is readily recognised and 
represents biodiversity to the wider public). 

 

• In 2006/07, four planning applications were accompanied by a travel plan. In 
addition, 27 approved planning applications have been dedicated as ‘car free’ 
developments. 

 

Planning Obligations 

 

• During 2006/07, the Council secured planning obligations and signed legal 
agreements on 20 planning permissions. The total amount negotiated was 
£1,714,684.71. 

 

• In addition the Council negotiated and secured 172 affordable housing units all 
providing on-site provision. 

Page 485



Page 486

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
Major non-residential applications 

  
 
Major non-residential planning applications 
 
In 2006/07, 8 major applications for non residential use were granted. These 
are:  
 

• HGY/2006/2067 – Cold Store, Cranford Way, N8 

• HGY/2006/2234 – Former TUC Centre Site, Crouch End Hill and 
Coleridge Primary School, Crescent Road, Crouch End 

• HGY/2006/1839 – 72 – 96 Park Road, N8 

• HGY/2006/0837 – 40 Coleridge Road, N8 

• HGY/2006/2336 – Tottenham Hale Retail Park, Broad Lane, N15 

• HGY/2006/0710 – 691 – 693 High Road, N17 

• HGY/2006/0722 – Unit 21, Cranford Way, N8 

• HGY/2006/1298 – Hornsey Water Treatment Works, Newland Road, N8 
 
 
 

Page 487



Page 488

This page is intentionally left blank



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\0\2\AI00009202\Cabinet20071218Item14LocalDevelopmentFrameworkAppendix30.do

c 

 
Appendix 3 

Planning Obligations 
 

The Council negotiated and secured planning obligations and signed legal 
agreements on 20 planning permissions within financial year 2006/07 under 
S106 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.  The total amount negotiated 
was £1,714,684.71.  Obligations received so far for agreements signed 
2006/07 is £1,090,627.18 and monies spent to date £240,941.31. 
 
The table below details the type and amount of contributions secured. 
 
Type of Contribution Secured Amount 
Administration & Monitoring £ 73,839.37 
Education Provision £ 1,159,281.22 
Environmental Improvement £ 208,664.12 

Car-Free Developments £ 400.00 
Street Scene / Highway Works £ 140,000.00 
Employment £ 75,000.00 
Recreation / Open Spaces £ 50,000.00 
Play Scheme Contribution £ 7,500.00 

TOTAL £ 1,714,684.71 
 
In addition the Council negotiated and secured 172 Affordable housing units 
all providing on-site provision. 
 
 
 

Page 489



Page 490

This page is intentionally left blank



P
la

n
n
in

g
 O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 N

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
-2

0
0
7

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 N

o
.

S
it
e
 A

d
d
re

s
s

D
a
te

 S
1
0
6
 

S
ig

n
e
d

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

A
d
m

in
 &

 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 U

n
it
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

A
s
s
o
c
. 
w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
.

E
n
v
. 
P

o
o
l

E
n
v
. 
A

s
s
o
c
. 
w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
.

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

te
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

S
c
h
e
m

e

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
g
t 

O
rd

e
r 

- 
c
a
r-

fr
e
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
.

S
tr

e
e
t 
S

c
e
n
e
 

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

O
th

e
r

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
5
/1

8
7
4

1
5
4
 W

e
s
t 
G

re
e
n
 R

o
a
d
, 

N
1
5

1
9
-A

p
r-

0
6

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 l
a
n
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

1
 x

 2
 s

to
re

y 
b
lo

c
k
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 o

f 
6
 x

 2
 b

e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

2
 x

 1
 b

e
d
 s

e
lf
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 f

la
ts

.

2
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
0
,4

5
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
Y

e
s

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/0

1
0
9

6
7
3
 L

o
rd

s
h
ip

 L
a
n
e
, 
N

2
2

2
0
-A

p
r-

0
6

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
 x

 5
 

s
to

re
y 

b
u
ild

in
g
 f

ro
n
ti
n
g
 L

o
rd

s
h
ip

 l
a
n
e
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 5

 x
 1

 

b
e
d
, 
6
 x

 2
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 2

 x
 3

 b
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 1

4
 b

ic
yc

le
 

s
ta

n
d
s
, 
5
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
 a

re
a
 f

o
r 

re
fu

s
e
 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
yc

lin
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r.

3
,5

3
1
.6

4
2
 x

 3
 s

h
a
re

d
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 &
 3

 x
 

2
 p

e
ri
o
d
ic

 

te
n
a
n
c
y 

fo
r 

re
n
t 

=
 5

6
0
,6

3
1
.2

8
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
Y

e
s

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
5
/2

2
1
5

2
2
-2

4
 H

ig
h
 R

o
a
d
, 
N

2
2

1
1
-M

a
y-

0
6

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a
rt

 2
, 
3
 &

 5
 s

to
re

y 
b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 

re
ta

il 
a
t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
r 

1
s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

a
t 
1
s
t,
 2

n
d
 &

 3
rd

 &
 4

th
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
c
o
n
s
is

ti
n
g
 o

f 
4
 x

 1
 

b
e
d
 a

n
d
 5

 x
 2

 b
e
d
 f

la
ts

. 
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 r

e
fu

s
e
 a

n
d
 c

yc
le

 

s
to

ra
g
e
 a

t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 l
e
v
e
l.

1
,3

8
7
.1

8
2
7
,7

4
3
.5

8
Y

e
s

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/0

7
1
0

6
9
1
-6

9
3
 H

ig
h
 R

o
a
d
, 
N

1
7

0
5
-J

u
l-
0
6

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a
rt

 1
, 

2
, 
3
 &

 4
 s

to
re

y 
b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 1

8
0
s
q
.m

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
fl
o
o
rs

p
a
c
e
 (

B
1
) 

a
n
d
 5

8
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 

w
it
h
 2

0
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
.

1
1
,0

0
2
.2

9
4
0
 u

n
it
s
 s

h
a
re

d
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 &
 1

8
 

u
n
it
s
 p

e
ri
o
d
ic

 

te
n
a
n
c
y 

fo
r 

re
n
t 

=
 5

8

2
0
6
,7

4
3
.1

0
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
Y

e
s

5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
5
/1

1
5
1

B
lo

c
k
 C

, 
T

h
e
 

C
a
m

p
s
b
o
u
rn

e
, 
H

ig
h
 

S
tr

e
e
t,
 N

8

1
4
-J

u
l-
0
6

C
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
a
 4

 s
to

re
y 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

t 
B

lo
c
k
 C

, 
T

h
e
 

C
a
m

p
s
b
o
u
rn

e
, 
to

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
 8

 x
 2

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

u
n
it
s
.

1
3
,3

9
6
.0

0

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/0

8
3
7

4
0
 C

o
le

ri
d
g
e
 R

o
a
d
, 
N

8
2
5
-J

u
l-
0
6

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
it
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
8
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 o

f 
2
 x

 3
 s

to
re

y 
5
 b

e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 C

o
le

ri
d
g
e
 

R
o
a
d
, 
2
 x

 2
 s

to
re

y 
3
 b

e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

o
o
m

s
 a

t 

b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
le

v
e
l 
a
n
d
 4

 x
 3

 s
to

re
y 

3
 b

e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

re
a
r.

  
E

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a
rt

 s
in

g
le

 /
 p

a
rt

 3
 s

to
re

y 
B

1
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
b
lo

c
k
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

. 
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
fu

s
e
 s

to
ra

g
e
.

6
,0

5
3
.0

0
1
0
1
,0

7
0
.0

0
Y

e
s

2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
5
/2

1
5
9

2
4
A

 B
ir
s
ta

ll 
R

o
a
d
, 
N

1
5

1
4
-A

u
g
-0

6
E

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y 
b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 4

 x
 1

 a
n
d
 

4
 x

 2
 s

e
lf
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 f

la
ts

.

1
,8

9
2
.6

5
2
2
,8

5
2
.9

0
Y

e
s

1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/0

8
2
9

7
2
-7

4
 T

w
yf

o
rd

 A
v
e
n
u
e
, 
N

2
1
4
-A

u
g
-0

6
R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 9

 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

4
 x

 3
 s

to
re

y 
5
 b

e
d
, 
4
 x

 p
a
rt

 2
 /
 p

a
rt

 3
 s

to
re

y 
5
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 

1
 x

 2
 s

to
re

y 
4
 b

e
d
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
. 
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
o
n
e
 t
e
n
n
is

 

c
o
u
rt

 a
n
d
 1

 p
a
v
ili

o
n
 t
o
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

s
it
e
.

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
Y

e
s

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/0

3
5
8
 

&
 D

e
e
d
 o

f 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 (

D
o
V

) 

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/1

7
8
1

1
2
-1

4
 H

ig
h
 R

o
a
d
 &

 

W
h
ym

a
rk

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

W
h
ym

a
rk

 A
v
e
n
u
e
, 
N

2
2

0
1
-S

e
p
-0

6
E

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a
rt

 1
/p

a
rt

 2
 s

to
re

y 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

t 
1
s
t 
&

 2
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
ls

 t
o
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

1
2
-1

4
 H

ig
h
 R

o
a
d
, 
N

2
2
 a

n
d
 a

t 

W
h
ym

a
rk

 H
o
u
s
e
 f

ro
n
ti
n
g
 W

h
ym

a
rk

 A
v
e
n
u
e
, 
N

2
2
. 
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
1
s
t 
a
n
d
 2

n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

fr
o
m

 o
ff

ic
e
 t
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 c
re

a
te

 6
 x

 1
 b

e
d
, 
2
 x

 2
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 1

 x
 3

 

b
e
d
 s

e
lf
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 f

la
ts

 w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 r

e
fu

s
e
 a

n
d
 

c
yc

le
 s

to
ra

g
e
 a

t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 p

a
rt

ia
l 

d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
re

a
r 

1
2
-1

4
 H

ig
h
 R

o
a
d
, 
N

2
2
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

3
 s

to
re

y 
n
e
w

 b
u
ild

 t
o
 m

a
tc

h
 t
h
e
 m

a
s
s
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

W
h
ym

a
rk

 A
v
e
n
u
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 (

g
iv

e
n
 t
o
 

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/1

7
8
1
) 

D
o
V

1
,1

5
0
.4

6
2
3
,0

0
9
.2

2
Y

e
s

2
0
0
.0

0
C

a
r 

fr
e
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

1

Page 491



P
la

n
n
in

g
 O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 N

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
-2

0
0
7

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 N

o
.

S
it
e
 A

d
d
re

s
s

D
a
te

 S
1
0
6
 

S
ig

n
e
d

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

A
d
m

in
 &

 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 U

n
it
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

A
s
s
o
c
. 
w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
.

E
n
v
. 
P

o
o
l

E
n
v
. 
A

s
s
o
c
. 
w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
.

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

te
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

S
c
h
e
m

e

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
g
t 

O
rd

e
r 

- 
c
a
r-

fr
e
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
.

S
tr

e
e
t 
S

c
e
n
e
 

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

O
th

e
r

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
5
/1

8
9
6

7
2
5
-7

3
3
 L

o
rd

s
h
ip

 L
a
n
e
, 

N
2
2

3
1
-M

a
y-

0
6

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 l
a
n
d
 f

o
r 

a
 m

ix
e
d
 u

s
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 a

 6
-7

 s
to

re
y 

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

f 
9
0
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 (

re
c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

t 
8
7
 u

n
it
s
)(

1
1
7
 

h
a
b
it
a
b
le

 r
o
o
m

s
) 

w
it
h
 5

0
%

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 w

it
h
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
u
s
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 H
e
a
lt
h
 C

e
n
tr

e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 h

a
rd

 a
n
d
 s

o
ft

 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 

w
o
rk

s
.

2
3
,8

7
3
.2

0
3
3
 x

 3
 u

n
it
s
 

s
h
a
re

d
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 &
 9

 x
 

1
 p

e
ri
o
d
ic

 

te
n
a
n
c
y 

fo
r 

re
n
t 

=
 4

2

3
2
1
,9

6
0
.3

8
8
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
H

e
a
lt
h
 C

a
re

 

C
e
n
tr

e

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
4
/2

1
1
6

5
4
7
A

&
B

 H
ig

h
 R

o
a
d
, 
N

1
7

0
1
-O

c
t-

0
6

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 3

 s
to

re
y 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

h
o
p
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 6

 x
 2

 b
e
d
 a

n
d
 8

 x
 1

 b
e
d
 s

e
lf
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 f

la
ts

.

1
,5

0
0
.0

0
4
,8

3
5
.8

8
5
,1

6
4
.1

2

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
5
/2

3
1
3

G
ro

v
e
la

n
d
s
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

B
u
ild

in
g
, 
G

ro
v
e
la

n
d
s
 R

o
a
d
 

&
 L

e
m

s
fo

rd
 C

lo
s
e
, 
N

1
5

0
8
-N

o
v
-0

6
D

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 f

o
u
r 

s
to

re
y 

b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 5

6
 x

 1
, 
2
 &

 3
 b

e
d
 f

la
ts

 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 h

a
rd

 a
n
d
 s

o
ft

 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 

g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
f:

 H
G

Y
/2

0
0
4
/1

3
4
1
 

th
e
n
 t
o
 a

m
e
n
d
 m

ix
 o

f 
u
n
it
s
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 1
3
 x

 1
 b

e
d
, 
3
7
 x

 

2
 b

e
d
, 
4
 x

 3
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 2

 x
 4

 b
e
d
 f

la
ts

.

3
9
 s

h
a
re

d
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 &
 1

7
 

p
e
ri
o
d
ic

 t
e
n
a
c
y 

fo
r 

re
n
t 
=

 5
6

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/1

2
9
8

H
o
rn

s
e
y 

W
a
te

r 
T

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

s
, 
N

e
w

la
n
d
 R

o
a
d
, 
N

8

0
1
-N

o
v
-0

6
E

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
re

-t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 b

ro
m

a
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

fa
c
ili

ty
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 f

o
u
r 

n
e
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 i
) 

p
re

-t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
; 
ii)

 c
h
e
m

ic
a
l 
s
to

ra
g
e
 a

n
d
 d

o
s
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
; 
iii

) 

c
a
ta

ly
ti
c
 G

A
C

 b
u
ild

in
g
/s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 i
v
) 

w
a
s
h
w

a
te

r 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 b
u
ild

in
g
/s

tr
u
c
tu

re
; 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

la
n
t 
a
n
d
 

m
a
c
h
in

e
ry

 a
n
d
 n

e
w

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
s
 o

f 
N

e
w

 

R
iv

e
r 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
e
s
ta

te
 

ro
a
d
 f

ro
m

 w
it
h
in

 N
e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g
e
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 o

n
ly

.

2
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
Y

e
s

4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
C

a
m

p
s
b
o
u
rn

e
 

P
la

ys
c
h
e
m

e
 

£
7
,5

0
0

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/1

8
3
9

7
2
-9

6
 P

a
rk

 R
o
a
d
, 
N

8
1
4
-D

e
c
-0

6
E

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

tw
o
 f

lo
o
rs

 t
o
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 2

 s
to

re
y 

b
u
ild

in
g
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 6
 x

 2
 a

n
d
 3

 x
 3

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

 f
la

ts
 a

n
d
 4

 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
u
n
it
s
. 
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
5
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
c
o
v
e
re

d
 b

in
 s

to
ra

g
e
.

3
,1

5
2
.0

0
5
3
,0

9
8
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
Y

e
s

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
4
/2

3
8
0

7
9
-9

1
 K

ir
k
to

n
 R

o
a
d
, 
N

1
5

1
2
-D

e
c
-0

6
D

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
7
 x

 2
 

s
to

re
y 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 6

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 

re
fu

s
e
 s

to
ra

g
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
.

3
,2

1
4
.2

0
1
1
,7

8
5
.8

0
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
5
/0

8
0
8

H
a
rv

e
y 

M
e
w

s
, 
H

a
rv

e
y 

R
o
a
d
, 
N

8

1
8
-J

a
n
-0

7
D

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 g

a
ra

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
5
 x

 3
 

s
to

re
y 

3
 b

e
d
ro

o
m

 d
w

e
lli

n
g
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 r

o
o
m

s
 a

t 

lo
w

e
r 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 u
p
p
e
r 

g
ro

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f

ir
s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
ls

, 

b
a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 t
o
 f

ro
n
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 f

o
r 

5
 c

a
rs

.

2
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
Y

e
s

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/1

2
6
5

2
1
-2

9
 T

e
w

k
e
s
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
, 

N
1
5

2
5
-J

a
n
-0

7
E

re
c
ri
o
n
 o

f 
a
 4

 s
to

re
y 

b
lo

c
k
 w

it
h
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 4

th
 f

lo
o
r 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 4

 x
 1

 b
e
d
 a

n
d
 5

 x
 2

 b
e
d
 s

e
lf
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 

fl
a
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 u

p
p
e
r 

fl
o
o
rs

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
ro

o
f 

g
a
rd

e
n
 a

t 
3
rd

 

fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 B

1
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
u
s
e
 a

t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 

a
n
c
ill

a
ry

 p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

yc
le

 s
to

ra
g
e
. 
 C

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 

c
ro

s
s
o
v
e
r 

to
 T

e
w

je
s
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
, 
N

1
5
.

1
,3

9
7
.2

2
1
9
,6

0
2
.7

8
6
,5

0
0

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

6
,5

0
0
.0

0

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/1

5
0
4

L
a
n
d
 a

d
j 
to

 4
8
 E

liz
a
b
e
th

 

P
la

c
e
, 
N

1
5

1
4
-M

a
r-

0
7

E
re

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
5
 x

 2
 s

to
re

y 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 (

2
 x

 3
 b

e
d
, 
2
 x

 2
 b

e
d
 

a
n
d
 1

 x
 4

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

 h
o
u
s
e
s
) 

in
 t
w

o
 b

lo
c
k
s
.

4
5
7
.9

4
1
5
,2

6
4
.8

9
Y

e
s

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/0

9
0
2

U
n
it
s
 2

, 
4
 &

 5
, 
1
0
3
-1

4
9
 

C
o
rn

w
a
ll 

R
o
a
d
 &

 l
a
n
d
 

a
d
jo

in
in

g
 2

 F
a
lm

e
r 

R
o
a
d
, 

N
1
5

0
1
-M

a
r-

0
7

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
u
n
it
s
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
a
rt

 3
/p

a
rt

 4
 s

to
re

y 
b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 7

 x
 1

 b
e
d
 f

la
ts

 

a
n
d
 1

5
 x

 2
 b

e
d
 f

la
ts

, 
w

it
h
 r

e
fu

s
e
 a

n
d
 b

ic
yc

le
 s

to
ra

g
e
 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
.

2
,2

8
7
.5

9
1
1
 u

n
it
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 

re
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 

in
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 

te
n
u
re

 =
 1

1

7
1
,2

3
7
.4

1
Y

e
s

5
,0

0
0
.0

0

2

Page 492



P
la

n
n
in

g
 O

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 N

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
-2

0
0
7

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 N

o
.

S
it
e
 A

d
d
re

s
s

D
a
te

 S
1
0
6
 

S
ig

n
e
d

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

A
d
m

in
 &

 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 U

n
it
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

A
s
s
o
c
. 
w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
.

E
n
v
. 
P

o
o
l

E
n
v
. 
A

s
s
o
c
. 
w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
.

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

te
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

S
c
h
e
m

e

T
ra

ff
ic

 M
g
t 

O
rd

e
r 

- 
c
a
r-

fr
e
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
.

S
tr

e
e
t 
S

c
e
n
e
 

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

O
th

e
r

H
G

Y
/2

0
0
6
/2

2
7
6

1
2
0
-1

2
8
 M

a
ye

s
 R

o
a
d
, 
N

2
2

2
0
-M

a
r-

0
7

D
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
n
e
 

th
re

e
 s

to
re

y 
b
lo

c
k
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 1

 x
 1

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

, 
5
 x

 2
 

b
e
d
ro

o
m

 &
 3

 x
 3

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

 s
e
lf
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 f

la
ts

 a
n
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

s
 c

a
r 

fr
e
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

3
,4

4
0
.0

0
4
8
,6

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
Y

e
s

£
2
0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
S

 £
  
  
  
7
3
,8

3
9
.3

7
 

1
7
2
 u

n
it
s

 £
  
  
1
,1

5
7
,2

8
1
.2

2
 

 £
  
  
 2

,0
0
0
.0

0
 

 £
  
  
  
2
5
,1

6
4
.1

2
 

 £
  
  
1
8
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
 

£
4
0
0
.0

0
 £

  
 1

4
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

 £
  
 7

5
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

 £
  
  
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

 £
  
  
  
  
 7

,5
0
0
.0

0
 

 £
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

,7
14

,6
84

.7
1 

S
10

6 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

n
eg

o
ti

at
ed

 in
 y

ea
r 

20
06

/0
7

3

Page 493



Page 494

This page is intentionally left blank



        Agenda Item  
 
 

 The Cabinet                         On  18 December 2007 
 

 
Report title: DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS 
 

 
Report of: The Chief Executive 
 

 
1. Purpose 
 
To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and significant actions taken by Directors. 
 
The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors under delegated 
powers. Significant actions (decisions involving expenditure of more than £50,000) taken 
during the same period are also detailed. 
 
 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

 
Report authorised by: Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive 
 
 

 
Contact officer: Richard Burbidge 
 
Telephone: 020 8489 2923  
 
 

Agenda Item 15Page 495



4. Access to information: 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
4.1 Background Papers 

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report; 
 

Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions Forms 
 

Those marked with ♦ contain exempt information and are not available for public 
inspection. 

 
The background papers are located at River Park House 225 High Road, Wood 
Green, London N22 8HQ. 

 
           To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge 

on 020 8489 2923. 
 

 

Page 496



D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
 O

F
 A

d
u

lt
s 

, C
u

lt
u

re
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
d

ec
is

io
n

s 
- 

D
e
le

g
a
te

d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

♦
 d

e
n

o
te

s
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d

 p
a
p

e
rs

 a
re

 E
x
e

m
p

t.
 

 
N

o
 

 
D

at
e 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 b

y 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

T
it

le
 

D
ec

is
io

n
 

1.
  

23
rd

 O
ct

o
b

er
 

20
07

 
H

ar
in

g
ey

 E
xt

en
d

ed
 s

ch
o

o
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

F
o

o
tb

al
l p

ro
je

ct
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
m

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

L
e
is

u
re

, 
C

u
lt
u
re

 &
 L

if
e
lo

n
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 t
o

 w
a

iv
e
r 

C
o
n

tr
a
c
t 
S

ta
n

d
in

g
 O

rd
e
rs

 
(r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
e
n
d

e
r)

 f
o
r 

th
e
 E

x
te

n
d

e
d
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 f
o
o
tb

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
it
h

 T
o
tt
e
n
h

a
m

 H
o
ts

p
u
r 

F
o
u
n
d

a
ti
o
n
  

2.
 

16
th

 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 

20
07

 

L
ea

se
s 

fo
r 

L
au

n
d

ry
 E

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

A
C

C
S

 t
o
 e

n
te

r 
in

 t
o
 l
e
a
s
e
s
 

  3
. 

2n
d
 &

 2
n

d
 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

00
7 

re
sp

ec
ti

ve
ly

 

C
o

n
su

lt
an

cy
 (

S
p

ec
ia

lis
t)

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

A
C

C
S

 w
a
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 2

 o
n
e
-o

ff
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 

  4
. 

 
 

 

  D
el

eg
at

ed
 A

ct
io

n
 

 T
yp

e 
N

u
m

b
er

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 497



Page 498

This page is intentionally left blank



D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
 O

F
 T

H
E

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
 A

N
D

 Y
O

U
N

G
 P

E
O

P
L

E
’S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
d

ec
is

io
n

s 
- 

D
e
le

g
a
te

d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

♦
 d

e
n

o
te

s
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d

 p
a
p

e
rs

 a
re

 E
x
e

m
p

t.
 

 
N

o
 

 
D

at
e 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 b

y 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

T
it

le
 

D
ec

is
io

n
 

1.
  

2
3
.1

1
.0

7
 

A
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

C
S

O
 1

1
.0

2
 –

 W
o
o
d
s
id

e
 

H
ig

h
 S

c
h

o
o
l 
T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
a
m

 
A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o

n
* 

  
(£

9
0
,9

8
1
.3

8
) 

A
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

2.
 

1
3
.1

1
.0

7
 

A
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 
u
n
d
e
r 

C
S

O
 1

1
.0

2
 f

o
r 

B
ig

 L
o
tt
e
ry

 
F

u
n
d
- 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 P
la

y
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
* 

(£
7
8
0
,9

8
2

 i
n

 t
o
ta

l 
to

 v
a
ri

o
u

s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

) 

A
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

  3
. 

2
9
.1

0
.0

7
 

A
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 
u
n
d
e
r 

C
S

O
 1

1
.0

2
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

c
a
re

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 –

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 o

r 
a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
C

h
ild

c
a
re

 
p
la

c
e
s
* 

(£
1
1

6
,5

0
0
 a

c
ro

s
s
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

) 

A
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

  4
. 

 
 

 

  D
el

eg
at

ed
 A

ct
io

n
 

 T
yp

e 
N

u
m

b
er

 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
a

w
a

rd
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
u

n
d

e
r 

C
S

O
 1

1
.0

2
  
 (

 *
  

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

s
 a

b
o

v
e

) 
2

 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
a

w
a

rd
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
u

n
d

e
r 

 C
S

O
 6

.0
3

 
1

 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
a

w
a

rd
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
u

n
d

e
r 

C
S

O
 6

.0
9

 
1

 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
to

 e
n

te
r 

in
to

 P
o

s
t 
T

e
n

d
e

r 
N

e
g
o

ti
a

ti
o
n

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
0

.1
 

1
 

 

Page 499



Page 500

This page is intentionally left blank



C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

’S
 O

F
F

IC
E

  

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
d

ec
is

io
n

s 
- 

D
e
le

g
a
te

d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 –

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

♦
 d

e
n

o
te

s
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d

 p
a
p

e
rs

 a
re

 E
x
e

m
p

t.
 

 
N

o
 

 
D

at
e 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 b

y 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

T
it

le
 

D
ec

is
io

n
 

1.
  

 
 

 

2.
 

 
 

 

  3
. 

 
 

 

  4
. 

 
 

 

  D
el

eg
at

ed
 A

ct
io

n
 

 T
yp

e 
N

u
m

b
er

 

W
a
iv

e
r 

o
f 

C
S

O
 6

.0
4

 s
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 0

8
.1

1
.0

7
 f
o

r 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 A

u
to

m
a
te

d
 Q

u
e
u

in
g
 

S
y
s
te

m
 –

 Q
-M

a
ti
c
. 

1
 

W
a
iv

e
r 

o
f 

C
S

O
 6

.3
 s

ig
n

e
d

 b
y
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 0

9
..
1

1
.0

7
 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

u
p
p

ly
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
b

o
o

s
te

r 
w

o
rk

s
 a

t 
R

iv
e

r 
P

a
rk

 H
o

u
s
e

 t
o

 r
e
m

e
d

y
 l
o

w
 w

a
te

r 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
u
m

 o
f 

£
1

0
,5

0
0

. 
1

 

W
a
iv

e
r 

o
f 

C
S

O
 6

.0
4

 s
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 1

4
.1

1
.0

7
 f
o

r 
th

e
 H

o
rn

s
e

y
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll 

P
ro

je
c
t.
 

1
 

W
a
iv

e
r 

o
f 

C
S

O
 6

.0
5

 s
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 2

2
.1

1
.0

7
 f
o

r 
IT

 S
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
(u

p
 t

o
 

£
5

0
,0

0
0

) 
1

 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 501



Page 502

This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2007 

Councillors  *Adje (Chair), *Diakides, *Meehan and *Santry 
 

*Present   
 

Also Present: Councillor  Basu 
 

 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 
BY 

 

PROC33.
 

MARKFIELD PARK CAFÉ (Report of the Director of Adult, Culture and 
Community Services - Agenda Item 5) 
 
The interleaved report was the subject of a motion to exclude the press 
and public from the meeting as it contained exempt information relating 
to the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the 
Authority holding that information). 
 
We noted that the main reason for needing to obtain further approval for 
this project arose from the original Agreed Maximum Price (AMP) not 
being sufficiently developed at the earlier design stage to provide the 
costs certainty needed. We also noted that the design and associated 
costings had progressed and the project had now been more fully 
costed, as was the case with AMP-based projects. 
 
We were informed that in order to avoid this requirement in future a full 
costing of projects needed to be achieved at the earliest possible stage. 
However, given that so many of the Council’s projects were time-
pressured, the risk remained that AMP-based projects might request 
approval before the design could be fully costed. 
 
Concern was expressed about the performance of external consultants 
and how it might have contributed to the increased costs arising from 
which we were advised that their performance was currently being 
reviewed by the Service in conjunction with the Corporate Procurement 
Unit. In this connection we were  advised that the consultants concerned 
had been drawn from the Council’s appropriate framework and that they 
were likely to come off that framework at the end of the financial year.   
 
With regard to the financial implications, we were advised that the 
shortfall now reported had not been considered in the current budget 
planning process and consequently the budget proposals for 2008-09 
did not include the additional requirement now required. In the event that 
alternative capital resources were not available to fund the shortfall, the 
Service would have to identify savings within the overall programme to 
contain these costs. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That approval be granted to a revised agreed maximum price 
for the contract for the construction of a café in Markfield Park 
up to the amount  set out in Appendix D to the interleaved 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DACCS 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16Page 503



MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2007 

 

report. 
 

2. That a further report be made to the Committee on the 
performance of external consultants and how it might have 
contributed to the increased costs on the project and, in the 
meantime, no further work be awarded to the consultants 
concerned.   

 
 

 
 
 
HPr 
 

 
CHARLES ADJE 
Chair 
 
 

Page 504



MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, 27 NOVEMBER 2007 

Councillors  *Adje (Chair), *Diakides, *Meehan and *Santry 
 

*Present  

 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 
BY 

 
PROC34.
 

MINUTES (Agenda Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 October 2007 be 
approved and signed. 

 

 
 
 
 
HLDMS 

PROC35.
 

FURTHER UPDATE ON THE PROCUREMENT OF AN ICT MANAGED 
SERVICES PROVIDER FOR THE BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE 
FUTURE PROGRAMME (Report of the Children and Young People’s 
Service - Agenda Item 6) 
 
We noted that there was now likely to be an additional update report on 
the progress of the procurement procedure prior to the award of the 
contract anticipated in May 2008. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That it be noted that the purpose of the procurement was to let a 
contract to a single supplier to provide a solution to supply and 
install all the required ICT equipment, software and networks for 
secondary schools in the Borough and provide maintenance and 
associated services for a minimum period of five years. 

 
2. That it be noted that this was the third of five reports, the first four 

of which were for information and the fifth for award of contract, 
scheduled at key stages to keep us informed of progress. 

 
3. That the procurement procedure currently underway and progress 

made to date as outlined in the interleaved report be noted. 
 

4. That it be noted that the outcome of the procurement would lead 
to a key decision to award the ICT Management Managed 
Services Provider for the Building Schools for the Future 
programme with a total contract value of approximately £26 
million for a five year contract term.    

 

 
 

PROC36.
 

TETHERDOWN PRIMARY EXPANSION - PHASE 2 (Report of the 
Director of the Children and Young People’s Service - Agenda Item 7) 
 
Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the  
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and  
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to 
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the  
Authority holding that information). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 505



MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, 27 NOVEMBER 2007 

 

 
Arising from our consideration of paragraph 10.3 of the report, 
clarification was sought and confirmation given that that a condition 
survey of the roof and a specialist condition survey of roof beams, dry rot 
and asbestos had not revealed the need for any works other than those 
for which provision had been made in the cost plan.     
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That authority to award the contract for the Phase 2 Expansion of 
Tetherdown Primary School be delegated to the Director of the 
Children and Young People’s Service in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Children and Young People within the 
boundary of the project budget. 
 

2. That approval of the contract award be based on a robust cost 
plan not to exceed a maximum construction value as defined in 
Appendix A to the interleaved report. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DCYPS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DCYPS 
 

PROC37.
 

OATFIELD HOUSE AND TWYFORD HOUSE - REWIRING SCHEME 
(Report of the Director of Urban Environment - Agenda Item 8) 
 
Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the  
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and  
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to 
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the  
Authority holding that information). 
 
Arising from our consideration of paragraph 13.1 of the report, we sought 
clarification of whether the proposed provision of TV core services 
envisaged as part of the project would take account of the impending 
change from analogue to digital systems. Officers present at our meeting 
were not able to confirm the position and we asked that a check be 
made to ensure that this change would be taken into account.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 11.01(a) and 
subject to final consideration of any leaseholder observations at 
the expiry of the second Section 20 Notice period, approval be 
granted to the award of the contract for rewiring works at Oatfield 
House and Twyford House to Raytell Electrical Ltd in the sum of 
£1,056,370 with a contract period of 28 weeks.  

 
2. That the Director Urban Environment be authorised to approve 

the award of the contract after expiry of the second Section 20 
Notice period and the consideration of comments received from 
leaseholders. 

 
3. That the total estimated cost excluding fees as detailed in 

paragraph 2.1 of Appendix A to the interleaved report be noted. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DUE 
 
 
 
 
DUE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DUE 
 

Page 506



MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, 27 NOVEMBER 2007 

 

PROC38.
 

KENLEY AND NORTHOLT, BROADWATER FARM ESTATE - LIFT 
IMPROVEMENTS (Report of the Director of Urban Environment - 
Agenda Item 9) 
 
Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the  
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and  
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to 
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the  
Authority holding that information). 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 11.01(a), 
approval be granted to the award of the contract for lift 
modernisation works at Kenley and Northolt, Broadwater Farm 
Estate  to Precision Lift  Limited in the sum of £467,738 with a 
contract period of 40 weeks. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DUE 

PROC39.
 

RE-PROCUREMENT HIGHWAYS AND STREET LIGHTING 
CONTRACTS(Report of the Director of Urban Environment - Agenda 
Item 10) 
 
We noted that in reaching a decision on whether or not to grant a further 
contract extension, we were required to balance the risk of challenge 
highlighted by the external legal advisor Trowers and Hamlins against 
the potential advantages of granting the extension which the report 
stated to be - 

 

• Financial and other deadlines made an April changeover more 
convenient. 

• An extension would allow a new permit scheme to be 
introduced in spring 2008 to be incorporated into the contract. 

• A new Head of Service who should be in place within the year  
would be able to input into the tender process. 

 
We expressed our displeasure that a failure in forward planning had left 
our Committee with little option other than to agree to a further extension 
of these contracts and we asked that the Head of Procurement report to 
us on all Council contracts which were due for renewal in the next 12-24 
months.   
 
We also expressed reservations about the quality of some of the work 
performed by the highways contractor and we asked officers to ensure 
that suitable performance measures were incorporated into the extended 
highways contracts. 
 
Having balanced the risk of challenge against the potential advantages 
of extending the contracts, we    
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the highways planned and responsive work be packaged 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HPr 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DUE 

Page 507



MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, 27 NOVEMBER 2007 

 

into a single lot and street lighting as a separate lot within one 
contract and tenders be sought for a two year term starting 1 April 
2009 with the option for up to 2 annual extensions.  

 
2. That the existing contracts be extended for a further year from 1 

April 2008 to 31 March 2009 to enable full European Tendering 
Procedures and timing of work to enable capital works to be 
completed. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
DUE 

 
 
 

PROC40.
 

REACTIVE AND PLANNED MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS FOR THE 
OPERATIONAL BUILDING PORTFOLIO (Report of the Director of 
Corporate Services - Agenda Item 11) 
 
Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the  
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and  
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to 
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the  
Authority holding that information). 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That approval be granted to the appointment of a Managing Agent 
to co-ordinate and manage the delivery of planned and reactive 
services across the operational building portfolio. 

 
2. That John Rowan and Partners continue to support the delivery of 

the integrated maintenance contract with support, guidance and 
advice from the Construction Procurement Group. 

 
3. That the current reactive maintenance contract with “Inspace 

Maintain Ltd” be extended for a period of 6 months, until the new 
contract was in place for the 1 September 2008. 

 
4. That the estimated Consultancy, Contractor costs and the impact 

statement on Homes for Haringey detailed in Appendix B to the 
interleaved report be noted. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DCS 
 
 
 
 
DCS 
 
 
 
 
DCS 
 
 
 
 
DCS 
 

 
CHARLES ADJE 
Chair 
 
 

Page 508



Agenda Item 19Page 509

Document is exempt



Page 520

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 521

Document is exempt



Page 532

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 20Page 533

Document is exempt



Page 540

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 The Council's Performance - October 2007
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 07_Council's Performance - Appendix

	9 Reorganisation of Moselle & William C Harvey Special Schools
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 09_Special Schools - Appendix
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 09_Special Schools - Appendix 2
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 09_Special Schools - Appendix 3
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 09_Special Schools - Appendix 4
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 09_Special Schools - Appendix 5
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 09_Special Schools - Appendix 6
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 09_Special Schools - Appendix 7

	10 Review of Haringey Council's School Funding Formula and Scheme for Financing Schools
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 10_Schools Funding Formula - Appendix 1
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 10_Schools Funding - Appendix 1.2
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 10_Schools Funding Formula - Appendix 1.3
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 10_Schools Funding Formula - Appendix 1.4
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 10_Schools Funding Formula - Appendix 1.4(2)
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 10_Schools Funding - Appendix 2
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 10_Schools Funding Formula - Appendix 3

	11 Introduction of Free National Off Peak Bus Travel for Elderly and Disabled People and Implications for Haringey
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 11_Freedom Pass - Appendix

	12 Central Leeside Area Action Plan Issues and Options Paper
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 12_Central Leesside Action Plan - Appendix

	13 Core Strategy - Issues and Options
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 13_Core Strategy - Appendix 1
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 13_Core Strategy - Appendix 2
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 13_Core Strategy - Appendix 3

	14 Local Development Framework - Annual Monitoring Report 2006-07
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 14_Local Development Framework - Appendix 2
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 14_Local Development Framework - Appendix 3
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 14 LDF - Planning Oligations

	15 Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 15_Delegated Decisions - Appendix 1
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 15_Delegated Decisions - Appendix 2
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 15_Delegated Decisions - Appendix 3

	16 Minutes of Sub-Bodies
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 16 b_Procurement Minutes

	19 Disposal of Surplus HRA Dwellings and Land
	Cabinet_2007.12.18_Item 19_HRA dwellings and land - Appendix A

	20 Disposal of Derelict Land at the Rear of  Muswell Hill Library

